CCTIINAL RECEIVED

JAN18 2012
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING BOARD
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE HEALTH FAC:E‘JJEB%:.
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FAC]LI"BERWCES REV
INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY .E - OO!"J_')\
Current Facility Name Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Address 1100 East Norris Drive
City Ottawa Zip Code 61350 County LaSalle County
Name of current licensed entity for the facility Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Does the current licensee: own this facility X OR lease this facility (if leased, check if sublease O)
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

Illinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen.  Sue Rezin
State Senate District Number 38 Mailing address of the State Senator 103 D Capitol Building

Springficld, IL 62706

Illinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep. Pam Roth

Statc Representative District Number 75 Mailing address of the State Representative
214 N. Stratton Officc Building, Springfield, IL 62706

OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will not
be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project Completion” for a definition of project completion) by the time of
the proposed ownership change? Yes O No B. If yes, refer to Section 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by Project #

FACILITY'S BED OR DIALYSIS STATION CAPACITY BY CATEGORY OF SERVICE (Complete
"APPENDIX A" attached to this application)

FACILITY'S OTHER CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AS DEFINED IN 77 1AC 1100 (Complete "APPENDIX A"
attached to this application)

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).

Exact Legal Name of Applicant OSF Healthcare System

Address 800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue

City, State & Zip Code Pcoria, Illinois 61603

Type of ownership of the cuirent licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/OPERATING ENTITY OF THE FACILITY

NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Address 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code Oitawa, [llinois 61350

Typc of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Govemmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OWN THE "BRICKS AND MORTAR"

(BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT FROM THE

OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY

Exact Legal Name of Entity That Will Own the Site Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code Ottawa, INinois 61350

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship

X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Govemmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

TRANSACTION TYPE. CHECK THE FOLLOWING THAT APPLY TO THE TRANSACTION:

O Purchasc resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

O Lease resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

O Stock transfer resulting in the issuance of a license to a different entity from current licensee;

O Stock transfer resulting in no change from current licensee;

O Assignment or transfer of assets resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from the current licensee;

[0 Assignment or transfer of assets not resulting in the issuance of a licensc to an entity different from the current
licensee;

B Change in membership or sponsorship of a not-for-profit corporation that is the licensed entity;

B Change of 50% or more of the voling members of a not-for-profit corporation's board of directors that controls a health
care facility's operations, license, certification or physical plant and assets;

O Change in the sponsorship or control of the person who is licensed, certified or owns the physical plant and assets of a
governmental health care facility;

[J Sale or transfer of the physical plant and related assets of a health care facility not resulting in a change of current
licensee;

O Any other transaction that results in a person obtaining control of a health carc facility's operation or physical plant and
assets, and explain in "Attachment 3 Narrative Description”

APPLICATION FEE. Submit the application fee in the form of a check or money order for $2,500 payable to the 1llinois
Department of Public Health and append as ATTACHMENT #1.

FUNDING. Indicate the type and source of funds which will be used to acquire the facility (e.g.. mortgage through Health
Facilities Authority; cash gifl from parent company, etc.) and append as ATTACHMENT #2.

ANTICIPATED ACQUISITION PRICE: $0.00 ( Please seec Narrative Description at Attachment # 3)

FAIR MARKET YALUE OF THE FACILITY: $58.026.000 (net book value) as of October 31, 2011.
{to determine fair market value, refer to 77 [AC 1130.140)

DATE OF PROPOSED TRANSACTION: _ Closing Date of April 30, 2012, contingent on HFSRB Permit

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. Provide a narrative description cxplaining the transaction, and append it to the
application as ATTACHMENT #3.

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT (co-applicants must atso provide this information). Corporations and Limited
Liability Companies must provide a current Certificate of Good Standing from the 1llinois Secretary of State. Partnerships
must provide the name and address of each partner and specify whether each is a general or limited partner. Append this
information to the application as ATTACHMENT #4.

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. Provide a copy of the document(s) which detail the terms and conditions of the
proposed transaction (purchase, lease, stock transfer, etc). Applicants should note that the document(s) submitted should
reflect the applicant's {and co-applicant's, if applicable) involvement in the transaction. The document must be signed by
both parties and contain language stating that the transaction is contingent upon approval of the [llinois Health Facilities
Planning Board. Append this document{(s) to the application as ATTACHMENT #5.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (co-applicants must aiso provide this information). Per 77 IAC 1130,520(b)(3), an
applicant must demonstrate it has sufficient funds to finance the acquisition and to operate the facility for 36 months by
providing evidence of 2 band rating of “A”™ or better (that must be less than two years old) from Fitch, Moody or Standard
and Poor’s rating agencies or evidence of compliance with the financial viability review criteria (as applicable) to the type
of facility being acquired (as specified at 77 IAC 1120). Append as ATTACHMENT #6.

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual representing the applicant to whom all correspondence and inquiries
pertaining 1o this application are 0 be directed. (Note: other persons representing the applicant not named below will need
written authorization from the applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in
relationship to this application).

Name Mark E. Hohulin, OSF Healthcare System, Senior Vice President

Address 800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue

City, State & Zip Code Peoria, 1L 61603

Telephone (309) 624-2360




19. ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also authorized to discuss this
application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name Stephen Moore

Address Hinshaw & Culbertson LLP, 100 Park Avenue, P.O. Box 1389
City, State & Zip Code Rockford, Illinois 61602

Telephone {815)  490-4500 Eat:

20. CERTIFICATION

1 certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. I certify that the categories of service, number of beds and/or dialysis stations within the facility will not change as
part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s) by the federal government,
licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of llinois. T certify that I am fully aware that a change in
ownership will void any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or
altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 IAC 1130.520(f} prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change.
I also certify that the applicant has not already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement
to acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract contains a clause that the transaction is contingent upon

approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer %_ D // »
Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer Kevin Schoeplei

Title of Authorized Officer: Chief Executive Officer, OSF Healthcare System
Address 800 Glen Oak Avenue
City, State & Zip Code Peoria, Illinois 61603

Telephone (309) 655-4982 Date: ! Z[ £ Z!g

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.

See Attachment #7 for the verifications for OSF Healthcare System




APPENDIX A
FACILITY BED AND DIALYSIS STATION CAPACITY AND CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

Complete the following for the facility for which the change of ownership is requested. The facility’s bed and dialysis station
capacity must be consistent with the State Board’s Inventory of Health Care Facilities.

FACILITY NAME Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center CITY: Ottawa

Indicate (by placing an “X™) the type of facility for which the change of ownership is requested:
B Hospital; O Long-term Care Facility; [0 Dialysis Facility, [0 Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center,

Provide the bed capacity by category of service:

SERVICE # of Beds SERVICE # of Beds
Medical/Surgical 54 Nursing Care 0
Obstetrics 14 Shelter Care 0
Pediatrics 0 DD Adults* 0
Intensive Care 3 DD Chnldren** 0
Acute Mental lilness 26 Chronic Mental Iliness 0
Rehabilitation 0 Children's Medical Care 0
Neonatal Intensive Care 0 Children's Respite Care 0

*Includes ICF/DD 16 and fewer bed facilities; **Includes skilled pediatric 22 years and under

Chronic Renal Dialysis: Enter the number of ESRD stations:

Indicate (by placing an “X™) those categories of service for which the facility is approved.

Cardiac Catheterization Open Heart Surgery
Subacute Care Hospital Model Kidney Transplantation
Selected Organ Transplantation Postsurgical Recovery Care Center Model

Non-Haospital Based Ambulatory Surgery and Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Centers

Indicate (by placing an *X”) if the facility is a o limited or o multi-specialty facility and indicate the surgical specialties
provided.

Cardiovascular Ophthalmology
Dermatology Oral/Maxitlofacial
Gastroenterology Orthopedic
General/Other (includes any procedure that is not Otolaryngology
included in the other specialties) Plastic Surgery
Neurological Podiatry
Obstetrics/Gynecology Thoracic

Urology




Hospital Profile - CY 2010 Ottawa Regional Hospita! and Healthcare Center Ottawa Page 1

Dwnerchip, Management and General Information Patients by Race Patiemnts by Ethnici
ADMINISTRATOR NAME:  Robert A. Chaffin VWhite 03.9% Hispanic or Latino: 2.5%
ADMINSTRATOR PHONE  1-B15-421-5459 Black 1.0% Not Hispanic or Latino: B7.2%
OWNERSHIP: Ottawa Regiona’ Hospital & Heattheare Center American |ndian 0.0%  Unknoan: 0.3%
OPERATOR: Ottawa Regiona! Hospital & Heatthcare Center Asian 0.1%

MANAGEMENT: Nat for Profit Corporation (Mol Ghurch-R Hawaian® Pacitc oow  (DFHNumber 2071
CERTIFICATION: Unknown: oaw  HPA co2
FACILITY DESIGNATION:  General Hospital H3A 2
ADDRESS 1100 East Norris Drive Ly: Ottawa COUNTY: LaSalie Courty
Facility WHilization Data by Cat of Service
Authorized  Pesk Beds Averege AVEIDge CON StaiT Ban
. . CON Beds Satup and Pogk tapatien! Obwsrvalion Lengin Datty Occupancy Oceupancy
Clinical Service 12010 siafed Consur  Admhsions  Days ORys  ottay Centus  12931n2010 Rata %
Medical/Surgical 54 54 k) 1,082 6102 1007 a6 105 36.% 36.4
0-14 Years 89 194
15-44 Yoars 337 618
4564 Years 466 1,373
65-74 Years 283 4
75 Yearn + 807 Z2776
Pediatric ¢ o o o o o oD 0.0 0.0 0.0
intensive Care 5 £ ] a 837 26 27 24 47.3 473
Dérect Admigsion 317 837
Tranchere ' 0 [/}
CbstetricGynecology 14 1 o am 1,008 240 a3 a7 264 281
Matemity 399 1,093
Clean Gynecology 2 3
Neonata) o 0 00 0.0 0.0 0.0
Long Term Care ] ¢ 0.0 Qg 0.0 6.0
Swing Beds ] a 6.0 0.0
Acute Mental lineas 8 i) 21 [ 4,445 4 47 122 46.0 48.0
Rehabititztion 0 o 0 0 o 1] 0.0 0.0 0.0 Q.0
Long-Term Acute Care ] o a ] 4] o 0.0 0.0 0o 0.0
Dedceted Obsenvation g [
Facility Uillzation 99 3646 12,483 1277 38 3.7 38.079
{includes ICU Direct Admissions
Inpatients and O jemnts S r Source
Medicare Medicaid Other Public  Privafe Insurance Privafe Pay  Charity Care Totats
44.4% 22 2% 0.1% 9% 4.1% 53%
inpatients 1619 809 2 873 150 183 a.048
30.7% 11.7% 0.0% 459% 3.2% 0.4%
Outpatients 17085 5388 5 20263 1424 1890 44,152
Finonciol Teor Reported;. 5012009 p 473052010 fnpatient and Qutpatiert Net Revenue by Payor Source . Total Charity
Charity Care Expense
Medicare Medicaid Other Public  Private nsurance  Private Pay Tetals Care 2 105,482
Inpatient 4B.6% 12.5% 1.6% 34.4% 4.8% so0ow EXpense rora (‘:hamy
Revenue n s
(% 11784857  3,171.800 401,365 B.708,430 1215382 25270880 1289148 | oo eeof
Cntpatient 30.4% 7.2% 19% 56.9% I6% 100.0% Het Revenue
Revenue ( §) 4,700,751 3,476,040 Q30,741 37,528,725 1,716,080 48,363,226 814,238 29%
Birthing Data Newborn Nursery UHilization Orman Transplantation
Number of Tota) Births: 370 Level 1 Patient Days e84 Kid o
Number of Live Births: 260 Level 2 Pafien: Days 317 g o
. - - -~
Birthing Rooms; 0 Leve! 2+ Patier Days 0 Lung: o
Labor Rooms: g Total Nursery Patientdays 1,101 HeartLung: 6
Delivery Rooms: il Panceas: o
Labor-Delivery-Recovery Roams: £ Laboratory Studies Uver: o
La%or-Delivery-Recovery-Postpartum Rooms: i} Inpatient Studies 157812 :
C-Section Rooms: 1 Quipatient Studies 432625 Tota: 0
CSections Performed: e} Studies Perfomned Under Contract 230678
* Note: Accarding to Board acfien on 10728/10. Cawa Regional reduced M'S beds by £ and AMI by 2 beds.
APPENDIX A




HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010 Ottawa Regional Hospilal and Healthcare Centl Ottawa Pape 2
5 {Operating B Utilizati
Surgical Specialty Operatng Rooms Sumical Cases Surgica! Houry Hours per Case
Inpatient Qwipateni Combined Total Inpatient Owipatert  inpatied Oulpatent TotalHours Irpatent Outpatient
Cardiovascular 0 1] 0 1] 1] 2 ] 7 7 0.0 23
Dematology 0 1} ¢ G ¢] ] 1] o 0 0.0 0.0
Genera’ 0 a k| 3 182 430 e 4E5 634 1.0 i1
Gastroenterology 0 0 1] [ 1] 1] o 0 1] 0o 0.0
Newrotogy 0 0 ] o 13 10 m 30 o 55 30
OBIGymecology i o i o 70 £ 120 432 552 1.7 12
OralManxiltofacral 0 0 0 0 i 1 2 5 7 2.0 X
Ophthalmology 0 ¢] 0 0 1] 23 0 ape D6 0.0 e X]
Orihopedic 0 1] ] 0 @ n? 210 40 585 24 12
Ololaryngology 0 ¢ ] 0 3 170 7 204 211 23 12
Plastic Surgery 1} 4] 1] 0 3 ® 2 37 38 a7 13
Podiairy a [ 1] D o 49 1] 72 72 [H1] 5
Thorachy 0 0 o [1] i 1] 4 1] 4 4.0 0.0
Urolopy 0 ] 1 1 a5 464 124 68232 T20 1.5 1.3
Tolals 0 0 4 4 a9 2144 898 2528 424 2.0 1.2
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Reoovery Stations 5 Stage 2 Recovery Stations E
Dedicated and Non-Dedicated Procedure Room UWtikration )
Procedure Rooms Surgical Cases Surpical Hours Hours per Case
Prooedure Type Inpatient Outpatent Combined Total Inpaterd Outpalient Inpafient Outpatiert Tots! Hours Inpaten Outpaiierd
Gastroinres tinal 1] 4] 2 2 138 1486 €« 1045 137 0.7 0.7
Laser Eye Provedures a 0 1 1 0 314 D 157 157 00 1B}
Pain Management a 0 3 3 1 622 o 1] 1 0.0 1f1]
Cystoscopy 0 0 0 0 0 ) 0 0 o 00 0.0
Multipurpose Mon-Dedicated Rooms
o o 0 1) 0 0 0 1] o 0.0 0.0
o 0 a 1] 0 0 a o o 0.0 if1]
1] 0 1] 0 0 D 0 ] o 00 0o
Cardiac Catheterization Labs Candiac Catheterization Ufiliration
Tola’ Cath Labs (Dedicated+Nondedicated labs): 0 Total Cardiac Cath Procedures: q
Cath Labs used for Angiopraphy procedures o Diagnostic Catheterizationt {0-14) o
Dedrated Diagnostic Catheterization Labs o Diagnostic Cathelerizations (15+} 0
Ded.cated Intervertiona® Catheterization Labs 0 Interventional Catheterizations (0-14): o
Bedcated EP Catheterization Labs o Interventional Catheterization {15¢) 0
Emergency/Trauma Care EP Catheterizations. (15+) o
Cerlifed Trauma Center No Cardias § Data
- Leve| 2 Lardiat surpery Lata
Level of Trauma Senvice Notlm: :131'.0 ¢ Nt Anplicable Tota! Ca '_F"ao Surgery Cases: 0
Operating Rooms Dedicated for Trauma Care 0 Pediatrio (D - 14 Years): 0
Number of Trauma Viskts: 0 Adult {15 Years and Oider): o
Patents Admitted from Trauma 1] F?:?;’m :;‘izgg;;ﬁ;gg:éﬁaes) o
Emergency Service Type: Comprehensive " .
Number of Emergency Room Stations a Yotal Outpat 1%%%’—"@ 182,668
; . el Vi
';::;:: If;:: dbme’;:“i”'m' 'g:ﬂgg Outpatent Vists a the Hosplall Campus: 187,447
Total ED Visits (Emergency+Traumal: 19,999 Outpatient Visws Offsite/off camps 5.222
Diagnosticinterventional Equipment Examinations Radiation Egquipment. Therapie:
Own Coniract Inpatemt Owipr Conzract Owned Conract Treatmenis
General Radiography/Fluornscopy ¢ 0 2488 17.E71 p  Lkhotrpsy 0 0 0
Nuclear Medizine 1 (] 157 1010 p  LinearAcoelerator 0 0 0
Mammography 2 0 2 3B 0 Image Guided Rad Therapy 0 o c
Utrasound ] D @586 4,044 0 Intensy Modulated Rad Thrpy 0 1] 0
Angiography 0 o High Dose Brachytherapy 0 0 0
Diagnostic Angiography 0 0 0 powon Beam Therapy 0 g 0
interventional Angiography 0 0 0 Gamme Knife 0 0 0
Posiron Emission Tomoaraphy (PET) 0 1 0 o 38 _
Computerized Axial Tomagraphy {CAT} 2 D £78 7,838 i} Cyber knife 0 0 0
MMagretie Resonanee Imaging 1 D 130 1,803 0
Source: 2010 Annual Hospital Quesiionnate, IEnois Department of Public Health, Hea%h Systems Development.
APPENDIX A
6




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING BOARD
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FOR THE
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARE FACILITY

INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY

Current Facility Name Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 East Norris Drive

City Ottawa Zip Code 61350 County LaSalle County

Name of current licensed entity for the facility Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Does the current licensee: own this facility X OR lease this facility {if leased, check if sublease 0)

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship

X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

lllinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located: Sen. Sue Rezin

State Senate District Number 38 Mailing address of the State Senator 103 D Capitol Building

Springfield, IL 62706

Hinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located: Rep. Pam Roth

State Representative District Number 75 Mailing address of the State Representative

214 N. Stratton Office Building, Springfield, 1L 62706

OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board issued a permit that will not
be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project Completion™ for a definition of project completion) by the time of
the proposed ownership change? Yes [0 No ®. If yes, refer to Section 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by Project #

FACILITY'S BED OR DIALYSIS STATION CAPACITY BY CATEGORY OF SERVICE (Complete
"APPENDIX A" attached to this application)

FACILITY'S OTHER CATEGORIES OF SERVICE AS DEFINED IN 77 IAC 1100 (Complete "APPENDIEX A"
attached to this application)

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after this page).
Exact Legal Name of Applicant  Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code Ouawa, Illinois 61350

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following;) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/OPERATING ENTITY OF THE FACILITY
NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.
Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code Outawa, lllinois 61350

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify

BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OWN THE "BRICKS AND MORTAR"
(BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT FROM THE
OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY

Exact Legal Namc of Entity That Wili Own the Site Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code Ottawa, 1llinois 61350

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity {check one of the following:) Sole Proprietorship
X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation Partnership Governmental
Limited Liability Company Other, specify




19. ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attomney, other individual who is also authorized to discuss this
application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name Douglas Swill
Address Drnker Biddle & Reath, 191 North Wacker Drive, Ste. 3700

City, State & Zip Code Chicago, Illinois 60606

Telephone (312) 569-1270 Ext:

20. CERTIFICATION

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief, 1 certify that the categories of service, number of beds and/or dialysis stations within the facility will not change as
part of this transaction, ] certify that no adverse action has been taken against the applicant(s} by the federal government,
licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of Illinois. ! certify that I am fully aware that a change in
owncrship will void any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or
altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 IAC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the proposed ownership change.
1 also certify that the applicant has not already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement
to acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract contains a clause that the transaction is contingent upon

approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer )

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer Robert Chaffin ﬂ/ -

Title of Authorized Officer: President and Chief Executive Officer of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

Address 1100 East Nomis Drive

City, State & Zip Code Ottawa, Hlinois 61350

Telephone (815) 431-5456 Date: /-7 g -}t

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this page.

See Attachment #7 for the verifications for Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center






10.  FUNDING. Indicate the type and source of funds which will be used to acquire the facility (e.g., mortgage through
Health Facilities Authority; cash gift from parent company, etc.) and append as ATTACHMENT #2.

There is no acquisition price for this transaction, and no source of funding is necessary to acquire the facility, Please see the
Narrative Description in Attachment #3 for details of transaction, including OSF’s commitment to ongoing capital and cash
funding to Ottawa, as well as OSF’s “A” Bond rating from Standard & Poor’s in Attachment #6,

ATTACHMENT #2

10



14. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION, Provide a narrative description explaining the transaction, and append to the
application as ATTACHMENT #3.

Overview Summary / Purpose

OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”) and Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center {(“Ottawa™), both Ilinois not-for-profit
corporations, seek approval of this Certificate of Exemption (“COE”) to allow for an affiliation among OSF, Ottawa, and its

affiliated corporations and charitable foundation {collectively, the “Ottawa Parties™).

This affiliation will provide both OSF and the Ottawa Parties the opportunity to continue the historical missions of OSF and the
Ottawa Parties, as well as benefit residents of the Ottawa service area, by: (a) enabling a sustainable and quality health care
delivery system that promotes greater patient access to integrated primary, secondary, and advanced terliary healthcare
services; (b) achieving excellence in clinical innovations, services, quality, costs and outcomes; and {c) achieving maximum
efficiencies in the delivery of health care éervices, thereby achieving cost savings wherever possible consistent with healthcare

reform (rends.

Background

Ottawa, recognizing healthcare refonm was inevitable and that their ability to successfully respond as a stand-alone hospital
was constrained, proactively sought out a strategic partner to ensure the preservation and enhancemnent of its historical role and
mission of providing healthcare programs for the population in and around Ottawa, Hlinois. This hospital-initiated strategy
fostered discussions with OSF (the Applicant) which ultimately led to an Affiliation Agreement between the parties (attached

as Attachment #5), and as required, this COE Permit Application to change Ottawa’s ownership.

OSF owns and operates healthcare facilitics in 1llinois and Michigan. OSF’s Mission is to serve all persons with the greatest
care and love. The organization is nationally recognized as a leading integrated healthcare network. In 2011 OSF ranked 25

among nearly 600 integrated healthcare networks in the U.5.

The proposed Ottawa and OSF affiliation provides both parties the opportunity to continue their respective missions and

strategically respond 1o emerging healthcare trends and reform initiatives.

Proposed Transaction

Upon the Closing Date (scheduled for April 30, 2012 contingent upon HFSRB approval), OSF will serve as the sole member of
Otiawa and shall hold Reserved Powers with respect to the governance and operations of Ottawa. Ottawa, directly or
indirectly, will be the sole sharcholder or member, as applicable, of the other Ottawa Parties. Ottawa shall hold reserved
powers substantially similar to the Reserved Powers held by OSF with respect to the governance and operations of the other

Ottawa Partics. Detailed pre-Closing and post-Closing organizational charts arc attached to this Narrative Description.

Although there is no acquisition or purchase price, OSF will fund, on an ongoing basis, capital requirements identified in the
capital budgets of Ottawa, as approved by OSF in accordance with OSF’s capital allocation policies and procedures, in order to

sustain and enhance the delivery of high quality health care services in the Ottawa service area. In addition, on the Closing

Date OSF will fund the redemption or defeasance of all outstanding indebtedness under Ottawa's Master Trust Indenture,
ATTACHMENT #3

11




resulting in the termination of Otlawa’s Master Trust Indenture and the release and discharge of all liens and other interests
securing Ottawa’s obligations issued under its Master Trust Indenture. Additionally, OSF will fund capital and cash flow

requirements for the implementation of an Epic (as defined below) electronic medical records sysiem at Ottawa.

OSF has an “A” bond rating from Standard & Poor’s, as described in Attachment #6, and is committed to supporting future

capital projects of QOttawa.

Ottawa will maintain its license under the name Otiawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center and will likely do business as

OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center, once the change of ownership affiliation transaction is closed.

Board Selection Process

Upon Closing, OSF will serve as the sole member of Ottawa and shall hold Reserved Powers with respect to the governance

and operations of Ottawa.

The board of directors of Ottawa as comprised following the Closing (“Ottawa Board”™) will continue to have fiduciary
responsibility for the overall performance of the facilities, services and programs of Ottawa pursuant to the Ottawa Bylaws and

Articles of Incorporation, subject to OSF's Reserved Powers,

The Ottawa Board will include 13 — 15 voting members, plus the Chief Executive Officer of Ottawa who will be a non-voting

ex officio Board member, as well as four Honorary Board Members (defined below).

The initial Ottawa Board will include 13 voting members, comprised of:
l.  Seven board members named by OSF (“OSF Board Members™); and

2. Six board members, who are residents of the Ottawa service area (“Community Board Members™), selected based on
diversity of geography and skills. The initial Community Board Members will be selected by agreement of OSF and

Ottawa from among those persons who are currently members of the Ottawa board of directors.

The initial Ottawa Board shall also include four non-voting board members selected by agreement of OSF and Ottawa, each of
whom were members of the Ottawa board of directors as comprised prior to Closing (“Honorary Board Members™). The
Honorary Board Members shall serve a single term ending on the date his/her term as a member of the board of directors of
Ottawa would have expired. Thercafter, there will be no Honorary Board Members. OSF Board Members and Commiunity
Board Members will serve three year staggered terms. However, the initial terms shall be for one, two and three years each,
followed by three year terms. The initial terms of the OSF Board Members and the Community Board Members shall be
established to ensure that term expirations are split among {he Board member catepories. There will be no limitation on the
number of terms an OSF Board Member may serve, but the Ottawa Community Board members may not serve more than three

consccutive tenns.
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Anticipated Benefits

This affiliation will provide both OSF and the Ottawa Parties the opportunity to continue the historical missions of OSF and the
Ottawa Parties, and benefit residents of the Ottawa service area, by: (a) enabling a sustainable and quality health care delivery
system that promotes greater patient access to integrated primary, secondary, and advanced tertiary healthcare services; (b)
achieving excellence in clinical innovations, services, quality, costs and outcomes ; (¢} achicving maximum efficiencies in the
delivery of heaith care services resulting in cost savings wherever possible and {d) integration of an electronic medical record

(EMR) resulting in greater coordination and alignment of care.
Access

Access for the Ottawa community will benefit by the proposed affiliation as there will be no decrease in service scope or levels
of care currently provided. Rather, the Applicants anticipate the affiliation will support an increased clinical program scope
through OSF’s broader capabilities, sub-specialization and disease-based population management. In addition, the Applicant
certifies that the proposed affiliation will not result in restricting patient admissions and that Ottawa’s admissions policies will

not become more restrictive.

Potential Cost Savings

The Applicants anticipate that the affiliation will result in cost savings for Ottawa and the patients it serves. Ottawa patients
will benefit from the planncd purchase and installation of an cnterprise-wide, integrated Epic application software for elimical
services (“Epic™). The installation and implementation of Epic will help contain or reduce healthcare delivery costs and help
OSF and the Ottawa Parlies continue to provide high quality integrated healthcare services. Epic will also contribute to OSF’s
and the Ottawa Parties’ commitiment to provide high quality healthcare by improving clinical processes and workflow

efficiency, improving patient safety and facilitating clinicat decision support.

Beneflicial cost savings and improved service efficiencies will also be realized from the integration of the clinical and non-
clinical operations of Ottawn with the OSF system. The parties will work together to evaluate and pursue opportunities for
clinical integration and collaboration, and to establish standardized evidence-based quality metrics in order to improve quality
of and access to care. The community will also benefit and experience cost savings through access to more clinical specialists

allowing the patients the ability to receive office visits and care locally rather than having to travel.

The Applicants have verified (hat the categories of service and number of beds reflected in the IDPH Inventory of Health Care
Facilities will not substantially change for at least 12 months following the Closing Date. Following the Closing, the
Applicants anticipate engaging in an evaluation and infegration process (o maximize the potential clinical and other efficiencies

that may result fromn the affiliation.
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Charity Care

1n order to further QSF’s mission in Ottawa and surrounding communities, Ottawa’s existing charity care policies will be
supplemented after the Closing Date by OSF’s Charity Assistance Policy for Illinois Hospitals, which not only complies with,
but exceeds the requircments of lilinois law, including the Illinois Hospital Uninsured Patient Discount Act. As certified in
the verifications on Attachment # 7, OSF and Otlawa will not adopt a more restrictive charity care policy than was in effect one
year prior to the Closing Date of the proposed transaction, and Ottawa’s compliant charity care policy, modified with OSF’s
more gencrous Charity Assistance Policy for 1llinois Hospitals, will remain in effect for at least a two (2) year period following

the Closing Date,

In general, the OSF Charity Assistance Policy for lllinois Hospitals is more generous than the current Ottawa Charity Care
Program. For example, all OSF uninsurcd patients who are not otherwise eligible for free, discounted or catastrophic charity
care receive a 20% discount on billed charges. After an account is sent to collections, if a patient wants to apply for OSF
Charity Assistance, the entity billing the patient must give the patient 3¢ days after the account was placed in collections to
apply for assistance. In addition, the corporation utilizes a presumptive charity procedure for patients who fail to provide
financial information normally considered in making charity eligibility determinations. When OSF is able to obtain
comparable information from independent sources such as public records, the corporation applies the same charity discount it
would have provided, if the paiient had completed a Charity Application and submitted the required financial documents.
Finally, a patient may appeal OSF Charity and Illinois Uninsured Patient Discount determinations. The appeal procedures are

contained within the OSF Charity/lllinoés Uninsured Discount Procedures.
Conclusion

The proposed Ottawa and OSF affiliation provides both parties the opportunity to continue their respective and historical
missions and strategically respond to emerging healthcare trends and reform initiatives, Both parties desire this transaction and
respectfully request approval of this COE Application. The parties look forward (o addressing any remaining questions from

the Health Facilities and Services Review Board.

We have attached copies of the pre-affiliation and post affiliation organizational charts, and multiple letters of support for this

affiliation,

ATTACHMENT #3
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Pre-Affiliation
Dttawa Regionaf Hospital and Healtheare Center
Corpotate Structure

Ottawa Reghanal Hospiial and Healthcare Cemer
{Nb-for-Profh)

Fox River Cancer Center LLC
{For-Profit 38% Owrrership by Ottawsa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center)

Radlation Oncology of Nonhernillinois, LLC
{Far-Profit 57% Ownership by Ottawa Regional Hospltal & Healthcare Cerer}
[ — I ]
Ottawa Regional Mealthcare Affiliates, fnc. Ottaws Aegional Foundation Ortawd Reglonal Auxilipry
{For-Profit) (Mot-for-Profit} {Mot-for-Profia}
i |
| 1 1
ORMC iInc, OR Cardinal Steep LLC OR DME LLC
{Far-profa) {For-Profit) (For-Profit 50% Ownership)
ATTACHMENT #3
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POST-AFFILIATION
OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM AND RELATED CORPORATIONS
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

OSF
HEALTHCARE
FOUNDATION

l l |

Physician Group * OsF OSF OTTAWA REGIONAL
Subsidiaries SAINT FRANCIS, INC. LIFELINE AMBULANCE, LL.C HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE
CENTER
| | I | I | ]
OSF OSF OSF OSF FINANCE OTTAWA REGIONAL || OTTAWA REGIONAL OTTAWA REGIONAL
ASSURANCE AVIATION, DESIGN COMPANY, HOSPITAL HEALTHCARE HOSPITAL
COMPANY LLC GROUP, INC. || LLC FOUNDATION AFFILIATLS, INC. AUXILIARY ***

*Physician Group Subsidinrics

OSF Multi-Specialty Group

OSF Multispecialty Group — Peoria. LLC

OSF Multispecialty Group — Easten Region. LLC
OSF Multispecialty Group — Western Region, LLC
OSF Heart & Vascular Institute

Cardiovascular Institute at OSF, LLC

HeartCare Midwesl, Ltd.

Children’s Hospital of Hlinois Medical Group

OSF Children's Medical Group - Congenifal Heart Center, LLC
QSF Perinatal Associates, LLC

[llinois Neuroscience Instituic

Illinois Neurological lastitute — Physicians, LLC
Hlinois Pathologist Scrviees, LLC

inois Specinliy Physician Services at OSF, LLC

I |
OTTAWA REGIONAL OTTAWA REGIONAL
MEDICAL CENTER. CARDINAL SLEEP
INC, CENTER. LLC

**(5F Healtheare Systermn

OSF Saint Francis Medical Center
QSF Saint Anthony Medical Ceater
QSF St. Joseph Mcdical Center
OSF Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center
OSF St. Mary Medical Center

OSF Holy Family Medical Center
OSF 5t, Francis Hospital

OSF Suint Clare Home

OSF Home Care Services

OSF Medical Group
Cardiovasculur Services
Neuroscicnee Services

Children’s Scrvices

Ambaulatory Scrvices

i The establishment of the Auxilinry as a post-affiliation subsidiary of ORHHC is dependent upon the adoption by the Auxiliary of proposed amended and restated

articles and bylaws miking ORHHC the sole member of the Auxiliary.
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CAPITOL OFFICE
MI03E STATE HOUSE
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINQIS 62706
{217}782-3840
Fax:(217)782-9586

DISTRICT QFFICE:
103 FIFTH STREET
PO BOX 260
PERU, ILLINCIS 61354
(a15)220-8720
FAX:(815)220-8721
SENATORREZINGGMAIL.COM
WWW.SENATORREZIN.COM

SUE REZIN

STATE SENATOR - 38THDISTRICT

December 20, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health Center
AfTiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

1 am writing to express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regtonal Hospital
and Healthcare Center with OSF Healthcare System. [ believe that the affiliation is in the best
interest of the community served by Otiawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center, the people
of the City of Ottawa, LaSalle County and surrounding areas as it will (i) enhance health care
and other services provided to the community; (ii) provide greater access to health care services
in the community; and (iii) promote and enhance the various charitable and educational missions
of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center and its affiliates.

Because of the above. ] am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation and
encourage the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change of
ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.

Sincerely,

AR

Senator, 38" District

RECYCLED PARER « SOYBEAN INKS
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

PAM ROTH

3605 N. STATERT. 47, SUITEF STATE REPRESENTATIVE - 75 DISTRICT
P.O. Box 808

MORRIS, ILLINOIS 60450

{B15)416-1475

Fax:(B15}1416-1476

E-MAIL PAMROTHD7 STGMAILCOM

214-N STRATTON OFFICE BUILDING
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS G2706
(217)782-5997
Fax;{217155B8-1073

December 19, 2011

Ms. Couriney Avery

Administralor

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield. IL 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health Center Affiliation with
OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

I;iln}'\kffiti'ng" 10 express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare
Center with OSF Healtheare System. 1 believe that the affiliation is in the best interest of the community served
by Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center, the people of the City of Ottawa, LaSalle County and
surrounding areas. It will enhance health care and other services provided 1o the community, provide greater
access to health care services in the community, and promote and enhance the various chantable and
educational missions of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center and its affiliates.

Because of the above, | am submitting this letter of suppor for the proposed affiliation and encourage the
Planning Board 10 approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change of ownership of Otlawa Regional
Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.

Sincerely,

o o

S!aie_llcpng'sg_qtati_\fe PPam Roth
75" Distriet” " 7 -

s

+ -
-~

RECYCLED PAPER - SOYBEAN INKS Attachment 3
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JEFFREY A. CROWHURST, D.PM., FA.C.FAS.

1703 Polaris Circle

Ottawa, It 61350

Telephone; (8135) 434-1900

December 19, 2011 www.footcaredocs.com

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administralor

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield. IL 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health
Center Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dcar Ms. Avery:

] am writing 1o express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regional
Hospital and Healthcare Center with OSF Healthcare System. | believe that the
affiliation is in the best interest of the community served by Ottawa Regional Hospital
and Healthcare Center the people of the City of Ottawa, LaSalle County and surrounding
areas as it will (i) enhance health care and other scrvices provided to the community; (ii)
provide greater access to health care services in the community: and (iii) promote and
enhance the various charitable and educational missions of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center and its affiliates.

Because of the above. 1 am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation
and encourage the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change
of ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.

Sincerely,

QM rowhurst, DPM

President Medical Staff, Ottawa Regional Hospital

Attachment 3
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LaSalle County Board

707 East Etna Road

Ottawa, [L 61350
Phone: 815-434-8242
FAX: 815-434-8250

Jerry L. Hicks
Chairman

January 4, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

[llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health Center
Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

Ottawa Regional Hospita! and Healthcare Center recently announced that they will affiliate with
OSF Healthcare System in the near future. | support the proposed affiliation and believe that this
affiliation will be in the best interest of the community served by Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center. Some of the benefits thai I believe will be realized by the residents of Ottawa
and LaSalle County are enhanced heaith care and other services 1o the community, provide
greater access to health care services, and promote and enhance various charitable and
educational goals of Ottawa Regional.

Because of the aforementioned reasons. | am providing this letter of support for the proposed
affiliation and further encourage the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for
the change in ownership of Ottawa Regional [Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.
3

Respectfully,

2 Llfg r/ i (=
Jerr\ 1A Hicks, Chairman
LaSaNe County Board
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o

LaSalle County Health Department
717 E. Etna Road
Outawa, Illinois 61350-1097
Phone: (815) 433-3366
Phone: (800) 247-5243
Fax: (815) 433-9522

William Johnson, President
Jack Wayland, Vice President
Don Kaminky, Secretary
Louis Weber Jr., Treasurer
Melva Allender, RN

Mark Benavides, DDS

Lou Anne Carretio

Robert B, Maguire, MD

Julic Kerestes, BS, LEHP, Adminisurator

January 5, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, TL 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthceare
Center Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

Pleasc accept this letter that the LaSalle County Health Department expresscs its full support for
the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center with OSF Healthcare
System. We believe that the affiliation is in the best interest of the community served by Ottawa
Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center, the people of the City of Onawa, LaSalle County and
surrounding arcas as it will; enhance health care and other services provided to the community,
provide greater access 10 health care services in the community; and promote and enhance the
various charitable and educational missions of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center
and its affiliates.

Because of the above, the LaSalle County Health Department is submitting this letter of support

for the proposed affiliation and encourages the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of
Exemption for the change of ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.
Sincerely,
O St O
Julie Kerestes, Administrator
LaSalle County Health Department
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( H AMB ER 813 LaSalle Street Sudb 401 Ofuwa IL 61359

Quawa Area Chamber of Commerce & Ingustry Phone E15-413-0084 Fat B15433-2405 Emall ivouoitawachumbenlinols com
December 19, 2011

Ms. Couriney Avery

Administrator

litinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Letfter of Support for Ottawa Regiona! Hospital and Health Center
Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

| am writing 1o express my and our Boards support for the praposed affiliation of
Ottawa Regional Hospital and Heaithcare Center with OSF Heatlthcare System. This
affiliation is the only way to guarantee the highest quality healthcare in a very unstable
healthcare environment.

This affiliation will combine the best people with the best facilities for a regional
healthcare powerhouse. Without the merger the longevily of op quality healthcare
and the ability to atiract the brightest physicians and staff wopuld be in serious
jeopardy. Ottawa Regional Hospital is in a position of great strength right now by
being financially and administratively sound and in a position where they are currently
an attractive acquisition candidate. Many hospitals only wish they had this
opportunity. Ottawa cannot afford anything but a deliberate and guided merger. This
is a win-win inciuding the Otlawa Regional Hospilal employees and the community.

Because of the above, | am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation
and encourage the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the
change of ownership of the Oftawa Regional Hospital and Heaithcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.

Boyd Palmer
Executive Director
Ottawa Area Chamber of Commerce & Industry

The Ottawa Area Chamber proudly serves 365 members and over 8500 employees

Attachment 3
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[LLINOISVALLEY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

815 N. Otlando Smirh Avenue
Opleshy, 1L 61348-9692
Telephone: 815-224-2720
Fax: §15%-224-3033

Office of the President
Jerome M. Corcoran, EAD

Deccember 19, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, 1L 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health Center
Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

1 am writing to express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regional
Hospital and Healthcare Center with OSF Healthcare System. 1 believe that the
affiliation is in the best interest of the community served by Ottawa Regional Hospital
and Healthcare Center, the people of the City of Ottawa, LaSalle County and surrounding
areas as il will (i) enhance health carc and other services provided to the community; (i1)
provide greater access to health carc services in the community; and (iii) promote and
cnhance the various charitable and educational missions of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center and its affiliates.

Becausc of the above, 1 am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation
and encourage the Planning Board to approve the Centificate of Exemption for the change
of ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.
Sincerely,

Dr. Jerry Corcoran
President
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December 19, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

{llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health
Center Affiliation with O5SF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

I am writing to express my full support for the proposed affiliation of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center with OSF Healthcare System,

1 am a retired Physician who practiced in Ottawa for 44 years.

| served on the Hospital Board for 14 years and recently served on the Hospital Foundation Board for 6
years. | have been very active in the Ottawa area and have been serving on the Ottawa Township High
School Board of Education for the past 32 years, the Ottawa Opportunity School Board (a pre-school) for
40 years, and was the United Way campaign co-chair for 6 of the past 9 years.

| am currently Chair of a free medical clinic serving the Ottawa Area.

| feel | know the Community well as well as the medical needs of our area.

| believe that the affiliation is in the best interest of the community served by Ottawa Regional and
Healthcare Center, the people of the City of Ottawa, LaSalle County, and surrounding areas as it will {i)
enhance health care in the community; {ii) provide greater access to healthcare services in the
community; and (iii) promote and enhance the various charitable and educational missions of Ottawa
Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center and its affiliates.

Because of the above, | am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation and encourage
the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change of ownership of Ottawa
Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you for your consideration in approving the affiliation.
Sincerely,

Qo [ Mose el

bon E. Morehead, M.D.
2521 Reynolds Manor Drive
Ottawa, IL 61350
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Fax (813) 4340307

701 LaSalle St Ottawa IL 61350 - www.firstottawa.com
= Phone: (815) 434.0044 YEDIC 24.-Hr Phone Banking 1-866-434.0044

{ : Northfield - 2771 N Columbus St
e Hst auon 0 m Plaza - 300 W Madison St
’I % South - 601 Stare 5t

December 20, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re:  Letter of Support for Ottawa Regional Hospital and Health Center
Affiliation with OSF Healthcare System

Dear Ms. Avery:

This communication is with regard to the pending merger between Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Health Center with the OSF Healthcare System. As 1’m sure you are aware my position is such
that 1 am required to maintain a close watch on developments in our community well beyond the
financial ones which are at the heart of our nature of business. Our bank is one of the oldest
institutions in Ottawa, having been founded in 1865, and we have watched Ottawa Regional and
its predecessors emerge into what can only be described as one of the most outstanding
community healthcare providers in rural lllinois. 1t has provided employment opportunities and
career opportunities far beyond those of any other entity while maintaining the highest ethical
and safety standards of any local organization. It is a critical element of our community and an
irreplaceable one. Ottawa Regional fulfifls many roles in our community including those as a
cultural hub, a technology catalyst, and an expanding medical campus to offer advanced and
specialized treatments. Yet, as you know better than 1, this critical component of our community
is at risk; not because of the changes in healthcare services in our country and not because of
changes in the ability of Otiawa Regional to serve the healthcare needs of our community, but
rather because of the increased complexity and technological expertise which is going to be
required of all healthcare suppliers. Independent regional healthcare facilities are, and will be, in
jeopardy of falling behind thc rcsources that arc available to larger institutions. The
contemplated merger with the OSF Healthcare System will allow Ottawa Regional to remain as
essential as it is to the ongoing welfare of our rural community while expanding quality and
sophistication available through its newer affiliation. This transaction will inure to the benefit of
the entire community and each component of our community as it will make available all of the
resources of the OSF Healthcare System, their specialties and sub-specialties. Furthermore, the
proposed affiliation with OSF Healthcare system will enhance the charitable and educational
services which Ottawa Regional now provides for our community. 1 cannot stress to you enough
the importance of our hospital (0 our entire community, the values (hat it provides not just in
healthcare services but also in its dedication to the poor, the underserved, the elderly, and the
disabled. In our community of 16,500 residents, and in our county of 100,000 residents, there
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are a handful who can and will avail themselves of medical services in Chicago or Rochester,
Minnesota, but only a handful. The rest need to rely on the strength of Ottawa Regional, which
can only be enhanced through its new affiiiation with OSF Healthcare Systcm. Lasily, such an
affiliation is absolutely necessary for the ongoing betterment of our particular community.

Because of the above, 1 am submitting this letter of support for the proposed affiliation and
encourage the Planning Board to approve the Certificate of Exemption for the change of
ownership of Otiawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in approving the affiliation.

Sincerely,

cachiny]. Brown
residént / CEO
First National Bank of Ottawa

Attachment 3
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fid WEST M UN
OFTAM I 61358

PHONE (§15) 434-2300
PAN (RS 433-0027

handyfoodsi@yahao.com
Handy FoodslGA.com

SEterhdieslsatsisasssunannunnnY

December 19, 2011

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

linois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
‘ 525 W. Jefferson St. 2™ floor

Springfield. 11 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

' Handy Foods has been a memer of the Ottawa community for almost fifty years. | have
experienced many situations involving Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare and St.
Francis both on a business and personal level. All have been very positive.

There has been a long unspoken arrangement betwcen the two institutions which has
greatly benefited the peoplc of Ottawa and surrounding communities; therefore, | am
writing to express my support of the proposed affiliation. I feel that if there is a need to
transport a patient from Outawa to St. Francis the transition will be casier for the patient
and thc attending physician.

1 encourage the Planning Board to approve the change of ownership of Ottawa Regional
Hospital and Healthcare 1o OSF Healthcare System.

Sincerely,

Bonnie McGrogan
Handy Foods, Inc.

Attachment 3




15. BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT (co-applicants must also provide this information). Corporations and Limited
Liability Companies must provide a current Certificate of Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State.
Partnerships must provide the name and address of each partner and specify whether each is a general or fimited partner.
Append this information to the application as ATTACHMENT #4.

ATTACHMENT #4
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File Numiber 0107-414-8

To all to tvhom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, lesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Hllinois, do
hereby certify that

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORFORATED UNDEBR
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ONJANUARY 02, 1850, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH
ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GEXERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORFORATION ACT OF
THIS STATE. AND AS OF TH1% DATE, IS IN GOUD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and canse {0 be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Minois, this 4TH
day of JANUARY AD. 2002

. % - ' 4
AsrhacticsBin & 1220401E24 Q M‘ )‘%

Apivratioale v mip:iwas cyborivollira s enfn

RESRETARY OF £7ATE

ATTACHMENT #4
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File Number 4484-569-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE CENTER, A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON DECEMBER 07,
1964, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL
NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, i hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of IHlinois, this 13TH
day of JANUARY AD. 2012

\\"-\\ - Y 3 -""V Q-\ rd
Authentication #; 1201300458 ' M

Authenticate at: hitpdiwww cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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16.

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. Provide a copy of the document(s) which detail the terms and conditions of the
proposed transaction (purchase, lease, stock transfer, etc). Applicants should note that the document(s) submitted should
reflect the applicant's (and co-applicant's, if applicable) involvement in the transaction. The document must be signed
by both parties and contain language stating that the transaction is contingent upon approval of the lllinois Health
Facilities Planning Board. Append this document(s) to the application as ATTACHMENT #5.

Very limited, sensitive information was redacted from the schedules to protect patient, physician or employee identities
as well as to protect information not within the public domain.
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AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG
OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM,

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE CENTER,
OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE AFFILIATES, INC.,
OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION,
OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, INC,,

AND

OTTAWA REGIONAL CARDINAL SLEEP CENTER, LLC

JANUARY 11, 2012

ATTACHMENT #5 70666 HIN22 0913601
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AFFILIATION AGREEMENT

THIS AFFILIATHON AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the Exccution Date,
1o be effective as of the Closing Date, by and among OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, an lllinois
not-for-profit corporation, OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL AND HEALTHCARE
CENTER, an lllinois not-for-profit corporation, OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE
AFFILIATES, INC., an lilinois corporation, OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL
FOUNDATION, an Mllinois not-for-profit corporation, OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL
CENTER, INC., an lilinois corporation, and OTTAWA REGIONAL CARDINAL SLEEP
CENTER, LLC, an lHlinois limited liability company. Article XVII contains a glossary of all
capitalized terms uscd in this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. OSF owns and operates scveral gencral acute care hospitals and institutions
providing health care services in northern and central Illinois, and is the controlling member or
sharcholder of ccrtain affiliated health carc organizations and businesses;

B. Ottawa is a gencral acute care hospital located in Ottawa, Illinois, and is the
controlling member or sharcholder of certain affiliated health care organizations;

C. The Partics have engaged in discussions to explore the possibility of the Ottawa
Parties affiliating with OSF to support and further their common and umfying health care
missions and to better serve the communities scrved by OSF and Ottawa.

D. OSF and the Ottawa Parties consider it to be consistent with their purposes,
including, wherc applicable, their charitablc purposcs, and in the best intcrests of the
communitics they serve, to become affiliated as described herein.

E. As a result of such discussions, OSF and Ottawa eniered into a Letter of Intent,
pursuant to which OSF and Ottawa sct forth their preliminary understandings and agrecments
regarding the nature and terins of a potential Affiliation.

F. As contcmplated by the Letter of Intent, the Parties wish to set forth the full and
complete binding tcrms of their agreement with respect to the Affiliation between and among
them and rclated matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the agreements,
covenants, rcpresentations and warranties hereinafter sct forth, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which arc forever acknowledged and confessed, and
in reliance upon the recitals set forth above, which are incorporated herein by reference, the
Partics agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
AFFILIATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

1.1.  Affiliation_Goals and Objectives. The Partics wish to continue to improve
health care quality and enhance patient access in the communitics served by OSF and Ottawa
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through the combination of the Ottawa Partics with OSF. The Affiliatton provides both the OSF
System and the Ottawa Parties the opportunity to continue the historical missions of OSF and the
Ottawa Partics, and benefit residents of the Ottawa service area, by: (a) enabling a sustainable
and quality health care delivery system that promotes greater patient access to integrated
primary, secondary, and advanced tertiary healthcare services; (b) achieving excellence in
clinical innovations, services, qualily, costs and outcomes; and (c¢) achieving maximum
efficiencies in the delivery of health care services.

ARTICLE II
IMPLEMENTATION OF AFFILIATION

2.1.  Reorganization of Ottawa Parties. Following the Closing Date, OSF will scrve
as the solc corporatc member of Ottawa. The corporate bylaws of Ottawa shall specify the
Reserved Powers. Following the Closing Date, Ottawa shall be the sole shareholder of ORHA
and the sole corporatc member of Ottawa Foundation and Ottawa Auxiliary. The respective
corporatc bylaws of ORHA, Ottawa Foundation, and Ottawa Auxiliary shall set forth reserved
powers of Ottawa substantially similar to the Reserved Powers. Following the Closing Date,
ORHA will continue to be the sole shareholder of ORMC, the sole member of OR Cardinal
Sleep, and the owner of a fifty percent (50%) membership interest in OR DME. The corporate
bylaws of ORMC shall set forth reserved powers of ORHA substantially similar to the Reserved
Powers. Following the Closing Date, Ottawa will continue to be the owner of a thirty-cight
percent (38%) membership intcrest in FRCC and a fifty-seven percent (57%) membership
interest in RON]. The Ottawa Partics, FRCC, RONIL, and OR DME will continue as operating
entitics. Notwithstanding the foregoing, OSF and the Ottawa Partics acknowledge that the
corporate structure described in this Scction may be altered following the Closing Date upon
approval of the applicable boards of the Ottawa Partics, provided that such aiterations of the
Ottawa Parties’ corporate structure reasonably reflect the Parties” intent, as cxpressed in this
Agreement and Exhibits hereto, so as to foster the Parties’ best interests.

2.2.  Ownership. Except as set forth in Section 12.9, or as otherwise agreed upon by
OSF and the Ottawa Parties to achieve post-Closing operating or clinical efficiencies, the
transactions contemplated hereby shall not affect the ownership, or result in the transfer or
conveyance, of any asset owned as of the Closing Date by the Ottawa Parties.

2.3.  Master Indenture Financings

2.3.1. Ottawa Master Indenture. All Ottawa Master Indenture Indebtedness
that is outstanding on the Closing Date will be either redeemed or defeased at Closing in
accordance with the Plan of Finance. All documents of the Ottawa Parties related to the
Ottawa Master Indenture Indebtedness (including but not limited to the Ottawa Master
Indenture) will be discharged and terminated, and the trust estate securing all obligations
issued pursuant to the Ottawa Master Indenture and any liens granted thereunder will be
released and discharged, at Closing.

2.3.2.  OSF Master Indenture.
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(a) Entry into OSF Obligated Group. On the Closing Date, Ottawa
and the Ottawa Foundation shall become Members of the OSF Obligated Group
under the OSF Master Indenture, and Ottawa and the Ottawa Foundation shall
take all actions and execute and deliver any and all agreements, documents,
certificates, and other instruments as may be necessary or appropriale to become
Members of the OSF Obligated Group.

(b)  OSF Obligated Group Representative. On the Closing Date,
Ottawa and the Ottawa Foundation shall designate OSF as the Group

Representative and the Obligated Group Agent under the terms and provisions of
the OSF Master Indenture. Ottawa and the Ottawa Foundation acknowledge and
agree that OSF, as the Obligated Group Agent or otherwise, shall have the
exclusive power and authority on behalf of the OSF Obligated Group (which
power and authority shall be irrevocable and coupled with an interest for so long
as any Person is a Member of the OSF Obligated Group) to take any action
permitted under the OSF Master Indenture, to execute supplemental master trust
indentures and issue Obligations on behalf of the OSF Obligated Group, to amend
any Related Loan Document, to consent to the amendment of any Related Bond
Indenture, to issue any Additional Indebtedness, to grant additional security, to
approve, authorize and direct any and all such actions on behalf of cach Member
of the OSF Obligated Group, to approve and execute all Related Loan Documents
in the name of and on behalf of cach Member of the OSF Obligated Group, and to
exercise all corporate authority and take any action in connection therewith as
may be necessary or appropriate on behalf of the OSF Obligated Group and each
Member thereof to implement any recommendation or commitment made by OSF
as Group Representative and Obligated Group Agent.

ARTICLE 111
GOVERNANCE

3.1.  Amendment of Governing Documents of Ottawa Parties. Effective as of the
Closing Date, Ottawa shall amend and restate its Governing Documents in the forms attached
hereto as Exhibit A, and Ottawa shall otherwise fulfill the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Effective as of the Closing Date, each of ORHA and Ottawa Foundation shall
anend and restate its Governing Documents in the forms aitached hereto as Exhibits B and C,
respeclively, and Ottawa shall approve such amendments and restatements, and ORHA and
Ottawa Foundation shall otherwise fulfill the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Between
the Execution Date and Closing Date, Ottawa shall use its best efforts to work with the Ottawa
Auxiliary to amend and restate Ottawa Auxiliary’s Governing Documents, effective as of the
Closing Date, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. Further, ORMC and OR Cardinal Sleep
shall amend and restate their Goveming Documents in the forms attached hereto as Exhibits E
and F, respectively, and ORHA shall approve such amendments and restatements, and ORMC
and OR Cardinal Sleep shall otherwise fulfill the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

3.2. Amendment of Governing Documents of Joint Ventures. Effective as of the
Closing Date, Ottawa shall cause RONI, and shall use its best efforts to cause FRCC to amend
and restate its Governing Documents, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to OSF, to

ATTACHMENT #5 F0666109v22 0913601




prohibit the provision by such entity of items and services in contravention of the Ethical and
Religious Directives, and to give to Ottawa the remedy of specific performance of such entity’s
obligation to abide by the Ethical and Religious Directives. Effective as of the Closing Date,
ORHA shall use its best cfforts to cause OR DME to amend and restate its Governing
Documents, in form and substancc reasonably satisfactory to OSF, to prohibit the provision by
such entity of items and services in contravention of the LEthical and Rcligious Directives, and to
give to ORHA thc remedy of specific performance of OR DME’s obligation to abide by the
Ethical and Religious Directivcs.

3.3.  Reconstitution of Boards. Thc Boards of the Ottawa Partics shall take all
necessary and desirable corporate actions to reconstitute as follows:

3.3.1. Ottawa Partv Boards. Effective as of the Closing Date, the Ottawa
Parties shall reconstitute their respective Boards in accordance with each Ottawa Party’s
respective amended and restated Governing Documents. The newly appointed members
of the boards, committees, and officers of the Ottawa Parties as of the Closing Date are
set forth on Schedule 3.3.1 and: (a) all such directors and officers are individuals who
meet the criteria for appointment as established in the Position Description substantially
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H, as amended from time to time by the Ottawa
Board with approval of OSF, and in the amended and restated Governing Documents of
each respective Ottawa Party; and (b) each director and officer shall be elected to serve in
accordance with the amended and restated Governing Documents of the applicable
Ottawa Party.

3.3.2. Written Resignations. On or before the Closing Date, the Ottawa Parties
shall request that all directors, officers, and committee members of the Ottawa Parties,
other than those who will by agreement of OSF and Ottawa continue to serve in such
capacities following the Closing Date, submit their written resignations to the Secretary
of the applicable Ottawa Party, effective as of the Closing Date, or otherwise resign in
accordance with the resignation provisions of the applicable Ottawa Party Governing
Documents.

3.4. Reserved Powers. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary but subject to the
terms of this Agreement, OSF shall have all rights granted to the member or sharcholder of a
business organization under the Applicable Law of the state of formation, including, with respect
to Ottawa, the right to exercise the Reserved Powers set forth in the amended and restated
Governing Documents aitached hereto as Exhibit A.

ARTICLE IV
MANAGEMENT

4,1,  Senior Management. As of the Ciosing Date: Robert Chaffin shall be the
Ottawa CEO, and shall report to the chief executive officer of OSF and be accountable to the
Ottawa Board with respect to the Ottawa Facilities and Services; Judy Christiansen shall be the
Ottawa COO and shall report to the Ottawa CEO; and Dawn Trompeter shall be the Ottawa CFO
and shall report to the Ottawa CEO. The Ottawa CEO shall be an employee of OSF.
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ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE OTTAWA PARTIES

The Ottawa Parties, jointly and severally give, as of the Exccution Date, and shall give,
as of the Closing Date, the following representations and warranties to OSF:

5.1.  QOreganization; Good Standing; Power.

5.1.1. Oftawa, Ottawa Foundation, and Ottawa Auxiliary are duly formed as
1llinois not-for-profit corporations. ORHA and ORMC arc duly formed as lilinois
corporations. OR Cardinal Sleep is duly formed as an lllinois limited liability company.

5.1.2. Each Ottawa Party and the Ottawa Auxiliary are validly existing and in
good standing under the laws of the State of Illinots, and have the corporate powcr and
authority to own, operate or hold under lease their respective properties and assets and to
carry on their respective business and operations as presently conducted. Each of the
Ottawa Parties and the Ottawa Auxiliary have registered with the proper governmental
authorities all assumed names under which each of thc Ottawa Parties and the Ottawa
Auxiliary operate their respective businesses and continuously maintained all such filings
in good standing.

5.2.  Corporate Authorization.

5.2.1. Subject to the approval of Ottawa’s members, each of the Ottawa Parties
has the full corporate power and authority to enter into and to perform its respective
obligations under this Agreement.

5.2.2. Subject to the approval of Ottawa’s members, the execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement by each of the Ottawa Parties has been duly and properly
authorized by all necessary corporate action in accordance with its respective Governing
Documents.

5.2.3. This Agreement constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of
each of the Ottawa Parties, enforceable against each of them in accordance with its terms,
except as enforceability may be limited by: (a) general principles of equity, regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law; (b) bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws of gencral application now
or hercafter in effect relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights gencrally;
and (c) requirements for defeasance of the Ottawa Master Indenture and all obligations,
loan agreements, tax agreements, credit agreements, and all other related loan documents
of the Oftawa Parties under the Ottawa Master Indenture.

5.3. No Violation: Approvals.

5.3.1. Except to the extent specified in Schedule 5.3.1, to the Knowlcdge of the
Ottawa Parties, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement shall not
result in the creation of any lien, charge, or encumbrance of any kind or the termination
or acceleration of any indebtedness or other obligation of any Ottawa Party, and is not
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prohibited by, does not violale or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, conflict with
any provision of, and does not constitute a default under or breach of any Matcrial
Contract, indenture, mortgage, material permit or license, approval or other commitment
to which any Ottawa Party is a party or is subject or by which any such corporation is
bound, or any Applicable Law.

5.32. Except to the extent specified in Schedule $.3.2, no approval,
authorization, registration, consent, order, filing or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa
Partics, other action that has not occurred or been obtained with or from any Person,
including any court, administrative agency or other govemnmental authority, is required
for the exccution and dclivery by the Ottawa Parties of this Agrcement or the
consummation by the Ottawa Parties of the transactions contemplated or required hereby,
except for filings required pursuant to the Hlinois Health Facilities Planning Act, or the
HSR Act if applicable.

5.4. Financial Statements.

5.4.1. Ottawa has delivered to OSF true and correct copies of: (a) the Ottawa
Audited Financial Statements; and (b) the Ottawa Unaudited Financial Statements. From
the Execution Date to the Closing Date, by the fifteenth Business Day of the following
month, the Ottawa Parties shall provide OSF with the Ottawa Interim Financial
Statements.

5.4.2. The Ottawa Financial Statements are: (a) true and correct in all material
respects and present fairly the financial position of the Ottawa Partics, respectively, and
the results of the respective operations of the Ottawa Parties at the dates and for the
periods indicated; and (b) are in conformity with GAAFP, applied consistently for the
periods specified, including, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, the consistent use of
assumptions, practices, procedures and terminology, except: (i) as otherwise disclosed on
Schedule 5.4.2; and (ii) that the Unaudited Financial Statements and the Interim Financial
Statements need not contain any of the footnotes or other year-end adjustments required
to comply with GAAP.

5.4.3. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.4.3 from and after April 30, 2010, the
Ottawa Parties have not made any material changes to their accounting methods or
practices, including methods or practices used to:

(a) Lstablish reserves on any patient, notes and accounts receivable;
(b)  Establish estimates of any third-party settiements;

(c) Determine the value of any other accounts that require subjective
determinations; and

(d) Establish malpractice, general liability or other self-insurance
reserves, including claims incurred but not reported.
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5.4.4, Exccpt as disclosed on Schedule 5.4.4, the Ottawa Parties have no
liabilities or obligations of any kind, whether contingent or absolute, direct or indirect, or
matured or unmatured, that are not shown or provided for in thc Otftawa Financial
Statements provided to OSF prior to the Execution Date, other than: (a) claims covered
by insurance, or reserved by a specific or genceral reserve, and any individual hability or
obligation of less than $100,000, provided such liabilitics and obligations in the aggregate
do not exceed $250,000; or (b) liabilities arising in the ordinary coursc of business that
are reflected on the Interim Financial Statcments.

5.4.5. Exccpt as discloscd on Schedule 5.4.5, none of the assets of the Ottawa
Parties is subject to restrietions imposed by the donors of specific funds or other assets.

5.5.  Accounts Receivable. All accounts receivable of the Ottawa Parties represent
and constitute hona fide indebtedness owing to the Ottawa Parties for services actually
performed or for goods or supplies actually provided in the amounts indicated on the Ottawa
Financial Statements with, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, no known set offs,
deductions, compromises or reductions other than reasonable allowances for bad debts and
contractual allowances in an amount consistent with historical policies and procedures of the
Ottawa Parties and that are taken into consideration in the preparation of the Ottawa Financial
Statements. The Ottawa Parties have made available to OSF a complete and accurate aging
report of all such accounts receivable and a schedule of all accounts receivable, whether recorded
or unrecorded, that have been assigned to collection agencies or are otherwise held or assigned
for collection.

5.6. Interim Changes. Except for matters expressly permitted or authorized by this
Agreement and except as set forth on Schedule 5.6, there has not been, afier the date of the most
recent Audited Financial Statements:

5.6.1. Any Material Adverse Change in regard to the Ottawa Parties in the
aggregate,

5.6.2. Any disposition by the Ottawa Parties of any property, rights or other
assets owned by or employed in the Ottawa Parties, except for dispositions in the usual
and ordinary course of the business;

5.6.3. Any amendment or termination of any Material Contract that has had or
could reasonably be expected to have, in the aggregate, a material and adverse effect on
the Ottawa Parties; and

5.6.4. Any adoption or material amendment of any bonus, profit sharing,
incentive or severance agreement or arrangement, or any Benefit Plan, involving any
officer, director or employee of the Ottawa Parties.

5.7. Lepgal Proceedings. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.7, no Ottawa Party is a
defendant in, or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, threatened with any action, suit,
proceeding, complaint, charge, hearing or arbitration that could reasonably be expected to
materially and adversely affect its business or financial condition or its ability to perform its
obligations under this Agreement. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.7, no Ottawa Party has
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received notice of any investigation or threatened investigation by any Federal, state or local
governmental or regulatory agency, including those involving its business practices and policies,
that could result in a Material Adverse Change in the Ottawa Parties in the aggregate.

5.8. Licenses and Permits.

5.8.1. Each of the Ottawa Parties holds and is in compliance with all Licenses
and Permits, noncompliance with which could result in a Material Adverse Change in its
busincss and operations. The Licenses and Permits are current, unrestricted and valid.

5.8.2. Except as set forth Schedule 5.8.2, no statement of deficiencies, survey
report, inspection report, notice of audit, audit results, complaint or other notice of
noncompliance with the requirements, standards or other conditions or any revocation,
termination, suspension or limitation of any of the Licenses and Permits has been issued,
received, proposed or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, threatened, for which any
actual or potential payment or other obligation exists, nor does any Ottawa Party have
any Knowledge of any basis for any such action.

5.9, No Material Omissions.

5.9.1. The Ottawa Parties have responded in all material respects to all requests
for information and documentation made by OSF in connection with its due diligence
review of the business, operations, assets and liabilities of the Ottawa Parties. The
Ottawa Parties have not Knowingly omitted any material information relating to the
businesses, operations, assets or liabilities of the Ottawa Parties in their responses (o
OSF’s requests. Since the delivery of such responses to OSF, no Ottawa Party has
received and not disclosed any information that would render untrue or misleading in any
material respect any information previously disclosed to OSF in response to its requests
for information.

5.9.2. The representations and warranties of the Ottawa Parties contained in this
Agreement, and each Exhibit, Schedule, certificate or other document delivered at
Closing by the Ottawa Parties pursuant to this Agreement, are accurate, correct and
complete in all material respects, do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements and information
contained therein not misleading.

5.10. Compliance with Law. To the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, each of the
Ottawa Parties is in compliance with all Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, all
Health Care Laws, in all material respects.

5.11. Title to Owned Real Property and Other Assets.

5.11.1. Schedule 5.11.1 lists all Owned Real Property by common address and
property identification number. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.11.1, one or more of
the Ottawa Parties is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and has
good and marketable fee simple title to the Owned Real Property free and clear of ali
liens, mortgages, security interests, options, pledges, charges, covenants, conditions,
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restrictions and other encumbrances and claims of any kind or character whatsoever,
other than Permitted Encumbrances. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.11.1, the Ottawa
Partics have not assigned, transferred, conveyed, mortgaged, decded in trust, or
encumbered any interest in any Icaschold or subleasehold under any lease or agreement
to which any Ottawa Party is a party and under which it is a lessee of any real property.
The Owned Real Property is accurately described on Schedule 5.11.1 and includes all real
estate owned by the Ottawa Parties and used in connection with their current operations.
I
|
|
\
I

Except as set forth in Schedule 5.11.1, no Ottawa Party has leased or otherwise granted to
any Person the right to use any Owned Real Property or any portion thereof. Except as
described in Schedule 5.11.1, there are no outstanding options, rights of first refusal or
rights of first offer to purchase any Owned Real Property or any portion thereof or
interest therein. Except as described on Schedule 5.11.1, with respect to the Owned Real
Property:

(a) During the past three (3) years, no Ottawa Party has reccived
notice of a violation of any Applicable Law, and no Ottawa Party has received
notice of condemnation or assessment relating to any part of the Owned Real
Property or the operation thereof;

(b) There is no lien on any part of the Owned Real Property;

(c) There are no tenants or other Persons occupying any space in the
Owned Real Property, or claiming any possession, adverse or not, to any portion
of the Owned Real Property, other than pursuant to written tenant leases with an
Ottawa Party;

(d)  Each parcel of Owned Real Property is either: (i) exempt from real
property or ad valorem taxation pursuant to Section 15-65 of the Property Tax
Code (35 ILCS 200/15-65), the Ottawa Parties have furnished OSF with true and
complete copies of determinations of exempt status and annual certification
thereafter for such Owned Real Property and the Ottawa Parties have received no
notice and have no Knowledge that the status of such Owned Real Property will
change from exempt to taxable; or (i) separately assessed for real estate tax
purposes and is not combined with any land or real estate that is not a part of the
Owned Real Property for real estate tax assessment purposes for each parcel of
Ottawa Owned Real Property that is not exempt from real property taxation, the
Ottawa Parties have not received any notice of change in assessed value that is not
reflected in Owned Real Property tax bills furnished to OSF;

(¢)  No Owned Real Property is located within a 100 year flood plain
or an area identified by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development as
having “special flood hazards,” as such term is used in the National Flood
Insurance Act of 1968, as amended and supplemented by The Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973, and in regulations, interpretations and rulings thereunder;

() All permanent certificates of occupancy and all other licenses,
permits, authorizations, consents, certificates and approvals required by all
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governmental authoritics having jurisdiction and the requisite certificates of the
local board of firc underwriters (or other body exercising similar functions),
which, if not obtained, would rcsult in a Matcrial Adverse Change in any Ottawa
Party, have been issued for the Owned Real Property (and all individual items
constituting the Owned Real Property), have been paid for, are 1n full force and
effect, and, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, will not be invalidated,
violated or otherwise adversely affected by any change of control or ownership of
any Ottawa Party;

(g)  The Ottawa Parties have made available to OSF complete copies of
all engineering assessments and construction contracts that have been prepared by
or at the direction of the Ottawa Parties within the last three (3) years relating to
any of the Owned Real Property;

(h)  No Ottawa Party has received any notice of any existing, proposed
or contcmplated plans to modify or realign any street or highway or any existing,
proposed or contemplated cminent domain procecding that would result in the
taking of all or any part of the Owned Real Property or that would adversely
affect the current usc of any part of the Owned Real Property;

(1 To the Knowledge of the Ottawa Partics, upon consummation of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the current owners of the
Owned Rcal Property will be entitled to continue to use any Owned Real Property
that is currently employed by the Ottawa Parties in the conduct of their opcrations
as currently condueted; and

) The Ownced Real Property is subject to no eascments, conditions,
restrictions, ordinances, or other limitations that would make such property
unusable for its current use or the title to such property unmarketable or
materially restrict or impair the current use or operation of the business in a
manner consistent with the cuirent use, or that would require the removal of any
improvements, except for such Permitted Encumbrances.

5.11.2. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.11.2, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa
Parties, the Owned Real Property is not in material violation of any Environmental Laws;
the Ottawa Parties have not received any notice within the past threc (3) years alleging or
asserting cithcr a material violation of any Environmental Law or a legal obligation to
investigate, assess, respond to, remove, or remediate a condition involving Hazardous
Substances from any part or all of the Owned Real Property under or pursuant to any
Environmental Law; the Ottawa Parties have not possessed, managed, processed,
rcleased, handled or disposed of or discharged Hazardous Substances at, on or from the
Owned Real Property (including groundwater), except in material compliance with
applicable Environmental Law; the Ottawa Partics have no Knowledge that any prior
owners, operators or occupants of the Owned Real Property have caused or allowed any
Hazardous Substances to be discharged, possessed, managed, processed, released, or
otherwise handled on the Owned Recal Property in material violation of any
Environmental Law; the Ottawa Partics are complying and, for the previous three (3)
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years, have complied in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws; to
the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, the Owned Real Property does not contain matcrial
amounts of asbestos in such form or condition for which investigation, asscssment,
abatement, repair, response, or removal is required by applicable Environmental Law;,
and there are no, nor to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties have there ever been any,
dumps, pits, surface impoundments, or other arcas located on the Owned Real Property
which were or are maintained or utilized for the disposal or containment of Hazardous
Substances. The Ottawa Parties shall promptly notify OSF should the Ottawa Parties
obtain Knowledge, prior to the Closing Date, of any lien, written notice, litigation, or
threat of litigation relating to any alleged or actual unauthorized release of any Hazardous
Substance with respect to any part of the Owned Real Property. Except as sct forth on
Schedule 5.11.2, none of the Ottawa Parties has sent, arranged for disposal or treatment,
arranged with a transporter for transport for disposal or treatment, transported, or
acccpted for transport any Hazardous Substances, to a facility, site or location, that,
pursuant to CERCLA or any similar state or local law: (i) has been placed or has been
publicly proposcd by authoritics having jurisdiction to be placed, on thc National
Priorities List or its state equivalent; or (ii) is subject to a claim, administrative order or
other demand to take removal or remedial action by any Person having jurisdiction and
authority in any such matter. Except as sct forth on Schedule 5.11.2 none of the Ottawa
Parties has received any written requests for information, potentially responsible party
letters, general or special notices or violation notices alleging that any of the Ottawa
Parties is or may be liable under CERCLA or any other Environmental Law(s). Without
in any way limiting the generality of the foregoing: (y) ali current or former underground
storage tanks located on the Owned Real Property of which the Ottawa Parties have
Knowledge and all information in Ottawa Parties’ possession relating to the capacity,
uses, dates of installation and contents of such underground storage tanks located on the
Owned Real Property are identified in Schedule 5.11.2; and (z) all existing underground
storage tanks used by the Ottawa Parties to store Hazardous Substances are in compliance
in all material respects with applicable Environmental Law.

5.12. Title to Assets. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.12, other than Owned Real
Property that is provided for in Section 5.11, each of the Ottawa Parties has good and defensible
title to all of its assets of every kind, character and description, whether personal, tangible or
intangible, used in connection with the operation of the businesses of the respective Otlawa
Parties, free and clear of all liens, morigages, security interests, options, pledges, charges,
covenants, conditions, restrictions and other encumbrances and claims of any kind or character
whatsoever, other than liens and encumbrances which are Permitted Encumbrances.

5.13. Affiliates and Subsidiaries. Schedule 5.13 sets forth an accurate and complete
list of all entities that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, owns or
Controls, or is Controlled by, or is under common Control with, Ottawa. Ottawa has the
requisite power and authority with respect to ORHA and Ottawa Foundation to cause such
entities to comply with all of the responsibilities and obligations imposed upon them by this
Agreement. Ottawa shall take all steps necessary to ensure that ORHA and Ottawa Foundation
comply with the responsibilities and obligations imposed upon them by this Agreement. ORHA
has the requisite power and authority with respect to ORMC and OR Cardinal Sleep to cause
such entities to comply with all of the responsibilities and obligations imposed upon them by this
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Agreement. ORHA shall take all steps necessary to ensure that ORMC and OR Cardinal Slecp
comply with the responsibilitics and obligations imposed upon them by this Agrecment.

5.14. Tax Exempt Status. Ottawa, Ottawa Foundation, and Ottawa Auxiliary are Tax
Excmpt Organizations. The IRS has not taken, or to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties,
proposed to take, any action to rcvoke the tax-cxemption of any of the tax-cxempt Ottawa
Partics, and has not determined in writing or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, proposed
to announce, that any of the Ottawa Partics is a “private foundation” within thc mcaning of
Section 509(a) of the Code. Nonc of the Ottawa Parties has Knowledge of any change in the
organization or operation of any of the tax-cxempt Ottawa Parties that could reasonably result in
a loss of an Ottawa Party’s status as a Tax Exempt Organization.

5.15. Insurance. Schedule 5.15 sets forth an accurate, correct and complete list
(including the name of the insurer, coverage, premium and expiration date) of all Insurance
Policies. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.15, the Insurance Policies are in full force and effect
and shall remain in full force and effect through the Closing Date.

5.16. Taxes. The Ottawa Parties have filed, or shall file, all Returns for all periods
ending on or before the Closing Date. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.16, as of the time of
filing, the Returns correctly reflected, and Returns prepared or being prepared but not yet filed as
of the Execution Date, shall correctly reflect, the income, business, assets, operations, activities
and status of the Ottawa Partics and any other information required to be shown therein. Each
Ottawa Party has timely paid or made provision for all Taxes shown as due and payable on its
Recturns required to be filed or sent prior to the Execution Date and has made provision for
timely payment of all Taxes that shall be shown as due and payable on its Returns required to be
filed or sent by it after the Execution Date and relating to any period prior to the Closing Date.
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5.17. Employee Benefits.

5.17.1. Schedule 5.17.1 sets forth an accurate, correct and complete list of all
Ottawa Benefit Plans. Prior to the Execution Date, the Ottawa Parties have delivered to
OSF, the following for each Benefit Plan established or maintained by any Ottawa Party:
(a) the text of each Ottawa Benefit Plan and any trust, insurance, or annuity contracts
maintained in connection therewith, including all amendments thereto; (b) the most
recently filed annual report (Form 5500), including all schedules and attachments and any
financial statements required by Section 103(a)(3) of ERISA or, for each top-hat plan, a
copy of all registration statements filed with the Department of Labor pursuant to 29
C.FR. § 2520.104-23(b)(1); (c) the most recent actuarial valuation report, if any; (d) the
most recent summary plan description and all modifications thereto; (e) the most recent
determination letter or ruling letter issued by the IRS and any outstanding applications for
a determination letter or request for ruling; (f) the most recent actuarial valuation, study,
or estimate of the obligations under any retiree medical benefits plans or supplemental
retirement benefits plans, or executive deferred compensation arrangements; and (g) the
most recent financial or other report of assets held or set aside to provide funding for such
Ottawa Benefit Plan.

5.17.2. All contributions to, and payments from, the Ottawa Benefit Plans
required to be made in accordance with the terms of the Ottawa Benefit Plans and
Applicable Law have been timely made.

5.17.3. All Ottawa Benefit Plans (and all related trust agreements or annuity
contracts or any funding instruments) have been administered in accordance with their
terms and comply currently, and have complied in the past, both as to form and operation,
with the provisions of applicable tax laws, the Code and Applicable Law in all material
respects.  To the extent that any Ottawa Benefit Plan is intended to be qualified under
Section 401(a) of the Code, it has been maintained and administered in material
accordance with its terms and the provisions of applicable tax laws and the Code, where
required for the Ottawa Benefit Plan to be tax qualified under Sections 401(a) and 501(a)
of the Code and all other Applicable Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.17.3, the
Ottawa Benefit Plans that are intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code
have received determination letters or private letter rulings from the IRS to the effect that
such Ottawa Benefit Plans are qualified and exempt from Federal income taxes under
Sections 401(a) and 501(a), respectively, of the Code. Except as set forth on Schedule
5.17.3, no such determination letter or private letter ruling has been revoked nor, to the
Knowledge of any Ottawa Party, has revocation been threatened, nor has any such
Ottawa Benefit Plan been amended or experienced any change in facts or circumstances
since the date of its most recent determination letter or private letter ruling or application
therefore in any respect that would adversely affect its qualification.

5.17.4. All reports, returns and similar documents with respect to the Ottawa
Benefit Plans required to be filed with any govermment agency or distributed to any
Ottawa Benefit Plan participant have been duly and timely filed or disiributed. To the
Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, there are no threatened or pending investigations by
any govcrnmental agency, termination proceedings or other claims (except claims for
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benefits payable in the normal operation of the Ottawa Benefit Plans), suits or
procecdings against or involving any Ottawa Bencfit Plan or asscrting any rights or
claims to benefits under any Ottawa Benefit Plan that could reasonably be expected to
give risc to any material liability.

5.17.5. To the Knowledge of the Ottawa Partics, no “prohibited transaction™ (as
defined in Section 4975 of the Code or Section 406 of ERISA) has occurred that involves
the assets of any Ottawa Benefit Plan and that could reasonably be cxpected to subject
any of the Ottawa Parties, or any of their respective employees, or a trustee, administrator
or other fiduciary of any trust created under any Ottawa Benefit Plan, to the tax or
penalty on prohibited transactions imposed by Section 4975 of the Code or the sanctions
imposed under Title 1 of ERISA. No Ottawa Benefit Plan that has been terminated has or
may cause liability to any of the Ottawa Parties.

5.17.6. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.17.6, (i) at all times on and after the
effective date of ERISA, necither any Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has
contributed to any “multicmploycr plan™ within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA.
Neither any Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has withdrawn from any
multicmployer plan or has any outstanding withdrawal Hability with respect to any such
multicmployer plan been assessed against any Ottawa Party or any ERISA Affiliate. No
cvent has occurred or circumstance exists that present a risk of the occurrence of any
withdrawal from, participation in, or termination, rcorganization, or insolvency of, any
multicmployer plan that could result in any liability to any Ottawa Party or any ERISA
Affiliate. No Ottawa Party has engaged in any transaction with the scope of Section
4212(c) of ERISA; (i) no Ottawa Party provides, nor has any liability for, health or
welfare benefits with respect to any retired or former employees of any Ottawa Party, nor
with respeet to any active employces of any Ottawa Party following such employcc’s
retirement or termination of service, cxcept to the extent unsubsidized coverage is
required to be made availabic under the continuation of coverage provisions of COBRA
or a similar state law; (iii) neither any Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has ever
sponsored, participated in or had any obligation to contributc to a “multiple employer
welfarc arrangement” within the meaning of Section 3(40) of ERISA; (iv) neither any
Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has sponsored, maintained, or had any obligation
to contribute to a “voluntary employces’ beneficiary association” within the meaning of
Section 501(c)(9) of the Code; (v) neither any Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has
cver sponsored, maintained, or been a participating cmployer in any employee bencfit
plan that is subject to Title I, Subtitle B, Part 3 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code; (vi)
at all times on and after the effective date of ERISA, neither any Ottawa Party nor any
ERISA Affiliate has sponsored, maintained, or been a participating employer in any
employee benefit plan that is subject to Title IV of ERISA; (vii) at ail times on and after
January I, 2005, neither any Ottawa Party nor any ERISA Affiliate has maintained any
“nonqualificd deferred compensation plans™ within the meaning of Section 409A(d)(1) of
the Code or any plan subject to the provisions of Section 457(f) of the Codc; (viii) with
respect to each “nonqualificd deferred compensation plan” within the meaning of Section
409A(d)(1) of the Code and with respeet to cach deferred compensation plan subject o
Scction 457(f) of the Code, under which current employees have benefited, are
benefiting, or are eligible to benefit, cach such plan has been administered in good faith
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compliance with Section 409A or Section 457(f) of the Code (and the published guidance
issued thereunder), as the case may be; (ix) with respect to each Ottawa Benefit Plan,
there has been duly and timely furnished, in compliance in all matcrial respccts with
applicable laws, all notices required under applicable laws to be given to participants,
beneficiaries, and alternate payees, or to any govemmental autherities, including any
notification required by COBRA, by Section 101(i} of ERISA, or by Ficld Assistance
Bulletin 2006-03; (x) with respect to each Ottawa Benefit Plan rcquired to file Form
5500, complete and accurate Forms 5500 have been timely filed for all applicable ycars;
(xi) to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties there arc no claims, procecdings, or liens
(other than routine claims for benefits) pending or threatened with respect to any Ottawa
Benefit Plan as to which any Ottawa Party or any ERISA Affiliate have or could
rcasonably be cxpected to have any direct or indirect actual or contingent liability; (xii)
ncither the cxecution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the
Affiliation will accclerate vesting, increasc any benefits otherwisc payable, or result in
any payment (whether of severance pay, change-of-control bencfits, or otherwise) under
any Ottawa Benefit Plan; (xiii) cxcept as prohibited under Section 411(d)}(6) of the Code
and Scction 204(g) of ERISA, the Ottawa Partics have the right under cach Ottawa
Benefit Plan to terminate each such Ottawa Benefit Plan or amend cach such Ottawa
Benefit Plan so as to reduce benefits, cease accruals, or increase employee cost-sharing;
and (xiv) each Ottawa Benefit Plan that is intended to satisfy the requirements of Section
403(b) of the Code has been memorialized in a written plan document that is intended to
satisfy the requirements of the regulations issued under Section 403(b) of the Code
effective as of January 1, 2009, and during 2009, such Ottawa Benefit Plan was operated
in accordance with a reasonablc interpretation of Scction 403(b) of the Code, taking into
account the rcgulations thereunder, and before the end of 2009, in the casc of any
operational failure during the 2009 calendar year, the sponsor of such Ottawa Benefit
Plan made its best efforts to retroactively correet the operations to conform to the terms
of the written plan document, consistent with the gencral principles of correction set forth
in the IRS’s Employee Plans Compliance Resolution System (EPCRS) at scction 6 of
Revenue Procedure 2008-50.

5.17.7. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.17.7, prior to the Closing Date, no
Ottawa Party has takcn, or caused or permitted to be taken, any action that would change
the legal or beneficial ownership status of the accounts in which funds of or attributable
to employcc pension plans of all Ottawa Parties are invested or otherwise held.

5.18. Labor Relations. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, each Ottawa Party has, to
the Knowledge of Ottawa Parties, complied in all material respects with all Applicable Laws
relating to the employment of its employees and independent contractors, including provisions
relating to wages, hours, cqual opportunity, collective bargaining, and the payment of Social
Security and other Taxes, as applicable. No Ottawa Party has entered into any collective
bargaining agreements or received notice that any of its employees are represented by, or notice
of any claim that any of its employees is entitled to be represented by, a collective bargaining
agent.

5.19. Payment Programs. The Ottawa Parties have provided to OSF a list of all of the
Payment Programs, Except as set forth on Schedule 5.19:
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5.19.1. No Ottawa Party is engaged in termination proceedings as to its respective
participation in any Payment Program, nor has any Ottawa Party received notice that its
current participation in any Payment Program is subject to any contest, termination or
suspension as a result of alleged violations or any noncompliance with participation
requirements;

5.19.2. To the Knowledge of the Ottawa Partics, no Ottawa Party has taken or
committed to any action, entered into any agreement, contract or undertaking, or taken or
omitted to take any other action of any naturec whatsocver that was or is in violation of
any applicable Payment Program condition of participation, contract, standard, policy,
rule, regulation, procedurc or other requirement, that individually or in the aggregate
would result in a Material Adverse Change in the Ottawa Party’s business and opcrations;

5.19.3.To the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, all billing and
collection practices of cach Ottawa Party and, of any billing and/or collection agent
acting on behalf of any Ottawa Party, have been in material compliance with all Health
Care Laws and the conditions for participation, contracts, standards, policics, rules,
regulations, manuals, procedures and requirements of all Payment Programs, cxcept for
noncompliance that would not result in a Material Adverse Change in its business and
operations;

5.19.4. To the Knowledgc of the Ottawa Partics, all cost reports and cost
statements submitted by the Ottawa Partics to any Payment Program arc true, accurate
and completc in all material respects and have been prepared and submitted in
accordance with cost and accounting principles consistently applied that comply with all
applicable Payment Program conditions for participation, contracts, standards, policics,
rules, regulations, manuals, procedures and requirements, including, without limitation,
Payment Program interpretations and guidance;

5.19.5. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.19.5, no cost reports or cost statements
are open and unrcsolved;

5.19.6. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.19.6, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa
Parties, no Ottawa Party has taken any of the following actions, if any such action would
result in a Material Adverse Change in its business and operations: submitted to any
Payment Program any false, fraudulent, abusive or improper claim for payment, billed
any Payment Program for any service not rendered or not rendered as claimed, or
reccived and retained any payment or reimbursement {rom any Payment Program in
excess of the proper amount allowed by Applicable Law and applicable contracts or
agreenents with the Payment Programs;

5.19.7. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.19.7, there is no audit, investigation,
adverse action, or civil, administrative, or criminal proceeding pending or, to the
Knowledge of any Ottawa Party, threatened relating to participation in any Payment
Program by any Ottawa Party; and, to the Knowledge of any Ottawa Party, there is no
basis for any such adverse action by the Payment Program against any Ottawa Party;
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5.19.8. No Payment Program has requested or, to the Knowledge of any Ottawa
Party, threatened any rccoupment, refund, or set off from any Ottawa Party, or imposed
any fine, penalty or other sanction on any Ottawa Party; and

5.19.9. The Ottawa Partics have complied, or will comply, in a timely manner
with any notice, approval, application, submission, filing or other requirements of the
Payment Programs with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
including, without limitation, any transfer or change of ownership requirements.

5.20. Accreditation, The Ottawa Parties have provided to OSF a list of cach Ottawa
Party’s current Accreditations. Except as sct forth on Schedule 5.20: (a) all of the Ottawa
Parties’ Accreditations have been duly obtained, are held by the respective Ottawa Parties, are
current and valid, and are in full force and effect; (b) to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, no
event has occurred or other fact exists with respect to the Accreditations that allows, or after
notice or lapse of time or both would allow, revocation, suspension, restriction, limitation or
termination of any of the Accreditations or would result in any other impairment of the rights of
the holder of any of the Accreditations that individually or in the aggregate would be material;
(c) no notice from any accreditation organization in rcspect to the revocation, suspension,
restriction, limitation or tenmination of any Accreditations has been issued, received or, to the
Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, proposed or threatened; and (d) no statement of deficiencies,
survey report, inspection report, notice of audit, audit results, complaint or other notice of
noncompliance with the requirements, standards or other conditions of any Accreditation has
been issued, received or, to the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, proposed or threatened by any
accreditation organization, for which any actual or potential payment or other obligation exists.

5.21. Contracts and Other Commitments. The Ottawa Parties have provided OSF
with copies of, or otherwise disclosed to OSF, all Material Contracts to which any Ottawa Party
is a party. Each Material Contract 1s a valid and binding obligation of the Ottawa Party and is a
valid and binding obligation of the other party or parties thereto, and to the Knowledge of
Ottawa Parties, enforceable in accordance with its terms (subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and except for
limitations upon the availability of equitable remedies, including specific performance). None of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement creates in any party to any such Material
Contract the right to revise the terms of, to tenminate, to accelerate any obligation of any Ottawa
Party, or othcrwise to declare that such Material Contract has been breached. Except as listed on
Schedule 5.21, no Ottawa Party is in breach or default in any material respect under any term or
provision of any Material Contract or the Ottawa Master Indenture or any related loan, tax, or
swap agreement, as applicable.

5.22. Compliance Program. Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, and OR Cardinal Sleep have
provided to OSF a copy of cach such entity’s current Compliance Program maierials. Except as
set forth on Schedule 5.22, neither Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, nor OR Cardinal Sleep: (a) is a party
to a Corporate Integrity Agreement with the Office of Inspector General of the United States
Department of Health and Human Services; (b) has reporting obligations pursuant to any
settlement agreement entered into with any Federal, state or local government entity; (c) to the
Knowledge of Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, or OR Cardinal Sleep, as applicable, has bcen the subject
of any government payer program investigation conducted by any Federal or state enforcement
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agency within the past three (3) years; (d) has been a defendant in any unsealed qui tam/False
Claims Act litigation within the past three (3) years; (¢) has been served with or received, within
the past threc (3) years, any scarch warrant, subpocna, civil investigative demand, contact letter,
or, to the Knowledge of Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, or OR Cardinal Slcep, as applicable, telephone
or personal contact by or from any Fcderal or state enforcement agency (except in connection
with medical scrvices provided to third partics who may be defendants or the subject of
investigation into conduct unrelated to the operation of the health care businesses conducted by
the Ottawa Partics); and (f) has received, to the Knowledge of Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, or OR
Cardinal Sleep, as applicable, any complaints within the past three (3) ycars from employees,
independent contractors, vendors, physicians, or any other Person that rcsulted in a claim being
filed with a Federal, statc or local govemment entity alleging that Ottawa, ORHA, ORMC, or
OR Cardinal Sleep has violated any law or regulation.

5.23. Exclusion from Health Care Programs. Each Ottawa Party has a program in
place to detcrmine whether any of its employees, agents or independent contractors has been: (a)
excluded from participating in any Federal Health Carc Program (as defined in 42
U.S.C. § 1320a 7b(1)); (b) subject to sanction or been indicted or convicted of a crime, or pled
nolo contendere or to sufficient facts, in connection with any allegation of violation of any
Fedcral Health Care Program requirement or Hcalth Carec Law; (c¢) debarred or suspended from
any Federal or statc procurement or nonprocurement program by any government agency; or (d)
designated a Specially Designated National or Blocked Person by the Office of Foreign Asset
Control of the U.S. Department of Treasury.

5.24. Medical Staff Matters. Ottawa has provided to OSF true, correct, and complete
copies of the bylaws and rules and regulations of the medical staff of Ottawa, as well as a list of
all current members of the medical staff. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.24: (a) there are no
adverse actions with respect to any medical staff members of Ottawa or any applicant thereto for
which a medical staff member or applicant has requested a hearing that has not been scheduled
or has been scheduled but has not been completed; (b) there are no pending or, to the Knowledge
of Ottawa, threatened disputes with applicants, staff members, or health professional affiliates,
and Ottawa knows of no basis therefore; and (c) all appeal periods in respect of any medical staff
member or applicant against whom an adverse action has been taken have expired.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, Oftawa shall not be required to
disclose any information pursuant to this Section where such disclosure is prohibited by state law
or where such disclosure would, in Ottawa’s reasonable discretion, potentially jeopardize any
applicable privilege that would protect the disclosure of such infonmation to third parties.

5.25. Experimental Procedures. The Ottawa Parties have not performed or permitted
the performance of any experimental or research procedures or studies involving patients of the
Ottawa Parties not authorized and conducted in accordance with the procedures of the applicable
Institutional Review Board.

5.26. Intellectual Property: Computer Software. No proceedings are pending or, to
the Knowledge of the Ottawa Parties, threatened that challenge the validity of the ownership by
the Ottawa Parties of any Intellectual Property. The Ottawa Parties have not licensed anyone to
use such Intellectual Property and have no Knowledge of the use or the infringement of any such
Intellectual Property by any other Person. The Ottawa Parties own (or possesses adequate and
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enforceable licenses or other rights to usc) all Intellcctual Property and all computer software
programs and similar systems used in the conduct of their businesses.

5.27. Hill-Burton Loan. Ottawa does not have any outstanding financial obligations to
repay any loans, grants, or loan guarantees pursuant 1o the Hill-Burton Act (42 U.S.C. § 291a, et

seq.).

ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF OSF

OSF hercby gives, as of the Execution Date, and shall give, as of the Closing Date, the
following representations and warranties to the Ottawa Partics:

6.1. QOrganization; Good Standing; Power. OSF is duly formed as an lllinois not-
for-profit corporation. OSF is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State
of Illinois and has the corporate power and authority to own, operate or hold under lease its
properties and assets and to carry on its business and operations as presently conducted.

6.2. Corporate Authorization.

6.2.1. OSF has the full corporate power and authority to enter into and to
perform its obligations under this Agreement.

6.2.2. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by OSF has
been duly and properly authorized by all necessary corporate action in accordance with
its Governing Documents.

6.2.3. This Agreement constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of
OSF, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be
timited by: (a) general principles of equity, regardless of whether enforcement 1s sought
in a proceeding in equity or at law; (b) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other similar laws of general application now or hereafier in effect relating
to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally; and (c) applicable
requirements of the OSF Master Indenture and Related Agreements.

6.3. No Violation; Approvals.

6.3.1. Except to the extent specified in Schedule 6.3.1, the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement shall not result in the creation of any lien, charge, or
encumbrance of any kind or the termination or acceleration of any indebtedness or other
obligation of OSF, and is not prohibited by, does not violate or conflict with any
provision of, and does not constitute a default under or breach of any Material Contraet,
indenture, mortgage, material permit or license, approval or other commitment to which
OSF is a party or is subject or by which it is bound, or any Applicable Law.

6.3.2. Except to the extent specified in Schedule 6.3.2, no approval,
authorization, registration, consent, order, filing or other action that has not occurred or
been obtained with or from any Person, including any court, administrative agency or
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other governmental authority, is required for the execution and delivery by OSF of this
Agrecment or the consummation by OSF of the transactions contemplated or required
hereby, except for filings required pursuant to the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Act,
or the HSR Act if applicable

6.4. No Material Omissions.

6.4.1. OSF has rcsponded in all material respects to all requests for information
and documentation made by Ottawa in connection with its due diligence revicw of the
business, operations, asscts and liabilities of OSF. OSF has not Knowingly omitted any
material information relating to the businesses, operations, assets or liabilities of OSF in
its responses to Ottawa’s requests. Since the delivery of such responses to the Ottawa
Parties, OSF has not reccived and not disclosed any information that would render untrue
or mislcading in any material respect any information previously disclosed to the Ottawa
Partics in response Lo their requests for information.

6.4.2. The representations and warranties of OSF contained in this Agreement,
and cach Exhibit, Schedule, certificate or other document delivered at Closing by OSF
pursuant to this Agreement, arc accurate, correct and complete in all material respects, do
not contain any untrue statement of a matcrial fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements and information contained thercin not
misleading.

6.5. Tax Exempt Status. OSF is a Tax Exempt Organization. The IRS has not taken,
or, to the Knowledge of OSF, proposed to take, any action to revoke the tax-exemption of OSF,
and has not determined in writing or, to the Knowledge of OSF, proposed to announce, that OSF
is a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. OSF does not have
Knowledge of any change in the organization or operation of OSF that would result in a loss of
OSF’s status as a Tax Exempt Organization.

6.6.  Legal Proceedings. Except as disclosed on Schedule 6.6, OSF is not a defendant
in, or, to the Knowledge of OSF, threatened with, any action, suit, proceeding, complaint,
charge, hearing, arbitration or state or Federal governmental investigation that could reasonably
be expected to materially and adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this
Agreement., Except as disclosed on Schedule 6.6, OSF has not received notice of any
investigation or threatened investigation by any Federal, state or local governmental or
regulatory agency, including those involving its business practices and policies, that could result
in a Material Adverse Change in OSF.

6.7.  Financial Statements.

6.7.1. OSF has delivered to Ottawa true and correct copies of: (a} the OSF
Audited Financial Statements; and (b) the OSF Unaudited Financial Statements. From
the Execution Date to the Closing Date, by the fifteenth Business Day of the following
month, OSF shall provide Ottawa with the OSF Interim Financial Statements.

6.7.2. The OSF Financial Statements are: (a) true and correct in all material
respects and present fairly the financial position of OSF, and the results of the operations
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of OSF at the datcs and for the periods indicated; and (b} arc in conformity with GAAP,
applied consistently for the periods specificd, including the consistent usc of
assumptions, practices, procedurcs and terminology, except: (1) as otherwise disclosed on
Schedule 6.7.2; and (ii) that the OSF Unaudited Financial Statcments and the OSF
Interim Financial Statements need not contain any of the footnotes or other year-end
adjustments required to comply with GAAP.

6.7.3. Except as set forth in Schedule 6.7.3 from and after October 1, 2010, OSF
has not made any material changes to its accounting methods or practices, including
methods or practices used to:

(a) Establish reserves on any patient, notes and accounts receivable;
(b) Establish estimates of any third-party settlements;

{c) Determine the value of any other accounts that require subjective
determmnations; and

(d) Establish malpractice, general liability or other self-insurance
reserves, including claims incurred but not reported.

6.7.4. Except as disclosed on Schedule 6.7.4, OSF has no liabilities or
obligations of any kind, whether contingent or absolute, direct or indirect, or matured or
unmatured, that are not shown or provided for in the OSF Financial Statements provided
to Ottawa prior to the Execution Date, other than: (a) covered by commercial insurance
or self insurance, or reserved by a specific or general reserve and any individual liability
or obligation of less than $2,000,000, provided such liabilities and obligations in the
aggregate do not exceed $4,000,000; or (b} liabilities arising in the ordinary course of
business that are reflected on the OSF Interim Financial Statements.

6.8. Interim Changes. Except for matters expressly permitted or authorized by this
Agreement and except as set forth on Schedule 6.8, there has nol been, after the date of the OSF
Audited Financiai Statements:

6.8.1. Any Material Adverse Change in OSF;

6.8.2. Any disposition by OSF of any property, rights or other assets owned by
or employed in OSF, except for dispositions in the usual and ordinary course of the
business;

6.8.3. Any change in the chief executive officer of OSF, other than in the
ordinary course of business; and

6.8.4. Any amendment or termination of any material contract that has had or
could reasonably be expected to have, in the aggrepgate, a material and adverse effect on
OSF.
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6.9. Compliance with Law. To the knowledge of OSF, OSF is in compliance with all
Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, all Health Care Laws, in all matcrial respects.

6.10. Payment Programs.

6.10.1. OSF is not engaged in termination proceedings as to its participation in
any Payment Program, nor has OSF received notice that its current participation in any
Payment Program is subject to any contest, termination or suspension as a result of
alleged violations or any noncompliance with participation requirements.

6.10.2. Except as set forth in Schedule 6.10.2, there is no audit, investigation,
adverse action, or civil, administrative, or criminal proceeding pending or, to the
Knowledge of OSF, threatcned relating to participation in any Payment Program by OSF;
and, to the Knowledge of OSF, there is no basis for any such adverse action by the
Payment Program against OSF.

ARTICLE VII
PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF THE OTTAWA PARTIES

Each Ottawa Party hereby agrees to keep, perform and fully discharge, or to cause to be
kept, performed and fully discharged, as applicable, the following covenants and agreements, as
applicable:

7.1.  Interim Conduct of Business. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date:

7.1.1. Each Ottawa Party shall:
(a) Preserve, protect and maintain its business, properties and assets;

(b) Operate its business as a going concern, consistent with prior
practices and not other than in the ordinary course of business;

{c) Preserve the goodwill of all individuals and entities having
business or other relations with it or them, including, without limitation,
physicians, employees, patients, customers and suppliers;

(d) Obtain all documents called for by this Agreement and required to
facilitate the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

(e) Cooperate with OSF to implement the Plan of Finance and, if
applicable, cooperate with OSF’s counsel to deliver opinions necessary to market
bonds in accordance with the Plan of Finance; and

) Use its best efforts to amend all existing lease agreements
identified in Schedule 5.11.1 under which it leases space to third party health care
providers to prohibit the use of the leased premises in the delivery of ilems and
services that contravene the Ethical and Religious Directives.
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7.1.2. The Ottawa Partics shall provide OSF with the Ottawa Interim Financial
Statements as set forth in Section 5.4.1.

7.1.3. The Ottawa Partics shall not do any of the following without the prior
written consent of OSF, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed:

(a) Make any changes, or permit any changes to be made, in the
Goveming Documents of the Ottawa Partics, cxcept for changes expressly
authorized by this Agrecment;

(b)  Enter into (or amend cxisting)} agreemcnts for employment,
indemnity, retention, severance, change-in-control, employec lease, dcferred
compensation, or incentive compensation with, or agreements regarding loans or
advanccs to Key Management Personnel;

(c) Make any change in the chicf executive officer of an Ottawa Party
or the Boards of the Ottawa Parties other than in the ordinary course of busincss
and with written notice to OSF;

(d)  Enter into any Debt Transaction or issuc any obligations under the
Ottawa Master Indenture;

{c) Enter into any New Physician Contract;

(D Enter into any new or amend any cxisting Material Contract with a
dollar value or liability greater than (or cxpected to be greater than) $500,000, in
the aggregate, or

(2)  Enter into any transaction or contractual obligation that would
materially adversely impact an Ottawa Party’s ability to perform its obligations
under this Agreement.

7.2. Preserve Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. From the Execution
Date to the Closing Datc:

7.2.1. The Ottawa Parties shall take no action that would render any
representation or warranty contained in this Agrecment inaccurate or untruc as of the
Closing Date.

7.2.2. The Ottawa Partics shall prompily notify OSF of any lawsuits, claims,
administrative actions or other proceedings asserted or commenced against any Ottawa
Party, or its officers, directors or member involving in any material way the ability of the
Ottawa Parties to consummate the transactions contemplated or required by this
Agreement, or materially affecting an Ottawa Party’s business, propertics or its assets.

7.2.3. The Ottawa Partics shall promptly notify OSF in writing of any facts or
circumstances that come to their attention and that cause, or through the passage of timc
may causc, any of the representations and warrantics made by them and comtained in this
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Agrcement to be untrue or misleading at any time from the Exccution Date to the Closing
Datc.

7.3.  Access to Information.

7.3.1. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, cach of the Ottawa Partics
shall give to OSF and to its representatives full and free access, except as may be limited
by applicable laws and regulations, during normal business hours, to all properties,
books, records and contracts and other materials pertaining to the businesses, propertics
and assets of the Ottawa Partics, as may be reasonably rcquested and appropriate in order
for OSF to perform its obligations hercunder (and in accordance with guidelines
approved by the Partics’ antitrust counsel), subject to reasonable advancc notice and
provided that OSF shall not excrcise such rights of access in such manner as would
unduly interfere with the operations of the Ottawa Partics’ personnel or the activities of
Ottawa’s, ORHA’s, ORMC’s, or OR Cardinal Slcep’s paticnts or gucsts.

7.3.2. The Ottawa Parties shall cooperate in keeping OSF fully informed and
shall promptly notify OSF ol any Matcrial Adverse Change in thc normal coursc of
business or prospects of any Ottawa Party.

7.4. Maintain Books and Accounting Practices. From the Execution Date to the
Closing Date, the Ottawa Parties shall maintain the books of account of the Ottawa Parties in the

usual, regular and ordinary manner in accordance with GAAP consistently applied and on a basis
consistent with prior years, including, without limitation, the consistent use of assumptions,
practices, procedures and terminology, and, except as otherwise required by GAAP, and the
Ottawa Parties shall not make or cause to be made any material changes in the accounting
methods or practices of the Ottawa Parties, including, without limitation, as applicable, methods
or practices:

7.4.1. Establishing reserves on any patient, notes and accounts receivable;
7.4.2. Establishing reserves for all third-party settlements; and

7.4.3. Determining the value of any other accounts that are subjectively
determined.

7.5.  Compliance with Laws. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, the
Ottawa Parties shall:

7.5.1. Comply with all Applicable Laws affecting the Ottawa Parties; and

7.5.2. Keep, hold and mainlain all certificates, certificates of need, certificates of
exemption, accreditation, licenses and other permits necessary for the conduct and
operation the Ottawa Parties.

7.6. No Merger or Consolidation. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, the
Ottawa Parties shall not merge or consolidate with any other entity, and the Ottawa Parties shall
not acquire any of the assets of any other corporation, business or Person except: (a) in the
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ordinary course of business; or (b) with respect to confidential transactions underway at the time
of execution of this Agreement that (i) have been disclosed in writing to OSF and (ii) that OSF
has not provided to Ottawa a written notice of objcction to such transaction prior to the
Execution Date of this Agreement.

7.7.  Third Party Authorizations. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, the
Ottawa Partics shall obtain cxpeditiously all conscnts, approvals and authorizations of third
parties, whether governmental or private, make all filings, and give all notices which may be
nccessary or appropriate under Applicable Laws and under all contracts, agrecments and
commitments to which an Ottawa Party is a party or is bound, or to the extent necessary for the
valid cxccution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Ottawa Parties.

7.8. Confidentiality of OSF’s Information. The Confidentiality Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect, except to the extent necessary to implement the provisions of this
Agreement, including but not limited to the Plan of Finance.

ARTICLE VIl
PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF OSF

OSF hereby agrees to keep, perform and fully discharge the followmmg covenants and
agreements:

8.1. Interim Conduct of Business. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date:

8.1.1. OSF shall:
(a) Preserve, protect and maintain its business, properties and assets;

()] Operate its businesses as a going concern, consistent with prior
practices;

(c) Preserve the goodwill of all individuals and entities having
business or other relations with it or them, including, without limitation,
physicians, employees, patients, customers and suppliers; and

(d)  Obtain all documents called for by this Agreement and required to
facilitate the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

8.1.2. OSF shall provide Ottawa with the OSF Interim Financial Statements as
set forth in Section 6.7.

8.1.3. OSF shall not, without the prior written consent of Ottawa, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, enter into any transaction or contractual
obligation that would materially adversely impact OSF’s ability to perform its obligations
under this Agreement.
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8.2. Preserve Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. From the Execution

Date to the Closing Datc:

8.2.1. OSF shall take no action that would render any representation or warranty
contained in this Agrecement inaccurate or untruc as of the Closing Date.

8.2.2. OSF shall promptly notify Ottawa of any lawsuits, claims, administrative
actions or other proceedings asserted or commenced against OSF, or its officers, directors
or members involving in any material way the ability of OSF to consummate the
transactions contemplated or required by this Agreement, or materially affecting OSF's
business, properties or its assets.

8.2.3. OSF shall promptly notify Ottawa in writing of any facts or circumstances
that come to its attention and that cause, or through thc passage of time may cause, any of
the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement to be untrue or misleading
at any time from the Execution Date to the Closing Datc.

8.3.  Access to Information.

8.3.1. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, OSF shall give Ottawa and
its representatives full and free access, during normal business hours, to all properties,
books, records and contracts and other materials pertaining to the businesses, properties
and assets of OSF, as may be reasonably requested (and in accordance with guidelines
approved by the Parties’ antitrust counsel), subject to reasonable advance notice and
provided that Ottawa shall not exercise such rights of access in such manner as would
unduly interfere with the operations of OSF or the work of OSF’s personnel or the
activities of OSF’s patients or guests.

8.3.2. OSF shall cooperate in keeping Ottawa fully informed and shall promptly
notify Ottawa of the status of the affiliation with Rockford Health System and any other
hospital based health system, subject to OSF’s confidentiality obligations, or any Material
Adverse Change in the normal course of business or prospects of OSF.

8.4. Maintain Books and Accounting Practices. From the Execution Date to the

Closing Date, OSF shall maintain the books of account of OSF in the usual, regular and ordinary
manner in accordance with GAAP consistently applied and on a basis consistent with prior years,
including, without limitation, the consistent use of assumptions, practices, procedures and
terminology, and, except as otherwise required by GAAP, and OSF shall not make or cause to be
made any material changes in the accounting methods or practices of OSF.

8.5. Compliance with Laws. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, OSF

8.5.1. Comply with all Applicable Laws affecting OSF; and

8.5.2. Keep, hold and maintain all certificates, certificates of need, certificates of
exemption, accreditation, licenses and other permits necessary for the conduct and
operation of OSF.
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8.6.  Third Party Authorizations. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, OSF
shall obtain expeditiously all consents, approvals and authorizations of third parties, whether
governmental or private, make all filings, and give all notices which may be necessary or
appropriatc under Applicablc Laws and under all contracts, agrecments and commitments to
which OSF is a party or is bound, or to the extent necessary for the valid execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement by OSF.

8.7. Confidentiality of Ottawa Parties’ Information. The Confidentiality
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, except to the extent necessary to implement the
provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to the Plan of Finance. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, after the Closing Date, OSF shall no longer be bound by the confidentiality
obligations set forth in the Confidentiality Agreement, with respect to any and all information
which constitutes or pertains to confidential information of or regarding the Ottawa Parties.

ARTICLE IX
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE OTTAWA PARTIES

The obligations of the Ottawa Parties to consummate the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement are, at the option of Ottawa, subject to the satisfaction by OSF, on or prior to the
Closing Date, of the following conditions:

9.1. Regulatory Approvals. All regulatory consents and approvals required for the
consummation of the transactions contemplated or required by this Agreement shall have been
obtained on or before the Closing Date, including, without limitation:

9.1.1. Hart Scott Rodino. If applicable, the Parties shall have submiited their
respective filings under the HSR Act and all required waiting periods under the HSR Act
shall have expired.

9.1.2. Health Plapning. The Parties shall have obtained any necessary
certificates of exemption and/or certificates of need, as applicable, from the IHFSRB to
consummate the Affiliation.

9.2.  Accuracy of Warranties; Performance of Covenants. The representations and
warranties of OSF contained in this Agreement shall be accurate in all material respects as if
made on and as of the Closing Date. OSF shall have performed all of the obligations and
complied with each and all of the covenants, agreements and conditions required to be performed
or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing Date.

9.3. No Pending Action. No action or proceeding before any court or governmental
body shall be pending or threatened wherein an unfavorable judgment, decree or order would
prevent the carrying out of this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby,
declare unlawful the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or cause such transactions to
be rescinded.

9.4. No Bankruptcy. OSF shall not: (a) be in receivership or dissolution; (b) have
made any assignment for the benefit of creditors; (c) have admitted in writing its inability to pay
its debts as they mature; (d) have been adjudicated bankrupt; or (e) have filed a petition in
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voluntary bankruptcy, a petition or answer secking reorganization or an arrangement with
creditors under the Federal bankruptcy law or any other similar law or statute of the United
States or any state, nor shall any such petition have been filed against OSF.

9.5. Material Consents. All Material Consents shall have been obtained on or before
the Closing Date.

9.6. Exhibits and Schedules. It is not a condition precedent for this Agreement to be
binding upon the Parties that all Exhibits and Schedules required under this Agreement be
attached in a final form on the Execution Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Exhibits and
Schedules required under this Agreement shall be complete and otherwise in final form
acceptable to the Parties and shall be attached to the Agreement at Closing,

9.7. Delivery of OSF Closing Documents. OSF shall have delivered, on or before
the Closing Date, the OSF Closing Documents.

9.8. Defeasance. The Ottawa Master Indenture and all obligations, loan agreements,
tax agreements, credit agreements, and all other related loan documents of the Ottawa Parties
thereunder shall have been defeased, satisfied, and released in accordance with the Plan of
Finance.

9.9. Delivery of Other Agreements. OSF shall have executed and delivered all other
agreements determined by the Parties to be necessary or appropriate to be entered into as of the
Closing Date, relating to the Affiliation.

ARTICLE X
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO OBLIGATIONS OF OSF

The obligations of OSF to consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement
are, at the option of OSF, subject to the satisfaction by the Ottawa Parties, on or prior to the
Closing Date, of the following conditions:

10.1. Regulatory Approvals. All regulatory consents and approvals required for the
consummation of the transactions contemplated or required by this Agreement shall have been
obtained on or before the Closing Date, including, without limitation:

10.1.1. Hart Scott Rodino. If applicable, the Parties shall have submitted their
respective filings under the HSR Act, and all required waiting periods under the HSR Act
shall have expired.

10.1.2. Health _Planning. The Parties shall have obtained any necessary
certificates of exemption and/or certificates of need, as applicable, from the IHFSRB to
consummate the Affiliation.

10.2.  Accuracy of Warranties; Performance of Covenants. The representations and
warranties of the Ottawa Parties contained in this Agreement shall be accurate in all material
respects as if made on and as of the Closing Date. Each of the Ottawa Parties shall have
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performed all of the obligations and complied with cach of the covenants, agreements and
conditions required to be performed or complied with on or prior to the Closing Date.

10.3. No Pending Action. No action or proceeding before any court or governmental
body shall be pending or threatened wherein an unfavorable judgment, decree or order would
prevent the carrying out of this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby,
declare unlawful the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or cause such transactions to
be rescinded.

10.4. No_Bankruptcy. No Ottawa Party shall: (a) be in receivership or dissolution; (b)
have made any assignment for the benefit of creditors; (c) have admitted in writing its inability to
pay its debts as they mature; (d) have been adjudicated bankrupt; or (e) have filed a petition in
voluntary bankruptcy, a petition or answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with
creditors under the Federal bankruptcy law or any other similar law or statute of the United
States or any state; and nor shall any such petition have been filed against any Ottawa Party.

10.5. Material Consents. All Material Consents shall have been obtained on or before
the Closing Date.

10.6. Exhibits and Schedules. It is not a condition precedent for this Agreement to be
binding upon the Parties that all Exhibits and Schedules required under this Agreement be
attached in a final form on the Execution Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Exhibits and
Schedules required under this Agreement shall be complete and otherwise in final form
acceptable to the Parties and shall be attached to the Agreement at Closing,

10.7. Amendment of Ottawa Medical Staff Bvlaws. The medical staff bylaws, rules
and regulations, and credentialing procedures of the hospital facility owned and operated by

Ottawa shall be amended as of the Closing Date to include the provisions set forth on Schedule
10.7, prohibiting the performance of any procedures and the provision of any service in violation
of the Ethical and Religious Directives.

10.8. Delivery of Ottawa Closing Documents. The Ottawa Parties shall have
delivered, on or before the Closing Date, the Ottawa Closing Documents.

10.9. Entry Into OSF Obligated Group. Ottawa and the Ottawa Foundation shall
have become Members of the OSF Obligated Group.

10.10. Due Diligence. OSF shall have completed its due diligence investigation of the
Ottawa Parties and the resulting information from such investigation shall have been acceptable
to OSF in its sole discretion, and the Ottawa Parties shall have furnished to OSF and its
representatives such information and access to such books and records and personnel as OSF
may reasonably request for such purpose.

10.11. Dclivery of Other Agreements. The Ottawa Partics shall have executed and
delivered all other agreements determined by the Partics to be necessary or appropriate to be
entered into as of the Closing Date, relating to the Affiliation.
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10.12. Ottawa Auxiliary Governing Documents. Effective as of the Closing Date,
Ottawa Auxiliary shall have taken all requisite action to amend and restatc its Govcrning
Documents in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit D, and Ottawa shall have approved such
amendment and restatement.

10.13. RONI, FRCC and OR DME Governing Documents. Effective as of the
Closing Date, RONI, FRCC and OR DME shall each have taken all requisite action to amend
and restate their respective Governing Documents, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory
to OSF, to prohibit the provision by each entity of items and services in contravention of the
Ethical and Religious Directives, and to give to Ottawa the remedy of specific performance of
each such entity’s obligation to abide by the Ethical and Religious Directives.

10.14. Amendments to Leases. Effective as of the Closing Date, all existing lease
agreements identified in Schedule 5.11.1 under which each Ottawa Party leases space to third
party health care providers shall be amended to prohibit the use of the leased premises in the
delivery of items and services that contravenc the Ethical and Religious Directives.

ARTICLE XI
CLOSING

11.1. Clesing Date; Closing. The Parties shall close the Affiliation and the other
transactions contemplated by the Agreement on the Closing Date. The Closing shall occur two
(2) Business Days immediately prior to the Closing Date, at the offices of Hinshaw & Culbertson
LLP, 416 Main Street, Peoria, 1llinois or any other date or location agreed to by the Parties. All
documents to be executed and actions to be taken, pursuant to this Agreement, at the Closing,
shall be deemed to have been executed and to have been taken substantially concurrently, and no
action shall be deemed to be complete until all are completed. Unless the Parties otherwise agree
in writing, the Affiliation and other transactions contemplated herein to become effective as of
the Closing Date, shall become so effective, provided that, as of the Closing Date, all of the
Closing conditions (except for any Closing condition which has been waived in writing by the
Party(ies) entitled to do so) have occuired, including the delivery by each Party of each of the
Closing documents required to be delivered by such Party hereunder.

11.2.  Pre-Closing Actions. Prior to the Closing, the Partics shall take and cause to be
taken all actions necessary or appropriate on their respective parts to implement the transactions
contemplated herein on the Closing Date, including the following:

11.2.1. Actions by OSF. Prior to the Closing Date, the OSF Board shall approve
the execution of any and all agreements and other documents and the taking of any and
all other actions necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated or
required by this Agreement to be taken by OSF on or before the Closing Date.

11.2.2. Actions by the Ottawa Parties. Prior to the Closing Date, the Boards of
the Ottawa Parties shall approve the execution on behalf of the Ottawa Partics of any and
all agreements and other documents, and the taking of any and all other actions necessary
or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated or required by this
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Agreement to be taken by the Ottawa Partics on or beforc the Closing Date, including
approval of the amended and restated Governing Documents.

11.3. Closing Document Deliveries. At the Closing, the Partics shall deliver the
documents described below.

11.3.1. OSF _Closing Documents. At the Closing, OSF shall deliver the OSF
Closing Documents.

11.3.2. Ottawa Closing Documents. At the Closing, the Ottawa Parties shall
deliver the Ottawa Closing Documents.

. 11.4. Modification of Schedules and Exhibits. During the period from the Execution
Date until the Closing, either OSF or Ottawa may amend any one or more of the Schedules or
Exhibits delivered at the Execution Date by delivering an updated Schedule or Exhibit to the
other. Upon receipt of the updated document, the Receiving Party shall promptly review such
document and either approve or disapprove it. If the Receiving Party approves the updated
document, such document shall become the final Schedule or Exhibit. If the Receiving Party
fails to approve the Amending Party’s updated document(s), the Amending Party refuses to cure
the items of disagreement, or the Parties are unable to agree upon an appropriate cure, or if the
agreed-upon cure has not been completed by Closing, the Receiving Party may: (a) elect to close
over the issue; or (b) may elect to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 15.1 by
providing notice to the Amending Party. 1f the Receiving Party elects to close over the issue, the
updated document shail be deemed a modification to the Schedule or Exhibit delivered by the
Amending Party prior to the Closing Date. Upon agreement of the Parties, cither Party may set
forth any disclosures required by a Schedule in a separate writing delivered to the other Parties
that specificaliy makes reference to the applicable Section of the Agreement and the required
schedule thereto.

ARTICLE X11
POST-CLOSING COVENANTS OF OTTAWA PARTIES

12.1. Compliance with Governing Documents. The Ottawa Parties shall at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of their respective amended and restated Governing
Documents.

12.2. Exercise of Reserved Powers. Ottawa shall, subject to the Reserved Powers held
by OSF, exercise all the powers reserved to it in its amended and restated Governing Documents
with respect to the Ottawa Foundation, Ottawa Auxiliary and ORHA, and shall not waive any
power reserved to it. ORHA shall, subject to the Reserved Powers held by Ottawa, exercise all
the powers reserved to it in its amended and restated Governing Documents with respect to
ORMC, and shall not waive any power reserved to it.

12.3.  Catholic Teachings.

12.3.1. The Ottawa Parties shall at all times and without exception comply with,
and manage and operate the Ottawa Facilities and Scrvices in accordance with, the moral
teachings of the Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives
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and Canon Law and in a manner which, as dctermined by OSF in good faith after
recasonable investigation, does not bring Scandal upon OSF. The Ottawa Parties shall use
their best cfforts to ensurc that their respective agents and independent contractors do not
cngage in conduct which, as determined by OSF in pood faith after reasonable
investigation, brings Scandal upon OSF.

12.3.2. The Ottawa Parties shall maintain at all times their respective amended
and restated Governing Documents in compliance with the moral teachings of the Roman
Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives and Canon Law.

12.3.3. The Ottawa Parties shall prohibit the performance of any procedures or the
provision of any scrvices in violation of the Ethical and Religious Directives, within the
scope of employment, by a physician or other health care worker employed by an Ottawa
Party by adoption of a policy or policies, or amendments to employment agreements, in
form and substance acceptable to OSF in its sole discretion.

12.3.4. The Ottawa Partics may enler into agreements for the lease of space to
third party health care providers only if such lcasc agreements expressly prohibit the
delivery in the leased premiscs of items and services that contravene the Ethical and
Religious Dircctives.

12.4. Catholic Identity. As directed by OSF, so as to establish the Ottawa Partics’

Catholic identity, the Ottawa Partics shall:

12.4.1. Operate the Ottawa Facilities and Services pursuant to OSF’s Mission,
Philosophy and Valucs in a manner which respects the individual belicfs and spiritual
values of the patients of the Ottawa Facilities and Services and honors and permits freely
the outward expression of such patients’ individual belicfs and spiritual values;

12.4.2. Display, in the tradition of OSF, rcligious icons or symbols of religious
identification at the Ottawa facilities and all other facilitics usced by the Ottawa Parties in
thc delivery of health care services;

12.4.3. Designatc in the hospital facility owned and operated by Ottawa a chapel
that meets (he requirements of the Catholic Dioccse of Peoria for usc in Roman Catholic
worship and for other Christian services;

12.4.4. Permit the assignment by OSF of women religious to work at the Ottawa
facilities and at all other facilities used by the Ottawa Partics in the delivery of health care
services, and to permit such persons to work in positions to which they are assigned by
OSF, provided thosc assigned meet the job qualifications for positions they are filling;

12.4.5. Nominate, through the Ottawa Board, persons to serve as chairman and
members of onc or more ethics committees established by OSF to serve the Ottawa
Facilitics and Services other than home health and hospice services, which will be served
by OSF’s existing system-wide HomeCare Ethics Committee. The HomeCare Ethics
Committeec will includec onc or more rcpresentatives from the Ottawa Facilities and
Services who will be nominated by the members of the Home Care Ethics Committee.
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The OSF Board will have the sole power to appoint or reject any nominee, but its
decision shall not be made arbitrarily; and the OSF Board shall have the right to appoint
one or morc ethicists to advise the ethics committees on interpretations of Roman
Catholic ethical princtples; and

12.4.6. Pcrmit the appointment by OSF of the director of pastoral care services for
Ottawa Facilities and Services, which director shall meet the requircments of the Catholic
Diocese of Peoria and shall supervise and coordinate the activities of all persons
performing pastoral care services in conncction with the Ottawa Facilities and Services,
which persons may be appointed by the Ottawa Board, subject to the approval of the OSF
Board.

12.5. Name Changes. Each Ottawa Party shall change its name and the names of all
Ottawa Facilities and Scrvices owned and operated by it, as directed by OSF from time to time;
provided that OSF shall consult with the Ottawa Board prior to directing an Ottawa Party to
change its name; and further provided that the hospital facility known as Ottawa Regional
Hospital & Healthcare Center prior to the Closing Date shall be renamed effective as of the
Closing Date.

12.6. Membership in OSF Obligated Group. No Ottawa Party shall take action to
amend or revoke the designation of OSF as the Group Representative and the Obligated Group
Agent under the terms of the OSF Master Indenture, to otherwise hinder OSF’s exclusive
exercise of the power and authority described in Section 2.3.2(b), or to cease to be a Member of
the OSF Obliged Group without the express written approval of OSF.

12.7. Participation in System Initiatives.

12.7.1. Corporate Office Services. The Ottawa Parties acknowledge that OSF
has established certain programs and initiatives that create value in terms of scale,
leverage and/or superior operating performance on behalf of OSF as a whole, including
but not limited to Corporate Office Services. In their management and operation of the
Ottawa Facilities and Services, the Ottawa Parties shall make use of all the services
provided by Local Corporate Personnel, the Corporate Office Services, and the advice
and assistance of the various divisions of the Corporate Office. The services provided by
Local Corporate Personnel shall not be provided by employees of the Ottawa Parties.
The costs for Corporate Office Services, and the salaries, wages, and benefits of Local
Corporate Personnel and the Ottawa CEO, will be allocated to the Ottawa Parties in
accordance with OSF policies.

12.7.2. Supply Chain Management; Corporate Engineering. To the extent that
materials, supplies, and services are available through the supply chain management or
the corporate engineering division of the Corporate Office, each Ottawa Party shall obtain
such materials, supplies, and services from or through the supply chain management or
corporate engineering division, as applicable.

12.7.3. Information Systems. OSF and the Ottawa Parties acknowledge that
OSF maintains a common Information System, serving all of OSF’s health care facilities
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and scrvices, in which relevant managecment, financial and clinical information from all
of OSF’s opcrations share a common data repository and thereby become accessible for
use by all authorized partics. OSF and the Ottawa Parties acknowledge the importance to
OSF of shared financial information, wherein financial information and data generated by
the operations of the Ottawa Facilitics and Scrvices become part of thc common OSF
financial data repository. Accordingly, as of the Closing Date the Ottawa Partics shall use
the Information Systems used by and serving the Ottawa Facilitics and Services as
nceded to transmit electronically to OSF’s Information System thc financial data
maintained in Ottawa Facilitics and Scrvices databases from time to time in accordance
with communications standards and protocols compatiblc with OSF’s Information
System, which financial data shall be transmitted clcctronically to OSF’s data rcpository
at the times, containing the information, and in the reporting format requested by OSF.
As of the Closing Date, non-financial data shall be transmitted to OSF’s data repository
by the means, at the times, containing the information, and in the reporting format
requested by OSF. OSF and the Ottawa Parties acknowlcdge that, as of the Closing Date,
the Information Systcms serving thc Ottawa Facilities and Scrvices and OSF’s
Information Systcms will not be interoperable. Upon implementation of the Epic Project,
the data described in this Section shall be transmitted via Epic as directed by OSF.

12.7.4. Compliance with Corporate Policies. All Corporate Policies shall apply
with respect to cach Ottawa Party’s govcrnance, management and operation of the
Ottawa Facilities and Services. The Ottawa Parties shall not enact any policy that
conflicts with or purports to nullify the effect of a Corporate Policy without the approval
of OSF.

12.7.5. Other_Svstem Initiatives. The Ottawa Parties shall participate, as
directed by OSF, in the development and implementation of certain system-wide clinical
and management programs and initiatives, such as, for example, Clinical Services Lines.
The Ottawa Parties shall participate, as directed by OSF, in certain system-wide contracts,
such as, for example, managed care agreements, group purchasing agreements, and
clinical and administrative information technology agreements.

12.8. Provider Agreements. The Closing shall not affect or change the status of any
Ottawa Party’s participation in any Payment Program as of the Closing Date. So long as an
Ottawa Party first consults with and considers the recommendations of OSF, after the Closing
Date it may enter into Payment Program agreements committing the Ottawa Facilitics and
Services. Upon OSF’s request after consultation with Ottawa, the Ottawa Parties shall enter into
Payment Program agreements commitling the Ottawa Facilities and Services, so long as such
agreements commit OSF facilities located in two or more regions.

12.9. Ottawa Funded Depreciation. At Closing one-half (1/2) of the amount of
Ottawa Funded Depreciation shall be retained by Ottawa and used for the support of healthcare
programs and services provided by Ottawa as determined by the Ottawa Board. At Closing the
other onc-half (1/2) of the Ottawa Funded Depreciation shall be transferred to the Ottawa
Foundation, shall be managed by the Ottawa Foundation Board in accordance with an investment
policy adopted in accordance with the Ottawa Foundation Governing Documents, and, subject to
the following sentence of this Section, shall be used solely for the support of new, and/or
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cxpansion of, healthcare programs and services provided by Ottawa as approved by the Board of
the Ottawa Foundation, consistent with recommendations of the Ottawa Board. Any amount of
the Ottawa Funded Depreciation remaining on hand in the Ottawa Foundation after five (5) years
following the Closing Date shall be transferred without restriction back to Ottawa for use for the
support of the hcalthcare programs and services provided by Ottawa, as determined by the
Ottawa Board.

12.10. Use of Existing Funds; Future Gifts. Subject to the Governing Documents of
the Ottawa Foundation, the funds held by the Ottawa Foundation as of the Closing Date (not
including the Ottawa Funded Depreciation transferred to the Ottawa Foundation pursuant to
Section 12.9) may, following the Closing Date, be restricted for the support of healthcare
programs and scrvices provided by Ottawa, as the Ottawa Foundation will continue to support
the charitable purposes of Ottawa. All unrestricted gifts and bequests rcceived by Ottawa
following the Closing Date shall be transferred to the Ottawa Foundation, and shall not be
restricted for the support of healthcare programs and services provided by Ottawa; provided
however such amounts transferred shall be used to support Ottawa’s charitable purposes as set
forth in the Ottawa Governing Documents, and in accordance with the Governing Documents of
the Ottawa Foundation. Bcquests, gifts, and endowments of the Ottawa Foundation as of the
Closing Date that are restricted as to use or manner of investment shall continue to be so
restricted following the Closing Date, and the Ottawa Foundation shail honor donor intent with
respect thercto. The Ottawa Foundation shall honor donor intent with respect to all bequests,
gifts and endowments received by the Ottawa Foundation following the Closing Date that arc
restricted as to use or manner of investment.

ARTICLE XIlI
POST-CLOSING COVENANTS OF OSF

13.1. Ottawa Merger, Dissolution, Consolidation. During the ten (10} year period
following the Closing Date, OSF will not take any action to sell substantially all the asscts of,
merge, dissolve or consolidate Ottawa, without the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the Ottawa
Board, unless OSF determines in its sole and reasonable judgment that such action is necessary:
{a) to protect and preserve the tax-exempt status and public charity status of OSF and Ottawa and
any tax-exempt Affiliate of OSF and Ottawa (including Federal and state income tax exemptions,
property tax exemptions, and sales tax exemptions); provided the OSF Board has given a written
request to the Ottawa Board to take action or refrain from taking action, which would have
sufficiently protected and preserved such tax-exempt and public charity status, and the Ottawa
Board has failed to promptly take such action or refrain from taking such action; (b} to comply,
on behalf of any and all members of the OSF Obligated Group, with its Master Trust Indenture,
Related Loan Documents, Tax Agreements, and all other covenants and agreements relating to
any Obligated Group financing provided the OSF Board has given a writlen request (o the
Ottawa Board to take action or refrain from taking action, to so comply, and the Ottawa Board
has failed to promptly take such action or refrain from taking such action; or (c) to comply with
the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church, Ethical and Religious Directives, and/or
Canon Law, as interpreted by the appropriate ecclesiastical authority. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, OSF shall not be prohibited from entering into a transaction involving a change of
control of OSF or a merger or consolidation of OSF with or into any other entity; provided the
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post-closing covenants of OSF as sct forth in this Agreement are honored by such successor to
OSF.

13.2. Clinical Services at Ottawa. During the five (5) ycar period following the
Closing Date, OSF shall not close any program or service of Ottawa in effect on the Closing
Date without thc reccommendation of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Ottawa Board;
provided, however, that this covenant shall only apply during the first year following the Closing
Date with respect to inpatient and outpatient behavioral healthcare programs and services.

13.3. Capital _and Other Financial Commitments. OSF shall fund capital
requirements identified in the capital budgets of Ottawa, as approved by OSF in accordance with
OSF’s capital allocation policies and procedures, in order to sustain and enhance the delivery of
high quality health care services in the Ottawa service area. In addition, OSF shall fund capital
and cash flow requirements for the Epic Project. Except as a consequence of actions taken
pursuant to Sections 2.1 or 13.1 herein, OSF shall not for a period of ten (10) years from the
Closing Date transfer or cause a transfer of Ottawa Funded Depreciation to OSF or to other
Members of the OSF Obligated Group.

13.4. WARN Act. OSF shall retain for a period of ninety (90) days following the
Closing Date such number of employees of the Ottawa Parties as shall be necessary to avoid any
potential liability by the Ottawa Parties for a violation of the WARN Act, atiendant to the failure
of an Ottawa Party to notify such employees of a “mass layoff’” or “plant closing” (as such terms
are defined in the WARN Act). OSF shall be liable and responsible for any notification required
under the WARN Act (or under any similar state or local laws).

ARTICLE XIV
JOINT POST-CLOSING COVENANTS

14.1. 1Integration of Clinical and Non-Clinjcal Operations. OSF and the Ottawa
Parties understand and agree that integration of the clinical and non-clinical operation and
management of the Ottawa Parties into the OSF System is expected to present opportunities for
beneficial cost savings, improved scrvice, and operating efficiencies. Upon and after the Closing
Date, OSF and the Ottawa Parties shall review the operations of the Ottawa Facilities and
Services and the Ottawa Parties shaill take such actions as OSF determines appropriate to
integrate such clinical and non-clinical operations.

14.2. Medical Staff. The Closing shall not affect or change the medical staff status or
clinical privileges held by members of the medical staff of Ottawa on the Closing Date or any
agreements with members of the medical staff, whether the physicians be employed or
contracted; provided, however, that practitioners shall not be permitted to exercise any clinical
privileges thal contravene the Ethical and Religious Directives; and provided further that any
statements in this Section shall not be deemed to preclude Ottawa from amending or adopting
new medical staff bylaws, rules, or regulations following the Closing Date consistent with the
approval processes set forth therein and establishing new procedures consistent with customary
practices of Ottawa. The consummation of the Affiliation shall not result in a need for any
reapplications of current members of Ottawa’s medical staff, except as otherwise required by
Ottawa’s medical staff bylaws with respect to expiration of medical staff appointments or
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credentials. Prior to and after the Closing Date, the OSF corporate office and OSF service line
CEOs shall work with the medical staff of Ottawa to evaluate and, where feasible, pursuc
opportunitics for medical staff/clinical intcgration to establish onc standard of clinical quality in
order to improve the quality of care and to improve access to care.

14.3. Employment of Ottawa and OSF Employees. As of the Closing Date,
employees of the Ottawa Partics in good standing as of the Closing Datc, other than Robert
Chaffin, shall continue to be employced following the Closing Date by the same Ottawa Party.
Nothing herein is intended to restrict the right of an Ottawa Party to terminate any employee or
engage in staff reductions or consolidations prior to, on, or following the Closing Datc (to the
extent such actions are consistent with the then current applicable staff reduction and severance
policies and procedures, any coliective bargaining and other employment agreements, and
Applicable Law).

14.4. Emploved Physicians. As of the Closing Date, the employment agreements of
all physicians presently employed by the Ottawa Parties shall be honored by the Ottawa Parties,
provided no employed physician shall be permitted to perform any procedures or provide any
service in the scope of employment in violation of the Ethical and Religious Directives. All
physicians employed by the Ottawa Parties as of the Closing Date shall report to the Ottawa
CEO and the chief executive officer of OSF Medical Group.

14.5. OSF Medical Group. Following the Closing Date, those physicians enployed
by the Ottawa Parties shall, at the direction of OSF join the OSF Medical Group, an operating
division of OSF, or one or more other entities organized by OSF as physician practices. As of
the Closing Date, the Ottawa Parties shall cause the physicians employed by the Ottawa Parties
to participate in OSF quality programs and other OSF quality initiatives on the same basis as
other physicians aligned with OSF.

14.6. Independent Physicians. All agreements for professional and admimistrative
services between independent physicians and the Ottawa Parties shall continue to operate as
effective agreements following the Closing Date, provided all such services shall comply with
the Ethical and Religious Directives.

ARTICLE XV
TERMINATION

15.1. Termination Upon Certain Events. OSF or Ottawa may, at or prior to the time
set for Closing, terminate this Agrcement under any one of the following circumstances:

15.1.1. Legal Proceeding. If at the time of Closing: (a) a bona fide action or
proceeding shall be pending against any Party wherein an unfavorable judgment, decree
or order would prevent or make unlawful the carrying out of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; or (b) any governmental agency shall have notified any
Party of its position that the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein would
constitule a violation of Applicable Law and that it has commenced or intends to
commence proceedings to restrain the consummation of the transactions contemplated
herein, and such agency has not withdrawn such notice prior to such termination;
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provided however, that no Party may without the written agreement of the other Party
terminate this Agreement because of the absence of approval of the transaction by the
United States Department of Justice or the Federal Trade Commission; or

15.1.2. Conditions Precedent to Closing. If the conditions of this Agreement to
be complied with or performed by any other Party at or before the Closing shall not have
been complied with or performed on or before the Closing Datc or such later date upon
which the Partics shall mutually agree, and such noncompliance or nonperformance shall
have not been waived by the Party giving notice of icrmination; or

15.1.3. Material Adverse Change. If at any time prior to the Closing, there has
been a Material Adverse Change to the businesses of the Ottawa Parties or OSF, as
applicable, and such change shall have not been waived by the Party giving notice of
termination; or

15.1.4. Schedules and Exhibits. A Party, in its sole discretion, determines that it
should not consummate the transactions conlemplated by this Agreement because of any
information contained in a Schedule or Exhibit required under this Agreement that is
delivered to such Party after the Execution Date (in accordance with the process set forth
in Section 11.4); or

15.1.5. Closing Date Deadline. If, for any reason, the Closing shall not have
occurred on or before April 30, 2013,

15.2. Effect of Termination. If there has been a termination under Section 15.1, this
Agreement shall be dcemed terminated, and all further obligations of the Parties hereunder shall
terminate, except those obligations specifically identified in this Agreement as surviving
termination. Any termination under Section 15.1 shall be without liability to the Parties, except
that such termination shall be without prejudice to the rights and remedies which any Party
seeking to terminate this Agreement may have if (a) a default shall be made by any other Party in
the observance or in the due and timely performance by such Party of any of the covenants
herein contained; or (b) there shall have been a breach by such other Party of any of the
warranties and representations herein contained, and except for frandulent acts by a Party, the
remedies for which shall not be limited by this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, if a Party shall have made such default or breach, the other Parties need not terminate
this Agreement but may seck to specifically enforce the defaulting or breaching Party’s
obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE XVI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

16.1. Closing Date Representations and Warranties. The Ottawa Parties, and OSF,
shall be deemed to have remade all of their representations and warranties contained in this
Agreement on the Closing Date with the same effect as i originally made on the Closing Date.

16.2. No Shop Clause. The Ottawa Parties agree that, from and after the Execution
Date of this Agreement until the earlier to occur of the Closing or the termination of this
Agreement, the Ottawa Parties will not, without the prior consent of OSF, explore, meet, discuss,
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ncgotiate, directly or indirectly, or enter into an agreement with any third party for the purpose of
discussing, organizing, formulating, designing, devcloping, investing in or implemcenting an
arrangement that could Icad to a change in control, sale of cquity, Icasc of assets, salc of asscts,
joint opcrating agreement/joint operating company, merger, consolidation, liquidation, academic
affiliation or any other business rclationship simlar to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. The Ottawa Parties shall promptly notify OSF by telephone and thercafter confirm
in writing, if any such discussions or negotiations arc sought to be initiated with any Ottawa
Parly or any such proposal or possible proposal is received directly or indirectly by any Ottawa
Party. In the cvent an Ottawa Party or any of its rcpresentatives receives an unsolicited offer
rclating to a type of transaction described above, the Ottawa Party shall promptly inform the
person or organization making such unsolicited offer of the existence of the restrictions of this
Scction 16.2, but not the other contents of this Agreement (including OSF’s identity unless such
disclosure has been previously made to the public by joint press rcleascs or filing with a
governmental agency), and the Ottawa Parties shall rcject such offer.

16.3. Performance of Undertakings. The Partics agree that the standard that shall
apply to the Parties’ performance of all covenants and undertakings contained in this Agrecment
and in any and every document executed and delivered hercunder is a commercially reasonable
standard. OSF agrces that following the Closing Date, in the event a majority of the Ottawa
Community Board Members determincs by vote that OSF has failed to fulfill one or more of its
post-closing commitments, as provided in Article XIII and Articlc X1V, then the Ottawa
Community Board Members shall have the right and opportunity to present such matter(s) to the
OSF CEO. In the event the OSF CEO does not respond to the Ottawa Community Board
Members within twenty (20) business days, or in the event a majority of Ottawa Community
Board Members do not by vote othcrwisc reasonably agree with such response, then a majority
of the Ottawa Community Board Mcmbers may, by vote, at its option, report to the OSF Board
on the matter(s) addressed to the OSF CEO, and the OSF Board will give a written responsc to
the Ottawa Community Board Mcmbers within thirty (30) business days from rcceipt of the
Ottawa Community Board Members’ rcport, which response shall statc the OSF Board’s
conclusion on the reported matter(s).

16.4. Consummation of Transactions. The Parties shall use, and cause their Affiliates
to use, commercially reasonable efforts to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement by April 30, 2012, and shall take, or cause their Affiliates to take, no action which is
inconsistent with its obligations hereunder or which could materially delay the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby.

16.5. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made as follows:
(a) if sent by registered or certified mail in the United States return receipt requested, upon
receipt; (b) if sent designated for overnight delivery by nationally recognized ovemight air
courier (such as Federal Express, UPS or DHL), one (1) Business Day after mailing; (c) if sent
by facsimile transmission or electronic mail before 5:00 p.m. (sender’s time) and receipt is
confirmed through a delivery report, upon delivery; (d) if sent by facsimile transmission or
electronic mail after 5:00 p.m. (sender’s time) and receipt is confirmed through a delivery report,
on the following Business Day; and (e) if otherwise actually personally delivered, when
delivered, provided that such notices, requests, demands and other communications are delivered

39

ATTACHMENT #5 70666109v22 0913601
77




to the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as any Party shall provide by like notice
_ to the other Parties:

An Ottawa Party: Robert Chaffin
President and Chief Executive Officer
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Hcalthcare Center
1800 East Norris Drive
Ottawa, 1L 61350
Fax: (815)431-5000
Email: rchaffin{@ottawarcgional.org

with a simultancous copy to: Douglas B. Swill
Drinker Biddle & Recath, LLP
191 N. Wacker Drive — Suite 3700
Chicago, IL 60606-1698
Fax: (312) 569-3270
Emait: Douglas.Swill@dbr.com

OSF: Kevin D. Schoeplein
Chicf Executive Officer
OSF Healthcare System
800 N.E. Gien Oak Avenue
Peoria, IL 61603
Fax: (309) 655-6869
Email: kevin.d.schoeplein@osthealthcare.org

and: Vance C. Parkhurst
Scnior Vice President, Legal Services
OSF Hecalthcare System
800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue
Pcoria, IL 61603
Fax: (309) 655-6869
Email: vance.c.parkhurst@osfhealthcare.org

with a simultancous copy to: Stcphen T. Moore, Esq.
Hinshaw & Culbertson LLP
100 Park Avenue
Rockford, IL 61101
Fax: (815) 490-4901
Email: smoore@hinshawlaw.com

16.6. Cost of Transaction. Each Party shall be responsible for and bear all of its own
respective costs and expenses, including without limitation expenses of its legal counsel,
accountants and other representatives, incurred at any time in connection with pursuing the
Affiliation. However, if the Parties agrece to opposc a legal challenge which may be made to the
Affiliation and entcr into a joint defense agreement related thereto, then legal fees and expenses
incurred by the Partics relating to a challenge, if any, will be borne fifty percent (50%) by OSF
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and fifty percent (50%) by Ottawa. In addition, the Parties shall share equally the fees charged
by any governmecntal agency in connection with notices or other filings as may be required under
the HSR Act, and the fces and costs of consultants retained by or for the Parties with the consent
and approval of both Partics. OSF shall pay any fees associated with the certificate of exemption
or certificate of need process with the IHFSRB.

16.7. Reimbursement of Costs. 1f a Party brings an action for breach of the provisions
of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action, on trial or appeal, shall be entitled to its
rcasonable attorneys’ fecs to be paid by the losing party as fixced by the court.

16.8. No Brokerage. The Parties represent to cach other that no broker has in any way
been contacted in connection with the transactions herein contemplated. Each Party agrees to
indemnify the other Parties from and against all loss, cost, damage or expense arising out of
claims for fees or commissions of brokers employed or alleged to have been employed by such
indemnifying Party.

16.9. Non-Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Parties and their respective successors, assigns and legal representatives, but no Party may
assign its rights in this Agreement or delegate its duties under this Agreement to a third party by
any means without first obtaining the prior written consent of the other Partics.

16.10. No_Third_Party_Beneficiaries. Except as expressly set forth herein, this
Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person or other third party other
than the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

16.11. Third Party Authorizations. From the Execution Date to the Closing Date, each
of the Parties shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain expeditiously all consents,
authorizations and other approvals of third parties necessary for the valid execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement by the Party.

16.12. Consents, Approvals and Discretion. Except as herein expressly provided to the
contrary, whenever this Agreement requires any consent or approval to be given by a Party or a
Party must or may exercise discrction, the Parties agree that such consent or approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed and such discretion shall be reasonably exercised.

16.13. Additional Assurances. The provisions of this Agreement shall be self opcrative
and shall not require further agrecment by the Parties except as may be herein specifically
provided to the contrary; provided, however, at the request of a Party, the other Party or Parties
shall execute such additional instruments and take such additional actions as the requesting Party
may deem necessary to effectuate this Agreement. Additionally, cach Party shall cooperate and
use commetcially reasonable efforts to have its present directors, officers and employees
cooperate with one or more of the other Parties on and after Closing in furnishing information,
cvidence, testimony and other assistance in connection with any action, proceeding, arrangement
or dispute of any nature with respect o matters pertaining to all periods prior to Closing in
respect of the items subject to this Agreement; provided that each Party shall pay the reasonable
out of pocket costs incurred by its respective directors, officers and employees.
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16.14. Severability. In the cvent any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid,
illcgal or unenforceable, in wholc or in part, for any reason and in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality, or uncnforceability shall in no event affect, prejudice or disturb the validity of any
remaining provision of this Agreement, which shall be and remain in full force and effect, and
binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms. '

16.15. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois; provided, however, that the
conflicts of law principles of the State of 1llinois shall not apply to the extent they would operate
to apply the laws of another state. The Parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of Illinois courts
located in Peoria County over all matters relating to this Agreement.

16.16. Headings; Cross References. Headings of Articles and Sections in this
Agreement and the table of contents hercof are solely for convenience or reference, do not
constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof. Unless
indicated otherwise, references in this Agreement to Articles, Sections, Schedules and Exhibits
are to articles, sections, schedules and exhibits of this Agreement.

16.17. Construction. Each Party has engaged separate independent legal counsel and
independent advisors to provide advice and guidance to such Party. This Agreement and all
documents or instruments delivered pursuant hereto shall be construed without regard to the
identity of the person who drafted the various provisions of the same. Each and every provision
of this Agreement and such other documents and instruments shall be construed as though the
Parties participated equally in the drafting of the same. Consequently, the Parties acknowledge
and agree that any rule of construction that a document is to be construed against the drafting
Party shall not be applicable to this Agreement.

16.18. Waiver of Terms. The failure of any Party to insist, in any one or more
instances, on performance of any of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any rights granted hereunder or thereunder or
of the future performance of any such term, covenant or condition, but the obligations of the
Parties with respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect. A waiver by one Party of the
performance of any covenant, condition, representation or warranty of the other Party shall not
invalidate this Agreement, nor shall such waiver be construed as a waiver of any other covenant,
condition, representation or warranty. A waiver by any Party of the time for performing any act
shall not constitute a waiver of the time for performing any other act or the time for performing
an identical act required to be performed at a later time.

16.19. Survival of Agreements, Representations. All warranties, representations,
agreements and covenants made by a Party herein, or in any certificate or other instrumcnt
required to be delivered by or on behalf of a Party in connection with this Agreement, shall
survive the Closing under this Agreement regardless of any investigation made by any Party or
information about any breach known to any Party prior to the Closing; shall continue in full force
and effect; and shall provide a basis for remedies available to the non-breaching Party. No
representation or warranty contained herein shall be deemed to have been waived, affected or
impaired by any investigation made by or knowledge of any Party to this Agreement. All
statements in any certificate or other instrument delivered at or in connection with the Closing
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shall constitute representations and warrantics. Each agreement, covenant, representation, and
warranty contained herein is indcpendent of all other agreements, covenants, representations, and
warranties contained hercin (whether or not covering an identical or a related subject matter) and
must be independently and separatcly complied with and satisfied. Exceptions or qualifications
to any agrecment, covenant, representation, or warranty contained herein shall not be construed
as exceptions or qualifications to any other agreement, covcnant, warranty, or representation.

16.20. Counterparts; Signatures. The Partics agree that this Agreement may be
cxccuted in multiple originals, cach of which shall be considered an original for all purposcs and,
collectively, shall be considered to constitute this Agreement. The Partics further agree that
signatures transmitted by facsimile or in Portablc Document Format (pdf) may be considered an
original for all purposes, including, without limitation, the exccution of this Agreement and
enforcement of this Agreement.

16.21. Time is of the Essence. Time is hereby expressly made of the essence with
respect to each and every term and provision of this Agreement and any other agreements
determined by the Parties to be necessary or appropriate to be entered into in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

16.22. Access to Records and Information. If and to the extent applicable to this
Agreement and to any agreement contemplated hereunder or entered into pursuant hereto
between or among the Parties, the Parties agree to comply with the requirements of Public Law
96-499, Section 952 (Section 1861(v)(1)(1) of the Social Security Act) and regulations
promulgated thereunder.

16.23. Cooperation. The Parties shall cooperate and use commercially reasonable
efforts to obtain as promptly as possible all consents, approvals and agreements of, and to give
and make as promptly as practicable all notices and filings with, any governmental and
regulatory authorities nccessary 1o authorize, approve, or permit the consummation of the
transactions contemplated herein. In the event the Closing is scheduled to occur prior to the
completion of the audit of the Ottawa Parties’ financial statements for the 2010 Fiscal Year, the
Ottawa Parties shall cooperate in the preparation of interim financial statements for the Ottawa
Parties in order to facilitate the Plan of Finance.

16.24. Communications. The Parties shall promptly advise the other Parlies of all
material communications received by a party pertaining to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, including such communications which it receives from governmental agencies or
authorities.

16.25. Publicity. Except as required by law, all press releases or other public
communications of any sort regarding the transactions contemplated herein, and the method of
the release for publication thereof, will be subject to the approval of all Parties, such approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

16.26. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement, including all Schedules and
Exhibits required hereunder, supersedes all previous agreements, oral or written, and constitutes
the entire agreement among the Parties respecting the subject matter of this Agreement, and no
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Party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein. Each Exhibit and Schedule
referenced in this Agreement shall be considered a part hereof as if set forth herein in full. As
among the Parties, oral statements or prior written materials which are not specifically
incorporated herein shall not be of any force and effect. The Parties specifically acknowledge
that in entering into and exccuting this Agreement, the Parties rcly solely upon the
represcntations and agreements contained in this Agrecement and no others. This Agreement may
be amended or modificd only by an agrcement in writing signed by all the Parties.

ARTICLE XVII
GLOSSARY

17.1. Glessary. For convenience, set forth below is a glossary of defined terms used in
this Agrecement:

17.1.1. “Accreditations” means accreditations by various accreditation
organizations, including, without limitation, The Joint Commission.

17.1.2. “Additional Indcbtedness” mecans any Indcbtedness incurred by a
Member of the OSF Obligated Group on or after the Ciosing Date.

17.1.3. “Affiliate” means any entity which is under the Control of, or which is
under common Control with, the subjcct entity.

17.1.4. “Affiliation” means the corporate affiliation whereby the Ottawa Partics
become part of OSF in order to creatc an integrated health care delivery system.

17.1.5. “Agreement” means this Affiliation Agreement among the Partics.

17.1.6. “Amended Document” or “Amended Documents” means on¢ or more
amended Schedules or Exhibits delivered by an Amending Party.

17.1.7. “Amending Party” means OSF or Ottawa, as the case may be, when
delivering an Amended Document or Amended Documents.

17.1.8. “Applicable Law” means all applicablec Federal, state and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and any judgment, dceree, order, writ or
injunction of any court or regulatory authority.

17.1.9. “Board” means the board of directors of OSF or an Ottawa Party.

17.1.10. “Business Day” means any day excluding Saturday, Sunday and
any day that is a legal holiday tn the State of 1llinois.

17.1.11. “Canon Law” means the Code of Canon Law of the Roman
Catholic Church.

17.1.12. “CERCLA” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, as amended.
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i7.1.13. “Clinical Service Lines™ means those climcal services provided
by OSF and its Affiliates and Ottawa and its Affiliates which are now and in the future
will be organized across the OSF System and managed centrally in order to promote
clinical consistency, broad geographic access, and operational efficiencies.

17.1.14, “Closing” means the dclivery of the documents required to be
delivered on the Closing Date by the respective Parties.

17.1.15. “Closing Date” means (a) the Business Day established for closing
of the financing transactions described in the Plan of Finance, following receipt of all
regulatory approvals and satisfaction of all conditions prccedent to Closing sct forth
herein; or (b) such other date agreed to by the Parties following the receipt of all
rcgulatory approvais and satisfaction of all conditions precedent to Closing set forth
herein, with the transaction to be cffective at 12:01 am., Central Standard Time or
Central Daylight Time, as applicable, on such date.

17.1.16. “COBRA” means thc Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amendcd.

17.1.17. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

17.1.18. “Compliance Program” means provider programs of the type

described in the compliance guidance published by the Office of Inspector General of the
Department of Health and Human Services.

17.1.19. “Confidentiality Agreement” mecans the Confidentiality and
Standstill Agrcement by and between OSF and Ottawa, dated July 8, 2010, as amended,
and agreed to by OSF and Ottawa in the Letter of Intent.

17.1.20. “Control” means possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of an entity whether through
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

17.1.21. “Corporate Office” means the central corporate office of OSF.

Corporate Office, as modified by the Corporate Office from time to time, including but
not limited to care management, compliance and privacy, decision support services,
employer services, engincering, finance and accounting, government relations, human
resources, information technology including data warchousing and analytics, insurance,
legal services, managcd carc contracting, marketing and communications, mission
integration, nursing administration, performance improvement, quality improvement,
strategic effectivencss, supply chain management, and supportive care.

17.1.22. “Corporate Office Services” means the services provided by the

17.1.23. “Corporate Policies” means the system-wide policies adopted,
modified and repcaled from time to time by the OSF Board for the govemancc and
administration of OSF and its facilities, services, and operations, including but not
limited to human resources, supportive care, nursing care policics, and all policies
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contained in the OSF Corporate Administrative Manual, including the Compliancc and
Information Security HIPAA Policics.

17.1.24. “Debt Transaction” shall have the mcaning sct forth in
Scction 17.1.60(1).

17.1.25. “Environmental Law” means all Federal, state or local statutes
and ordinances, and all rules and rcgulations promulgated thercunder, common law,
orders, consent decrees, permits, and binding judicial and administrative interpretations
thercof, pertaining or relating to: (a) natural resources and the environment; (b) public
and worker health, safety and welfare; and (¢) the identification, assessment, reporting,
generation, manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal,
emission, discharge, relcase, transport or othcr handling of any Hazardous Substances,
including, without limitation, CERCLA and RCRA; and (d) conditions caused by such
activitics relating to Hazardous Substances.

17.1.26. “Epic Project” mecans the purchase and installation of an
enterprise-wide, integrated Epic electronic medical record system, {including interfaces
and hardware currently in production at other OSF hospital facilities, as needed in
connection with the Epic Project) to comprisc an integrated inpatient and ambulatory
electronic medical record system (i.e., the paperless chart), picturc archiving and
communication system, laboratory systcm, billing systems for ambulatory and hospital,
MyChart, Enterprisc Resource Planning (gencral ledger, fixed assets, human resources,
payroll and supply chain), and othcr Epic-relatcd and third-party vendor systems in
Ottawa acute and ambulatory care settings (including physician offices), over an
approximate five (5) year period following the Closing Date.

17.1.27. “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended.
17.1.28. “ERISA Affiliate” means any employer that is treated as a single

employer with any Ottawa Party, as applicable, under Section 414 of the Codc.

17.1.29. “Ethical and Religious Directives” means the Ethical and
Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Scrvices, as amended from time to time,
promulgated by the United States Conference of Catholic Bishops, as interpreted and
applied by OSF.

17.1.30. “Execution Date” means January 11, 2012,

17.1.31. “Facilities™ mcans all land, leaschold interests, and buildings and
all fixtures and equipment (as defincd in the Illinois Uniform Commercial Code or
cquivalent statute) of a Person.

17.1.32, “Fiscal Year” means: (i) with respect to the Ottawa Parties prior to
the Closing Datc any twelve-month peried beginning on May 1 of any calendar year and
ending on April 30 of such yecar; (ii) with respect to OSF prior to the Closing Date any
twelve-month period beginning on October 1 of any calendar year and ending on
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September 30 of the following calendar year; and (iii} with respect to the OSF Obligated
Group and all Mcmbers thereof after the Closing Date any twelve-month period
beginning on October 1 of any calendar year and cnding on September 30 of the
following calendar year or such other tweclve-month period selected by the Group

Representative.
17.1.33. “FRCC” means Fox River Cancer Center, LLC, an Illinois limited
liability company.
17.1.34, “GAAP means Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
17.1.35. “Governing Documents” shall mean the articles of incorporation,

certificate of incorporation, bylaws, partnership agreement, operating agreement or other
documents by and through which a business organization is formed and governed.

17.1.36. “Group Representative” means OSF or such other Member of the
OSF Obligated Group as is designated in a written notice delivered by all of the Members
of the OSF Obligated Group to the Master Trustce.

17.1.37. “Guaranty or Guaranties” mcans all obligations of a Person
guaranteeing or, in effcct, guarantecing any Indebtcdness, dividend or other obligations of
any Primary Obligor in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, including but not
limited to obligations incurrcd through an agreement, contingent or otherwise, by such
Person: (1) to purchase such Indebtedness or obligation or any Property constituting
security thercfore; (2) to advance or supply funds: (i) for the purchase or payment of such
Indebtedness or obligation, or (ii) to maintain working capital or other balance sheet
condition; (3) to purchase securities or cither Property or services primarily for the
purpose of assuring the owner of such Indebiedness or obligation of the ability of the
Primary Obligor to make payment of the Indebtedness or obligation; or (4) othcrwisc to
assure the owner of such Indebtedness or obligation against loss in respect thereof.

17.1.38. “Hazardous Substances” shall mcan pectrolcum or petroleum
products, polychlorinated biphenyls, asbestos containing materials, lead-based paint,
radon, radioactive materials, toxic mold or fungus of any kind or specics or other
microbial matter, medical wastes, and any subslanccs, materials, chemicals, pollutants,
constituents, wastes or noxious substances regulated by any Environmental Law.

17.1.39, “Health Care Laws” shall mean all Federal, state and local laws,
statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances and codes applicable to health care providers and
facilities; Federal and state health care program conditions of participation, standards,
policies, rules, procedures and other requirements; and accreditation standards of any
applicable accrediting organization. Health Care Laws include, without limitation, the
following laws: the Federal (Title XIX of the Social Sccurity Act) and state Medicaid
programs and their implementing regulations, the Medicarc Program (Title XVIII of the
Social Sccurity Act) and its implementing regulations, the Federal False Claims Act (31
U.S.C. §83729 et seq.), the Federal Health Care Program Anti Kickback Statute (42
U.S.C. §1320a 7b(b)), the Federal Physician Sclf Referral Law (42 U.S.C. §1395nn), the
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Federal Administrative False Claims Law (42 U.S.C. §1320a 7b(a)), HIPAA and the
HIPAA Privacy Rule, the HIPAA Security Rule and the HIPAA Standards for
Transactions and Code Sets (42 U.S.C. 1320d 1329d §; 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), the
Federal Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abusc Paticnt Records Act (42 U.S.C. 290ec
3), the Rehabilitation Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Occupational Safety
and Health Administration statutes and regulations for blood borne pathogens and
workplace risks, and any state and local laws that address the same or similar subject
matter. Health Care Laws also include Fedcral, statc and local laws applicable to health
care provider and facilitics, including, without limitation, laws related to: Federal and
statc hcalth care program billing, cost reporting, revenue reporting, paymecnt and
reimbursement; Federal and state health care program fraud, abusc, theft or
embezzlement; procurement of health care services, human and social scrvices, and other
health related services; employee background checks and credentialing of employees;
credentialing and licensure of facilities or providers of such services; zoning,
maintcnance, safety and operations of group homes, residential facilities and day
programs, and other building health and safety codes and ordinances; certificate of necd
laws; state law restrictions on the corporate practice of medicine (or the corporate
practice of any other health related profession); eligibility for Federal and state health
care program contracting, including any requircments limiting contracting to nonprofit or
tax exempt entitics; patient information and medical record confidentiality, including
psychotherapy and mental health records; splitting of health care fees; patient brokering,
patient solicitation, patient capping, and/or payment of inducements to recommend or
refer, or to arrange for the recommendation or referral of, patients to health care providers
or facilitics; standards of care, quality assurance, risk management, utilization review,
peer review, and/or mandated reporting of incidents, occurrences, diseases and events;
advertising or marketing of health care services; and the enforceability of restrictive
covenants on health care providers.

17.1.40. “HIPAA” means the Hcalth Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended.

17.1.41. “HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements
Act.

17.1.42, “IHFSRB” means the Illinois Health Facilitics and Services

Review Board.

17.1.43. “Indebtedness” means, for any Person, (a) all Guaranties of such
Person, (b) all liabilities (cxclusive of reserves such as thosc established for deferred
Taxes) recorded or required to be recorded as such on the audited financial statements of
such Person as of the cnd of the then most recent Fiscal Year for which financial
statements reported upon by independent certified public accountants are available and
(c) all obligations for payment of money incurred or assumed by such Person (i) due and
payable in all events or (i) if incurred or assumed primarily to assure the repayment of
money borrowed or credit extended, due and payable upon the occurrence of a condition
precedent or upon the performance of work, possession of Property as lessees, rendering
of services by others or otherwise, and shall include, without limitation, Non-Recourse
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Indebtedness; provided that Indcbtedness shall not include Indebtedness of one Member
of the OSF Obligated Group to another Mecmber of the OSF Obligated Group, any
Guaranty by any Member of the OSF Obligated Group of Indebtedness of any other
Mecmber of the OSF Obligated Group, the joint and scveral liability of any Member of the
OSF Obligated Group on Indcbtedness issued by another Member of the OSF Obligated
Group, Interest Rate Agrcements or any obligation to repay moncys deposited by patients
or others with a Member as security for or as prepayment of the cost of patient care or
any rights of residents of lifc care, clderly housing or similar facilities to endowment or
similar funds by or on behalf of such residents.

17.1.44, “Information System(s)” mcans both computer hardwarc and
software applications bascd on mainframe, mini, personal or hand held computers
generally connected through a network and designed to provide access to and
management of a health care organization’s financial and clinical information.

17.1.45. “Institutional Review Board” means a specially constituted
review body established or designated by an entity to protect the welfare of human
subjccts recruited to participate in biomedical or behavioral research.

17.1.46. “Insurance Policies” mcans binders and policies of insurance
maintained by the Ottawa Parties, under which an Ottawa Party is a named insured or that
othcrwise insure asscts used primarily in connection with the operation of the Ottawa
Parties.

17.1.47. “Intellectual Property” means matcrial trademarks, service
marks, trade names, patents, copyrights, and applications thereforc (whether registered or
common law) currently owned or used by the Ottawa Parties.

17.1.48. “Interest Rate Agreement” mcans an interest ratc exchange,
hedge or similar agreement, expressly identified in an Officer’s Certificate of the
Obligated Group Agent delivered to the Master Trustee as having been entered into in
order to hedge the interest payable on all or a portion of any Indebtedness, which
agrcement may include, without limitation, an interest rate swap, a forward or futures
contract or an option (e.g., a call, put, cap, floor or coliar).

17.1.49. “1RS” means the Internal Revenue Service.
17.1.50. “Joint Commission” shall mean The Joint Commission,
17.1.51. “Key Management Personnel” means: (a) with respect to any

Ottawa Party, the dircctors, chief executive officer, chicf operating officer, chicf financial
officer, and department director level and above cmployees of any Ottawa Party; or (b)
with respect to OSF, directors and vice-president level and above cmployees of OSF.

17.1.52. “Knowledge”, “known”, “knowingly”, “to the Knowledge” or
any variant thercof shail, when qualifying any representation, warranty or other statement
in this Agreement, means: (i) all information of which Key Management Personnel of any
Party is actually aware; (ii) all information Key Management Personnel of any Party
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could be expected to discover or otherwise become aware of in the course of conducting
a rcasonably comprehensive investigation concerning the existence of such information;
and (iii) all information that would with reasonable diligence in the ordinary course of the
performance of their normal duties come to the attention of Key Management Personnel
of any Party responsible for verifying the accuracy thercof for purposecs of this
Agreement.

17.1.53. “Land” means the Ottawa Owned Real Property upon which any
opcrations of thc Ottawa Parties which are integral to the operation of their Facilities or
the production of revenues by the Ottawa Parties are conducted, together with all
buildings, improvements and fixtures located thercon.

17.1.54. “Letter of Intent” means the letter of intent between OSF and
Ottawa, dated September 29, 2010.

17.1.55. “Licenses and Permits” means governmental licenses, permits,
certificates, consents, or approvals required to own or operate the Ottawa Facilities and
Services.

17.1.56. “Local Corporate Personnel” means personnel working in the
Ottawa Facilities and Services who are employed by the Corporate Office to provide
Corporate Office Services.

17.1.57. “Master Trustec” means Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
as successor master trustec in respect to the OSF Master Indenture or any successor
master trustee hereafter appointed pursuant to the OSF Master Indenture.,

17.1.58. “Material Adverse Change” mcans any condition, change, event,
violation, inaccuracy, circumstance or cffect that:

(a) Individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be cxpected to
result in: (i) liabilities with respect to Applicable Laws, including, without
limitation, Health Care Laws, or Payment Programs in excess of $4,000,000, in
the casc of the Ottawa Parties as a whole, in excess of $40,000,000, in the case of
OSF; or (ii) the inability of any of the Parties to maintain their respective Code
Section 501(c)(3) status; (iii) the inability of any of thec Partics’ entities that
operates as a licensed health carc facility as of the execution of this Agreement to
continuc to operate as such licensed health care facility; or (iv) the debarment or
exclusion of any entity from panticipation in the Medicare or Medicaid programs,
or

(b)  Could reasonably be expected to result in a change during any
rolling 12 month period, in the assets, results of operation or the financial
condition of the Ottawa Partlics, taken as a whole, or OSF: (i) as to any reduction
in the total net asscts of such entities in an amount in the aggregate greater than
five (5) percent of such entities’ aggregate total net asscts as reflected on ihe
respective Parties” interim unaudited balance sheet for the initial month of the 12
month period; or (ii) as to any change in the financial condition of such entitics,

50

ATTACHMENT #5 70666109v22 6913601
' 88




taken as a whole, has resulied in or is reasonably likely to result, on a normalized
basis (i.e., afier taking into account whether the effects of such change or event
arc reasonably likely to continuc over such period), in a reduction in earmings
before deductions for interest, Taxes, depreciation and amortization of such
entities, taken as a whole, over the 12 month period ending in the month in which
the change or event occurs, in an amount greater than five (5) percent of such
entities’ aggregate total net assets (as reflected on the respective Parties’ interim
unaudited balance sheets for the initial month of that 12 month period); or

{c) With respect to Ottawa, results in more than twenty percent (20%)
of all cmployed physicians giving notice of termination or non-renewal of their
respective employment agreements with the Ottawa Partics prior to the Closing
Date; or

(d)  Notwithstanding anything to thc contrary, “Material Adverse
Change” shall not include: (i) changes in the financial or operating performance
due to or caused by the announcement of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement or scasonal changes; (ii) changes or proposcd changes to any
Applicable Law, reimbursement rates or policies of governmental agencies or
bodies that are genecrally applicable to hospitals or health care facilities; (ii1)
requirements, reimbursement rates, policies or procedures of third party payors or
accreditation commissions or organizations that arc generally applicable to
hospitals or health care facilities; (iv) general business, industry or cconomic
conditions, including such conditions related to the business of the Ottawa Parties,
taken as a whole, or OSF, that do not disproportionately affect the applicable
entities; (v) local, regional, national or intcrnational political or social conditions,
including the engagement by the United States in hostilities, whether or not
pursuant to the declaration of a national emergency or war, or the occurrence of
any military or terrorist attack, that do not disproportionately affect the Ottawa
Partics, taken as a whole, or OSF; (vi) changes in financial, banking or sccuritics
markets (including any disruption thereof and any decline in the price of any
sccurity or any market index) that do not disproportionately affect the Ottawa
Parties, taken as a whole, or OSF; or (vit) changes in GAAP.

17.1.59, “Material Consents” means any consents, approvals or
authorizations of third partics required for the consummation of the transactions
contemplated or required by this Agrcement, as set forth on Schedule 17.1.59, including
but not limited to the approval by the members of Ottawa, pursuant to Ottawa’s
Governing Documents, of the Affiliation and thc amendment and restatement of Ottawa’s
Goveming Documents in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit A.

17.1.60. “Material Contracts” means the following contracts, leases
(capital and operating), and other agreements entered into by or on behalf of any one or
more of the Ottawa Parties which are in effect and involve a material aspect of the
operations of such entity, as applicable:
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(a) any management contracts whercby any Ottawa Party or any of its
officers or cmployeces provide management services to other hospitals,
educational, or other healtheare institutions with (1) a dollar value or liability
greater than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a
term of greater than one (1) ycar and payments in excess of §125,000 annually;

(b) all management or consulting agreements with (i) a dollar value or
liability grcater than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate;
or (i1) a term of greater than onc (1) year and payments in excess of $125,000
annually;

(c) all service contracts, shared scrvice agreements, joint purchasing
agrecments, or similar agrecments with (i) a dollar value or liability greater than
{or expected to be greater than) $500,000 , in the aggregate; or (ii) a term of
greater than onc (1) year and payments in excess of $125,000 annually;

(d) all leases of space and/or equipment with (i) a dollar value or
liability greater than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate,
or (it) a term of greater than one (1) ycar and payments in cxcess of $125,000
annually;

{c) all agrecments for the sale or acquisition of capital assets involving
asscts of more than $500,000 in the aggregate;

() all construction agreements with (i) a dollar value or lability
greater than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (i1) a
term of greater than onc (1) year and payments in excess of $125,000 annually;

(g)  all scrvice agrecments, maintenance agreements and warranties
with respect to assets of any Ottawa Party with (i) a dollar value or lability
greater than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a
term of greater than one (1) year and payments in excess of $125,000 annually;

(h) all installment payment agrecments with (1) a dollar value or
liability greater than (or cxpected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate;
or (ii) a term of grecater than one (1) year and payments in exccss of $125,000
annually;

(1) all agreements with third party administrators with (i) a doilar
value or liability greatcr than {or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the
aggregate; or (ii) a term of greater than onc (1) ycar and payments in excess of
$125,000 annually;

) all supply agrcements with (i) a dollar valuc or liability greater

than (or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a term of
greater than one (1) year and payments in ¢xcess of $125,000 annually;
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(k)  all collection agency, brokers’ or finders’ agreements with (1) a
dollar value or liability greater than (or expccted to be greater than) $500,000, in
the aggregate; or (ii) a term of greater than one (1) ycar and payments in excess of
$125,000 annually;

1)) all dcbt, bond, credit, mortgage, pledge, or other lien or
encumbrance agreements and all documents evidencing negative pledges or other
covenant or transfer restrictions on the assets of any Ottawa Party, with (i) a dollar
value or liability greater than (or expected to be greater than) $1,000,000, in the
aggrcgate; (i) a term of greater than one (1) ycar and payments in excess of
$250,000 annually; or (iii) covenants in excess of those in the Series 2008
Variablc Rate Revenue Bonds from the 1llinois Finance Authority and the Series
2008-1 Direct Note Obligation to JP Morgan Chase, National Association (a
“Debt Transaction”);

(m)  all leases of real property in which any Ottawa Party is either a
Icssor or lessee, including, without limitation, all agreements pursuant to which
any dcpartment of any Ottawa Party is operated under a leasc arrangement, with
(i) a dollar value or liability greater than (or expected to be greater than)
$500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a term of greater than one (i) year and
payments in excess of $125,000 annually;

(n)  all joint venture agreements or sharcholder agreements to which
any Ottawa Party is a party or involving any Ottawa Party’s program or
operations;

(o)  all agreements with physicians or any source of patient referrals,
including allied health professionals or other professional personnel (excluding
any agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business with at-will
employees), corporations or partnerships comprised of or owned by them or the
relatives of any of them that cannot be terminated without cause or penalty upon
one hundred twenty (120) or fewer days, including, without limitation, all
employment agreements, contracts to provide administrative or professional
services, recruitment, retention, relocation or income guarantee agrecments, loans
and guarantees, and acquisitions of private professional practices or their assets
{cach a “New Physician Contract”);

(p)  all agreements or commitments related to physician hospital
organizations (PHOs), medical services organizations (MSOs), physician
networks, community care networks, integrated delivery networks, or other health
care delivery systems or networks;

(q)  all agreements (cxcluding any agreements entcred into in the
ordinary coursc of business with at-will employces) for employment, indemnity,
retention, severance, change-in-control, employee icase, deferred compensation,
or incentive compensation with, and agreements regarding loans or advances to,
Key Management Personncl of any Ottawa Party;

53

ATTACHMENT #5 70666109v22 0913601
91




(N all Payment Program contracts with a term of greater than onec (1)
ycar and payments in ¢xcess of $125,000 annually;

(s) all Insurancc Policies, trust agrcements and other related
agrecments, including, without limitation, stop-loss and seclf insurance
arrangements, with (i) premium payments greater than (or expected to be greater
than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a term of greater than one (1) year and
payments in excess of $125,000 annually (excluding renewals of existing polices
at the normal renewat date and with the same or substantially similar terms);

Q] license and sublicense agreements with respect to any computer
software with (i) a dollar value or hability greater than (or expceted to he greater
than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (ii) a term of greater than onc (1) year and
payments in cxcess of $125,000 annually; and

(u) any other agreement with (i) a dollar valuc or liability greater than
(or expected to be greater than) $500,000, in the aggregate; or (i) a term of
greater than one (1) year and payments in exccss of $125,000 annually.

17.1.61. “Member” or “Members” refers to the members of the OSF
Obligated Group.

17.1.62. “National Priorities List” mecans the USEPA’s list of the most
serious uncontrolled or abandoned hazardous waste sites identified for possible long-term
remedial action under CERCLA, which is updated each year.

17.1.63. “New Physician Contract” shall have the meaning set forth in’
Section 17.1.60(0).

17.1.64. “Non-Recourse Indebtedness” mcans any Indebtedness the
liability for which is effectively limited to Property, Plant and Equipment (other than the
Land) and the income thercfrom not Icss than 80% of the cost of which Property, Plant
and Equipment shall have been financed solely with the procecds of such Indebtedness
with no recourse, directly or indirectly, to any other Property of any Member.

17.1.65. “Obligated Group Agent” mcans the Group Representative.

17.1.66. “Obligations™ mcans any cvidence of Indebtedness or evidence of
any repayment obligation under an Intcrest Rate Agrecement issued on or after the Closing
Date which is authorized to be issued by a Member pursuant to the OSF Master Indenture
and which has been authenticated by the Master Trustee pursuant to the OSF Master
Indenture.

17.1.67. “Officer’s Certificate” mcans a certificatc signed, in the case of a
certificate delivered by a corporation, by the President or any Vice-President (or such
other officer of the corporation holding an office described in the corporate bylaws or
other organizing documents of such corporation and having authority to bind the
corporation) or, in the case of a certificate delivered by any other Person, the chief
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executive or chief financial officer of such other Person, in either case whose authority to
cxccute such Certificate shall be evidenced to the satisfaction of the Master Trustec.

17.1.68. “OR Cardinal Sleep” mcans Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep
Center, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company.

17.1.69. “OR DME" means Ottawa Regional DME LLC, an lllinois limited
liability company.

17.1.70. “ORHA™ means Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc., an
1llinois corporation.

17.1.71. “ORMC” means Ottawa Regional Mcdical Center, Inc., an Illinois
corporation.

17.1.72. “OSF” mecans OSF Healthcare Systcm, an lllinois not-for-profit
corporation.

17.1.73. “OSF Audited Financial Statements” mcans audited consolidated

financial statements of OSF for the two (2) Fiscal Years cnded immediately prior to the
Execution Date, for which audited financial statements arc available.

17.1.74. “OS8F CEO” means the chief executive officer of OSF.
17.1.75. “OSF Closing Documents™ means:

(a) A certificate of the President of OSF, dated as of the Closing Date,
certifying as to the continucd accuracy and completeness of representations and
warranties of OSF, and its performance of the covenants and conditions precedent,
sct forth in this Agreement;

(b) A certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of OSF, dated as of the
Closing Datc, certifying as of the date thercof, as to the accuracy of the financial
representations and warrantics relating to OSF sct forth at Section 6.7;

{c) A certificatc of the Secretary of OSF, dated as of the Closing Date,
certifying as to the due adoption and continued cffectivencss of, and attaching a
copy of, the resolutions of the OSF Board approving the actions and transactions
required or contcmplated by this Agreement;

(d) Al documents required to be delivered by OSF for closing of the
financing transactions described in the Plan of Finance;

(c) An opinion from counsel to OSF, dated as of the Closing Date, in
form and substance satisfactory to the Ottawa Partics, to the effcct that:

(1)  OSF is duly organized, validly existing, and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Illinois. OSF has the corporate
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power and authority to execute, deliver, and perform thc Agreement and
all other agreements contemplated thercby;

(2) The Board or other governing body of OSF and its officers
have been duly and properly clected and all actions related to the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement and which require Board
approval have been taken pursuant to proper and valid Board action;

3) The Agrcement has been duly authorized, executed, and
delivered by OSF and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery
by the other parties to it, constitutes the legal, valid, and binding
obligation of OSF, enforceable in accordance with its terms (subject, as to
enforcement of remedies, to the discretion of courts in awarding cquitable
relief and to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency,
moratorium, and similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally);

(4)  The exccution and delivery by OSF of the Agreement and
the related agreements thercto, and the performance of its obligations
thcreunder, does not violate any provision of law, the Governing
Documents of OSF, or, to such counsel’s knowledge after due inquiry, any
order of any court or other agency or government or the OSF Master
Indenture;

(5) To counsel’s knowledge after duc inquiry, except as
disclosed in the Schedules, there is no: (a) action, suit, claim, procceding,
or investigation pending or threatened against OSF at law or in cquity, or
before or by any Federal, state, municipal, or other governmental
department, comimission, board, burcau, agency, or instrumentality,
domestic or foreign, or any professional licensing or disciplinary
authority; (b) arbitration procceding relating to OSF pending under
collective bargaining agrecments or otherwisc; or (¢) governmental
inquiry pending or threatened against or affecting OSF (including, without
limitation, any inquiry as to the qualification of OSF to hold or receive any
license or permit). To counsel’s knowledge, after due inquiry, OSF is not
in default with respect to any order, writ, injunction, or decree of any
court, or of any Federal, state, municipal, or other govcmmental
department, commission, board, burcau, agency, or instrumentality,
domestic or foreign; and

6) All consents, approvals, qualifications, orders, or
authorizations of or filings with any governmental authority, including any
court, required in conncction with the valid execution, delivery, and
performance by OSF of the Agreement have been duly made and obtained
and are effective on and as of the Closing Date; and
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() Such other instruments and documents as may be reasonably
nccessary to carry out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to
comply with the terms hereof.

17.1.76. “QSF Financial Statements” means thc OSF Audited Financial
Statements, the OSF Unaudited Financial Statements, and the OSF Interim Financial
Statcments, collectively.

17.1.77. “OSF Interim Financial Statements” mecans monthly unaudited
financial statements of OSF for the immediately preceding month.

17.1.78. “OSF Master Indenture” means that certain Amended and
Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of September 15, 1999 between OSF and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as successor master trustee, as herctofore or hercafter
supplemented and amended.

17.1.79. “OSF Obligated Group” mecans OSF and any other Persons who
become Mcembers pursuant to the OSF Master Indenture.

17.1.80. “QOSF System” means the integrated hcalth care delivery system
owncd and operated by OSF, as of the Exceution Date consisting of: seven (7) acutc care
facilities; one (1) long-term care facility; two (2) colleges of nursing; a physician
organization that cmploys more than six hundred (600) physicians and mid-level
providers in over fifty (50) office locations; a home hcalth network that provides hospice,
home health, home medical equipment, home infusion pharmacy, physician house calls,
private home care, a personal response system, and a diabetes supply program; other
hcalth ecarc-related businesses; and a foundation to provide resources for community
outreach; as may change from time to time.

17.1.81. “OSF Unaudited Financial Statements” mcans unaudited
financial statements of QSF for the intcrim period from QOctober 1, 2010, through the
most recent month-cnd date for which financial statements were available prior to the
Execution Date.

17.1.82. “Ottawa” means Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Centcr,
an lllinois not-for-profit corporation.

17.1.83. “Ottawa Audited Financial Statements” mcans audited financial
statcments of cach of the Ottawa Parties for the two (2) Fiscal Years ended immediately
prior to the Exccution Date, for which audited financial statements are available.

17.1.84. “Ottawa Auxiliary” mcans Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary,
an lllinois not-for-profit corporation.

17.1.85. “Ottawa Benefit Plans” mcans “cmployce welfarc benefit plans™
(as defined in Scction 3(1) of ERISA), “employee pension benefit plans™ (as defined in
Section 3(2) of ERISA), and all other cmployee benefit plan agreements and
arrangements and ecmployee benefit policies, whether funded or unfunded, qualified or
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nonqualified, subject to ERISA or not, maintained or contributed to (or required to be
contributed to) by Ottawa Partics and any ERISA Affiliate for the benefit of any of its
officers, employecs or other persons.

17.1.86. “Ottawa CEQ” means thc chief cxccutive officer of Ottawa.
17.1.87. “Ottawa Closing Documents™ means:

(a) A certificate of the President of Ottawa, dated as of the Closing
Date, certifying as to the continued accuracy and completeness of representations
and warrantics of the Ottawa Parties and their respective performance of the
covenants and conditions precedent, set forth in this Agreement;

(b) A certificate of the Chicf Financial Officer of Ottawa, dated as of
the Closing Date, certifying as of the datc thercof, as to the accuracy of the
financial representations and warranties relating to the Ottawa Parties sct forth at
Section 5.4 and Section 5.5;

(c) A certificate of the Secretary of Ottawa, dated as of the Closing
Date, certifying as to the due adoption and continued effectiveness of, and
attaching a copy of: (i) the resolutions of the Ottawa Board and the members of
Ottawa approving the actions and transactions required or contemplated by this
Agreement, including the amended and restated Ottawa Party Governing
Documents; and (ii) in its capacity as membcr of the Ottawa Parties, the
resolutions approving the amended and restated Governing Documents for the
Ottawa Parties and any transactions contemplated hercunder which are required
for the Ottawa Partics, pursuant to the Ottawa Governing Documents in cffect as
of the Execution Date, to be approved by Ottawa;

(d) A copy of the amended and restated Ottawa Party Governing
Documents, as filed as of a recent date with the Secretary of State of Illinois, to be
effective as of the Closing Date;

{c)  Evidence of the resignations of certain officers, directors and
commitiee members of the Ottawa Partics;

(H Evidence of the amendment of lease agreements pursuant to
Section 7.1.1(f), to be effective as of the Closing Date;

(g)  Evidence of thc amendment of the Ottawa medical staff bylaws,
rules and rcgulations, and credentialing procedurces pursuant to Scction 10.7, to be
effective as of the Closing Datc;

(h) Evidence of the amendment of all physician and healthcare worker
employment agreements, pursuant to Scction 12.3 or adoption of a policy
prohibiting the performance of any procedure or delivery of any service by an
employed physician or other healthcare worker that contravenes the Ethical and
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Religious Directives, pursuant to Section 12.3, to be effective as of the Closing
Date;

(1) Certificates of insurance or other evidence that the Ottawa Partics’
professional liability insurance will be in full force and effcet following the
Closing Date;

() All documents required to be delivered by the Ottawa Partics for
entry of Ottawa and the Ottawa Foundation into the OSF Obligated Group and for
closing of the financing transactions described in the Plan of Finance;

(k) An opinion from counsel to thc Ottawa Partics, dated as of the
Closing Date, in form and substance satisfactory to OSF, to the effect that:

(1 Each Ottawa Party is duly organized, validly existing, and
in good standing undcr the laws of the state of 1llinois, and is duly licensed
or qualified to transact business in the nature of the business transacted by
them. Each Ottawa Party has the corporate power and authority to own
and hold its propertics and to carry on its business as now conducted and
as proposed to be conducted. Each Ottawa Party has the corporate power
and authority to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement and all other
agrcements contemplated thereby.  Ottawa, Ottawa Foundation, and
Ottawa Auxiliary are recognized by the IRS as Tax Exempt Organizations;

(2)  The Board or other goverming body of cach Ottawa Party
and their officers have been duly and properly elected and all actions
rclated to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and which
rcquirc Board or member approval have been taken pursuant to proper and
valid Board or member action, as applicable;

3) The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and
delivered by ecach Ottawa Party and, assuming duc authorization,
cxccution and delivery by the other parties to it, constitutes the lcgal,
valid, and binding obligation of thc Ottawa Partics, enforceable in
accordance with its terms (subject, as to enforcement of remedics, to the
discrction of courts in awarding equitable relief and to applicable
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium, and similar laws
affecting the rights of creditors generally);

(4)  The exccution and dclivery by each Ottawa Party of the
Agreement and the related agreements thereto, and the performance of its
obligations thercunder, does not violate any provision of law, the
Governing Documents of any Ottawa Party, or, to such counscl’s
knowledge after duc inquiry, any order of any court or other agency or
government or any indenture, agreement, or other instrument to which any
Ottawa Party, or any of its properties or assets arc bound including, but not
limited to the Ottawa Master Indenture, or, to such counsel’s knowledge
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after due inquiry, conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (with due
notice or lapse of time or both) a default under any such indenture,
agrecement, or other instrument to which an Ottawa Party is a party or by
which it or any of its assets are bound, or, to such counsel’s knowledge
after due inquiry, result in the crcation or imposition of any lien, charge,
restriction, claim, or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of
the propertics or assets of the Ottawa Partics;

(5 To counscl’s knowledge after due inquiry, except as
disclosed in the Schedules, there is no: (a) action, suit, claim, procecding,
or investigation pending or threatencd against any Ottawa Party at law or
in cquity, or beforc or by any Federal, state, municipal, or other
governmental department, commission, board, burcau, agency, or
instrumentality, domestic or foreign, or any professional licensing or
disciplinary authority; (b) arbitration proceeding relating to any Ottawa
Party pending under collective bargaining agreements or othcrwise; or (c)
governmental inquiry pending or threatencd against or affecting any
Ottawa Party (including, without limitation, any inquiry as to the
qualification of any Ottawa Party to hold or receive any license or permit).
No Ottawa Party is in default with respect to any order, writ, injunction, or
decree of any court, or of any federal, state, municipal, or other
governmental  department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or
instrumentality, domestic or forcign; and

(6) All  consents, approvals, qualifications, orders, or
authorizations of or filings with any governmental authority, including any
court, required in connection with the valid exccution, dclivery, and
performance by the Ottawa Partics of the Agreement have been duly made
and obtained and arc cffective on and as of the Closing Date; and

n Such other instruments and documents as may bc reasonably
necessary to carry out the transactions contemplated or required by this
Agreement and to comply with the terms hereof.

17.1.88, “Ottawa CFQO" mecans the chief financial officer of Ottawa.

17.1.89. “Ottawa Community Board Members” mcans the “Community
Board Members,” as such term is defined in the Ottawa Governing Documents attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

17.1.90. “Ottawa COO” means the chicf operating officer of Ottawa.

17.1.91. “Ottawa Facilities and Services” means the facilities and services
owned and operatcd by the Ottawa Parties.

17.1.92. “Ottawa Financial Statements” mecans the Ottawa Audited
Financial Statcments, the Ottawa Unaudited Financial Statements, and the Ottawa Interim
Financial Statements, collectively.
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17.1.93. “Ottawa Foundation” mcans Ottawa Regional Hospital
Foundation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

17.1.94. “Ottawa Funded Depreciation” means the reserve fund, equal to
or less than the depreciation expense of Ottawa’s tangible assets, as set forth in the most
recent Ottawa Interim Financial Statements as of the Closing Date, established to cover
the replaccment cost of certain of Ottawa’s tangible assets.

17.1.95. “Ottawa Interim Financial Statements” means monthly
unaudited financial statements of the Ottawa Parties for thc immediately preceding
month.

17.1.96. “Ottawa Master Indenture” means that certain Master Trust

Indenture dated as of May 1, 2004, between Ottawa and BNY Midwest Trust Company,
as master trustece, as heretofore or hereafter supplemented and amended.

17.1.97. “Ottawa Party” means Ottawa, ORHA, Ottawa Foundation,
ORMC, or OR Cardinal Sleep, as applicable.

17.1.98. “QOttawa Parties” means Ottawa, ORHA, Ottawa Foundation,
ORMC, and OR Cardinal Sleep, collectively.

17.1.99. “Ottawa Unaudited Financial Statements” mecans unaudited
financial statcments of the Ottawa Partics for the interim period from May 1, 2010,
through the most recent month end date for which financial statements were available
prior to thc Execution Date.

17.1.100. “Owned Real Property” mcans rcal property owned by any
Ottawa Party.

17.1.101. “Party” mcans OSF, Ottawa, ORHA, Ottawa Foundation, ORMC,
or OR Cardinal Sleep.

17.1.102. “Parties” mcans OSF, Ottawa, ORHA, Ottawa Foundation,
ORMUC, and OR Cardinal Sleep, collectively.

17.1.103. “Payment Programs” mecans the private, commercial and
governmental payment and procurement programs with which the Ottawa Parties are
participating providers (including, without limitation, Medicarc and Medicaid).

17.1.104. “Permitted Encumbrances” means encumbrances for Taxes not
yet duc and payable or being diligently contested in good faith and for which appropriate
reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP (provided that Permittcd
Encumbrances shall not apply to omitted or reassessed Taxes imposed duc to incorrect,
false or mislcading real estate tax exemption applications or annual exemption
certifications filed); liens for inchoatc mechanics’ and materialmen’s liens for
construction in progress and workmen’s, repairmen’s, warchouscmen’s and carriers’ hiens
arising in the ordinary coursc of business; eascments, restrictive covenants, rights of way
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and other similar restrictions of rccord that do not impair in any material respect the value
of the assets or the continued conduct of the business of an Ottawa Party or its continued
usc of its asscts in thc manner currently used; zoning, building and other similar
restrictions that do not impair in any material respect the value the asset or the continued
conduct of the business of an Ottawa Party or its continued usc of its assets in the manner
currently uscd; encumbrances, encroachments and other imperfections of title, licenses or
encumbrances, if any, of record that do not impair in any material respect the value of the
asset or the continued conduct of the business of an Ottawa Party or its continued use of
its asscts in the manner currently used; encumbrances arising under original purchase
price conditional sales contracts and equipment lcases with third parties entered into in
the ordinary course of business; and in the case of leased property, all mattcrs, whether
or not of record, affecting the title of the lessor (and any underlying lessor) of the leased
property do not impair in any material respect the value of its asset or the continued
conduct of the business of an Ottawa Party or its continued use of its assets in the manner
currently used.

17.1.105. “Person” means any natural person, firm, joint vcenture,
association, partnership, business trusi, corporation, public body, agency or political
subdivision thereof or any other similar entity.

17.1.106. “Plan of Finance” means the issuance of a sufficient amount of
new debt by OSF and the OSF Obligated Group, or otherwisc funding the redemption or
defeasance of all Ottawa Master Indenture Indebtedness through a bridge loan or cash (of
OSF and not from Ottawa or any of its Affiliates), or otherwise.

17.1.107. “Primary Obligor” mcans the Person who is primarily obligated
on an obligation which is guarantced by another Person.

17.1.108. “Property” means any and all rights, titles and interests in and to
any and all property whether recal or personal, tangible or intangible, and whercver
situated, except where otherwise specifically provided.

17.1.106. “Property, Plant and Equipment” mecans all Property of the
Ottawa Partics which is classified as property, plant and cquipment under GAAP.

17.1.110. “RCRA” means the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as
amended.

17.1.111. “Recciving Party” means OSF or Ottawa, as the case may be,

when recciving an Amended Document or Amended Documents.

17.1.112. “Related Bonds™” means any revenue bonds or similar Obligations
issucd by any Member or any state of the United States or any municipal corporation or
other political subdivision formed under the laws thereof or any constituted authority,
agency or instrumentality of any of the forcgoing empowcred to issuc Obligations on
behalf thereof, the procecds of which are Joancd or otherwise made available to a
Member of the OSF Obligated Group in consideration, whether in whole or in part, of the
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execution, authentication and delivery of an Obligation or Obligations to such
governmental issucr.

17.1.113, “Related Bond Indenture” means any indenture, bond resolution
or similar instrument pursuant to which any scrics of Related Bonds 1s issued.

17.1.114. “Related Loan Document” means any document or documents
(including without limitation any lcase, sublease or installment sales contract) pursuant to
which any proceeds of any Related Bonds are advanced to a Member of the OSF
Obligated Group (or any Property financed or refinanced with such proceeds is leased,
subleased or sold to a Member).

17.1.115. “Reserved Powers” mcans the powers reserved to OSF with
respect to the governance and operations of Ottawa, as reflected in the amended and
restated Governing Documents.

17.1.116. “Returns” mcans returns, declarations, and reports and all
information returns and statements required to be filed or sent with respect to all Taxes.

17.1.117. “RONI” mcans Radiation Oncology of Northern Illinois, LLC, an
Illinois limited liability company

17.1.118. “Scandal” means any conduct which results in serious impairment
of the name or reputation of OSF, cither in the general community or among the Catholic
faithful, or causes confusion in the minds of members of thc general community or
Catholic faithful conceming compliance by OSF with the ethical and religious teachings
of the Roman Catholic Church, including but not limited to the Ethical and Religious
Directives and Canon Law.

17.1.119. “Tax Agreements” means any tax exemption agreement or similar
agreement enfercd into by a Member in respect to the establishment, maintenance and
preservation of the tax-exempt status of any Indebtedness the interest on which is
dectermined to be exempt from Federal taxation under applicable provisions of the
Intermal Revenuc Code at the time of issuance.

17.1.120. “Tax Exempt Organization” mcans an entity organized undcr the
laws of the United States of America or any statc thcreof which is an organization
described in Scction 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which
is exempt from Federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code, and, which is
not a “privatc foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code, or
corresponding provisions of Fedcral income tax laws from time to time in effect.

17.1.121. “Taxes™ means all Federal, state, county, local and other taxcs of
cvery kind.

17.1.122. “WARN Act” means the Workers Adjustment and Retraining
Notification Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2101 ef seq.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, acting through their duly authorized
representatives, have executed this Affiliation Agreement as of the Execution Date,

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

By, KD /443@
Kevin D. Schoeplei

Chief Executive Officer

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL &
HEALTHCARE CENTER

By:

Steven Gonzalo
Chaiman, Board of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE
AFFILIATES, INC.

By: Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare

Center
Its: Sole Shareholder

By:

Steven Gonzalo
Chairman, Board of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL
FOUNDATION

OTTAWA REGIONAL CARDINAL SLEEP
CENTER, LLC

By: Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.
Its: Sole Member

By:

Steven Gonzalo
Chairman, Board of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL
CENTER, INC.

By: Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.
Its; Sole Shareholder

By:

Steven Gonzalo
Chairman, Board of Directors

[Signature Page to Affiliation Agreement]

By:
Steven Gonzalo
Member
ATTACHMENT #5
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, acting through their duly authorized
representatives, have executed this Affiliation Agreement as of the Execution Date.

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

By:

Kevin D. Schoeplein
Chief Executive Officer

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL &
HEALTHCARE CENTER

Steven Gonzaly/ y
Chairman, Board of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE
AFFILIATES, INC.

By: Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center
Its: Sole Shareholder

Chairman, Boar?of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL
FOUNDATION

OTTAWA REGIONAL CARDINAL
SLEEP CENTER, LLC

By: Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.
Its: Sole Member

Chairman, B ¢d of Directors

OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL
CENTER, INC.

By: Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.
Its: Sole Shareholder

Steven Gr@{ {
Chairma of Directors

[Signature Page to Affiliation Agreement]
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EXHIBIT A

Forms of Amended and Restated Governing Documents of Ottawa
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RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE CENTER]

Article 1. The name of the corporation is [New Name of Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center (“Corporation”)]. The Corporation is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
created on December 7, 1964, with the name Community Hospital of Ottawa. The name of the
Corporation was changed to Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center pursuant to filing
Articles of Amendment effective May 6, 2008.

Article 2. Agent Name: Robert Alan Chaffin
Agent Address: 1100 E. Norris Drive, Ottawa, IL 61350

Article 3. The sole member of the Corporation is OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation (the “Member”).

During the ten (10) year period following the date of filing of these Restated Articles of
Incorporation, the Member will not take any action to sell substantially all of the assets of,
merge, dissolve or consolidate the Corporation, without the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the
Corporation’s board of directors, unless the Member determines in its sole and reasonable
judgment that such action is necessary: (a) to protect and preserve the tax-exempt status and
public charity status of the Member and the Corporation and any tax-exempt affiliate of the
Member and the Corporation (including Federal and state income tax exemptions, property tax
exemptions, and sales tax exemptions); provided the Member’s board of directors has given a
written request to the Corporation’s board of directors to take action or refrain from taking
action, which would have sufficiently protected and preserved such tax-exempt and public
charity status, and the Corporation’s board of directors has failed to promptly take such action or
refrain from taking such action; (b) to comply, on behalf of any and all members of the
Member’s obligated group, with its master trust indenture, related loan documents, tax
agreements, and all other covenants and agreements relating to any obligated group financing
provided the Member’s board of directors has given a written request to the Corporation’s board
of directors to take action or refrain from taking action, to so comply, and the Corporation’s
board of directors has failed to promptly take such action or refrain from taking such action; or
(c) to comply with the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church, the Ethical and Religious
Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the
U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops as interpreted and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), and/or Canon Law,
as interpreted by the appropriate ecclesiastical authority. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Member shall not be prohibited from entering into a transaction involving a change of control of
the Member or a merger or consolidation of the Member with or into any other entity; provided
the post-closing covenants of the Member, as set forth in the Affiliation Agreement to which the -
Member and the Corporation are parties, are honored by such successor to the Member.

Article 4 - Purpose:

The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are: to establish, acquire, support, erect,
maintain, own and equip health care providers and institutions in the City of Ottawa and other
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communities served by the Corporation (the “Community”), including, without limiting the
foregoing, hospitals, medical centers, nursing homes, skilled nursing facilities, intermediate care
facilities, home health agencies and ambulatory care centers; to conduct, sponsor, support,
promote, develop, own and operate charitable, educational, scientific and scholastic programs
and activities and other activities and programs ancillary to and in support of the foregoing in the
Community; and to foster, promote, support, develop, encourage, maintain, receive and accept
funds, gifts and contributions for and on behalf of such activities; and to establish, conduct,
Sponsor, acquire, own, maintain and operate such other entities and activities which, in the
opinion of the Board and at its discretion, will support the foregoing in the Community.

No part of the net eamings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any private individual;
no part of the income of the Corporation shall be distributed to its individual members, directors,
or officers; provided, however, that the payment of reasonable compensation for services
rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of income. No substantial part of the activities of the
Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence
legislation. The Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or
distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of or against any candidate for
public office.

The Corporation shall possess all powers which a corporation organized under the General Not
For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same from time to time may be
amended, may possess including the power to use, distribute, contribute, expend, donate, apply
and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all proceeds and avails thereof, and income and
profit derived therefrom, exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes; provided, however, the Corporation shall not engage in any business which would
disqualify it from being exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, (the “Code™), or the corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, no assets of the Corporation shall be
donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or employed in any manner which
would disqualify the Corporation from being exempt from taxation as an organization described
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the Corporation shall, without exception,
conduct its business, and shall exercise the powers reserved to it in the govening documents of
[ORHA, ORHF,] and the Auxiliary (as defined below), to cause [ORHA, ORHF,] and the
Auxiliary to conduct their respective businesses: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of
the Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives; (2) in accordance
with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from time to time; and
(3) in a manner which, as determined by the Member, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) the
Member; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Ilinois not-for-profit corporation
(the “Third Order™); or (jii) the Corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation [(“ORHA™)], [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation [(“ORHF”)], and [new name of Ottawa
Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Ilinois not-for-profit corporation (thc “Auxiliary”), [new
name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability company,
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i [new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, or any other
entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the Corporation, either directly or
indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated Corporations”).
The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious impairment of the name or
reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, the Member, or the Third Order, either in the general
community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes confusion in the minds of members of the
general community or the Catholic faithful conceming compliance by any Affiliated
Corporation, the Member, or the Third Order with the ethical and religious teachings of the
Roman Catholic Church.

Article 5 — Dissolution:

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, and after payment of its just

debts and liabilities, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Member, if the Member is

then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Member is
; not then exempt, to the Third Order, if the Third Order is then exempt as an organization
b described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Third Order is not then exempt, to such
other organization or organizations, as determined by the Board, which are organized and
operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific purposes as
shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Code.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CORPORATE BYLAWS
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE CENTER]

ARTICLEI
NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

1.1. Name.

The name of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center] (the “Corporation”), an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

1.2. Offices.

The location of the principal office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Ottawa,
Illinois, and the Corporation may have other offices within or without the State of Illinois as the
"Board of Directors (the “Board”) may from time to time determine. The Corporation shall have
and continuously maintain in Illinois a registered office which may, but need not be, the same as
its principal office, and a registered agent whose office address is identical with such registered
office.

1.3.  Purposes.

(a) The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are: to establish, acquire,
support, erect, maintain, own and equip health care providers and institutions in the City of
Ottawa and other communities served by the Corporation (the “Community™) mcludmg, without
limiting the foregoing, hospitals, medical centers, nursing homes, skilled nursing facilities,
intermediate care facilities, home health agencies and ambulatory care centers; to conduct,
sponsor, support, promote, develop, own and operate charitable, educational, scientific and
scholastic programs and activities and other activities and programs ancillary to and in support of
the foregomg in the Community; and to foster, promote, support, develop, encourage, maintain,
receive and accept funds, gifts and contributions for and on behalf of such activities; and to
establish, conduct, sponsor, acquire, own, maintain and operate such other entities and activities
which, in the opinion of the Board and at its discretion, will support the foregoing in the
Community.

()  No part of the net eanings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any
private individual; no part of the income of the Corporation shall be distributed to its individual
members, directors, or officers; provided, however, that the payment of reasonable compensation
for services rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of income. No substantial part of the
activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to
influence legislation. The Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the
publication or distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of or against any
candidate for public office. :

(©) The Corporation shall possess all powers which a corporation organized under the
General Not For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same from time to time
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may be amended, may possess, including the power to use, distribute, contribute, expend, donate,
apply and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all proceeds and avails thereof, and
income and profit derived therefrom, exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious
or scientific purposes; provided, however, the Corporation shall not engage in any business
which would disqualify it from being exempt from taxation under Section 501(2) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), or the corresponding provision of any future

United States Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3).of.the .. _. . ..

Code.

(d)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, no assets of the
Corporation shall be donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or employed in
any manner which would disqualify the Corporation from being exempt from taxation as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

(€)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall,
without exception, conduct its business, and shall exercise the powers reserved to it in the
goveming documents of [ORHA, ORHE,] and the Auxiliary (as defined below), to cause
[ORHA, ORHFE,] and the Auxiliary to conduct their respective businesses: (1) in accordance
with the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious
Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the
U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives™), as interpreted
and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Iilinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Member”);
(2) in accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from
time to time; and (3) in a manner which, as determined by the Member, does not bring Scandal
upon: (i) the Member; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation (the “Third Order™); or (iii) the Corporation, [new name of Qttawa Regional
Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation [(*ORHAY)], [mew name of Ottawa
Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation [(*ORHF”}], and [new
name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the
“Auxiliary”), [mew name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois
limited liability company, [new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois
corporation, or any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the
Corporation, cither dircctly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the
“Affiliated Corporations”). The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious
impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, the Member, or the Third
Order, either in the general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes confusion in the
minds of members of the general community or the Catholic faithful conceming compliance by
any Affiliated Corporation, the Member, or the Third Order with the ethical and religious
teachings of the Roman Catholic Church. )

1.4. Dissolution.

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, and after payment of its
just debts and liabilities, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Member, if said
corporation is then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if
said Member is not then exempt, to the Third Order, if said corporation is then exempt as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Codc, or, if said corporation is not then

2
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exempt, to such other organization or organizations, as determined by the Board, which are
organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section
501(c)(3) of the Code.

i 1.5. Incorporation by Reference.

The Member and the Affiliated Corporations other than the Auxiliary entered into that
certain Affiliation Agreement, dated January 11, 2012 (the “Affiliation Agreement”). The
Member and the Corporation acknowledge and agree that the Member and the Corporation shall
abide by the covenants of Article XTI, Article XIII and Article XIV of the Affiliation Agreement.

ARTICLE 11
MEMBER

2.1.  Sole Member.

’ The sole member of the Corporation shall be OSF Healthcare System. Any provision of

: law requiring notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent, or other action of the Member in
connection with such matter shall be satisfied by notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent,
or other action of the board of directors of the Member (the “Member Board”).

2.2. Powers Reserved to the Member.

In addition to the rights and powers accorded a member under the Illinois General Not
! For Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, and these Bylaws,
’ the following actions (the “Reserved Powers”) shall be authorized only by a vote of the Member
of the Corporation, which vote shall be taken only after considering the advice of the Board:

(a) To establish, approve, or modify the philosophy, vision, values, and mission
according to which the Corporation operates.

(b)  To lease, sell, encumber, or otherwise alienate any real property or interest in real
property of the Corporation.

(c) To approve any transfer, lease, sale, or encumbrance of personal property of the
Corporation except in the ordinary course of business.

(d)  To approve any purchase or other acquisition by the Corporation that is not
included in the consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated Corporations, and
exceeds One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per item and Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) in the
aggregate in any fiscal year.

(e) To approve any borrowing or debt financing on behalf of the Corporation in
excess of a specified limit established by resolution of the Member, to structure and restructure
indebtedness of the Corporation, and to enter into and amend agreements relating to indebtedness
of the Corporation. ’
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@ To require a certified audit of the finances of the Corporation and to appoint the
certified public accountant to perform any audit.

(&) To approve the engagement of and to dismiss any outside legal counsel to
represent the Corporation on a regular basis or in connection with any matter deemed by the
Member, in good faith, to have significance for OSF as a whole.

(h)  To elect the members of the Board and to remove any member of the Board who
the Member determines, in good faith after reasonable investigation, may or does bring Scandal
upon any Affiliated Corporation, the Member, or the Third Order, or breaches his or her fiduciary
: duties as a member of the Board, as applicable, or engages in conduct not in the best interests of
the Corporation or the Member.

@) To merge or consolidate the Corporation with other entities, merge other entities
into the Corporation, or to dissolve the Corporation, in accordance with applicable law.

)] To amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation in
accordance with applicable law.

) (k)  To expand, consolidate, terminate, or close any of the facilities and services of the
j Corporation.

)] To hire, enter into an employment contract with, discipline, or terminate the Chief
Executive Officer and the chief operating officer of the Corporation.

(m)  Subject to Section 4.2, to appoint the Chairperson following nomination by the

Board.

(m) To approve the strategie plan for the Affiliated Corporations, which shall be
developed by the Board and recommended to the Member.

(0)  To adopt or modify the operating budget and capital budget for any fiscal year for
the Corporation, which shall be developed by the Board and recommended to the Member
{which operating and capital budgets shall be consolidated with the operating and capital budgets
for each Affiliated Corporation, with a consolidating schedule for each Affiliated Corporation).

() To approve the terms of and enter into joint ventures and other affiliations
between the Corporation and third parties, and approve the creation, formation, organization, or
termination of any legal entity in which the Corporation will have any ownership interest,
membership interest, power to elect or appoint board members or officers, or any other formal
participation arrangement, whether acting alone or in conjunction with any other person or entity.

(@) To approve appointments to governing bodies of joint ventures between the
Corporation and third parties and other legal entities in which the Corporation has any power to
elect or appoint board members or officers.

(1) To take any and all actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment of the Member
Board to protect and preserve the tax-exempt status and public charity status of the Corporation
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or the Member and any tax-exempt affiliate of the Corporation or the Member (including federal
and state income tax exemptions, property tax exemptions, and sales tax exemptions); provided
the Member Board has given a written request to the Board to take action or refrain from taking
action, which would have sufficiently protected and preserved such tax-exempt and public
charity status, and the Board has failed to promptly take such action or refrain from taking such
action.

(s) To take any and ail actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment of the Member
Board, for any 2nd all members of the Obligated Group to comply with its master trust indenture,
loan agreements, tax agreements, and all other covenants and agreements relating to any
Obligated Group financing; provided the Member Board has given a written request to the Board
to takc action or refrain from taking action, to so comply, and the Board has failed to promptly
take such action or refrain from taking such action. The term “Obligated Group” means the
Member and any other natural person, firm, joint venture, association, partnership, business trust,
corporation, public body, agency or political subdivision thereof or any other similar entity that
becomes a member of the obligated group pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Master
Trust Indenture dated as of September 15, 1999 between the Member and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as successor master trustee, as heretofore or hereafter supplemented and
amended.

i
|
i
|
E
|
|
|

(t) To name or rename any healthcare facility owned and operated by the
Corporation. -

; 2.3.  Action by the Member.

The Member shall act by executing and delivering to the Chairperson, Chief Executive
Officer, or Secretary a written instrument or instruments, signed by an authorized officer of the
Member, setting forth the action taken. The action of the Member shall be deemed to have been
taken on the dates the written instruments are so delivered unless the instruments provide
otherwise. Any action taken by the Member on any matters described in Section 2.2 shall be
immediately communicated to the Board.

2.4, Policies of the Member.

All policies of the Member shall apply with respect to the Corporation’s governance,
management, and operation. The Board shall not enact any policy that conflicts with or purports
to nullify the effect of a policy of the Member without the approval of the Member.

ARTICLE II
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1. General Powers.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the management, control and operation of the affairs and
properties of this Corporation shall vest and be in the Board. The Board shall have the power
and authority to do and perform all acts or functions consistent with the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto, and the laws of the State of Illinois.
Among the powers exercised by the Board shall be the power, subject to the Reserved Powers, to
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i coordinate the activities of [ORHA, ORHF,] and the Auxiliary, all in furtherance of the exempt
purposes set forth herein, pursuant to the powers reserved to it in the governing documents of
: [ORHA, ORHF,] and the Auxiliary. The Corporation shall exercise such reserved powers
; unless the Member grants written permission excusing the Corporation from the exercise of such
5 reserved powers.

3.2.  Additional Responsibilities.

The members of the Board shall also serve as members of the board of directors of
[ORHA]. The members of the Board who are Community Board Members shall also serve as
members of the board of directors of [ORHF]. In their capacities as directors of [ORHA] and
[ORHF], the members of the Board shall manage the affairs of such corporations in accordance
with their articles of incorporation and bylaws.

3.3, Number and Qualification.

(a) Composition. The Board shall consist of thirteen to fifteen directors, not
including the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and the Honorary Board Members (as
| defined below). When vacancies on the Board occur by reason of death, resignation, or
‘ otherwise, the number shall be reduced by such vacancies until qualified replacements are

elected or appointed for the unexpired term. Directors other than Community Board Members
need not be residents of the State of Illinois. All directors shall have the equal right to vote,
except that the Chief Executive Officer and the Honorary Board Members shall not have the
right to vote. The initial Board established upon adoption of these amended and restated Bylaws
shall be composed of the following individuals:

| (1)  The Chief Executive Officer, who shall serve ex officio;

(2) Seven (7) persons appointed by the Member (the “OSF Board
Members’); and

(3)  Six (6) persons who are residents of the Corporation’s scrvice area (the
“Community Board Members”);

(b)  Preferences. In nominating Community Board Members, thc Board shall give
preference to persons who represent a diversity of geography and skills, rather than persons who
have historical loyalties to either the Member or the Corporation’s predecessor, Ottawa Regional
i Hospital & Healthcare Center; provided, however, that the initial Community Board Members
shall be selccted, by agreement of the Member and the Board as ecomprised prior to the adoption
of these amended and restated Bylaws, from among those persons who were members of the
Board prior to the adoption of these amended and restated Bylaws. The OSF Board Members
shall at all times constitute a majority of voting directors; in the event the Board determines to
expand the Board to fourteen (14) members, the additional member shall be an OSF Board
Member, and in the event the Board determines to expand the Board to fifteen (15) members, the
additional member shall be a Community Board Member.

{c) Honorary Board Members. The initial Board established upon adoption of these
amended and restated Bylaws shall include four (4) directors, selected by agreement of the
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Member and the Board as comprised prior to the adoption of these amended and restated Bylaws,
who were members of the Board prior to the adoption of these amended and restated Bylaws
(the “Honorary Board Members”). An Honorary Board Member shall serve a single term
ending on the date his or her term as a member of the Board as comprised prior to the adoption
of these amended and restated Bylaws would have ended. Upon the completion of such terms,

there shall be no Honorary Board Members.

(d)  Qualifications. Directors shall have the following qualifications:

(1)  Commitment to the Philosophy, Mission, Values and Vision of the
Member.

(2)  Commitment to uphold the Catholic Code of Ethics in all dealings and
deliberations pertaining to the Board's responsibilities.

(3)  Knowledge and experience useful to the Corporation in maintaining its
values and achieving its Mission, such as leadership skills, health care delivery knowledge, legal
expertise or financial skills.

(4)  Willingness to support the Corporation with a commitment of time
necessary to become and remain informed concerning the issues confronting the Corporation and
the ability to regularly attend Board mestings.

(5)  Ability to be discreet in keeping Board discussions and business
confidential. .

6) Ability to rise above the concerns of a particular constituency and
represent the interest of the Corporation as a whole.

)] Be of respectable character, have an interest in the Catholic health care
delivery system and a deep concern and willingness to serve.

3.4. Election.

(@)  The Member shall have the sole power to appoint or reappoint the OSF Board
Members.

(b)  Upon expiration of the terms of then-current Community Board Members, the
Board shall submit to the Member nominations to fill the seats previously held by, or seek
reappointment of, the Community Board Members. Such nominees shall have been presented to
the Board by a committee of the Board comprised of the then-current Community Board
Members and approved by an act of the Board at its annual meeting. The Member may approve
or deny any nominee(s) or reappointment(s) in its discretion, provided the Member shall not
make its decision arbitrarily.
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3.5. Term of Office.

(a) The term of office for each director (other than the Honorary Board Members)
shall be three (3) years or until his or her successor shall have been duly elected. However,
,’ notwithstanding the aforementioned, for the first term in which these amended and restated
i Bylaws are in force and effect: (1) two OSF Board Members and two Community Board
: Members shall each serve a one year term; (2) two OSF Board Members and two Community
Board Members shall each serve a two year term; and (3) three OSF Board Members and two
Community Board Members shall each serve a three year term; in order that staggered terms can

be initiated.

(b)  Any OSF Board Member may be appointed to succeed himself or herself, without
limitation on the number of terms he or she may serve, provided that said director continues to
satisfy the requirements for qualification specified in- Section 3.3(d). Any Community Board
Member may be elected to succeed himself or herself, up to a maximum of three (3) consecutive
terms, provided that said director continues to satisfy the requirements for qualification specified
in Section 3.3(d).

(c) The term of office of all directors shall commence immediately following the
meeting at which they were elected by the Member.

; (d)  The term of office of any director shall end at the close of the annual meeting heid
t during the year in which such director’s term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification
of a successor, whichever shall occur last.

3.6. Resignation of Directors.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Unexcused absence
from more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all regular and special Board meetings without a
prior excuse from the Chairperson shall be an automatic resignation. A director may be excused
from Board meeting attendance if such director is absent from the state, suffering from an acute
illness or, in the discretion of the Chairperson, for any other excused absence.

3.7. Removal of Directors.

Any OSF Board Member may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the
Member. Any Community Board Member or Honorary Board Member may be removed from
office by the Member pursuant to Section 2.2(h).

3.8.  Vacancies.

Any vacancy on the Board may be filled by the Member for the unexpired portion of the
term.

70668259vi4 0913601
ATTACHMENT #5

116




3.9. Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Board for the nomination of Community Board Members,
election of certain officers, as necessary, and the transaction of such business as may come
before the Board shall be held in December of each year or, in the discretion of the Chairperson,
within sixty days of such regularly scheduled annual meeting and at such time and place as shall
be determined by the Chairperson.

3.10. Repular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place
designated by the Chairperson by announcement at the preceding Board meeting, by written
notice to the members of the Board by the Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer, or by
resolution of the Board prescribing the time and place for regular meetings. The annual meeting
may be counted as one of the quarterly meetings. '

3.11. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the Chairperson, the
Vice-Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer, or a majority of the directors then in office.

3.12. Planning Meetings of the Member.

In order to enhance strategic planning by the Member and develop system-wide priorities
and initiatives, the members of the Board shall attend the Member’s board education sessions,
strategic and management planning meetings, and budget meetings, at times and places
determined by the Member upon notice to the Board.

3.13. Notice.

(a)  Notice of any annual, regular or special meeting shall be given in writing by
personal delivery, by United States mail, or by electronic mail to each director at least three days
before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If given by United States mail, such notice
shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the
director at the address as shown in the records of the Corporation with postage thereon prepaid.
If given by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered upon receipt by the
sender of an electronic acknowledgment of delivery to the recipient at the electronic mail address
of the recipient as shown in the records of the Corporation.

(b)  Notice may be waived in writing by any director either before or after the
meeting. Attendance at any meeting by a director shall be deemed to be a waiver of notice
unless the director intends to object to the transaction of business because the meeting is not
lawfully convened.

{c) Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or special
meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.
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3.14. Quorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that if less than a majority of the directors are present, those
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. Any director
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board through the use of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can communicate with each other, Participation in such meetings shall constitute attendance and
presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating,

3.15. Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these Bylaws. There
shall be no voting by proxy.

3.16. Informal Action.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Board or any committee thereof may
be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be
provided by all of the directors then in office or all members of a committee of the Board, as the
case may be. Written consent may be provided by electronic mail. All the approvals evidencing
consent shall be delivered to the Secretary at such mailing or electronic mail address as the
Secretary may designate to be filed in the records of the Corporation. The action shall be
effective when all of the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved
the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

3.17. Procedure.

Robert’s Rules of Order Revised (latest edition) shall govern procedure at all meetings of
the Board and its committees where not covered expressly by these Bylaws.

3.18. Compensation.

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as such but may be reimbursed
for bona fide expenses incurred arising out of services rendered. Nothing herein shall prohibit
payment of compensation to an individual serving as a director who renders services to the
Corporation in another capacity.

3,19. Conflict of Interest.

(2) Any director, officer or key employee who has an interest in a contract or other
transaction presented to the Board or a committee thereof for authorization, approval, or
ratification shall make a prompt and full disclosure of such interest to the Board or committee
prior to its acting on such contract or transaction. Such disclosure shall include any relevant and
material facts known to such person about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be
construed to be adverse to the Corporation's interest.
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() The body to which such disclosure is made shall thereupon determine, by
majority vote, whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can reasonably be
construed to exist. If a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not vote on, nor use any
personal influence on, nor participate (other than to present factual information or to respond to
questions) in, the discussions or deliberations with respect to such contract or transaction. Such
person shall not be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting where the
contract or transaction is under discussion or is being voted upon. The minutes of the meeting
shall reflect the disclosure made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the abstention from
voting and participation, and whether a quorum was present.

(c)  For the purposes of this Section, a person shall be deemed to have an “Interest” in
a contract or other transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation, or is a director, trustee, manager, or officer of, or has a significant
financial or influential interest in, an entity (other than an entity that controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with the Corporation, either directly or indirectly) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

4,]1. Officers.

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary, a
Treasurer, and an individual who is both the President and the Chief Executive Officer (the
“Chief Executive Officer”). The Board may elect additional officers as it shail deem desirable.
Unless specifically provided in these Bylaws, an officer need not be a director. One person may
hold two or more offices.

42. Appointment, Election and Term of Office.

The initial officers shall be named by agreement of the Member and the Corporation
pursuant to the Affiliation Agreement. Upon expiration of the initial term of the then-current
Vice-Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall be nominated by the Board at the annual meeting
of the Board, which nomination shall be submitted to the Member for consideration and
approval. Upon expiration of the initial terms of the then-current Secretary, Treasurer and such
other officers as established by the Board pursuant to Section 4.1, the Secretary, Treasurer, and
other officers shall be elected by the Board, except as otherwise provided, at the annual meeting
of the Board. The Vice-Chairperson shall automatically become the Chairperson at the
conclusion of his or her term as Vice-Chairperson. The Chief Executive Officer shall be
appointed by the Member without nomination by the Board. Each officer shall hold office for a
term of one year or until a successor is elected, unless such officer shall sooner resign or be
removed.

(a) An officer may be elected successively without limitation on the number of terms
served.

()  The term of office of all officers shall commence immediately following the
meeting at which they were elected by the Member or the Board, as applicable.
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()  The term of office of any officer shall end at the close of the annual meeting held
during the year in which the term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification of a
successor, whichever shall occur last.

4.3. Resignation and Removal of Officers.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any officer may be
removed by the Member whenever in the judgment of the Member the best interests of the
Corporation will be served thereby.

4.4, Vacancies.

A vacancy in any elected office except for the offices of Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson,
and Chief Executive Officer may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term.

4.5,  Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Subject to the Reserved
Powers, the Chairperson may sign and execute, on behalf of the Corporation with the Secretary
or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, any corporate records,
documents and instruments. The Chairperson shall have and exercise, subject to the Reserved
Powers, all powers usually incident to the office of the Chairperson of a not-for-profit
corporation and shall perform such other duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time. The Chairperson must be a2 member of the Board.

4,6. Vice-Chairperson.

The Vice-Chairperson shall act as Chairperson in the absence or refusal of the
Chairperson to act and when so acting the Vice-Chairperson shall have all of the powers and
authority of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall also perform, subject to the Reserved
Powers, such other duties and functions as may be delegated by the Board. The Vice-
Chairperson must be a member of the Board.

4.7.  Chief Executive Officer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers and to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given
by the Board to the Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer shall be the highest executive
officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board and of the chief executive
officer of the Member, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs
of the Corporation and shall have the general powers and duties of management, including, but
not limited to:

(a) Advising and making recommendations to the Board relating of the operation of
the Corporation and strategic planning.

(b)  Presenting a report at each annual meeting of the Board covering the operations
during the preceding fiscal year.
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(c) Signing any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board has
authorized to be executed by the Chief Executive Officer, either alone or with the Secretary or
other officer of the Corporation, as authorized by the Board.

(d)  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Board.

(¢)  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Executive Committee
of the Board, if any.

¢3) Directing and supervising the activities and performance of subordinate
executives of the Corporation in accordance with the management structure approved by the
Board from time to time.

(g)  Performing all duties incident to the office of Chief Executive Officer and such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

48.  Secretary.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Secretary shall sign documents of the Corporation
from time to time as required; keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board and a record of
actions of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly
given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of
the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is
affixed to all documents as required; and perform such additional duties as may be assigned by
the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

4,9,  Treasurer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the
funds and securities of the Corporation; report to the Board respecting its financial condition and
the handling of its monies and investments; and perform such additional duties as may be
assigned by the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

5.1.  Designation.

The Board may, by resolution, create committees as needed and define the activities
thereof. Unless prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the Board may
delegate authority to Board committees. Members of Board committees shall be appointed by
the Chairperson unless otherwise provided for by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board.
Committees may include persons other than directors; provided, that Board committees shall
include two or more directors, and a majority of the members of each Board committee shall be
directors. The Chairperson shall be an ex officio voting member of all Board committees.
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5.2. Term of Office.

Each member of a2 Board committee shall serve until the next annual meeting of the
Board or until a successor is appointed.

5.3. Resignation and Removal.

| Any committee member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
: Chairperson or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any
committee member may be removed by the Chairperson or by a majority vote of the Board.

5.4. Vacancies.

Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by the Chairperson.

5.5. Committee Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall serve as chairperson of the Executive Committee and designate
one member of each other committee(s) to serve as chairperson of that committee.

5.6. Notice.

Committees shall meet at the call of the chairperson of the committee. Notice of any
! committee meeting shall be given at least three business days before the meeting is to be held.
Notice of the meeting shall be either oral or in wrting at the discretion of the committee
chairperson, and if given in writing shall be given in the manner described in Section 3.13.

5.7. Quorum.

A majority of the committee membership shall constitute a quorumn for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the committee.

5.8. Manner of Acting,

The act of a majority of the committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the committee. A committee may also act by unanimous consent in
writing without a meeting in the manner described in Section 3.16.

5.9. Minutes.

Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall regularly report to the
Board.

5.10. Rules.

Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or with actions by the Board.

14

70668259v14 0913601

— ATTACHMENT #5




o

5.11. Executive Comumittee.

(a) The Executive Committee, if created by the Board, shall be composed of not less
than three members and not more than seven members, including the Chairperson and other
members selected from among the directors by the Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be the
chairperson of the Executive Committee. The majority of voting members of the Executive
Committee shall be OSF Board Members.

(b)  The Executive Committee shall serve during periods when the Board is not in,
session. The Executive Committee shall be authorized, subject to the Reserved Powers, to take
such action as may be necessary on behalf of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VI
MEDICAL/DENTAL STAFF

6.1. Organization.

The Board shall appoint a medical/dental staff (the “Medical Staff”) for the health care
facility operated by the Corporation, composed of physicians and dentists that shall see that they
are organized in such a manner as to secure the best possible patient care. In administrative
matters, the Medical Staff, as an organized body, shall act in an advisory capacity; this function
is carried on through the formal liaison of the health care facility.

6.2. Appointments and Hearings.

(a)  The Board shall appoint to the Medical Staff physicians, dentists and other
professionals in numbers not exceeding the hospital's needs, whom it shall deem to be qualified
and whose services it considers will promote the more efficient fulfillment of the purposes of the
health care facility. The qualifications for membership on the Medical Staff, for staff category,
and for privileges are more specifically set forth in the Bylaws of the Medical Staff. Each
member of the Medical Staff shall have appropriate authority and responsibility for the care of
his or her patients, subject to such limitations as are contained in these Bylaws, in resolutions of
the Board adopted pursuant to these Bylaws, and in the Bylaws and rules of the Medical Staff
approved by the Board after adoption by the Medical Staff, and subject further to any limitations
attached to his or her appointment.

(®)  Each application for appointment shall be in writing and shall contain full
information conceming the applicant’s training, experience, licensurc, reputation, demonstrated
competence, delineation of privileges desired, personal cooperation and responsibility, ethical
standing, previous hospital appointments, and any unfavorable history with respect to the
foregoing. Each application is presented to the Chief Executive Officer, who shall transmit it to
the Secretary of the Medical Staff. Each application is reviewed and acted upon by the
Credentials Committee and Medical Executive Committee of the Medical Staff prior to final
action being taken by the Board.

(c) Appointments to the Medical Staff shall be for a term of not more than two years.
Reappointments to the Medical Staff are at the discretion of the Board.
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(d)  The Board shall establish procedures when an appointment is refused or not
rencwed, when a requested staff category is denied, or when privileges have been or are
proposed to be reduced, suspended or terminated. The practitioner affected shall be afforded an
opportunity for hearing before an appropriate committee(s) whose recommendation shall be
considered by the Board prior to taking final action on the matter. Such hearings shall be
conducted informally under procedures adopted by the Board so as to assure a fair hearing and
afford opportunity for the presentation of all pertinent information. Whenever the Board does
not concur in a Medical Staff recommendation relative to clinical privileges, provision will be
made for a review of the recommendations by a joint committee of the Medical Staff and Board
before a final decision is reached by the Board. Any physician or dentist whose engagement by
the hospital requires membership on the Medical Staff shall not have his or her Medical Staff
privileges terminated without the same fair hearing provisions as provided for any other member
of the Medical Staff unless otherwise stated in a written contract. The foregoing
notwithstanding, the Board may provide for automatic suspension of a practitioner's privileges
upon the occurrence of certain events, as detailed in the Medical Staff Bylaws, with respect to
which no hearing will be afforded prior to such suspension.

6.3.  Patient Care and Evajuation.

(a)  The Board shall assign to the Medical Staff such duties as it deems necessary for
the maintenance of medical care at a standard of excellence. To accomplish this, the Board shall
delegate appropriate authority to the Medical Staff officers through the Chief Executive Officer.

(b)  The Medical Staff shall conduct a continuing review and appraisal of the quality
and quantity of medical care rendered in the health care facility in terms of established standards,
and shall report such activities and their results to the Board through the Chief Executive Officer.

(©) The Medical Staff shall make recommendations to the Board concerning: (1)
appointments and reappointments; (2) designations and alterations of staff category; (3) granting,
suspension, revocation or alteration of privileges; (4) disciplinary actions; (5) all matters relating
to personal conduct and professional competency; and (6) such specific matters as may be
referred to it by the Board or the Chief Executive Officer.

6.4. Medical/Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules.

There shall be Bylaws and Rules for the Medical Staff setting forth its purposes,
organization and government. Such Bylaws and Rules may be proposed by the Medical Staff or
the Board, but no such action shall become effective unless ratified by the Board. No provision
in the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules shall be valid if it is inconsistent with the Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation as they may from time to time exist, nor shall
they be valid if inconsistent with the Ethical and Religious Directives.

6.5.  Status of Staff Members With Privileges.

The Medical Staff, committees of the Medical Staff and practitioners who are members
thereof, and any other persons to whom privileges of any sort are granted, when performing their
duties hereunder in the health care facility operated by the Corporation in accordance with their
professional judgments shall not be considered employees of the Corporation. Nothing
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contained in these Bylaws is intended or shall be interpreted to cause the Medical Staff or the
practitioners who are members thereof to be employees of the Corporation or any health care
facility operated by the Corporation. The Corporation may, however, by specific written
contract so stating, retain individual practitioners as employees to perform services for the
Corporation.

6.6. Formal Liaison.

There shall be a Formal Liaison Meeting (“Formal Liaison Meeting”), which shall serve
as a formal means of medico-administrative communication among the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer, and Medical Staff of the hospital.

(a) Composition. Fach Formal Liaison Meeting shall include the Chief Executive
Officer, and representatives from the Board and from the Medical Staff.

()  Pumposes. The purposes of the Formal Liaison Meeting are:
(1) To assist in the development of hospital policy.

(2) To maintain open communication, specifically as related to pertinent
action taken or contemplated.

(3)  To provide a forum for consideration of plans for future growth or change

in hospital organization and for discussion of problems that arise in the operation of the hospital.

(c) Meetings. The Formal Liaison Meeting shall occur at least twice a year, more
often if necessary.

(d)  Minutes. Minutes shall be recorded and given to the Board, representatives of the
Medical Staff and the Chief Executive Officer.

ARTICLE VII
SUPPLEMENTAL BYLAWS

In the course of the operation of its business, the Corporation will from time to time ratify
and proclaim bylaws or constitutions and bylaws for various advisory boards, medical/dental
staffs, and auxiliaries, and for other purposes and allied organizations, and the Board shall have
the power to organize and continue all such allied organizations and ratify, change and amend all
such bylaws or constitutions and bylaws unless specifically delegated with ratification reserved
by the Member.

ARTICLE VIII
FISCAL MATTERS

8.1. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of October and end on
the last day of September, or such other dates as established by the Member from time to time so
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as to keep contemporaneous the fiscal year of the Corporation with the fiscal years of the other
! members of the Obligated Group.

H
i 8.2. Contracts.
i

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Board may authorize officers or agents to enter into
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
, Corporation, consistent with authority delegated from time to time to the chief executive officers
| of hospitals owned and operated by the Member.

8.3. Loans.

No loans or borrowing shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Corporation and no
; evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the
i Board. No loan shall be granted to any officer or director of the Corporation. Forms of
indebtedness in excess of that amount specified by resolution of the Memmber pursuant to Section
2.2(e) must be approved by the Member.

8.4. Checks and Drafis.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation or to the Corporation, shall be
signed or endorsed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such
manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

8.5. Deposits.

All funds of the Corporation, not otherwise employed, shall be deposited from time to
time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the
Board may select.

8.6. Budgets.

The Board shall prepare or have prepared, and submit to the Member for approval at a
time and in a manner specified by the Member, the annual consolidated capital and operating
budgets of the Affiliated Corporations with a consolidating schedule for each Affiliated
Corporation.

8.7. Books, Records and Accounts.

The Corporation shall keep or cause to be kept correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings and records of the actions of the Board
and its committees. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by the Member
or any member of the Board for any proper purpose at any reasonable time and upon prior
request. In addition, the Corporation shall annually cause a certified audit of its accounts m
compliance with Section 2.2(f) to be made and shall cause to be filed the necessary reports, tax
retumns or other documents as may be required by law on its behalf.
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ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

9.1. Power to Hold Harmless.

Subject to the laws of Tllinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or isa
party who is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust
or other enterprise, shall be indemnified against expenses (including attomeys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
cormection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation,
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or
her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a maoner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or
her conduct was lawful.

9.2. Power to Indemnify Litigant.

Subject to the laws of Tllinois in effect fiom time to time, any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit
by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving
at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation except
that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such
person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of
his or her duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such
action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of
liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

9.3. Reimbursement Authorized.
To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been

successful, on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to
in Sections 9.1 or 9.2, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be
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indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him
or her in connection therewith.

9.4. Determination if Reimbursement is Proper.

Any indemnification under Sections 9.1 or 9.2 (unless ordered by a court) shall be made
by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that
indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because
he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 9.1 and 9.2. Such
determination shall be made: (1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of
directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not
obtainable, or, even if obtainable, if a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by
independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by the Member.

9.5, Advance of Expenses.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceedings may be paid
by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as
authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be
determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this
Article.

9.6. Non-Exclusivity.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those seeking indcmnification may be entitled under any agreement, vote of the
Member or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity,
and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person
who has ceased to be such a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

9.7. Right to Acquire Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the
request of the Corporation as a director, officer employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or
her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such,
whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such
liability under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE X
CORPORATE SEAL

The Board shall adopt a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have

inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the state of imcorporation and the words
“Corporate Seal.”
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ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, restated or repealed by the Member upon its own
motion or upon a recommendation from the Board at any regular meeting or special meeting
called for that purpose; provided that the Member shall not be permitted to alter, amend, restate,
or repeal the provisions of Section 1.5. These Bylaws shall be reviewed annually. -
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ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center], this day of , 2012, at Ottawa, Illinois.

Chairperson

ATTEST:

Secretary

(SEAL)
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RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE AFFILIATES, INC.]

Article 1. The name of the Corporation is [New Name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc,] (the “Corporation”). The corporation is an Illinois business corporation,
created on December 22, 2008, with the name Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.

Article 2. Agent Name: Roy M. Bossen
Agent Address: 222 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 300, Chicago, IL 60601

Article 3. Purpose:

a The purposes of the Corporation are to engage in any lawful business or
activity for which corporations may be incorporated under the Illinois Business
Corporation Act, and to exercise all of the rights, powers and privileges now or hereafter
conferred upon corporations organized under the laws of Illinois.

b, Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the Corporation
shall, without exception, conduct its business, shall cause [OR Cardinal Sleep] (as
defined below) to conduct its business, and shall exercise the powers reserved to it in the
governing documents of [ORMC] (as defined below), to cause [ORMC] to conduct its
business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church,
including the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as
amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops
(the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), as interpreted and applied by OSF Healthcare
System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSK”); (2) in accordance with the Code
of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from time to time; and (3) in a
manner which, as determined by OSF, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The
Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Third
Order”); or (iii) the Corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Sole Shareholder”),
[new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation, [mew name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center; LLC], an
Nlinois limited liability company [(“OR Cardinal Sleep”)}, [new name of Ottawa
Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois corporation [(“ORMC”)], or any other
entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the Sole Shareholder, either
directly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated
Corporations”), The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious
impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third
Order, either in the general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes
confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the Catholic faithful
concerning compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the
ethical and religious teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CORPORATE BYLAWS
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HEALTHCARE AFFILIATES, INC.]

ARTICLE L
NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

1.1 Name.

The name of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates,
Inc.] (the “Corporation™), an Illinois corporation.

12 Offices.

The location of the principal office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Ottawa,
Ilinois, and the Corporation may have other offices within or without the State of Illinois as the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) may from time to time determine. The Corporation shall have
and continuously maintain in Illinois a registered office which may, but need not be, the same as
its principal office, and a registered agent whose office address is identical with such registered
office.

1.3 Purposes.
a) The purposes of the Corporation are to engage in any lawful business or activity

for which corporations may bc incorporated under the Illinois Business Corporation Act, and to
exercise all of the rights, powers and privileges now or hereafter conferred upon corporations
organized under the laws of Illinois. '

b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall,
without exception, conduct its business, shall cause [OR Cardinal Sleep] (as defined below) to
conduct its business, and shall exercise the powers reserved to it in the governing documents of
[ORMC] (as defined below), to cause [ORMC] to conduct its business: (1) in accordance with
the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious
Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the
U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), as interpreted
and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (*OSF”); (2) in
accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from time
to time; and (3) in a manner which, as determined by OSF, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF;
(ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the
“Third Order™); or (iii) the Corporation, {new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital and
Healthcare Center], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Sole Shareholder”), [new name
of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [new name of
Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [new name of
Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC), an Illinois limited liability company [(“OR
Cardinal Sleep”)], [new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc], an Illinois

1
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corporation [(*ORMC™)], or any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control
with the Sole Shareholder, either directly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and
collectively the “Affiliated Corporations”). The term “Scandal” means any conduct that
results in serious impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or
the Third Order, either in the general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes
confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the Catholic fajthful concerning
compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the ethical and religious
teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

ARTICLE II.
SOLE SHAREHOLDER

2.1 Sole Shareholder.

The sole shareholder of the Corporation shall be [new name of Ottawa Regional
Hospital and Healthcare Center]. Any provision of law requiring notice to, the presence of, or
the vote, consent, or other action of the Sole Shareholder of the Corporation in connection with
such matter shall be satisfied by notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent, or other action of
the board of directors of the Sole Shareholder (the “Sole Shareholder Board”).

2.2 Powers Reserved to the Sole Shareholder.

In addition to the rights and powers accorded a shareholder under the laws of the State of
Ilinois, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, and these Bylaws, the following actions
(the “Reserved Powers”) shall be authorized only by a vote of the Sole Shareholder of the
Corporation, which vote shall be taken only after considering the advice of the Board:

a) To establish, approve, or modify the philosophy, vision, values, and mission
according to which the Corporation operates.

b) To lease, sell, encumber, or otherwise alienate any real property or interest in real
property of the Corporation.
c) To approve any transfer, lease, sale, or encumbrance of perscnal property of the

Corporation except in the ordinary course of business.

d) To approve any purchase or other acquisition by the Corporation that is not
included in the consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated Corporations.

e) To approve any borrowing or debt financing on behalf of the Corporation in
excess of a specified limit established by resolution of the Sole Shareholder, to structure and
restructure indebtedness of the Corporation, and to enter into and amend agreements relating to
indebtedness of the Corporation.

f) To require a certified audit of the finances of the Corporation and to appoint the
certified public accountant to perform any audit.
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g) To approve the engagement of and to dismiss any outside legal counsel to
represent the Corporation on a regular basis or in connection with any matter deemed by the Sole
Shareholder, in good faith, to have significance for the Sole Shareholder as a whole.

h) To appoint, reappoint or remove the members and officers of the Board.

i) To merge or consolidate the Corporation with other entities, merge other entities
into the Corporation, ot to dissolve the Corporation, in accordance with applicable law.

1) To amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation in
accordance with applicable law.

k) To expand, consolidate, terminate, or close any of the facilities and services of the
Corporation.
D To hire, enter into an employment contract with, discipline, or terminate the Chief

Executive Officer of the Corporation.
m)  To adopt the strategic plan for the Corporation.

n) To adopt or modify the operating budget and capital budget for any fiscal year for
the Corporation (which operating and capital budgets shall be consolidated with the opetating
and capital budgets for each Affiliated Corporation, with a consolidating schedule for each
Affiliated Corporation).

0) To approve the terms of and enter into joint ventures and other affiliations
between the Corporation and third parties, and approve the creation, formation, organization, or
termination of any legal entity in which the Corporation will have any ownership interest,
membership interest, power to elect or appoint board members or officers, or any other formal
participation arrangement, whether acting alone or in conjunction with any other person or
entity.

p) To approve appointments to governing bodies of joint ventures between the
Corporation and third parties and other legal entities in which the Corporation has any power to
elect or appoint board members or officers.

q) To name or rename any healthcare facility owned and operated by the
Corporation.

r) To issue equity interests or admit any new shareholder and the terms for such
admission or issuance.

2.3 Action by the Sole Shareholder.

The Sole Shareholder shall act by executing and delivering to the Chairperson, Chief
Executive Officer, or Secretary a written instrument or instruments, signed by an authonzed
officer of the Sole Shareholder, setting forth the action taken. The action of the Sole Shareholder
shall be deemed to have been taken on the dates the written instruments are so delivered unless
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the instruments provide otherwise. Any action taken by the Sole Shareholder on any matters
described in Section 2.2 shall be immediately communicated to the Board.

2.4  Policies of the Sole Shareholder.

All policies of OSF and the Sole Shareholder shall apply with respect to the
Corporation’s governance, management, and operation. The Board shall not enact any policy
that conflicts with or purports to nullify the effect of a policy of OSF or the Sole Shareholder
without the approval of OSF or the Sole Shareholder, as applicable.

ARTICLE II1.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1 General Powers.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the management, control and operation of the affairs and
properties of this Corporation shall vest and be in the Board. The Board shall have the power
and authority to do and perform all acts or functions consistent with the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto, and the laws of the State of Illinois.
Among the powers exercised by the Board shall be the power, subject to the Reserved Powers, to
coordinate the activities of [ORMC] pursuant to the powers reserved to the Corporation in the
governing documents of [ORMC], and the activities of [OR Cardinal Sleep] pursuant to the
powers held by Corporation as the sole member of [OR Cardinal Sleep], a member-managed
limited liability company, all in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. The Corporation
shall exercise its reserved powers uniess the Sole Shareholder grants written permission excusing
the Corporation from the exercise of such reserved powers.

3.2 Additional Responsibilities.

The members of the Board shall also serve as members of the boards of directors of the
Sole Shareholder, unless the Sole Shareholder determines otherwise. In their capacities as
directors of the Sole Shareholder, the members of the Board shall manage the affairs of such
corporation in accordance with its articles of incorporation and bylaws.

33 Number and Qualification.

a) Composition. The Board shall consist of the members of the Sole Shareholder
Board, unlcss the Sole Shareholder determines otherwise.

b) Qualifications. Directors shall have the following qualifications:

1 Comumitment to the Philosophy, Mission, Values and Vision of the
Sole Shareholder.

(2)  Commitment to uphold the Catholic Code of Ethics in all dealings
and deliberations pertaining to the Board's responsibilities.
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(3) Knowledge and experience useful to the Corporation in
maintaining its values and achieving its Mission, such as
leadership skills, health care delivery knowledge, legal expertise or
financial skills.

(4)  Willingness to support the Corporation with a commitment of time
necessary to become and remain informed concerning the issues
confronting the Corporation and the ability to regularly attend
Board meetings.

(5)  Ability to be discreet in keeping Board discussions and business
confidential.

(6)  Ability to rise above the concerns of a particular constituency and
represent the intercst of the Corporation as a whole,

(7) Be of respectable character, have an interest in the Catholic health
care delivery system and a deep concern and willingness to serve.

c) Election. The Sole Sharcholder shall have the sole power to appoint or reappoint
the members of the Board.

3.4 Term of Office.

a) The term.of office for each director shall be contemporancous with his or her term
as a member of the Sole Shareholder Board.

b) Any director may be elected to succeed himself or herself, without limitation on
the number of terms he or she may serve, provided that said director continues to satisfy the
requirements for qualification specified in Section 3.3(b).

c) The term of office of any director shall commence when his or her term of office
as a member of the Sole Shareholder Board begins.

d) The term of office of any director shall end when his or her term of office as a
member of the Sole Shareholder Board expires.

3.5 Resignation of Directors.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Unexcused absence
from more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all regular and special Board meetings without a
prior excuse from the Chairperson shall be an automatic resignation. A director may be excused
from Board meeting attendance if such director is absent from the state, suffering from an acute
iliness or, in the discretion of the Chairperson, for any other excused absence. A resignation as a
director of the Sole Shareholder shail be an automatic resignation as a director of the
Corporation.
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3.6 Removal of Directors.

Any director may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Sole
Shareholder. Any director removed from the Sole Shareholder Board shall be automatically
removed from the Board.

3.7 Vacancies.

Any vacancy on the Board may be filled by the Sole Shareholder for the unexpired
portion of the term.

3.8 Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Board for the transaction of such business as may come before
the Board, shall be held in December of each year or, in the discretion of the Chairperson, within
sixty days of such regularly scheduled annual meeting and at such time and place as shall be
determined by the Chairperson.

39 Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place
designated by the Chairperson by announcement at the preceding Board meeting, by written
notice to the members of the Board by the Chairperson, or by resolution of the Board prescribing
the time and place for regular meetings. The annual meeting may be counted as one of the
quarterly meetings.

3.10 Special Mecetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the Chairperson, the
Vice-Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer, or a majority of the directors then in office.

3.11 Notice.

a) Notice of any annual, regular or special meeting shall be given in writing by
personal delivery, by United States mail, or by electronic mail to each director at least three days
before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If given by United States mail, such notice
shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the
director at the address as shown in the records of the Corporation with postage thereon prepaid.
If given by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered upon receipt by the
sender of an electronic acknowledgment of delivery to the recipient at the electronic mail address
of the recipient as shown in the records of the Corporation.

b) Notice may be waived in writing by any director either before or afier the
meeting. Attendance at any meeting by a director shall be deemed to be a waiver of notice
unless the director intends to object to the transaction of business because the meeting is not
lawfully convened.
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<) Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or special
meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

3,12  Quorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that if less than a majority of the directors are present, those
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. Any director
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board through the use of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can communicate with each other. Participation in such meetings shall constitute attendance and
presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons $o participating.

3.13 Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these Bylaws. There
shall be no voting by proxy.

3.14 Informal Action.

Any action required to be taken at a ineeting of the Board or any committee thereof may
be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be
provided by all of the directors then in office or all members of a committee of the Board, as the
case may be. Written consent may be provided by electronic mail. All the approvals evidencing
consent shall be delivered to the Secretary at such mailing or electronic mail address as the
Secretary may designate to be filed in the records of the Corporation. The action shall be
effective when all of the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved
the consent, unlcss the consent specifies a different effective date.

3.15 Procedure.

Robert’s Rules of Order Revised (latest edition) shall govern procedure at all meetings of
the Board and its committees where not covered expressly by these Bylaws.

3.16 Compensation.

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as such, but may be
reimbursed for bona fide expenses incurred arising out of services rendered. Nothing herein
shall prohibit payment of compensation to an individual serving as a director who renders
services to the Corporation in another capacity.

3.17 Conflict of Interest.

a) Any director, officer or key employee who has an interest in a contract or other
transaction presented to the Board or a committee thereof for authorization, approval, or
ratification shall make a prompt and full disclosure of such interest to the Board or committee
prior to its acting on such contract or transaction. Such disclosure shall include any relevant and
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material facts kmown to such person about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be
construed to be adverse to the Corporation's interest.

b) The body to which such disclosure is made shall therenpon determine, by
majority vote, whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can reasonably be
construed to exist. If a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not vote on, nor use any
personal influence on, nor participate (other than to present factual information or to respond to
questions) in, the discussions or deliberations with respect to such contract or transaction. Such
person shall not be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting where the
contract or transaction is under discussion or is being voted upon. The minutes of the meeting
shall reflect the disclosure made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the abstention from
voting and participation, and whether a quorum was present.

c) For the purposes of this Section, a person shall be deemed to have an “interest” in
a contract or other transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation, or is a director, trustee, manager, or officer of, or has a significant
financial or influential interest in, an entity (other than an entity that controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with the Corporation, either directly or indirectly) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation.

ARTICLE V.
OFFICERS

4.1 Officers.

The officers of the Corporation shall be the officers of the Sole Shareholder. One person
may hold two or more offices.

42 Election and Term of Office.

a) Each officer shall hold office contemporaneously with his or her term of office as
an officer of the Sole Shareholder. All officers shall be appointed and reappointed by the Sole
Shareholder.

b) An officer may be elected successively without limitation on the number of terms
served.

c) The term of office of any officer shall commence when his or her term of office as
an officer of the Sole Shareholder begins.

d) The term of office of any officer shall end when his or her term of office as an
officer of the Sole Shareholder expires.

43  Resignation and Removal of Officers.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. A resignation as an
officer of the Sole Shareholder shall be an automatic resignation as an officer of the Corporation.
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Any officer may be removed by the Sole Sharcholder whenever in the judgment of the Sole
Shareholder the best interests of the Corporation will be served thereby. Any person removed as
an officer of the Sole Shareholder shall be automatically removed as an officer of the
Corporation.

4.4  Vacancies.

A vacancy in any elected office may be filled by the Sole Shareholder for the unexpired
portion of the term,

4.5 Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Subject to the Reserved
Powers, the Chairperson may sign and execute, on behalf of the Corporation with the Secretary
or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, any corporate records,
documents and instruments. The Chairperson shall have and exercise, subject to the Reserved
Powers, all powers usually incident to the office of the Chairperson of a business corporation and
shall perform such other duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. The
Chairperson must be a member of the Board.

4.6 Vice-Chairperson.

The Vice-Chairperson shall act as Chairperson in the absence or refusal of the
Chairperson to act and when so acting the Vice-Chairperson shall have all of the powers and
authority of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall also perform, subject to the Reserved
Powers, such other duties and functions as may be delegated by the Board. The Vice-
Chairperson must be a member of the Board.

4.7 Chief Executive Officer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers and to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given
by the Board to the Chairperson, the chief executive officer of the Sole Sharcholder shall serve
as both the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation (the “Chief Executive
Officer”), shall be the highest executive officer of the Corporation, shall, subject to the control
of the Board and the Chairperson, have general supervision, direction and control of the business
and affairs of the Corporation, and shall have the general powers and duties of management,
including, but not limited to:

a) Advising and making recommendations to the Board relating of the operation of
the Corporation and strategic planning;

b) Presenting a report at each annual meeting of the Board covering the operations
during the preceding fiscal year,

c) Signing any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board has
authorized to be executed by the Chief Executive Officer, either alone or with the Secretary or
other officer of the Corporation, as authorized by the Board,
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d) Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Board,

e) Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Executive Committee
of the Board, if any;

f) Directing and supervising the activities and performance of subordinate
executives of the Corporation in accordance with the management structure approved by the
Board from time to time; and

g Performing all duties incident to the office of Chief Executive Officer and such
other duties as may be presctibed by the Board.

4.8 Secretary.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Secretary shall sign documents of the Corporation
from time to time as required; keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board and a record of
actions of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly
given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of
the corporate records and of the seal of thc Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is
affixed to all documents as required; and perform such additional duties as may be assigned by
the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

4.9 Treasurer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the
funds and securities of the Corporation; report to the Board respecting its financial condition and
the handling of its monies and investments; and perform such additional duties as may be
assigned by the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

ARTICLE V.
COMMITTEES

5.1 Designation.

The Board may, by resolution, create committees as needed and define the activities
thereof. Unless prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the Board may
delegate authority to Board committecs. Members of Board committees shall be appointed by
the Chairperson unless otherwise provided for by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board.
Committees may include persons other than directors; provided, that Board committees shall
include two or more directors, and a majority of the members of each Board committee shall be
directors. The Chairperson shall be an ex officio voting member of all Board committees.

52 Temm of Office.

Each member of a Board committee shall serve until the next annual meeting of the
Board or until a successor is appointed.

10
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53 Resignation and Removal.

Any committee member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
Chairperson or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, Any
committee member may be removed by the Chairperson or by a majority vote of the Board.

5.4 Vacancies.

Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by the Chairperson.

5.5 Committee Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall serve as chairperson of the Executive Committee and designate
one member of each other committee(s) to serve as chairperson of that committee.

5.6 Notice.

Committees shall meet at the call of the chairperson of the committee. Notice of any
committee meeting shall be given at least three business days before the meeting is to be held.
Notice of the meeting shall be either oral or in writing at the discretion of the committee
chairperson, and if given in writing shall be given in the manner described in Section 3.11.

5.7 Quorum.

A majority of the committee membership shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the committee.

5.8 Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the committee. A committee may also act by unanimous consent in
writing without a meeting in the manner described in Section 3.14.

5.9 Minutes.

Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall regularly report to the
Board.

5.10 Rules.

Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or with actions by the Board.

5.11 Executive Committee.

a) The Executive Committee, if created by the Board, shall be composed of the
members of the executive committee of the Sole Shareholder Board. The chairperson of the
executive committee of the Sole Shareholder Board shall be the chairperson of the Executive
Committee.

11
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b) The Executive Committee shall serve during periods when the Board is not in
session. The Executive Committee shall be authorized, subject to the Reserved Powers, to take
such action as may be necessary on behalf of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VL
FISCAL MATTERS

6.1 Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of October and end on
the last day of September, or such other dates as established by the Sole Shareholder from time
to time.

6.2 Contracts.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Board may authorize officers or agents to enter into
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation.

6.3  Loans.

No loans or borrowing shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Corporation and no
evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the Sole Shareholder.
No loan shall be granted to any officer or director of the Corporation.

6.4 Checks and Drafis.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation or to the Corporation, shall be
signed or endorsed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such
manner as shal] from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

0.5 Deposits.

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board
may select upon approval by the Sole Shareholder.

6.6 Books, Records and Accounts.

The Corporation shall keep or cause to be kept correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings and records of the actions of the Board
and its committees. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by the Sole
Shareholder or any member of the Board for any proper purpose at any reasonable time and upon
prior request. In addition, the Corporation shall annually cause a certified audit of its accounts,
in compliance with Section 2.2(f), to be made and shall cause to be filed the necessary reports,
tax retums or other documents as may be required by law on its behalf.

12
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ARTICLE VIL
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 Power to Hold Harmless.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party who is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust
or other enterprise, shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation,
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or
her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or
her conduct was lawful.

7.2 Power to Indemnify Litigant.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit
by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving
at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation except
that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such
person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of
his or her duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such
action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of
liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

7.3 Reimbursement Authonized.

To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been
successful, on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to
in Sections 7.1 or 7.2, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be
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indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him
or her in connection therewith.

7.4 Determination if Reimbursement is Proper.

Any indemnification under Sections 7.1 or 7.2 (unless ordered by a court) shall be made
by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that
indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because
he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 7.1 and 7.2. Such
determination shall be made: (1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of
directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not
obtainable, or, even if obtainable, if a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by
independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by the Sole Shareholder.

7.5 Advance of Expenses.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceedings may be paid
by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as
authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be
determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this
Article.

7.6 Non-Exclusivity.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agrecment, vote of the
Sole Shareholder or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official
capacity, and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a
person who has ceased to be such a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the
benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

7.7  Right to Acquire Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the
request of the Corporation as a director, officer employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or
her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such,
whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such
liability under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE VIIIL.
CORPORATE SEAL

The Board shall adopt a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have
inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the state of incorporation and the words
*“Corporate Seal”.
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ARTICLE IX.
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, restated or repealed by the Sole Shareholder
upon its own motion or upon a recommendation from the Board at any regular meeting or special
meeting called for that purpose. These Bylaws shall be reviewed annually.

15
706739777 0913601

ATTACHMENT #5

147




' ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of [new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.], this day of , 2012, at Ottawa, Illinois.

Chairperson

ATTEST:

Secretary

. (SEAL)

16
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RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL, FOUNDATION]

Article 1. The name of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
Foundation] (the “Corporation™). The Corporation is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
created on September 28, 1994, with the name Community Hospital of Ottawa Foundation. The
name of the Corporation changed to Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation pursuant to filing
Articles of Amendment effective August 1, 2008.

g
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Article 2. Agent Name: Robert Alan Chaffin
Agent Address: 1100 E. Norris Drive, Ottawa, IL 61350

Article 3. The sole member of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
and Healthcare Center], an lllinois not-for-profit corporation.

Article 4. Purpose:

The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are: To promote, encourage and foster
religious and charitable purposes and activities in the City of Ottawa and other communities (the
“Community”) served by [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center], an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Member”); to foster, promote, support, develop,
encourage, maintain, receive and accept funds for the construction, building, remodeling,
5 support, administration, staffing, and any other legitimate purpose or function of, the Member
] and the Roman Catholic Church; and to establish, conduct, sponsor, acquire, own, maintain and
operate such other entities and activities which, in the opinion of the Board and at its discretion
will support the foregoing purposes; and to solicit and receive gifts and contributions for and on
behalf of the Member and the Roman Catholic Church, and to support their charitable programs
and activities through expenditure of such funds received. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the Corporation is organized and will operate exclusively for the benefit of, to perform
the functions of, and to carry out the purposes of, the Member and the Roman Catholic Church in
the Community.

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any private individual;
no part of the income of the Corporation shall be distributed to its individual members, directors,
| or officers; provided, however, that the payment of reasonable compensation for services
rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of income. No substantial part of the activities of
the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence
legislation. The Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or
distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of or against any candidate for
public office.

The Corporation shall possess all powers which a corporation organized under the General Not
For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same from time to time may be
amended, may possess, including the power to use, distribute, contribute, expend, donate, apply
and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all proceeds and avails thereof, and income and
profit derived therefrom, exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
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purposes; provided, however, the Corporation shall not engage in any business which would
disqualify it from being exempt from taxation under Section 501(z) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or the corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, no assets of the Corporation shall be
donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or employed in any manner which
would disqualify the Corporation from being exempt from taxation as an organization described
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the Corporation shall, without exception,
conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the Roman Catholic Church,
including the Bthical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as amended
from time to time, promulgated by the U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and
Religious Directives™), as interpreted and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not-
for-profit corporation (“OSF™); (2) in accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman
Catholic Church, as amended from time to time; and (3) in a manner which, as determined by
OSF, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an
Tlinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order”); or (iii) the Corporation, the Member,
[new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, [new name of
Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability company, or any
other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the Member, either directly or
indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated Corporations”).
The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious impairment of the name or
reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order, either in the general
community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes confusion in the minds of members of the
general community or the Catholic faithful conceming compliance by any Affiliated
Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the ethical and religious teachings of the Roman
Catholic Church.

Article 5. Dissolution:

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, and after payment of its just
debts and liabilitics, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Member, if the Member is
then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Member is
not then exempt, to OSF, if OSF is then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3)
of the Code, or, if OSF is not then exempt, to the Third Order, if the Third Order is then exempt
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Third Order is not then
exempt, to such other organization or organizations as determined by the Member which are
organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section
501{c)(3) of the Code.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CORPORATE BYLAWS
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION]

ARTICLE 1
NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

1.1. Name.

The name of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation]
(the “Corporation™), an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,

1.2, Offices.

The location of the principal office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Ottawa,
Tllinois, and the Corporation may have other offices within or without the State of Illinois as the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) may from time to time determine. The Corporation shall have
and continuously maintain in Illinois a registered office which may, but need not be, the same as
its principal office, and a registered agent whose office address is identical with such registered
office.

1.3. Purposes.

(a) " The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are: To promote, encourage
and foster religious and charitable purposes and activities in the City of Ottawa and other
commupities (the “Community”) served by [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Member™); to foster, promote,
support, develop, encourage, maintain, receive and accept funds for the construction, building,
remodeling, support, administration, staffing, and any other legitimate purpose or function of, the
Member and the Roman Catholic Church; and to establish, conduct, sponsor, acquire, own,
maintain and operate such other entities and activities which, in the opinion of the Board and at
its discretion will support the foregoing purposes; and to solicit and receive gifis and

. contributions for and on behalf of the Member and the Roman Catholic Church, and to support

their charitable programs and activities through expenditure of such funds received.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Corporation is organized and will operate

. exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, and to carry out the purposes of, the

Member and the Roman Catholic Church in the Community.

(b)  No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any
private individual; no part of the income of the Corporation shall be distributed to its individual
members, directors, or officers; provided, however, that the payment of reasonable compensation
for services rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of income. No substantial part of the
activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to
influence legislation. The Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the
publication or distribution of staternents), any political campaign on behalf of or against any
candidate for public office.
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(c) The Corporation shall possess all powers which a corporation organized under the
General Not For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same from time to time
may be amended, may possess, including the power to use, distribute, contribute, expend, donate,
apply and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all proceeds and avails thereof, and

~ income and profit derived therefrom, exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious

or scientific purposes; provided, however, the Corporation shall not engage in any business
which would disqualify it from being exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), or the corresponding provision of any future
United States Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Code.

(d)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, no assets of the
Corporation shall be donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or employed in
any manner which would disqualify the Corporation from being exempt from taxation as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

(e) Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall,
without exception, conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the Roman
Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care
Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S. Conference of Catholic
Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), as interpreted and applied by OSF Healthcare
System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSF”); (2) in accordance with the Code of Canon
Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from time to time; and (3) in a2 mauoner which,
as determined by OSF, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order
of St. Francis, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order”); or (iii) the Corporation,
the Member, [new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Iilinois
corporation, [mew name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois corporation,
[new name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability
company, or any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the Member,
either directly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated
Corporations”). The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious impairment of
the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order, either in the
general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes confusion in the minds of members
of the general community or the Catholic faithful conceming compliance by any Affiliated
Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the ethical and religious teachings of the Roman
Catholic Church.

1.4. Dissolution.

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, and after payment of its
just debts and liabilities, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Member, if the Member is
then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Member is
not then exempt, to OSF, if OSF is then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3)
of the Code, or, if OSF is not then exempt, to the Third Order, if the Third Order is then exempt
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Third Order is not then
exempt, to such other organization or organizations as determined by the Member which are
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organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section
501(c)(3) of the Code.

ARTICLE Il
MEMBER

2.1. Sole Corporate Member.

The sole member of the Corporation shall be [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
& Healthcare Center]. Any provision of law requiring notice to, the presence of, or the vote,
consent, or other action of the Member of the Corporation in connection with such matter shall
be satisfied by notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent, or other action of the Board of
Directors of the Member (the “Member Board”).

2.2. Powers Reserved to the Member.

In addition to the rights and powers accorded a member under the Illinois General Not
For Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, and these Bylaws,
the following actions (the “Reserved Powers”) shall be authorizcd only by a vote of the Member
of the Corporation, which vote shall be taken only after considering the advice of the Board:

(a) To establish, approve, or modify the philosophy, vision, values, and mission
according to which the Corporation operates.

(b)  To lease, sell, encumber, or otherwise alienate any real property or intcrest in real
property of the Corporation.

(c)  To approve any transfer, lease, sale, or encumbrance of personal property of the
Corporation except in the ordinary course of business.

(d) To approve any purchase or other acquisition by the Corporation that 1s not
included in the consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated Corporations.

(¢)  To approve any borrowing or debt financing on behalf of the Corporation in
excess of a specified limit established by resolution of the Member, to structure and restructure
indebtedness of the Corporation, and to enter into and amend agreements relating to indebtedness
of the Corporation.

H To require a certified audit of the finances of the Corporation and to appoint the
certified public accountant to perform any audit.

(g) To approve the engagement of and to dismiss any outside legal counsel to
represent the Corporation on a regular basis or in connection with any matter deemed by the
Member, in good faith, to have significance for the Member as a whole.

()  To appoint, reappoint or remove the members and officers of the Board, following
nomination by the Board, except that the Board shall not nominate the Chief Executive Officer
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or the OSF Appointees (as defined in Article ITI, Section 2(a)(3)), and except that only the OSF
Board Members (as such term is defined in the bylaws of the Member) shall appoint, reappoint,
or remove the OSF Appointees.

(i) To merge or consolidate the Corporation with other entities, merge other entities
into the Corporation, or to dissolve the Corporation, in accordance with applicable iaw.

)] To amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation in
accordance with applicable law.

(k)  To expand, consolidate, terminate, or close any of the facilities and services of the
Corporation.

(N To hire, enter into an employment contract with, discipline, or terminate the Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation.

(m)  To adopt the strategic plan for the Corporation.

(n) To adopt or modify the operating budget and capital budget for any fiscal year for
the Corporation (which operating and capital budgets shall be consolidated with the operating
and capital budgets for each Affiliated Corporation, with a consolidating schedule for each
Affiliated Corporation).

(o) To approve the terms of and enter into joint ventures and other affiliations
between the Corporation and third parties, and approve the creation, formation, organization, or
termination of any legal entity in which the Corporation will have any ownership interest,
membership interest, power to elect or appoint board members or officers, or any other formal
participation arrangement, whether acting alone or in conjunction with any other person or entity.

(p)  To approve appointments to governing bodies of joint ventures between the
Corporation and third pariies and other legal entities in which the Corporation has any power to
elect or appoint board members or officers.

(@)  To take any and all actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment of the Member
Board to protect and preserve the tax-exempt status and public charity status of the Corporation
or the Member and any tax-exempt affiliate of the Corporation or the Member (including federal
and state income tax exemptions, property tax exemptions, and sales tax exemptions); provided
the Member Board has given a written request to the Board to take action or refrain from taking
action, which would have sufficiently protected and preserved such tax-exempt and public
charity status, and the Board has failed to promptly take such action or refrain from taking such
action.

§g] To take any and all actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment of the Member
Board, for any and all members of the Obligated Group to comply with its master trust indenture,
loan agreements, tax agreements, and all other covenants and agreements relating to any
Obligated Group financing; provided the Member Board has given a written request to the Board
to take action or refrain from taking action, to so comply, and the Board has failed to promptly
take such action or refrain from taking such action. The term “Obligated Group” means OSF
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and any other natural person, firm, joint venture, association, partnership, business trust,
corporation, public body, agency or political subdivision thereof or any other similar entity that
becomes a member of the obligated group pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Master
Trust Indenture dated as of September 15, 1999 between OSF and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor master trustee, as heretofore or hereafter supplemented and amended.

2.3.  Action by the Member.

The Member shall act by executing and delivering to the Chairperson, Chief Executive
Officer, or Secrctary a written instrument or instruments, signed by an authorized officer of the
Member, setting forth the action takcn. The action of the Member shall be deemed to have been
taken on the dates the written instruments are so delivered unless thc instruments provide
otherwise. Any action taken by the Member on any matters described in Section 2 of this Article
shall be immediately communicated to the Board.

2.4.  Policies of the Member.

All policies of OSF and the Member shall apply with respect to the Corporation’s
governance, management, and operation. The Board shall not enact any policy that conflicts
with or purports to nullify the effect of a policy of OSF or the Member without the approval of
OSF or the Member, as applicable.

ARTICLE IIT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1. General Powers.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the management, control and operation of the affairs and
properties of this Corporation shall vest and be in the Board. The Board shall have the power
and authority to do and perform all acts or functions consistent with the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto, and the laws of the State of Hlinois.

3.2, Number and Qualification..

(a) Composition. The Board shall consist of thirteen to eighteen directors, not
including the chief executive officer of the Member, who shall serve as a non-voting ex officio
member of the Board. When vacancies on the Board occur by reason of death, resignation, or
otherwise, the number shall be reduced by such vacancies until qualified replacements are
elected or appointed for the unexpired term. All directors shall have the equal right to vote,
except that the chief executive officer of the Member shall not have the right to vote. A majority
of the members of the Board shall at all times be residents of the Member’s service area.
Otherwise, directors need not be residents of the State of Illinois. Physicians who are members
of the medical staff of the hospital owned and operated by the Member, and current or former
employees of OSF or any Affiliated Corporation shall not be considered residents of the
Member’s service area for purposes of this Section. The initial Board established upon adoption
of these amended and restated Bylaws shall be composed of the following individuals:
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(1)  The chief executive officer of the Member, who shall serve ex officio,
without vote;

(2)  The six Community Board Members, as such term is defined in the bylaws
of the Member, who shall serve ex officio, with vote;

(3) Two persons appointed by the OSF Board Members, as such term is
defined in the bylaws of the Member (the “OSF Appointees™); and

(4)  Five persons named by agreement of the Member and OSF pursuant to the
Affiliation Agreement among OSF and the Affiliated Corporations other than the Auxiliary, dated
Jamuary 11, 2012 (the “Affiliation Agreement”).

(b)  Qualifications. Directors shall have the following qualifications:

(1)  Commitment to the Philosophy, Mission, Values and Vision of the
Member.

(2) Commitment to uphold the Catholic Code of Ethics in all dealings and
deliberations pertaining to the Board's responsibilities.

(3) Knowledge and experience useful to the Corporation in maintaining its
values and achieving its Mission, such as leadership skills, health care delivery knowledge, legal
expertise or financial skills.

(4)  Willingness to support the Corporation with a commitment of time
necessary to become and remain informed concerning the issues confronting the Corporation and
the ability to regularly attend Board meetings.

(5)  Ability to be discreet in keeping Board discussions and business
confidential.

(6)  Ability to rise above the concerns of a particular constituency and
represent the interest of the Corporation as a whole.

(7)  Be of respectable character, have an interest in the Catholic health care
delivery system and a deep concern and willingmess to serve.

3.3, Election.

Upon expiration of the terms of the initial Board members named in the Affiliation
Agreement other than those serving ex officio, the Board shall submit to the Member
nominations to fill the seats previously held by, or seek reappointment of, the members of the
Board other than the OSF Appointees and those serving ex officio. Upon expiration of the terms
of the initial OSF Appointees named in the Affiliation Agreement, the OSF Board Members (as
such term is defined in the bylaws of the Member) shall appoint persons to fill the seats
previously held by, or reappoint, the initial OSF Appointees.
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3.4. Term of Office.

(a)  The temn of office for each dircctor (other than those serving ex officio) shall be
three (3) years or until his or her successor shall have been duly elected. However,
notwithstanding the aforementioned, for the first term in which these amended and restated
Bylaws are in force and effect: (1) two of the initial directors who are not Community Board
Members shall each serve a one year term; (2) two of the initial directors who are not
Community Board Members (including one OSF Appointee) shall each serve a two year term;
and (3) three of the initjal directors who are not Community Board Members (including one OSF
Appointee) shall each serve a three year term. Thereafter, all directors shall be elected for a three
year term.

(b)  Any OSF Appointee may be appointed to succeed himself or herself, without
limitation on the number of terms he or she may serve, provided that said director continues to
satisfy the requirements for qualification specified in Section 2(b) of this Article. Each other
director may be elected to succeed himself or herself, up to a maximum of three (3) consecutive
terms, provided that said director continues to satisfy the requirements for qualification specified
in Section 2(b) of this Article.

: (c) The term of office of all directors shall commence immediately following the
| meeting at which they were elected by the Member.

(d)  The term of office of any director shall end at the close of the annual meeting held
during the year in which such director's term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification
of a successor, whichever shall occur last.

3.5. Resignation of Directors.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Unexcused absence
from more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all regular and special Board meetings without a
prior excuse from the Chairperson shall be an automatic resignation. A director may be excused
from Board meeting attendance if such director is absent from the state, suffering from an acute
illness or, in the discretion of the Chairperson, for any other excused absence. A resignation by a
Community Board Member, as such term is defined in the bylaws of the Member, as a director
of the Member shall be an automatic resignation as a director of the Corporation.

3.6. Removal of Directors.

Any director may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Member;
provided that an OSF Appointee may be removed from office only by the OSF Board Members
(as such term is defined in the bylaws of the Member); and provided further that any director
who is an employee of OSF or any Affiliated Corporation shall be deemed removed upon the
termination of his or her employment. Any Community Board Member, as such term is defined
in the bylaws of the Member, removed from the Memaber Board shall be automatically removed
from the Board.
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3.7. Vacancies.

Any vacancy on the Board, other than a vacancy in a seat held by an OSF Appointee,
may be filled by the Member for the unexpired portion of the term. Any vacancy in a seat held
by an OSF Appointee may be filled by the OSF Board Members (as such term is defined in the
bylaws of the Member) for the unexpired portion of the term.

3.8. Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Board for the nomination of directors and officers and the
transaction of such business as may come before the Board, shall be held in December of each
year or, in the discretion of the Chairperson, within sixty days of such regularly scheduled annual
meeting and at such time and place as shall be determined by the Chairperson.

3.9. Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place
designated by the Chairperson by announcement at the preceding Board meeting, by wriiten
notice to the members of the Board by the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, or by resolution of
the Board prescribing the time and place for regular meetings. The annual meeting may be
counted as one of the guarterly meetings.

3.10. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the Chairperson, the
Vice-Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer, or a majority of the directors then in office.

3.11. Notice.

(a)  Notice of any annual, regular or special meeting shall be given in writing by
personal delivery, by United Statcs mail, or by electronic mail to each director at least three days
before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If given by United States mail, such notice
shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the
director at the address as shown in the records of the Corporation with postage thereon prepaid.
If given by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered upon receipt by the
sender of an electronic acknowledgment of delivery to the recipient at the electronic mail address
of the recipient as shown in the records of the Corporation.

(b)  Notice may be waived in writing by any director either before or after the
meeting. Attendance at any meeting by a director shall be deemed to be a waiver of notice
unless the director intends to object to the transaction of business because the meeting is not
lawfully convened.

(¢}  Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or special
meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of sueh meeting.

70673825v11 0913601
ATTACHMENT #5
159




3.12. Quorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that if less than a majority of the directors are present, those
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. Any director
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board through the use of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can communicate with each other. Participation in such meetings shall constitute attendance and
presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating.

3.13. Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these Bylaws. There
shall be no voting by proxy.

3.14. Informal Action.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Board or any committee thereof may
be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be
provided by all of the directors then in office or all members of a committee of the Board, as the
case may be. Written consent may be provided by electronic mail. All the approvals evidencing
consent shall be delivered to the Secretary at such mailing or electronic mail address as the
Secretary may designate to be filed in the records of the Corporation. The action shall be
effective when all of the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved
the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

3.15. Procedure.

Robert’s Rules of Order Revised (latest edition) shall govern procedure at all meetings of
the Board and its committees where not covered expressly by these Bylaws.

3.16. Compensation.

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as such, but may be
reimbursed for bona fide expenses incurred arising out of services rendered. Nothing herein
shall prohibit payment of compensation to an individual serving as a director who renders
services to the Corporation in another capacity.

3.17. Conflict of Interest.

(a) Any director, officer or key employee who has an interest in a contract or other
transaction presented to the Board or a committee thereof for authorization, approval, or
ratification shall make a prompt and full disclosure of such interest to the Board or commuittee
prior to its acting on such contract or transaction. Such disclosure shall include any relevant and
material facts known to such person about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be
construed to be adverse to the Corporation's interest.
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(b) The body to which such disclosure is made shall thereupon determine, by
majority vote, whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can reasonably be
construed to exist. If a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not vote on, nor use any
personal influence on, nor participate (other than to present factual information or to respond to
questions) in, the discussions or deliberations with respect to such contract or transaction. Such
person shall not be counted in determining the existence of 2 quorum at any meeting where the
contract or transaction is under discussion or is being voted upon. The minutes of the meeting
shall reflect the disclosure made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the abstention from
voting and participation, and whether a quorum was present.

(c) For the purposes of this Section, a person shall be deemed to have an “interest” in
a contract or other transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation, or is a director, trustee, manager, or officer of, or has a significant
financial or influential interest in, an entity (other than an entity that controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with the Corporation, either directly or indirectly) contracting or
dealing with the Corporation. '

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

4.1. Officers.

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary, a
Treasurer, and an individual who is both the President and the Chief Executive Officer (the
“Chief Executive Officer”). The Board may nominate additional officers as it shall deem
desirable. Unless specifically provided in these Bylaws, an officer need not be a director. One
person may hold two or more offices.

4.2.  Election and Term of Office.

The initia] officers shall be named by agreement of the Member and OSF pursuant to the
Affiliation Agreement. Upon expiration of the initial term of the then-current Vice-Chairperson,
the Vice-Chairperson shall be nominated by the Board at the annual meeting of the Board, which
nomination shall be submitted to the Member for consideration and approval. Upon expiration
of the initial terms of the then-current Secretary, Treasurer and such other officers as established
by the Board pursuant to Section 1 of this Article IV, the Secretary, Treasurer, and other officers
shall be elected by the Board, except as otherwise provided, at the annual meeting of the Board.
The Vice-Chairperson shall automatically become the Chairperson at the conclusion of his or her
term as Vice-Chairperson. The Chief Executive Officer shall be appointed by the Member
without nomination by the Board. Each officer shall hold office for a term of one year or until a
successor is elected, unless such officer shall sooner resign or be removed.

(a) An officer may be elected successively without limitation on the number of terms
served.

(b)  The term of office of all officers shall commence immediately following the
meeting at which they were elected by the Member or the Board, as applicable.
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(c) The term of office of any officer shall end at the close of the annual meeting held
during the year in which the term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification of a
successor, whichever shall occur last.

4.3. Resignation and Removal of Officers.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson or
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any officer may be
removed by the Member whenever in the judgment of the Member the best interests of the
Corporation will be served thereby.

4.4, Vacancies.

A vacancy in any elected office may be filled by the Member for the unexpired portion of
the term.

4.5.  Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Subject to the Reserved
Powers, the Chairperson may sign and execute, on behalf of the Corporation with the Secretary
or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, any corporate records,
documents and instruments, The Chairperson shall have and exercise, subject to the Reserved
Powers, all powers usually incident to the office of the Chairperson of a not-for-profit
corporation and shall perform such other duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time. The Chairperson must be a member of the Board.

4.6. Vice-Chairperson.

The Vice-Chairperson shall act as Chairperson in the absence or refusal of the
Chairperson to act and when so acting the Vice-Chairperson shall have all of the powers and
authority of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall also perform, subject to the Reserved
Powers, such other duties and functions as may be delegated by the Board. The Vice-
Chairperson must be a member of the Board.

47.  Chief Executive Officer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers and to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given
by the Board to the Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer shall be the highest executive
officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board and of the chief executive
officer of the Member, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs
of the Corporation and shall have the general powers and duties of management, including, but
not limited to:

(a) Advising and making recommendations to the Board relating of the operation of
the Corporation and strategic planning.

(b) Presenting a report at each annual meeting of the Board covering the operations
during the preceding fiscal ycar.
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(©) Signing any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board has
authorized to be executed by the Chief Executive Officer, either alone or with the Secretary or
other officer of the Corporation, as authorized by the Board.

(d)  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Board.

()  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Executive Committee
of the Board, if any.

@ Directing and supervising the activites and performance of subordinate
executives of the Corporation in accordance with the management structure approved by the
Board from time to time.

(2) Performing all duties incident to the office of Chief Executive Officer and such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

4.8. Secretary.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Secretary shall sign documents of the Corporation
from time to time as required; keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board and a record of
actions of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly
given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of
the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is
affixed to all documents as required; and perform such additional duties as may be assigned by
the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

4.9. Treasurer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the
funds and securities of the Corporation; report to the Board respecting its financial condition and
the handling of its monies and investments; and perform such additional duties as may be
assigned by the Chief Executive Officer or delegated by the Board.

ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

5.1. Designation.

The Board may, by resolution, create committees as needed and define the activities
thereof. Unless prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the Board may
delegate authority to Board committees. Members of Board cormmittees shall be appointed by
the Chairperson unless otherwise provided for by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board.
Committees may include persons other than directors; provided, that Board committees shall

“include two or more directors, and a majority of the members of each Board committce shall be

directors.
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5.2. Temn of Office.

Each member of a Board committee shall serve until the next annual meeting of the
Board or until a successor is appointed.

5.3. Resignation and Removal.

Any committee member may resign at any time by giving written potice to the
Chairperson or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any
committee member may be removed by the Chairperson or by a majority vote of the Board.

5.4. Vacancies.

Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by the Chairperson.

5.5. Committee Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall serve as chairperson of the Executive Committee and designate
one member of each other committee(s) to serve as chairperson of that committee.

5.6. Notice.

Comymittees shall meet at the call of the chairperson of the committee. Notice of any
committee meeting shall be given at least three business days before the meeting is to be held.
Notice of the meeting shall be either oral or in writing at the discretion of the committee
chairperson, and if given in writing shall be given in the manner described in Article I Section
11 hereof.

i 5.7. Quorum.

A majority of the committee membership shall constitute 2 quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the committee. ‘

5.8. Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the committee members present at 2 meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the committee. A committee may also act by unanimous consent in
writing without a meeting in the manner described in Article IJ Section 14 hereof.

59. Minutes.

Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall regularly report to the
Board.

5.10. Rules.

Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or with actions by the Board.
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5.11. Executive Committee.

(a) The Executive Committee, if created by the Board, shall be composed of not less
than three members and not more than seven members, including the Chairperson and other
members selected from among the directors by the Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be the
chairperson of the Executive Committee.

(b)  The Executive Committee shall serve during periods when the Board is not in
session. The Executive Committee shall be authorized, subject to the Reserved Powers, to take
such action as may be necessary on behalf of the Corporation.

ARTICLE V1
FISCAL MATTERS

6.1.  Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of October and end on
the last day of Septernber, or such other dates as established by OSF from time to time so as to
keep contemporaneous the fiscal year of the Corporation with the fiscal years of the other
members of the Obligated Group.

6.2. Contracts.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Board may authorize officers or agents to enter into
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation.

6.3. Loans.

No loans or borrowing shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Corporation and no
evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the Member. No loan
shall be granted to any officer or director of the Corporation.

6.4. Checks and Drafts.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation or to the Corporation, shall be
signed or endorsed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such
manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

6.5. Deposits.

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board
may select upon approval by the Member.
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6.6. Books, Records and Accounts,

The Corporation shall keep or cause to be kept correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings and records of the actions of the Board
and its committees. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by the Member
or any member of the Board for any proper purpose at any reasonable time upon priorl request.
In addition, the Corporation shall annually cause a certified audit of its accounts, in compliance
with Article II, Section 2(f) of these Bylaws, to be made and shall cause to be filed the necessary
reports, tax returns or other documents as may be required by law on its behalf,

6.7. Use of Investment Yield, Committed Principal, and Funded Depreciation.

(a) Subject to any restrictions imposed by donors of funds or assets, the Board shall
distribute the sum of dividend and interest income and realized gains and losses (as determined
by generally accepted accounting principles and applicable laws regarding allocations between
principal and income) (the “Investment Yield”) on the sum of those assets (restricted and
unrestricted), cash, and investments held by the Corporation as of the Closing Date (as such term
is defined in the Affiliation Agreement) (including the portion of the Ottawa Funded
Depreciation (as such term is defined in the Affiliation Agreement) transferred to the Corporation
pursuant to the Affiliation Agreement (the “Funded Depreciation”)), and those funds received
by the Corporation after the Closing Date from the Member or as a result of its fund-raising
activities (the “Committed Principal”) at least annually to the supported organizations
described in Section 1.3(a), in support of programs, capital improvements, and services of such
organizations, as deemed appropriate or necessary by the Board.

(b)  Subject to any restrictions imposed by donors of funds or assets, the Board may
distribute at any time all or any part of the Committed Principal which it holds (as determined by
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable laws regarding allocations between
principal and income), for the benefit of the programs, services, and capital improvements of the
supported organizations described in Section 1.3(a). Any distribution of Committed Principal
shall require the approval of the Board. The Board may restrict the assets held by the
Corporation as of the Closing Date (not including the Funded Depreciation) to the support of
healthcare programs and services provided by the Member. Subject to Section 6.7(c), the
Funded Depreciation shall be used solely for the support of new, and/or the expansion of,
healthcare programs and services provided by the Member, as approved by the Board, consistent
with the recommendations of the Member Board.

(©) Any amount of the Funded Depreciation remaining on hand after five (5) years
following the Closing Date shall be transferred without restriction to the Member for use in
supporting the healthcare programs and services provided by the Member, as determined by the
Member Board.

(d)  Expenses associated with managing and operating the Corporation and its

Committed Principal (which expenses the Board shall manage so as to be reasonable and
customary for foundations of similar size) shall be paid out of the Investment Yield.
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(e) All Committed Principal shall be invested in accordance with an investment
policy approved by the Member following a recommendation by the Board.

ARTICLE VII
GIFT MODIFICATION

Whenever any gift made to the Corporation for a particular purpose or for a particular
institution appears to be impossible of execution or extremely impractical, the Board shall obtain
consultation as to the legality of a similar but not identical use and as to the mecessity of
obtaining an order of a court of competent jurisdiction to vary the specified use of the fund or
asset comprising the gift.

ARTICLE VIl
INDEMNIFICATION

8.1. Power to Hold Harmless.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party who is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust
or other enterprise, shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasomably imcurred by him or her in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation,
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or
her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in 2 manner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or
her conduct was lawful.

8.2. Power to Indemnify Litigant.

Subject to the laws of Tllinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit
by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving
at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprisc shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation except
that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such
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person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of
his or her duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such
action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of
liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

8.3. Reimbursement Authorized.

To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been ‘
successful, on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to
in Sections 1 or 2 of this Article, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she
shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably
incurred by him or her in connection therewith.

8.4. Determination if Reimbursement is Proper.

Any indemnification under Sections 1 or 2 of this Article (unless ordered by a court) shall
be made by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon 2 determination that
indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because
he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Article.
Such determination shall be made: (1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of
directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not
obtainable, or, even if obtainable, if a quorum of disintcrested directors so directs, by
independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by the Member.

8.5. Advance of Expenses.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceedings may be paid
by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, swit or proceeding as
authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be
determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this
Article.

8.6. Non-Exclusivity.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agreement, vote of the
Member or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity,
and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person
who has ceased to be such a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

8.7. Right to Acquire Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the
request of the Corporation as a director, officer employee or agent of another corporation,
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partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or
her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such,
whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such
liability under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE IX
CORPORATE SEAL

The Board shall adopt a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have
inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the state of incorporation and the words
“Corporate Seal”.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, restated or repealed by the Member upon its own

motion or upon a recommendation from the Board at any regular meeting or special meeting
called for that purpose. These Bylaws shall be reviewed annually.
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ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital

Foundation], this day of , 2012, at Ottawa, Illinois.
I
Chairperson
g ATTEST:
Secretary
(SEAL)
i
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EXHIBIT D

Forms of Amended and Restated Governing Documents of Ottawa Auxiliary
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B s e T L P L SR R,

RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL AUXILIARY]

Article 1. The name of the Corporation is [New Name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
Auxiliary) (the “Corporation™). The Corporation is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
created on October 28, 1991, with the name Community Hospital of Ottawa Auxiliary. The
name of the Corporation changed to Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary pursuant to filing
Articles of Amendment effective July 28, 2008.

Article 2. Agent Name: Robert Alan Chaffin
Agent Address: 1100 E. Noiris Drive, Ottawa, IL 61350
Article 3. The sole member of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital

and Healthcare Center], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.
Article 4. Purpose:

a. The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are: To promote,
encourage and foster religious and charitable purposes and activities; to foster, promote,
support, develop, encourage, maintain, receive and accept funds for the construction,
building, remodeling, support, administration, staffing, and any other legitimate purpose
or function of [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center], an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Hospital”), and the Roman Catholic Church; and
to establish, conduct, sponsor, acquire, own, maintain and operate such other entities and
activities which, in the opinion of the Board and at its discretion will support the
foregoing purposes; and to solicit and receive gifts and contributions for and on behalf of
the Hospital and the Roman Catholic Church, and to support their charitable progrars
and activities through expenditure of such funds received. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary, the Corporation is organized and will operate exclusively for the benefit of,
to perform the functions of, and to carry out the purposes of, the Hospital and the Roman
Catholic Church.

b. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of
any private individual; no part of the income of the Corporation shall be distributed to its
individual members, directors, or officers; provided, however, that the payment of
reasonable compensation for services rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of
income. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying
on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation. The Corporation shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of or against any candidate for public office.

c. The Corporation shall possess all powers which a corporation organized
under the General Not For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same
from time to timne may be amended, may possess, including the power to use, distnibute,
contribute, expend, donate, apply and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all
proceeds and avails thereof, and income and profit derived therefrom, exclusively for
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charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific purposes; provided, however,
the Corporation shall not engage in any business which would disqualify it from being
exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”), or the corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.
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d. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, no assets of the -
Corporation shall be donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or
employed in any manner which would disqualify the Corporation from being exempt
from taxation as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

e. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the Auxiliary shall,
without exception, conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the
Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic
, Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S.
| Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives™), as interpreted
and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Iliinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSF”);
(2) in accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as
amended from time to time; and (3) in & manner which, as determined by OSF, does not
bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Illinois
not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order™); or (iii) the Auxiliary, the Hospital, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, [new
pame of Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
[new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, [new
name of Qttawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability
company, or any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the
Hospital, either directly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively
the “Affiliated Corporations”). The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in
serious impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation OSF, or the
Third Order, either in the general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes
confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the Catholic faithful
concerning compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the
ethical and religious teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

Article 3. Dissolution:

: In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, and after payment of its just
debts and liabilities, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Hospital, if the Hospital is
then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Hospital is
not then exempt, to OSF, if OSF is then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3)
of the Code, or, if OSF is not then exempt, to the Third Order, if the Third Order is then exempt
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Third Order is not then
exempt, to such other organization or organizations as determined by the Hospital which are
organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section
501(c)(3) of the Code.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CORPORATE BYLAWS
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL AUXILIARY]

ARTICLEI
NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

1.1. Name.

The name of the corporation is [new mame of Ottawa Regional Hospital Auxiliary]

(the “Auxiliary™), an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

1.2.  Offices.
The location of the principal office of the Auxiliary shall be in the City of Ottawa,

Illinois, and the Auxiliary may have other offices within or without the State of Illinois as the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) may from time to time determine. The Auxiliary shall have
and continuously maintain in Illinois a registered office which may, but need not be, the same as
its principal office, and a registered agent whose office address is identical with such registered

ATTACHMENT #5

1.3. Purposes.

(a)  The purposes for which the Auxiliary is organized are: To promote,
encourage and foster religious and charitable purposes and activities; to foster, promote,
support, develop, encourage, maintain, receive and accept funds for the construction,
building, remodeling, support, administration, staffing, and any other legitimate purpose
or function of [mew name of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center], an
Hlinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Hospital”), and the Roman Catholic Church; and
to establish, conduct, sponsor, acquire, own, maintain and operate such other entities and
activities which, in the opinion of the Board and at its discretion will support the
foregoing purposes; and to solicit and receive gifts and contributions for and on behalf of
the Hospital and the Roman Catholic Church, and to support their chantable programs
and activities through expenditure of such funds received. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary, the Auxiliary is organized and will operate exclusively for the benefit of, to
perform the functions of, and to carry out the purposes of, the Hospital and the Roman
Catholic Church.

(b)  No part of the net eamnings of the Auxiliary shall inure to the benefit of
any private individual; no part of the income of the Auxiliary shall be distributed to its
individual members, directors, or officers; provided, however, that the payment of
reasonable compensation for services rendered shall not be deemed a distribution of
income. No substantial part of the activities of the Auxiliary shall consist of carrying on
propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation. The Auxiliary shail not
participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of statements), any
political campaign on behalf of or against any candidate for public office.
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() The Auxiliary shall possess all powers which a corporation orgamized
under the General Not For Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, as the same
from time to time may be amended, may possess, including the power to use, distribute,
contribute, expend, donate, apply and appropriate all of its property and assets, and all
proceeds and avails thereof, and income and profit derived therefrom, exclusively for
charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific purposes; provided, however,
the Auxiliary shall not engage in any business which would disqualify it from being
exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”), or the corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenue law, as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

(d)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, no assets of the
Auxiliary shall be donated, distributed, applied to, paid over or otherwise used or
employed in any manner which would disqualify the Auxiliary from being exempt from
taxation as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.

(&)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Auxiliary shall,
without exception, conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the
Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic
Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S.
Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), as interpreted
and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSF”);
(2) in accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as
amended from time to time; and (3) in a manner which, as determined by OSF, does not
bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an Illinois
not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order™); or (iii) the Auxiliary, the Hospital, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
[new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.), an Illinois corporation, [new
name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LL.C], an Illinois limited liability
company, or any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the
Hospital, either directly or indirectly (cach an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively
the “Affiliated Corporations™). The term “Seandal” means any conduct that results in
serious impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation OSF, or the
Third Order, either in the general community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes
confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the Catholic faithful
conceming compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the
ethical and religious teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

1.4. Dissolution.

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Auxiliary, and after payment of its just
debts and liabilities, all remaining assets shall be distributed to the Hospital, if the Hospital is
then exempt as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Hospital is
not then exempt, to OSF, if OSF is then exempt as an organization described in Section 501 (cX(3)
of the Code, or, if OSF is not then exempt, to the Third Order, if the Third Order is then exempt
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or, if the Third Order is not then

2
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_ exempt, to such other organization or organizations as determined by the Hospital which are
organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, scholastic, religious or scientific
purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section

501(c)(3) of the Code.
| ARTICLE II
MEMBERS
2.1.  Hospital.

The sole corporate member of the Auxiliary shall be [mew name of Ottawa Regional
Hospital & Healthcare Center]. Any provision of law requiring notice to, the presence of, or
the vote, consent, or other action of the Hospital in connection with such matter shall be satisfied
by notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent, or other action of the board of directors of the
Hospital (the “Hospital Board™).

(a)  Powers Rescrved to the Hospital. In addition to the rights and powers
i accorded a member under the Iliinois General Not For Profit Corporation Act, the
; Articles of Incorporation of the Auxiliary, and these Bylaws, the following actions (the
'; “Reserved Powers”) shall be authorized only by a vote of the Hospital, which vote shall
: be taken only after considering the advice of the Board:

(1)  To establish, approve, or modify the philosophy, vision, values,
and mission according to which the Auxiliary operates.

(2)  To leasg, sell, encumber, or otherwise alienate any real property or
interest in real property of the Auxiliary.

(3)  To approve any transfer, lease, sale, or encumbrance of personal
property of the Auxiliary except in the ordinary course of business.

(4)  To approve any purchase or other acquisition by the Auxiliary that
is not included in the consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated
Corporations.

(5) To approve any borrowing or debt financing on behalf of the
Auxiliary in excess of a specified limit established by resolution of the Hospital,
; to structure and restructure indebtedness of the Auxiliary, and to enter into and
amend agreements relating to indebtedness of the Auxiliary.

(6)  To require a certified audit of the finances of the Auxiliary and to
appoint the certified public accountant to perform any audit.

(7)  To approve the engagement of and to dismiss any outside legal
counsel to represent the Auxiliary on a regular basis or in connection with any
matter deemed by the Hospital, in good faith, to have significance for the Hospital
as a whole.
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(8)  To appoint, reappoint and remove the members of the Board and
officers of the Auxiliary.

(9)  To merge or consolidate the Auxiliary with other entities, merge
other entities into the Auxiliary, or to dissolve the Auxiliary, in accordance with
applicable law.

(10) To amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the
Auxiliary in accordance with applicable law.

(11)  To expand, consolidate, terminate, or close any of the facilities and
services of the Auxiliary.

(12)  To adopt the strategic plan for the Auxilary.

(13)  To adopt or modify the operating budget and capital budget for any
fiscal year for the Auxiliary, which shall be developed by the Board and
recommended to the Hospital (which operating and capital budgets shall be
consolidated with the operating and capital budgets for each Affiliation
Corporation, with a consolidating schedule for each Affiliated Corporation).

(14) To approve the terms of and enter into joint ventures and other
affiliations between the Auxiliary and third parties, and approve the creation,
formation, organization, or termination of any legal entity in which the Auxihary
will have any ownership interest, membership interest, power to elect or appoint
board members or officers, or any other formal participation arrangement,
whether acting alone or in conjunction with any other person or entity.

(15) To approve appointments to governing bodies of joint ventures
between the Auxiliary and third parties and other legal entities in which the
Auxiliary has any power to elect or appoint board members or officers.

(16) To take any and all actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment
of the Hospital Board to protect and preserve the tax-exempt status and public
charity status of the Auxiliary or the Hospital and any tax-exempt affiliate of the
Auxiliary or the Hospital (including federal and state income tax exemptions,
property tax exemptions, and sales tax exemptions); provided the Hospital Board
has given a written request to the Board to take action or refrain from taking
action, which would have sufficiently protected and preserved such tax-exempt
and public charity status, and the Board has failed to promptly take such action or
refrain from taking such action.

(17}  To take any and all actions deemed necessary, in the sole judgment
of the Hospital Board, for any and all members of the Obligated Group to comply
with its master trust indenture, loan agreements, tax agreements, and all other
covenants and agreements relating to any Obligated Group financing; provided
the Hospital Board has given a written request to the Board to take action or
refrain from taking action, to so comply, and the Board has failed to promptly take

4
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such action or refrain from taking such action. The term “Obligated Group”
means OSF and any other natural person, firm, joint venture, association,
partnership, business trust, corporation, public body, agemcy or political
subdivision thereof or any other similar entity that becomes a member of the
obligated group pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Master Trust
Indenture dated as of September 15, 1999 between OSF and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as successor master trustee, as heretofore or hereafter
supplemented and amended.

(18) To name or renare any healthcare or other facility owned and
operated by the Auxiliary.

(b)  Action by the Hospital. The Hospital shall act by executing and delivering
to the President or Secretary a written instrument or instruments, signed by an authorized
officer of the Hospital, setting forth the action taken. The action of the Hospital shall be
deemed to have been taken on the dates the written instruments are so delivered unless
the instruments provide otherwise. Any action taken by the Hospital on any matters
described in 2.1(a) shall be immediately communicated to the Board.

(c)  Policies of the Hospital. All policies of OSF and the Hospital shall apply
with respect to the Auxiliary’s governance, management, and operation. The Board shall
not enact any policy that conflicts with or purports to nullify the effect of a policy of OSF
or the Hospital without the approval of OSF or the Hospital, as applicable.

2.2. Individual Members.

Any adult interested in the welfare of the Hospital is eligible for individual membership.
Individual membership in the Auxiliary carries a service obligation of a minimum of forty eight
(48) hours per year to be active and eligible for benefits. Auxilians and Inservice Volunteers
with over 1,000 hours will automatically become lifetime members. Auxilians and Inservice
Volunteers will be retained on the active list of individual members as long as they are involved
in some activity throughout the year. This list shall be reviewed and updated annually by the
Board.

ARTICILE III
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1. General Powers.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the management, control and operation of the affairs and
properties of this Corporation shall vest and be in the Board. The Board shall have the power
and authority to do and perform all acts or functions consistent with the Asticles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Auxiliary and any amendments thereto, and the laws of the State of Illinois.
The Board may approve the donation or grant of Auxiliary funds or other assets only for support
of programs, services and capital needs identified and approved by the Hospital.
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3.2. Number and Qualification.

(2) Composition. The Board shall consist of seven (7) to twelve (12)
directors, not including the chief executive officer of the Hospital or his/her designee
(which designee shall be a department director level or above employee of the Hospital
named upon prior written notice to the President) ("Chief Executive Officer”), who shall
serve as a voting ex officio member of the Board. When vacancies on the Board occur by
reason of death, resignation, or otherwise, the number shall be reduced by such vacancies
until qualified replacements are elected or appointed for the unexpired term. All directors
shall have the equal right to vote. The initial Board established upon adoption of these
amended and restated Bylaws shall be composed of those persons named by agreement of
the Hospital and OSF in connection with the Affiliation Agreement among OSF and the
Affiliated Corporations other than the Auxiliary, dated January 11, 2012 (the “Affiliation
Agreement”).

(b)  Qualifications. Directors shall have the following qualifications:

(1)  Commitment to the Philosophy, Mission, Values and Vision of the
Hospital.

(2)  Commitment to uphold the Catholic Code of Ethics in all dealings
and deliberations pertaining to the Board's responsibilities.

(3) Knowledge and experience useful to the Auxiliary in maintaining
its values and achieving its Mission, such as leadership skills, health care delivery
knowledge, legal expertise or financial skills.

(4)  Willingness to support the Auxiliary with a commitment of time
necessary to become and remain informed concerning the issues confronting the
Auxiliary and the ability to regularly attend Board meetings.

(5)  Ability to be discreet in keeping Board discussions and business
confidential.

(6)  Ability to rise above the concerns of a particular constituency and
represent the interest of the Auxiliary as a whole.

(7)  Be of respectable character, have an interest in the Catholic health
care delivery system and a deep concern and willingness to serve.

3.3. Election.

Upon expiration of the terms of the initial Board members agreed upon by OSF and the
Hospital, other than those serving ex officio, the Board shall submit to the Hospital nominations
to fill the seats previously held by, or seek reappointment of, the members of the Board other
than those serving ex officio.
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I 3.4.  Term of Office.

shall be three (3) years or until his or her successor shall have been duly elected.
However, notwithstanding the aforementioned, one-third (1/3) of the initial directors
upon adoption of these amended and restated Bylaws shall serve one year terms, one-
third (1/3) for two year terms, and the remaining to be elected for three year terms, with
rounding off if the total number is not divisible by three in the discretion of the Board.
Thereafter, all directors shall be elected for a three year term.

l (@) The term of office for each director (other than those serving ex officio)

(b) A director may be elected to succeed himself or herself, without limitation
i on the number of terms served, provided that said director continues to satisfy the
requirements for qualification specified in 3.2.2.

(c) The term of office of all directors shall commence immediately following
| the meeting at which they were elected by the Hospital. ‘

(d)  The term of office of any director shall end at the close of the annual
meeting held during the year in which such director's term expires, or upon the
appointment and qualification of a successor, whichever shall occur last.

3.5. Resignation of Directors.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or
Recording Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Unexcused
absence from more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all regular and special Board meetings
without a prior excuse from the President shall be an automatic resignation. A director may be
excused from Board meeting attendance if such director is absent from the state, suffering from
an acute illness or, in the discretion of the President, for any other excused absence.

3.6. Removal of Directors.

Any director may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Hospital; and
provided further that any director who is an employee of OSF or any Affiliated Corporation shall
be deemed removed upon the termination of his or her employment.

3.7. Vacancies.

Any vacancy on the Board may be filled by the Hospital for the unexpired portion of the
term.

3.8.  Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Board for the nomination of directors and officers, as
necessary, and the transaction of such business as may come before the Board, shall be held in
| November of each year or, in the discretion of the President, within sixty days of such regularly
scheduled annual meeting and at such time and place as shall be determined by the President.
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3.9. Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the third Monday of each month at such
time and place designated by the President by announcement at the preceding Board meeting, by
written notice to the members of the Board by the President or First Vice-President, or by
resolution of the Board prescribing the time and place for regular meetings. The annual meeting
may be counted as one of the monthly meetings.

The January Board meeting will be a transitional meeting, with both the new and former
Board members in attendance. Time will be allotted prior to the meeting for instruction and
passing of materials and board manuals from the old to new Board members. The President will
provide a formal orientation to board activities within one (1) month of their taking office.

3,10. Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the President, the
First Vice-President, the Chief Executive Officer, or a majority of the directors then in office.

3.11. Notice.

(2) Notice of any annual, regular or special meeting shall be given in writing
by personal delivery, by United Statecs mail, or by electronic mail to each director at least
three (3) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If given by United
States mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United
States mail addressed to the director at the address as shown in the records of the
Auxiliary with postage thereon prepaid. If given by electronic mail, such notice shall be
deemed to be delivered upon receipt by the sender of an electronic acknowledgment of
delivery to the recipient at the electronic mail address of the recipient as shown in the
records of the Auxiliary.

(b)  Notice may be waived in writing by any director either before or after the
meeting. Attendance at any meeting by a director shall be deemed to be a waiver of
notice unless the director intends to object to the transaction of business because the
meeting is not lawfully convened.

(c) Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or
special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such
meeting.

3.12. Quorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that if less than a majority of the directors are present, those
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. Any director
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board through the use of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can communicate with each other. Participation in such meetings shall constitute attendance and
presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating.

g
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3.13. Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these Bylaws. There
shall be no voting by proxy.

3,14, Informal Action.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Board or any committee thereof may
be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be
provided by all of the directors then in office or all members of a committee of the Board, as the
case may be. Written consent may be provided by electronic mail. All the approvals evidencing
consent shall be delivered to the Recording Secretary at such mailing or electronic mail address
as the Secretary may designate to be filed in the records of the Auxiliary. The action shall be
effective when all of the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved
the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

3.15. Procedure.

Robert’s Rules of Order Revised (latest edition) shall govern procedure at all meetings of
the Board and its committees where not covered expressly by these Bylaws.

3.16. Compensation,

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as such, but may be
reimbursed for bora fide expenses incurred arising out of services rendered. Nothing herein
shall prohibit payment of compensation to an individual serving as a director who renders
services to the Auxiliary in another capacity.

3.17. Conflict of Interest.

(a) Any director, officer or key employee who has an interest in a contract or
other transaction presented to the Board or a committee thereof for authorization,
approval, or ratification shall make a prompt and full disclosure of such interest to the
Board or committee prior to its acting on such contract or transaction. Such disclosure
shall include any relevant and material facts known to such person about the contract or
transaction which might reasonably be construed to be adverse to the Auxiliary’s interest.

(b)  The body to which such disclosure is made shall thereupon determine, by
majority vote, whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can
reasonably be construed to exist. If a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not
vote o, nor use any personal influence on, nor participate (other than to present factual
information or to respond to questions) in, the discussions or deliberations with respect to
such contract or transaction. Such person shall not be counted in determinming the
existence of a quorum at any meeting where the contract or transaction is under
discussion or is being voted upon. The minutes of the meeting shall reflect the disclosure
made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the abstention from voting and
participation, and whether a quorum was present.
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(c) For the purposes of this Section, a person shall be deemed to have an
{ “interest” in a contract or other transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties)
_} contracting or dealing with the Auxiliary, or is a director, trustee, manager, or officer of,
‘ or has a significant financial or influential interest in, an entity (other than an entity that
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Auxiliary, either directly
or indirectly) contracting or dealing with the Auxiliary.

ARTICLE 1V
OFFICERS

4,1, Officers.

The officers of the Auxiliary shall be a President, First Vice-President, Second Vice-
President, Treasurer, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, Membership Chairperson,
Fund Raising Chairperson, and Publicity/Advocacy Chairperson. The Board may nominate
additional officers as it shall deem desirable. Unless specifically provided in these Bylaws, an
officer need not be a director. One person may hold two or more offices. '

4,2, Election and Term of Office.

The initial officers shall be named by agreement of the Hospital and OSF pursuant to the
Affiliation Agreement. Upon expiration of the initial term of the then-current officers,
candidates for each office shall be nominated by the Board at the annual meeting of the Board,
which nominations shall be submitted to the Hospital for consideration and approval. The
President, First Vice-President, Membership Chairperson, and Publicity/Advocacy Chairperson
shall be elected in the even numbered calendar years; and the Second Vice-President, Recording
Secretary, Treasurer, and Corresponding Secretary, and Fund Raising Chairperson shall be
elected in the odd numbered years.

(a) Each officer shall serve a term of two (2) years.

(b)  No officer shall serve more than two consecutivc tcrms of office, other
than the President, who may serve for more than two consecutive terms.

(©) The term of office of all officers shall commence immediately following
the meeting at which they were elected by the Hospital or the Board, as applicable.

(@ The term of office of any officer shall end at the close of the annual
meeting held during the year in which the term expires, or upon the appointment and
qualification of a successor, whichever shall occur last.

4,3, Resignation and Removal of Officers.

Any officer may resign at any tire by giving written notice to the President or Recording
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any officer may be
removed by the Hospital whenever in the judgment of the Hospital the best interests of the
Auxiliary will be served thereby.
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4.4, Vacancies.

A vacancy in any elected office may be filled by the Hospital for the unexpired portion of
the term.

45. President.

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Subject to the Reserved Powers,
the President may sign and execute, on behalf of the Auxiliary with the Recording Secretary or
any other proper officer of the Auxiliary authorized by the Board, any corporate records,
documents and instruments. The President shall have and exercise, subject to the Reserved
Powers, all powers usually incident to the office of the President of a not-for-profit corporation
and shall perform such other duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. The
President must be a member of the Board.

The President will render an annual report summarizing all the Auxiliary activities for
presentation at the annual Awards Event of the membership. Orientation of newly elected Board
members is the responsibility of the President. The President shall work closely with the
Hospital administration and the Director of Volunteer Services.

4.6. First Vice-President.

The First Vice-President shall act as President in the absence or refusal of the President to
act and when so acting, subject to the Reserved Powers, the First Vice-President shall have all of
the powers and authority of the President. The Vice-President shall also perform, subject to the
Reserved Powers, such other duties and functions as may be delegated by the Board. The First
Vice-President must be a member of the Board.

The First Vice-President shall review the individual service hours provided by the
Director of Volunteer Services and shall prepare the individual awards. The First Vice-President
will be in charge of the annual Awards Event and will chair the By-Laws Committee. A critique
of the Awards Event shall be presented to the Board.

4.7. Second Vice-President.

The Second Vice-President shall act as President in the absence or refusal of the
President and First Vice-President to act and when so acting, subject to the Reserved Powers, the
Second Vice-President shall have all of the powers and authority of the President. The Second
Vice-President shall be the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee.

4.8. Recording Secretary.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Recording Secretary shall: sign documents of the
Auxiliary from time to time as required; keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board and a
record of actions of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; mail copies of
Board minutes to each Board member following each meeting; see that all notices are duly given
in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of the
corporate records and of the seal of the Auxiliary and see that the seal of the Auxiliary is affixed
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to all documents as required; and perform such additional duties as may be assigned by the
President or delegated by the Board.

4.9, Corresponding Secretary.

The Corresponding Secretary shall carry out all necessary correspondence of the
Auxiliary, including sending messages of condolences and congratulations. In the absence or
refusal of the Recording Secretary to act, the Corresponding Secretary shall have all the power
and authorities of the Recording Secretary. The Corresponding Secretary will serve a chairperson
of the Scholarship Committee,

4.10. Fundraising Chairperson.

The Fundraising Chairperson shall review existing fundraising events and research new
types of fundraising events. Managers of the Gift Shoppe and ReRuns will share information
regarding fundraising events with the Fundraising Chairperson to assure the Board is aware of all
efforts.

4.11. Treasurer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the
funds and securities of the Auxiliary following approval of the Board.

The Treasurer shall report to the Board respecting the Auxiliary’s financial condition and
the handling of its monies and investments, submit records to a fiscal affairs office of the
Hospital for an annual audit of the books and records of the corporation. In July, the Treasurer
shall prepare a proposed budget to be submitted for approval as set forth in Section 6.8.

The Treasurer shall meet with the Chief Executive Officer and review possible capital
needs of the Hospital that could be funded by the Auxiliary and perform such additional duties as
may be assigned by the President or delegated by the Board.

4.12. Membership Chahnerson.

The Membership Chairperson shall report the new Individual Members of the Auxiliary
and Inservice Volunteers at each Board meeting.

The Membership Chairperson, if necessary, may form a Membership Calling Committee,
which will notify Individual Members of future Auxiliary needs. In the absence or refusal of the
Corresponding Secretary to act, the Membership Chairperson shall have all the power and
authorities of the Corresponding Secretary.

4.13. Publicity and Advocacy Chairperson.

The Publicity and Advocacy Chairperson shall, in consultation with the Chief Executive
Officer, prepare press releases as needed to educate the Auxiliary and the public to an
understanding of the activities and needs of the Auxiliary. The Publicity and Advocacy

12

70674762v7 0913601

ATTACHMENT #5




Chairperson shall be a member of the Fundraising Committee and provide promotional material
for approved fund raising projects, as requested.

As Publicity and Advocacy Chairperson, this office is responsible for obtaining
information on legislation affecting hospitals, patient care, and other medically related fields or
issues. This information shall be presented at Board meetings. The Publicity and Advocacy
Chairperson shall coordinate advocacy efforts in the community following the approval by the
Chief Executive Officer.

! 4.14. Director of Volunteer Services.

| The Director of Volunteer Services is an employee of the Hospital and shall serve as
liaison between the Hospital and the Auxiliary. The Director of Volunteer Services will be a
member of the Fundraising Committee and the Nominating Committee. The paid staff at
ReRuns and The Gift Shoppe will report to the Director of Volunteer Services. An annual report
will be given at the annual Awards Event. As the Director of Volunteer Services is not an
employee of the Auxiliary, the Auxiliary shall not have the authority to hire, enter into an
employment contract with, discipline, or terminate the Director of Volunteer Services.

ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

5.1. Designation.

The Board may, by resolution, create committees as needed and define the activities
thereof. Unless prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the Board may
delegate authority to Board committees.

Fach standing committee chairperson, in conference with the President shall appoint
members of the Auxilian or Inservice Volunteer group to the committee as necessary.
Committees may include persons other than directors; provided, that Board committees shall
include two or more directors, and a majority of the members of each Board committee shall be
directors.

5.2, Temm of Office.

Each member of a Board committee shall serve until the next anmual meeting of the
. Board or until a successor is appointed. There shall be no limit on the number of consecutive
i terms a person may serve as a member of a committee.

5.3. Resignation and Removal.

Any committee member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President
or Recording Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any
committee member may be removed by the President or by a majority vote of the Board.
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5.4.  Vacancies.

Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by the President.

5.5. Committee Chairperson.

The President shall serve as chairperson of the Executive Committee and designate one
member of each other committee(s) to serve as chairperson of that committee.

The chairperson of each standing committee shall be responsible for notifying the
President of all coming meetings, for making progress reports, as necessary, to the Board and for
submitting a report in writing.

5.6. Notice,

Committees shall meet at the call of the chairperson of the committee. Notice of any
committee meeting shall be given at least three business days before the meeting is to be held.
Notice of the meeting shall be either oral or in writing at the discretion of the committee
chairperson, and if given in writing shall be given in the manner described in 3.11.

5.7. Quorum,

A majority of the committee membership shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the committee.

5.8. Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the committee. A committee may also act by unanimous consent in
writing without a meeting in the mamner described in Section 3.14.

5.9. Minutes.

Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall regularly report to the
Board.

5.10. Raules.

Each committee may adopt rules for its own govemance not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or with actions by the Board.

5.11. Executive Committee.

(a) The Executive Committee, if created by the Board, shall be composed of
not less than three members and not more than seven members, including the President
and other members selected from among the directors by the President. The President
shall be the chairperson of the Executive Committee.
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(b)  The Executjve Committee shall serve during periods when the Board is
pot in session. The Executive Committee shall be authorized, subject to the Reserved
Powers, to take such action as may be necessary on behalf of the Auxiliary.

5.12. Fundraising Committee.

The Fundraising Chairperson shall chair the Fundraising Committee. The purpose of this
committee is to review current fundraising projects and explore the feasibility of new projects
with recommendations to the Board.

5.13. Scholarship Committee.

The Corresponding Secretary shall chair the Scholarship Committee. This committee
will identify and target professional positions needed at the Hospital.

5.14. Nominating Committee.

The Second Vice-President shall chair the Nominating Committee. The purpose of the
committee is to review the active Auxiliary membership for eligible candidates to fulfill expiring
elected positions.

The recommendations of the committee shall be presented to the Board and subsequent
action taken pursuant to board policies adopted which shall set forth the procedures for
additional nominations by the Auxiliary membership and election at the general meeting or by
mailed ballot.

5.15. By-Laws Committee.

The First Vice-President shall chair the By-Laws Committee. This committee will
review the by-laws annually and recommend changes as necessary.

5.16. Histonan.

The Historian shall be appointed by the President of the Board. The Historian is
responsible for keeping the history of the Auxiliary up-to date and keeping a scrapbook of
newspaper clippings, pictures, items and correspondence pertinent to the Auxiliary’s history.
The scrapbooks shall be displayed at the Annual Awards Event.

ARTICLE VI
FISCAL MATTERS

6.1. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Auxiliary shall commence on the first day of October and end on
the last day of September, or such other dates as established by the Hospital from time to time.
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6.2,  Contracts.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Board may authorize officers or agents to enter into
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Auxiliary,

6.3. Loans.

No loans or borrowing shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Auxiliary and no
evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the Hospital Board.
No loan shall be granted to any officer or director of the Auxiliary.

6.4. Checks and Drafis.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Auxiliary or to the Auxiliary, shall be signed
or endorsed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Auxiliary and in such manner as
shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

6.5. Deposits.

All funds of the Auxiliary not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to
the credit of the Auxiliary in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board may
select upon approval by the Hospital Board.

6.6. Books, Records and Accounts.

The Corporation shall keep or cause to be kept correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings and records of the actions of the Board
and its committees. All books and records of the Auxiliary may be inspected by the Hospital or
any member of the Board for any proper purpose at any reasonable time upon prior request. In
addition, the Auxiliary shall annually cause a certified andit of its accounts, in compliance with
2.1(a)(6), to be made and shall cause to be filed the necessary reports, tax retums or other
documents as may be required by law on its behalf.

6.7. Distribution.

During each fiscal year, the net revenues of the Auxiliary may be distributed to the
Hospital for items of equipment or projects chosen from a list developed by the administration of
the Hospital, or otherwise approved by administration of the Hospital.

The Auxiliary shall not carry over beyond one hundred and twenty (120) days from the
end of the fiscal year more than fifty percent (50%) of the total of that year’s net uncommitted
revenues and any carry-over net revenues from the previous years, unless such funds have been
designated to a particular project, without the approval of the Hospital Board.
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6.8. Budget.

A proposed budget shall be presented by the Treasurer at the July Board meeting for
recommendation to the Hospital Board. The budget shall contain expected revenues and
expenditures for the coming fiscal year with category headings for ReRuns, the Gift Shoppe and
the Auxiliary. The budget shall be presented for approval by the Hospital Board sixty (60) days
prior to the end of each fiscal year. No expenditures exceeding ten percent (10%) of said budget
will be authorized without advance approval of the Hospital Board.

6.9. Fundraising Activities.

All fundraising activities must be approved by the Hospital Board, and no new
fundraising activity may be adopted or publicized, nor any expenditure made, without the
approval of the Hospital Board.

6.10. Employees.

The Board acknowledges that all persons who work in the Gift Shoppe and ReRuns who
are not volunteers are employees of the Hospital, and therefore are subject to control and
direction by the Hospital and not by the Auxiliary. The Auxiliary shall not be responsible for
compensating the Hospital employees, but shall from time to time reimburse the Hospital for the
wages and benefits of such employees, calculated pro rata in the proportion that the number of
hours such employees work in the Gift Shoppe and ReRuns during a time period bears to the
total number of hours that such employees work in all areas of the Hospital, including the Gift
Shoppe and ReRuns, during the time period. The Board shall establish the goals and direction of
the Gift Shoppe and ReRuns and shall provide input to the Hospital regarding the hiring,
discipline, and termination of Hospital employees working in the Gift Shoppe and ReRuns.

ARTICLE VII
GIFT MODIFICATION

Whenever any gift made to the Auxiliary for a particular purpose or for a particular
institution appears to be impossible of execution or extremely impractical, the Board shall obtain
consultation as to the legality of a similar but not identical use and as to the necessity of
obtaining an order of a court of competent jurisdiction to vary the specified use of the fund or
asset comprising the gift.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

8.1. Power to Hold Harmless.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party who is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the Auxiliary) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Auxiliary, or who is or was serving at the request of the Auxiliary as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
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other enterprise, shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to the best interests of the Auxiliary, and
with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her
conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Auxiliary, with respect to
any criminal action or proceeding that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or her
conduct was lawful.

8.2. Power to Indemnify Litigant.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit
by or in the right of the Auxiliary to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he
or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Auxiliary, or is or was serving at the
request of the Auxiliary as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manmer he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Auxiliary except that
no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person
shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or
her duty to the Auxiliary, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit
was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in
view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to
indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

8.3. Reimbursement Authorized.

To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Auxiliary has been
successful, on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to
in 8.1 or 8.2, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified
against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection therewith.

8.4. Determination if Reimbursement is Proper.

Any indemnification under 8.1 or 8.2 (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the
Auxiliary only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of
the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met
the applicable standard of conduct set forth in 8.1 and 8.2. Such determination shall be made:
(1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to
such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, if
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a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion,
or (3) by the Hospital.

8.5. Advance of Expenses.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceedings may be paid
by the Auxiliary in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as
authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be
determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Auxiliary as authorized in this
Article.

8.6. Non-Exclusivity.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agresment, vote of the
Hospital or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity,
and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person
who has ceased to be such a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

8.7. Right to Acquire Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Auxiliary or who is or was serving at the request
of the Auxiliary as a director, officer employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by
him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the
Auxiliary would have the power to indemmify him or her against such liability under the
provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE IX
CORPORATE SEAL

The Board shall adopt a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have
inscribed thereon the name of the Auxiliary, the state of incorporation and the words “Corporate
Seal”.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, restated or repealed by the Hospital upon its own

motion or upon a recommendation from the Board at any regular mecting or special meeting
called for that purpose. These Bylaws shall be reviewed annually.
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ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of [new name of Ottawa Regioral Hospital
Augxiliary], this day of , 2012, at Ottawa, Illinois.

President

ATTEST:

Recording Secretary

(SEAL)
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RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, INC.)

Article 1. The name of the Corporation is [New Name of Ottawa Regional Medical
Center, Inc.] (the “Corporation”). The corporation is an Illinois business corporation, created
on September 30, 2009, with the name Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.

Article 2. Agent Name: Robert Alan Chaffin
. Agent Address: 1100 E. Norris Drive, Ottawa, IL. 61350

Article 3. Purpose:

a. The purposes of the Corporation are to engage in any lawful business or
activity for which corporations may be incorporated under the Illinois Business -
Corporation Act, to be a Hospital Affiliate, as defined in the Illinois Hospital Licensing
Act (210 ILCS 85/10.8) with all the power and obligation of a Hospital Affiliate and to
exercise all of the rights, powers and privileges now or hereafter conferred upon
corporations organized under the laws of Illinois.

b. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the Corporation
shall, without exception, conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings
of the Roman Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives for
Catholic Health Care Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S.
Conference of Catholic Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives”), as interpreted
and applied by OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSF”);
(2) in accordance with the Code of Canon Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as
amended from time to time; and (3) in a manner which, as determined by OSF, does not
bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, an [llinois
not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order”); or (iii) the Corporation, [mew name of
Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.], an Illinois corporation (the “Sole
Shareholder”), [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center], an
Tllinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Hospital”), [new name of Ottawa Regional
Hospital Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [mew name of Ottawa
Regional Hospital Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [Rew name of
Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability company, or
any other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with the Hospital, either
directly or indirectly (each an “Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated
Corporations”). The term “Scandal” means any conduct that results in serious
impairment of the name or reputation of any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third
Order, either in the gemeral community or among the Catholic faithful, or causes
confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the Catholic faithful
concerning compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order with the
ethical and religious teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

70674988v3 0913601

ATTACHMENT #5




|

AMENDED AND RESTATED CORPORATE BYLAWS
OF
[NEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, INC.]

ARTICLEI
NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

1.1. Name.

The name of the Corporation is [new name of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.]
(the “Corporation”}, an Illinois corporation.

1.2.  Offices.

The location of the principal office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Ottawa,
MNlinois, and the Corporation may have other offices within or without the State of Illinois as the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) may from time to time determine. The Corporation shall have
and continuously maintain in Illinois a registered office which may, but need not be, the same as
its principal office, and a registered agent whose office address is identical with such registered
office.

1.3. Purposes.

(a) The purposes of the Corporation are to engage in any lawful business or activity
for which corporations may be incorporated under the Ilinois Business Corporation Act, to be a
Hospital Affiliate, as defined in the Illinois Hospital Licensing Act (210 ILCS 85/10.8) with all
the power and obligation of a Hospital Affiliate and to exercise all of the rights, powers and
privileges now or hereafter conferred upon corporations organized under the laws of Illinois.

(b)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall,
without exception, conduct its business: (1) in accordance with the moral teachings of the Roman
Catholic Church, including the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care
Services, as amended from time to time, promulgated by the U.S. Conference of Catholic
Bishops (the “Ethical and Religious Directives™), as interpreted and applied by OSF Healthcare
System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“OSF”); (2) in accordance with the Code of Canon
Law of the Roman Catholic Church, as amended from time to time; and (3) in a manner which,
as determined by OSF, does not bring Scandal upon: (i) OSF; (ii) The Sisters of the Third Order
of St. Francis, an Iilinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Third Order”); or (iii) the Corporation,
[new name of Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.}, an Illinois corporation (the “Sole
Shareholder”), [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center}, an Illinois
not-for-profit corporation (the “Hospital”), [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
Auxiliary], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Hospital
Foundation], an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, [new name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal
Sleep Center, LLC], an Illinois limited liability company, or any other entity that is controlled
by or is under common contrcl with the Hospital, either directly or indirectly (each an
“Affiliated Corporation,” and collectively the “Affiliated Corporations™). The term
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“Seandal” means any conduct that results in serious impairment of the name or reputation of any
Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order, either in the general community or among the
Catholic faithful, or causes confusion in the minds of members of the general community or the
Catholic faithful concerning compliance by any Affiliated Corporation, OSF, or the Third Order
with the ethical and religious teachings of the Roman Catholic Church.

ARTICLE II
SOLE SHAREHOLDER

2.1. Sole Shareholder.

The sole shareholder of the Corporation shall be [new name of Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.] Any provision of law requiring notice to, the presence of, or the
vote, consent, or other action of the Sole Shareholder of the Corporation in connection with such
matter shall be satisfied by notice to, the presence of, or the vote, consent, or other action of the
board of directors of the Sole Shareholder (the “Sole Shareholder Board™).

2.2. Powers Reserved to the Sole Shareholder.

In addition to the rights and powers accorded a shareholder under the laws of the State of
Mlinois, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporatior, and these Bylaws, the following actions
(the “Reserved Powers”) shall be authorized only by a vote of the Sole Shareholder of the
Corporation, which vote shall be taken only after considering the advice of the Board:

(a) To establish, approve, or modify the philosophy, vision, values, and mission
according to which the Corporation operates.

(b)  To lease, sell, encumber, or otherwise alienate any real property or interest in real
property of the Corporation.

(c) To approve any transfer, lease, sale, or encumbrance of personal property of the
Corporation except in the ordinary course of business.

(d  To approve any purchase or other acquisition by the Corporation that is not
included in the consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated Corporations.

(¢)  To approve any borrowing or debt financing on behalf of the Corporation in
excess of a specified limit established by resolution of the Sole Shareholder, to structure and
restructure indebtedness of the Corporation, and to enter into and amend agreements relating to
indebtedness of the Corporation.

3] To require a certified audit of the finances of the Corporation and to appoint the
certified public accountant to perform any audit.

() To approve the engagement of and to dismiss any outside legal counsel to
represent the Corporation on a regular basis or in connection with any matter deemed by the Sole
Shareholder, in good faith, to have significance for the Sole Sharcholder as a whole.
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(h)  To appoint, reappoint or remove the members and officers of the Board, subject to
Section 3.6.

) To merge or consolidate the Corporation with other entities, merge other entities
into the Corporation, or to dissolve the Corporation, in accordance with applicable law.

7
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G To amend the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation in
accordance with applicable law.

(k)  To expand, consolidate, terminate, or close any of the facilities and services of the
Corporation.

{0 To hire, enter into an employment contract with, discipline, or terminate the Chief
Operating Officer of the Corporation.

{m) To adopt the strategic plan for the Corporation.

(n)  To adopt or modify the operating budget and capital budget for any fiscal year for
the Corporation (which operating and capital budgets shall be consolidated with the operating
and capital budgets for each Affiliated Corporation, with a consolidating schedule for each
Affiliated Corporation).

(o)  To approve the terms of and enter into joint ventures and other affiliations
between the Corporation and third parties, and approve the creation, formation, organization, or
termination of any legal entity in which the Corporation will have any ownership interest,
membership interest, power to elect or appoint board members or officers, or any other formal
participation arrangement, whiether acting alone or in conjunction with any other person or entity.

(p)  To approve appointments to governing bodies of joint ventures between the
Corporation and third parties and other legal entities in which the Corporation has any power to
elect or appoint board members or officers.

() To name or rename any healthcare facility owned and operated by the
Corporation. '

(r) To issue equity interests or admit any new shareholder and the terms for such
admission or issuance.

2.3.  Action by the Sole Shareholder.

The Sole Shareholder shall act by executing and delivering to the Chairperson/President,
! Chief Operating Officer, or Secretary a written instrument or instruments, signed by an
| authorized officer of the Sole Shareholder, setting forth the action taken. The action of the Sole
Shareholder shall be deemed to have been taken on the dates the written instruments are so
delivered unless the instruments provide otherwise. Any action taken by the Sole Sharecholder on
any matters described in Section 2.2 shall be immediately communicated to the Board.
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2.4. Policies of the Sole Shareholder.

All policies of OSF, the Hospital, and the Sole Shareholder shall apply with respect to the
Corporation’s govemnance, management, and operation. The Board shall not enact any policy
that conflicts with or purports to nullify the effect of a policy of OSF, the Hospital, or the Sole
Sharcholder without the approval of OSF, the Hospital, or the Sole Sharcholder, as applicable.

ARTICLE III
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1. General Powers.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the management, control and operation of the affairs and
properties of this Corporation shall vest and be in the Board. The Board shall have the power
and authority to do and perform all acts or functions consistent with the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto, and the laws of the State of Illinois.

3.2.  WNumber and Qualification.

(a) Composition. The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall number thirteen
(13) persons. When vacancies on the Board occur by reason of death, resignation, or otherwise,
the number shall be reduced by such vacancies until qualified replacements are appointed for the
unexpired term. The directors serving as of the adoption by the Sole Shareholder of these
amended and restated Bylaws shall continue to serve in such capacity. Upon adoption by the
Sole Shareholder of these amended and restated Bylaws, the Sole Shareholder shall appoint two
(2) additional directors who are physicians employed by OSF (“OSF Physicians™), who shall be
designated as Hospital Directors. All directors shall have the equal right to vote, except as set
forth below. The chief executive officer, chief operating officer, and vice-president of finance of
the Hospital shall serve as directors, ex officio, with vote. These individuals, along with the OSF
Physicians, will constitute the “Hespital Directors.” The Vice-President of Medical Affairs of
the Corporation and the Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation shall serve as directors, ex
officio, without vote.

(b) Qualifications. Directors shall have the following qualifications:

(1)  Commitment to the Philosophy, Mission, Values and Vision of the
Hospital.

(2)  Commitment to uphold the Catholic Code of Ethics in all dealings and
deliberations pertaining to the Board's responsibilities.

(3)  Knowledge and experience useful to the Corporation in maintaining its
values and achieving its Mission, such as leadership skills, health care delivery
knowledge, legal expertise or financial skills.

(4)  Willingness to support the Corporation with a commitment of time
necessary to become and remain informed concerning the issues confronting the
Corporation and the ability to regularly attend Board meetings.

4

70673541v12

ATTACHMENT #35




(5)  Ability to be discreet in keeping Board discussions and business
confidential.

(6)  Ability to rise above the concerns of a particular constituency and
represent the interest of the Corporation as a whole.

(7)  Be of respectable character, have an interest in the Catholic health care
delivery system and a deep concemn and willingness to serve.

()  Election. All directors whose terms begin after the date on which the Sole
Shareholder adopts these amended and restated Bylaws shall be appointed by the Sole
Shareholder. At least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting of the Sole Shareholder, the
physician employees of the Corporation shall present to the Sole Shareholder for consideration a
slate of candidates, comprised of physician employees of the Corporation, to fill the seats held by
Physician Directors (as defined in Section 3.4(a)) whose terms as directors expire at the close of
such annual meeting.

3.3, Temm of Office.

(a) The term of office for each director (other than those serving ex officio) shall be
two (2) years or umtil his or her successor shall have been duly elected. However,
notwithstanding the aforementioned: (a) three (3) directors serving as of the date on which the
Sole Shareholder adopts these amended and restated Bylaws, as determined by the Board, who
are physicians and former shareholders of Ottawa Medical Center, P.C. (“OMC Shareholder
Physicians”) will serve terms ending at the close of the annual meeting of the Sole Shareholder
held in December, 2012, and the three (3) remaining current directors who are physicians and
employees of the Corporation (collectively, with the OMC Shareholder Physicians, the
“Physician Directors”) will serve terms ending at the close of the annual meeting of the Sole
Shareholder held in December, 2013; and (b) the term of one of the initial OSF Physicians shall
end at the close of the annual meeting of the Sole Sharcholder held in December, 2013, and the
term of the other initial OSF Physician shall end at the close of the annual meeting of the Sole
Shareholder held in December, 2014, in order that staggered terms may be initiated.

(b)  Any director may be elected to succeed himself or herself, without limitation on
the number of terms he or she may serve, provided that said director continues to satisfy the
requirements for gualification specified in Section 3.2(b).

(c) The term of office of all directors shall commence immediately following the
meeting at which they were elected by the Sole Shareholder.

(d)  The term of office of any director shall end at the close of the annual meeting held
during the year in which such director's term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification
of a successor, whichever shall occur last.

3.4. Resignation of Directors.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson/President
or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Unexcused absence

5

70673541v12

ATTACHMENT #5




! from more than twenty-five percent (25%) of all regular and special Board meetings without a
i prior excuse from the Chairperson/President shall be an automatic resignation. A director may
be excused from Board meeting attendance if such director is absent from the state, suffering
from an acute illness or, in the discretion of the Chairperson/President, for any other excused
absence.

3.5. Removal of Directors.

Any director may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Sole
Sharcholder; provided that a Physician Director may be removed from office only after
consultation with and input from the other Physician Directors; provided further that until the
close of the annual meeting of the Sole Shareholder held in December, 2012, at least four @
directors shall be OMC Shareholder Physicians, and until the close of the annual meeting of the
Sole Shareholder held in December, 2013, at least one (1) director shall be an OMC Shareholder
Physician; and provided further that any director who is an employee of OSF or any Affiliated
' Corporatjon shall be deemed removed upon the termination of his or her employment.

3.6. Vacancies.

Any vacancy on the Board may be filled by the Sole Shareholder for the unexpired
portion of the term.

3.7. Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Board for the transaction of such business as may come before
the Board, shall be held in December of each year or, in the discretion of the
Chairperson/President, within sixty days of such regularly scheduled annual meeting and at such
time and place as shall be determined by the Chairperson/President.

3.8. Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place
designated by the Chairperson/President by announcement at the preceding Board meeting, by
written notice to the members of the Board by the Chairperson/President, or by resolution of the
Board prescribing the time and place for regular meetings. The annual meeting may be counted
as one of the quarterly meetings.

3.9. Special Meetings.

f Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the
Chairperson/President, the Chief Operating Officer, or a majority of the directors then in office.

3.10. Notice.

(a)  Notice of any armual, regular or special meeting shall be given in writing by
! personal delivery, by United States mail, or by electronic mail to each director at least three days
before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If given by United States mail, such notice
shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the
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director at the address as shown in the records of the Corporation with postage thereon prepaid.
If given by electronic mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered upon receipt by the
sender of an electronic acknowledgment of delivery to the recipient at the electronic mail address
of the recipient as shown in the records of the Corporation.

(b)  Notice may be waived in writing by any director either before or after the
meeting. Attendance at any meeting by a director shall be deemed to be a waiver of notice
unless the director intends to object to the transaction of business because the meeting is not
lawfully convened.

(©) Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or special
meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

3.11. Quorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorumn for the transaction of business at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that if less than a majority of the directors are present, those
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. Any director
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board through the use of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can communicate with each other. Participation in such meetings shall constitute attendance and
presence in person at the meeting of the person or persons so participating,

3.12, Manner of Acting.

Except as set forth below, the act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board except where otherwise provided by law
or by these Bylaws. There shall be no voting by proxy.

(@ Action Reguiring Approval of Hospital Directors. The following actions of the
Board shall require, in addition to the requirements for action set forth in Section 3.12,

affirmative approval of the majority of the Hospital Directors, including at least one (1) OSF
Physician, present at a meeting at which a quorum is present:

(1)  approval of the Corporation’s marketing plan;

{2) approval of the standard form physician employment agreement and
material changes and amendments thereto, which shall be substantially similar to the
form of agreement used by OSF;

3 amendment of the standard compensation formula for physicians, subject
to the provisions of Section 12.5.1 of the Affiliation Agreement;

(4)  waiver of any covenant not to compete or solicit with physicians;

(5) entrance into or termination of any managed care contracts, subject to the
provisions of Section 12.5 of the Affiliation Agreement;
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(6)  establishment of office locations other than the initial office, relocation of
an office, or strategic placement of a physician in an office, provided, however, the OMC
Physician Shareholders shall have the right to refuse a move involving them;

(7)  determination as to whether a practice site shall be operated on a full-time
or part-time basis, and determination as to how such sites shall be staffed;

(8)  approval of any agreements that implicate the Medicare and Medicaid
Anti-Kickback Statute or the Ethics in Patient Referral Act or potentially involve matters
that may implicate the False Claims Act;

(9)  the decision to hire or terminate a physician;

(10) incurrence of non-budget expenses in excess of Five Thousand Dollars
($5,000); and

(11) entrance into contracts in amounts greater than Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00) except for those listed in Section 3.12(b).

(t)  Actions Requiring Approval of Physician Directors. The following actions of the
Board shall require, in addition to the requirements for action set forth in Section 3.12,

affirmative approval of the majority of the Physician Directors present at a meeting at which a
quorum is present, provided at least four (4) Physician Directors are in attendance:

(1)  recruitment of physicians, subject to Section 3.12(a)(8) and Section
3.12(2)(%);

(2)  development and implementation of office policies and procedures,
subject to Section 2.4;

(3)  approval of the type of supplies that may be purchased within the
budgeted amounts;

4) determination of hours and schedules for office locations and physicians,
subject to Section 3.12(a)(7);

(5) entrance into maintenance agreements within budgeted amounts;

(6)  entrance into contracts with third parties to provide management personnel
or independent contractor services to maintain an existing or board- approved program or
service on an emergency or interim basis not exceeding thirty (30) days and at fair market
value;

(7)  entrance into contracts to retain organizations to provide temporary,
professional personnel on an hourly fee basis for not longer than six (6) months’ duration
within budgeted amounts and at fair market value; and
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(8) termination of non-supervisory employees other than physicians, the Chief
Operating Officer, the Director of Business Services, and the Director of Patient Services,
and hiring of employees consistent with applicable law and consistent with the
consolidated operating and capital budgets of the Affiliated Corporations, and consistent
with any policy governing such matter.

3.13. Informal Action.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Board or any committee thercof may
be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be
provided by all of the directors then in office or all members of a committee of the Board, as the
case may be. Written consent may be provided by electronic mail. All the approvals evidencing
consent shall be delivered to the Secretary at such mailing or electronic mail address as the
Secretary may designate to be filed in the records of the Corporation. The action shall be
effective when all of the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved
the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

3.14. Procedure.

Robert’s Rules of Order Revised (latest edition) shall govern procedure at all meetings of
the Board and its committees where not covered expressly by these Bylaws.

3.15. Compensation.

Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as such, but may be
reimbursed for hona fide expenses incumred arising out of services rendered. Nothing herein
shall prohibit payment of compensation to an individual serving as a director who renders
services to the Corporation in another capacity.

3.16. Conflict of Interest.

(a) Any director, officer or key employee who has an interest in a contract or other
transaction presented to the Board or a committee thereof for authorization, approval, or
ratification shall make a prompt and full disclosure of such interest to the Board or committee
prior to its acting on such contract or transaction. Such disclosure shall include any relevant and
material facts known to such person about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be
construed to be adverse to the Corporation's interest.

()  The body to which such disclosure is made shall thereupon determine, by
majority vote, whether the disclosure shows that a conflict of interest exists or can reasonably be
construed to exist. If a conflict is deemed to exist, such person shall not vote on, nor use any
personal influence on, nor participate {other than to present factual information or to respond to
questions) in, the discussions or deliberations with respect to such contract or transaction. Such
person shall not be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting where the
contract or transaction is under discussion or is being voted upon. The minutes of the meeting
shall reflect the disclosure made, the vote thereon and, where applicable, the abstention from
voting and participation, and whether a quorum was present.
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(c) (¢)  For the purposes of this Section, a person shall be deemed to have an
“interest” in a contract or other transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties)
contracting or dealing with the Corporation, or is a director, trustee, manager, or officer of, or has
a significant financial or influential interest in, an entity (other than an entity that controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Corporation, either directly or indirectly)
contracting or dealing with the Corporation.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

4,1, Officers.

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairperson/President, a Vice President of
Medical Affairs, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. In addition, there shall be a Chief Operating
Officer, who shall have primary administrative responsibility for the daily operations of the
Corporation. The Chairperson/President shall be the chief executive officer of the Hospital. The
Board may nominate additional officers as it shall deem desirable. Unless specifically provided
in these Bylaws, an officer need not be a director. One person may hold two or more offices.

42. Election and Term of Qffice.

The initial officers upon approval by the Sole Shareholder of these amended and restated
Bylaws shall be the then-current officers. Upon expiration of the terms of the then-current
officers, new officers shall be clected by the Sole Shareholder. Each officer shall hold office for
a term of one year or until a successor is elected, unless such officer shall sooner resign or be
removed.

(@)  An officer may be elected successively without limitation on the number of terms
served.

(b)  The term of office of all officers shall commence immediately following the
meeting at which they were elected by the Sole Shareholder. ‘

() The term of office of any officer shall end at the close of the annual meeting held
during the year in which the term expires, or upon the appointment and qualification of a
successor, whichever shall occur last.

43. Resignation and Removal of Officers.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairperson/President
or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein. Any officer may be
removed by the Sole Sharcholder whenever in the judgment of the Sole Shareholder the best
interests of the Corporation will be served thereby.

4.4, Vacancies.

A vacaney in any elected office may be filled by the Sole Shareholder for the unexpired
portion of the term.
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4.5. Chairperson/President.

The Chairperson/President shall preside at all meetings of the Board. Subject to the
Reserved Powers, the Chairperson/President may sign and execute, on behalf of the Corporation
with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, any
corporate records, documents and instruments. The Chairperson/President shall have and
exercise, subject to the Reserved Powers, all powers usually incident to the office of the
Chairperson/President of a business corporation and shall perform such other duties as may be
delegated by the Board from time to time. The Chairperson/President must be a member of the
Board.

4.6. Vice-President of Medical Affairs.

The Vice President of Medical Affairs shall provide medical direction and leadership to
the physicians and staff of the Corporation and assist the Chairperson/President and Chief
Operating Officer in formulating policies and procedures involving medical services provided by
the Corporation.

477. Chief Operating Officer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers and to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given
by the Board to the Chairperson/President, the Chief Operating Officer shall be the highest
executive officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board and the
Chairperson/President, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs
of the Corporation and shall have the general powers and duties of management, including, but
not limited to:

(a)  Advising and making recommendations to the Board relating of the operation of
the Corporation and strategic planning,;

(b)  Presenting a report at each annual meeting of the Board covering the operations
during the preceding fiscal year;

(c) Signing any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board has
authorized to be executed by the Chief Operating Officer, either alone or with the Secretary or
other officer of the Corporation, as authorized by the Board; ‘

(d)  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Board;

()  Attending and participating without vote in meetings of the Executive Committee
of the Board, 1f any;

H Directing and supervising the activities and performance of subordinate
executives of the Corporation in accordance with the management structure approved by the
Board from time to time; and

(8) Performing all duties incident to the office of Chief Operating Officer and such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.
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4.8. Secretary.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Secretary shall sign documents of the Corporation
from time to time as required; keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board and a record of
actions of the Board in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly
given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of
the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is
affixed to all documents as required; and perform such additional dutics as may be assigned by
the Chief Operating Officer or delegated by the Board.

49,  Treasurer.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the
funds and securities of the Corporation; report to the Board respecting its financial condition and
the handling of its monies and investments; and performm such additional duties as may be
assigned by the Chicf Operating Officer or delegated by the Board.

ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

5.1. Designation.

The Board may, by resolution, create committees as needed and define the activities
thereof. Unless prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the Board may
delegate authority to Board committees. Members of Board committees shall be appointed by
the Chairperson/President unless otherwise provided for by these Bylaws or by resolution of the
Board. Committees may include persons other than directors; provided, that Board committecs
shall include two or more directors, and a majority of the members of each Board committee
shall be directors. The Chairperson/President shall be an ex officio voting member of all Board
committees, except as provided in Section 5.12.

5.2, Temm of Office.

Each member of a Board committec shall serve until the next annual meeting of the
Board or until a successor is appointed.

5.3. Resignation and Removal.

Any committce member may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
Chairperson/President or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified
therein. Any committee member may be removed by the Chairperson/President or by a majority
vote of the Board.

5.4.  Vacancies.

Vacancies in the membership of any committee shall be filled by the
Chairperson/President.
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5.5. Committee Chairperson.

The Chairperson/President shall serve as chairperson of the Executive Committee and
designate one member of each other committee(s) to serve as chairperson of that comrnittee.

5.6. Notice.

Committees shall meet at the call of the chairperson of the committee. Notice of any
committee meeting shall be given at least three business days before the meeting is to be held.
Notice of the meeting shall be either oral or in writing at the discretion of the committee
chairperson, and if given in writing shall be given in the manner described in Section 3.11.

5.7. Quorum.

" A majority of the committee membership shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the committee.

5.8.  Manner of Acting.

The act of a majority of the committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum
is present shall be the act of the committee. A committee may also act by unanimous consent in
writing without a meeting in the manner described in Section 3.14.

5.9.  Minutes.

Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall regularly report to the
Board.

5.10. Rules.

Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these
Bylaws or with actions by the Board.

5.11. Executive Committee.

()  The Executive Committee, if created by the Board, shall be composed of not less
than three members and not more than seven members, including the Chairperson/President and
other members selected from among the directors by the Chairperson/President. The
Chairpersor/President shall be the chairperson of the Executive Committee.

(b)  The Executive Committee shall serve during periods when the Board is not in
session. The Executive Committee shall be authorized, subject to the Reserved Powers, to take
such action as may be necessary on behalf of the Corporation.

5.12. Clinical Issues And Physician Advisory Committee.

A clinical advisory committee (“Clinical Advisory Committee”), consisting of the
Physician Directors and the OSF Physicians, shall manage clinical care issues, physician
advisory issues, and other issues requiring professional medical judgment. The
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Chairperson/President of the Corporation and the Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation
shall be ex officio members of the Clinical Advisory Committee without vote. The Clinical
Advisory Committee shall:

(1)  determine whether to discharge a patient; and
(2)  establish on-call coverage schedules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Vice-President of Medical Affairs must be consulted
on all clinical issues and physician advisory issues, involving the practice of medicine or
provision of professional medical services for patients of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VI
FISCAL MATTERS

6.1. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of October and end on
the last day of September, or such other dates as established by the Hospital from time to time.

' 6.2. Contracts.

Subject to the Reserved Powers, the Board may authorize officers or agents to enter into
any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation.

6.3. Loans.

No loans or borrowing shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Corporation and no
evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the Sole Shareholder.
No loan shall be granted to any officer or director of the Corporation.

6.4, Checks and Drafis.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation or to the Corporation, shall be
signed or endorsed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such
manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board.

6.5. Deposits.

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board
may select upon approval by the Sole Shareholder.

6.6. Books, Records and Accounts.

The Corporation shall keep or cause to be kept correct and complete books and records of
account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings and records of the actions of the Board
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|‘ and its committees. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by the Sole
: Shareholder or any member of the Board for any proper purpose at any reasonable time. In
] addition, the Corporation shall annually cause a certified audit of its accounts, in compliance
j with Section 2.2(f) of these Bylaws, to be made and shall cause to be filed the necessary reports,
i tax retwmns or other documents as may be required by law on its behalf.

ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1.  Power to Hold Harmless.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party who is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or
in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust
or other enterprise, shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation,
and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or
her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not of itself
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, with respect
to any criminal action or proceeding that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or
her conduct was lawful.

7.2. Power to Indemnify Litigant.

Subject to the laws of Illinois in effect from time to time, any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit
by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving
at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or
she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation except
that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such
person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of
his or her duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such
action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of
liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemmnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.
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7.3. Reimbursement Authorized.

|

| .

! To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been

| successful, on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to
in Sections 7.1 or 7.2, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be
indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him
or her in connection therewith.

7.4. Determination if Reimbursement is Proper.

Any indemnification under Sections 7.1 or 7.2 (unless ordered by a court) shall be made
by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that
: indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because
; he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 7.1 and 7.2. Such
: determination shall be made: (1) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of

directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not
: obtainable, or, even if obtainable, if a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by
i independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by the Sole Shareholder.

; 7.5.  Advance of Expenses.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceedings may be paid
i by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as
5 authorized by the Board in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be
determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this
Article.

7.6.  Non-Exclusivity.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agreement, vote of the
Sole Shareholder or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official
capacity, and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a
person who has ceased to be such a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the
benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

7.7.  Right to Acquire Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the
i request of the Corporation as a director, officer employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or
her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such,
whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such
liability under the provisions of this Article.
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ARTICLE VIII
CORPORATE SEAL

The Board shall adopt a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have
inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the state of incorporation and the words
“Corporate Seal”.

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, restated or repealed by the Sole Shareholder
upon its own motion or upon a recommendation from the Board at any regular meeting or special
meeting called for that purpose. These Bylaws shall be reviewed annually.
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ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of [mew name of Ottawa Regional Medical

Center, Inc.], this day of , 2012, at Ottawa, lllinois.
Chairperson/President
ATTEST:
Secretary
(SEAL)
18
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EXHIBIT F

Forms of Amended and Restated Governing Docaments of OR Cardinal Sleep
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llinois
Form LLC '5-25 Limited Liability Company Act

April 2010 Articles of Amendment FILE #,
Secretary of State This spaco for use by Secretary of State.
Department of Business Services SUBMIT IN DUPLICATE

Limited Liability Division
501 5. Second St., Rm, 351

Type or print clearly.

Springfield, IL. 62756 This space for use by Secretary of State.
217-524-8008

www_.cyberdrvelllinois.com Date:

Make check payable to Secretary of .

State. If check Is returned for any Filing Fee: $150

reason this filing will be void. Approved:

1. Limited Liability Company Name: Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC

2. Articles of Amendment effective on:
[ the file date

1 a later date (not to exceed 30 days after the file date)

Month, Day, Year

3.  Articles of Organization are amended as follows (check applicable item(s}) below):

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

f

9)
h)
i)
i

000X 0O ©-COoO0d

Admission of a new member (give name and address below)*

Admission of a new manager {give name and address below)*

Withdrawal of a member (give name below)*

Withdrawal of a manager {give name below)*

Change in address of the office at which the records required by Section 1-40 of the Act are kept (give new
address, including county below)

Change of registered agent and/or registered agent's office (give new name and address, including county
below) (Address change of P.O. Box alone or ¢/o is unacceptable.)

Change in the Limited Liability Company's name (give new name below)

Change in date of dissolution or other events of dissolution enumerated in ltem 8 of the Arlicles of Organization
Cther (give information in space below)

Establish authority to issue series (see back; filing fee $400)*

* Changes in members/managers may, but are not required to, be reported in an amendment to the Articles of Organization.

Additional information:

New Name of LLC (if changed): [New Name of Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC]

(continued on back)
6" Printed on recycled paper. Printed by authority of the State of lincis. June 2010 — 500 — LLC 11.12
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4.  This amendment was approved in accordance with Section 5-25 of the lllinois Limited Llability Company Act, and, if
adopted by the managers, was approved by not less than the minimum number of managers necessary to approve the
amendment, member action not being required; or, if adopted by the members, was approved by not less than the
minimum number of members necessary to approve the amendment.

5. | affirn, under penalties of perjury, having authority to sign hereto, that these Arlicles of Amendment are to the best of
my knowledge and belief, true, correct and complete.

Dated: 1
Month/Day Year

Signature (Must comply with Section 5-45 of ILLCA.)

Name and Title {type or print}

If the member or manager signing this documnent is a company or other entlty,
state Name of Company and whether It Is a member or manager of the LLC.

* The following paragraph is adopted when Item 3j is checked:

The operating agreement provides for the establishment of one or more series. When the company has filed a Certificate
of Designation for each series, which is to have Bmited liability pursuant to Section 37-40 of the lllinois Limited Liability
Company Act, the debts, liabilities and obligations incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to a particular
series shall be enforceable against the assets of such series only, and not against the assets of the Limited Liability
Company generally or any other series thereof, and unless otherwise provided in the operating agreement, none of the
debts, liabilities, obligations or expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise existing with respect to this company
generally or any other series thereof shall be enforceable against the assets of such series.

6 Printed on recycled paper. Printed by authority of the State of llinois. June 2010 — 500 — LLC 11.12
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EXHIBIT G

Oftawa Party Board Member Position Description
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[N (D

POSITION DESCRIPTION:
[INEW NAME OF OTTAWA REGIONAL HOSPITAL & HEALTHCARE CENTER]
BOARD MEMBER

General Summary

The Board of [mew name of Ottawa Regional Hospital & MHealthcare Center] (the
“Corporation”) is responsible to review and approve policies, make decisions and engage in
oversight for OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”) and its sponsorship member, The Sisters of the
Third Order of St. Francis (the “Third Order”) and their Mission of caring for the sick and the
poor, entrusted to them by the Catholic Church. The role of the Board is to govern, not to
manage, the Corporation. To that end, the Board establishes the strategies and goals of the
Corporation, reviews and approves policies and makes decisions to support those ends, and
oversees performance and exercises accountability for results.

Corporate Philosophy

It is the obligation of the members of the Board to abide by and promote the Philosophy, Values,
Mission and Vision of the Third Order.

Reserved Powers

In the exercise of their authority in the fulfillment of their duties, the Board Members shall
observe and respect the Reserved Powers held by OSF Hcalthcare System.

Legal Dutics

The Board members have the following legal duties:

. A duty to uphold the charitable purpose of the Corporation, a duty that should be
demonstrable in all the Board’s decisions.

. A duty of loyalty, to act based on the best interests of the Corporation and the
wider comumunities it serves.

. A duty of care, to act in good faith with the care an ordinarnly prudent person in a
like position would exercise under similar circumstances, and in a manner the
director reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation, by
preparing for meetings, attending faithfully, participating in discussions, asking
questions, making sound and independent business judgments and seeking
independent opinions when necessary.

Core Responsibilities

The Board members shall fulfill certain core or fundamental responsibilities in overseeing the
efforts of the Corporation. These responsibilities focus on:

1. Adherence to the Teachings of the Catholic Church

0672017v4 (913601
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Strategic Direction Oversight

Quality and Patient Safety Oversight

Financial Oversight

Management Oversight, including participating in selection and evaluation of a
well-qualified and ethical CEO

—_— s = eme b b
LA

6. Goveming Documents, Policies, Executive Compensation, Credentialing, Risk
Management and Legal and Ethical Compliance Oversight

7. Self-Assessment & Development, including keeping abreast of any relevant
developments in the Corporation’s service area and the healthcare industry
generally

8. Advocacy

1. Adherence to the Teachings of the Catholic Church. The Board Members have the
responsibility to ensure that the Moral and Ethical Teachings of the Catholic Church are
followed as they pertain to the Mission of the Third Oxder.

2. Strategic Direction Oversight. The Board members have the responsibility to
recommend the future direction the organization will take to meet the community’s health
needs and ensure the ongoing Mission of the Third Order. To fulfill this responsibility,

the Board shall:
! a. Review and recommend to the OSF Board the Vision of the Corporation.
. b. Ensure that the strategic management plan reflects the needs and concerns of the
§ Corporation and its subsidiaries and understand the Board’s role in its
f implementation.

c. Monitor the programs and initiatives of the Corporation to ensure consistency

with the OSF system-wide plan.

d. Annually review and recommend to the OSF Board the strategic management
plan of the Corporation and its affiliates and ensure that the strategic management
plan is consistent with the Mission, Vision and Values of OSF.

e. Assess the extent to which the Corporation meets its goals and objectives.

f. Review and recommend to the OSF Board the establishment of joint ventures
involving the Corporation.

g Review, and recommend to the OSF Board the establishment and discontinuance
of major services.

! 3 Quality and Patient Safety Oversight. The Board members have the responsibility to
ensure the quality, safety and reliability of all services provided by the Corporation and
o its subsidiaries. Consistent with the OSF system-wide policies and initiatives, the Board
- shall:

a. Approve annual plans for quality performance improvement and patient safety.

2

70672017v4 0913601

- ATTACHMENT #5




b. Make sure that there are explicit quality and safety improvement targets set and
met for the Corporation.

c. Analyze committee reports on clinical outcomes, patient safety, and quality of
service to ensure fulfillment of the Corporation’s commitment to quality.

d. Take cormrective action, when .appropriate and necessary, to address quality
performance.

€. Recognize that the quality of services shall be closely related to strategic planning
and financial oversight responsibilities.

4, Financial Oversight. The Board members have responsibility for the financial integrity
of the Corporation. Consistent with OSF system-wide policies and initiatives, the Board
shall:

a. Review and approve financial policies, plans, programs, standards and goals to
ensure preservation and enhancement of the Corporation’s assets and resources.

b. Provide oversight for the assets of the Corporation.

c. Review and recommend to the OSF Board the annual QOperating Budget, Capital
and Special Project Budgets for the Corporation and its affiliates.

d Analyze actual performance against budget projections.

e. Review and recommend to the OSF Board major capital plans outside the budget
cycle for the Corporation.

5. Management Oversight. The Board members shall oversee management performance
by the Corporation’s CEQ. Consistent with OSF system-wide policies and initiatives, the
Board shall: '

a. Recruit and recommend employment of the Corporation’s CEO to the OSF Board.

b. Evaluate the performance of the Corporation’s CEO annually using goals and
objectives agreed upon with him or her at the beginning of the evaluation cycle.

c. Communicate regularly with the Corporation’s CEO regarding the Board’s goals,
expectations, and concerns.

d. Establish specific performance policies that provide the Corporation’s CEQ with a
clear understanding of what the Board expects and update these policies based on
changing conditions.

€. Periodically review the Corporation’s top management succession plans to ensure
leadership continuity.

70672017v4 0913601
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6. Governing Documents, Policies, Executive Compensation and Compliance

i
1 Oversight. The Board members shall:

; a. Govern the organization in conformance with the Corporation’s Articles of
I Incorporation and Bylaws, and the applicable provisions of the OSF Corporate
Policies.

b. Recommend to the OSF Board amendments and additions to the Corporation’s
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

c. Recommend to the OSF Board amendments and additions to policies within the
Corporate Administrative Manual.
d. Take appropriate action to assure adherence to and respect of the Reserved

Powers held by OSF, and, with respect to the Corporation’s affiliates, the reserved
powers held by the Corporation. :

e. Make recommendations to OSF regarding team awards, management incentive
compensation and executive compensation consistent with programs established
by the OSF Board.
I f Make recommendations to OSF for the annual compensation of the Corporation’s
CEO.
g Establish and oversee programs to ensure that the organization and its subsidiaries

fulfill legal, regulatory and accreditation requirements.

7, Self-Assessment & Development. The Board members shall assume responsibility for
: their own effective and efficient performance. To discharge its stewardship
responsibilities, the Board shall:

a. Annuaily evaluate the Board’s performance.

b. Evaluate the Board performance of individual Board members to determine the
appropriateness of continued service on the Board.

c. Maintain and update policy statemnents regarding roles, responsibilities, duties,
and job descriptions for itself, its members, officers and committees.

d. Participate both as a Board and as individuals in orientation programs and
continuing education programs.

8. Advocacy. The Board members need to focus on advocacy and lobbying around public
policy issues. In order to take an activist role, the Board shall:

; a. Set goals for the organization around the issue of public advocacy.

70572017v4 0913601
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b. Build relationships and support the Corporation’s policies with key stakeholders,
political leaders and domors, consistent with the Corporation’s nonprofit, tax
exempt status.

c. Ensure that each subsidiary of the Corporation understands the community health
needs in the communities it serves.

Performance Expectations for Board Members.

1.

ATTACHMENT #35

Accountability. Each Board member is ultimately accountable to act in the best interests
of the Corporation, the Third Order and the Mission of the Third Order. Each Board
member carries out his or her responsibilities in recognition of a fiduciary responsibility
and does not represent the interests of any constituency or individual.

Exercise of Authority. Each Board member carries out the powers of his or her office
only when acting as a voting member during a duly constituted meeting of the Board or
one of its appointed bodies. Each Board member respects the responsibilities delegated
by the Board to the Corporation’s CEQ, management, and the medical staff, avoiding
interference with their duties but insisting upon accountability and reporting mechanism
for assessing performance.

Chain of Command. If a member of the community or medical staff brings a specific
issue, concern or complaint to a Board member, the Board member shall handle it
through appropriate channels. In general, complaints and concems about hospital
operations or medical staff issues should be directed to the Corporation’s CEO.
Unresolved matters shall be brought to the Board, or to a Board committee, only after
consultation with the Corporation’s CEQ and after other avenues for resolution have been
attempted.

Attendance. FEach Board member strives to attend all Board meetings, assigned
committee meetings and Board retreats.

Participation. Each Board member comes to meetings prepared, asks informed
questions, and makes a positive contribution to discussions. Each Board member treats
others with trust and respect.

Confidentiality. Each Board member does not disclose proprietary, sensitive or
personnel-related information.

Public Support. Each Board member explains and supports the decisions and policies of
the Board in discussions with outsiders, even if the Board member voiced other views
during Board discussions.

Conflict of Interest. Each Board member avoids conflicts of interest and fully complies
with the Corporation’s Conflict of Interest policy and other policies on individual
conduct.

70672017v4 0913601




9. Education. Each Board member takes advantage of opportunities to be educated and
informed about the Board, the Corporation, and the healthcare field.

10.  Self-evaluation. Each Board member participates in the self-evaluation of the Board and
individual members.

70672017v4 0913601
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Schedule 3.3.1
Board Members and Officers of the Ottawa Parties
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
OSF Board Members:

[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Board Member, to be appointed prior to Closing]

Community Board Members:

Eric Ortinau, M.D. — 1 year initial term
Mary Morgan — 1 year initial term
Christina Cantlin — 2 year initial term
Steve Gonzalo — 2 year initial term
Mark Palmer — 3 year initial term
George Shanley — 3 year initial term

Honorary Board Members:

[Honorary Board Member, to be agreed upon prior to Closing]
[Honorary Board Member, to be agreed upon prior to Closing]
[Honorary Board Member, to be agreed upon prior to Closing]
[Honorary Board Member, to be agreed upon prior to Closing]

Robert Chaffin — non-voting, ex-officio member

Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.

Board members shall be the same as those stated above for ORHHC.

CHO1/ 25891493.1
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Ottawa Regional Hospital Foundation

[OSF Appointee, o be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Appointee, 10 be appointed prior to Closing]

Bill Kummer — 1 year initial term *
Eric Ortinau, M.D. — 1 year initial term
Mary Morgan - 1 year initial term

Phil Deverman — 1 year initial tern *
Christina Cantlin — 2 year mnitial term
Steve Gonzalo — 2 year initial term
Jane Goetz - 2 year initial term *

Mark Palmer — 3 year initial term
George Shanley — 3 year initial term
John Caruso — 3 year initial term *

Peg Kramer-Graves — 3 year initial term *

Robert Chaffin — non-voting, ex-officio member

Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.

Hospital Directors:
Robert Chaffin, ORHHC President — voting, ex-officio member

Judy Christiansen, ORHHC Chief Operating Officer — voting, ex-officio member
Dawn Trompeter, ORHHC VP of Finance — voting, ex-officio member

Physician Directors:
[OSF Physician, to be appointed prior to Closing]
[OSF Physician, to be appotnted prior to Closing)

Robert Maguire, MD — 2 year term expiring 12/6/13 (re-elected 12/6/11)

J. Naila Bhurgri, MD — 2 year term expiring 12/6/13 (replaced David Manigold, MD)
Romal Gandhi, MD — 2 year term expiring 12/6/13 (re-elected 12/6/11)

Adriana Dumitrescu, MD — 3 year termn expiring 12/6/12

Cynthia Cabalfin, MD — 3 year term expiring 12/6/12

Raul Guerrero, MD — 3 year term expiring 12/6/12

Brian Rosborough, VP of Medical Affairs — non-voting, ex-officic member
Paula Swank, Chicf Operating Officer — non-voting, ex-officio member

* The parties acknowledge that, pursuant to the Affiliation Agreement among OSF and the Ottawa Parties, the
proposced Board members are subject to the mutual agreement of ORH and OSF.
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Schedule 5.3.1

None.
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Schedule 5.3.2

x

Ottawa Required Approvals

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center

Approval by the Members of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center pursuant to et
Article ITI, Section 7 of the Bylaws of Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center.
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None.
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Ottawa Exceptions to GAAP
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None.
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Ottawa Material Changes
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None.
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Schedule 5.4.5
Ottawa Donor Restricted Funds

ORHHC

| A restricted donation in the amount of $10,000 ($9,582 remains) was made to ORHHC,

specifically to its LifeFit Program. The donation was given by check to ORHHC and there was
no written agreement. The purposes of the donation was to allow individuals to participate in the
LifeFit program who otherwise would not have the financial means to do so.

A restricted donation in the amount of $300 was received by ORHHC from
B s apert of their [ fundraising efforts and should be used to help a woman or
women in need of financial assistance.

ATTACHMENT #5
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Hospice Welcome Baskets

Baby Monitors $305.00
Foundation Scholarships $400.00
Health Center of Eastern LaSalle County $25.00
Lunch Coupons $100.00
SimMan 3G Manikin $100.00
Television $700.00
Wishing Well Miracle Baskets $173.00
Permanently restricted $4,725.00
Auxiliary

$1,250 from | to be vsed for ED equipment
$1,250 from ORHHC Medical Staff to be used for Deck the Halls events
$10,534.53 restricted for Family Room




|
Schedule 5.6
| Ottawa Interim Changes
| 5.6.1 '
; None.

5.62

None.

5.6.3

None.

5.6.4

Effective February 1, 2011, ORHHC and ORMC adopted policies cntitled Staff Sevcrance and
Reduction in Force (Severance Policy). Pursuant to these policies, the following individuals
received and executed Severance Agreements:

I <>:ccuted a Scverance Agreement prior to the adoption of the Severance Policy.

Additionally, the following individuals received and executed Retention Agreements:

P
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Schedule 5.7

Ottawa Legal Proceedings

1. Paul Ringer, S.R. and Alta Ringer v. Community Hospital of Ottawa, Jo Shawback, R.N.
and Rhonda Dunne, R.N., No. 2008-L-53 (13" Cir. filed April 7, 2008).

2. Thomas Hinkey, as Special Administrator of the estate of Elizabeth Hinkey v. Ottawa
Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center d/b/a Home Health of Community Hospital of Ottawa et.
al., No. 2009-L-182 (13® Cir. filed Sept. 15, 2009).

3. Sandra L. Holliday v. Otiawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center et. al., No. 2010-
L-161 (13 Cir. filed Sept. 21, 2010).

4, U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee for BNC Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-1,
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2007-1 v. Deborah L. Edwards, Ralph B. Edwards,
Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center et. al., No. 2010-CH-486 (13" Cir. filed Sept.
16, 2010).

5. Laura Draper vs. Jamil Abdur-Rahman and Ottawa Regional Hospital, No. 2010-L-203
(10® Cir. filed June 28, 2010).

6. Kimberly Nolan vs. Idries Abdur Rahman and Ottawa Regional Hospital, No. 2011-L-
008594 (Circuit Court of Cook County filed August 17, 2011).

7. Brent Landis and Christina Landis v. Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center
and Chin W. Swong, M.D., (13® Cir. Filed September 26, 2011).

-10-
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| Schedule 5.8.2
Ottawa Limitations on Licenses and Permits

On June 22, 2011, Ottawa was subject to 2 unannounced inspection by || of the
Tllinois Department of Public Health (“IDPH™). As a result of the inspection, Ottawa received a
letter dated July 25, 2011 from CMS informing Ottawa that it was not in compliance with the
Medicare Condition of Participation of Physical Environment, 42 CFR 482.41. Ottawa
submitted a Plan of Correction that was delivered to IDPH, CMS & The Joint Commission on
August 4th, 2011,

Ottawa received a letier from CMS dated November 23, 2011 stating that it still was not in
i compliance and that its Medicare agreement would be terminated on January 23, 2012. Ottawa
: contacted [N 2t IDPH and she stated that the November 23, 2011 letter was just a

formality, as IDPH was backlogged and had not yet reviewed Ottawa’s Plan of Correction. On

December 2, 2011, Ottawa received an additional letter from CMS requesting clarification of

certain items in the Plan of Correction. Ottawa submitted a revised Plan of Correction to IDPH
: on December 12, 2011 clarifying those issues identified by CMS in its December 2, 2011 letter.
! Ottawa has not yet received a response to its most recent revised Plan of Correction from CMS
' or IDPH.

-11 -
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Schedule 5.11.1

Ottawa Owned Real Property and Leases

List of Owned Real Property

PIN Address Also Known As Comment
21-12-201-000 TBD Unimproved
21-12-233-000 TBD Unimproved
21-01-405-000 TBD Unimproved
21-01-402-000 1000 to 1100 E. Norris Dr. | Main Campus

Ottawa, 1L 61350
21-01-402-009 1601 Mercury Circle Eastgate Subdivision,
Ottawa, IL. 61350 Lots 5 & 6, Block 2
21-01-401-010 1100 East Norris Eastgate Subdivision
Ottawa, IL 61350 Qutlot B, Block ]
21-01-403-002 1209 Starfire Drive
Ottawa, IL 61350
21-01-403-003 1209 Starfire Drive
Ottawa, IL 61350
21-01-403-004 1209 Starfire Drive
Ottawa, IL 61350
22-24-113-000 401 E. McKinley Road
Ottawa, IL 61350

24-07-300-021

102 11™ Street
Marseilles, IL 61341

Clarks 2" Addition,
Lot 10

21-01-401-009 1614 E. Norris
Oftawa, IL

21-12-201-001 1614 E. Norris
Ottawa, IL

21-01-402-008

Eastgate Subdivision,
Block 2, Outlot A

21-01-401-001

1200 Starfire  Drive,

Eastgate Subdivision,

Ottawa, IL 61350 Lot 1, Block 1
21-01-401-003 1200  Starfire  Drive, | Eastgate Subdivision,
Ottawa, IL 61350 Lot 2, Block 1
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List of Owned Real Property Encumbered by Leaseholds or Subleaseholds

1. Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Dekalb Clinic Chartered, dated July 31; 2000.
[Medical Office Condominium, 1209 Starfire Drive - Suite 2]

2, Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Kramer Management, Inc., dated August 1, 2007.
[1100 E. Norris Drive]

3 Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center (Fk/a
Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Cardinal Slecp Center of LaSalle County, LLC, dated
August 1, 2005, as modified by First Addendum to Lease Agreement dated September 8, 2005.
[1100 E. Norris Drive]

4, Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
and Maria Estillo, M.D. dated November 10, 2011 [1209 Starfire Drive, Suite 2]

5. Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(f/k/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and George DePhillips M.D., dated December 22, 2006.
[Medical Condominium, 1209 Starfire Drive — Suite 2]

6. Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center (fk/a
Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Dialysis Centers of America — Illinois, Inc., dated July 6,
2006. [Medical Condominium, 1209 Starfire Drive]

7. Office Lease Agreemnent by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

(f’k/a Commounity Hospital of Ottawa) and R.L. Goel M.D., dated July 31, 2000, as amended by
Office Leasec Amendment dated May 12, 2006. [Medical Condominium, 1209 Starfire Drive —
Suite 2]

8. Medical Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center (fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and HeartCare Midwest, dated March
29, 2007. [1050 E. Norris Drive, #2C]

9. Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(f/k/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Cardiology Associates of Northern Illinois, L.L.C.
d/b/a Heartland Cardiovascular Center, L.L.C., dated July 31, 2000. [Medical Condominium,
1209 Starfire Drive — Suite 2]

10.  Medical Office Leasc Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center (fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Gerald Levisay, M.D., dated April
28, 2006. [1050 E. Norris Drive, #1C}




11.  Medical Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center (£k/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Illinois Valley Surgical Associates,
dated July 30, 2010. [1050 E. Norris Drive, #2B]

12.  Storage Rental & Staff Usage Agreement by and between Ottawa Regjonal Hospital &
Healthcare Center (f'k/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Dr. Koehn and Dr. Estillo, dated
December 16, 2004. [1100 E. Norris Drive]

13.  Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center (f/k/a
Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Tiffany Mance M.T., dated June 3, 2009. [1050 E. Norris
Drive, #2D] .

14.  Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Matemnal Fetal Diagnosis Center, dated February 1,
2005. [1100 E. Norris Drive] :

15.  Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center and
Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc., dated January 1, 2010. [1614 E. Norris Drive]

16.  Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center and
Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc,, dated January 1, 2010. [102 11" Street, Marseilles]

17.  Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
and OSF Healthcare System, dated November __, 2009. [Medical Condominium, 1209 Starfire
Drive — Suite 2]

18.  Office Lease Agrecment by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(f/k/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Renal Care Associates, dated February 1, 2005. [1100
E. Norris Drive]

19.  Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and James Williams M.D., dated March 2, 2007. [1100 E.
Norris Drive]

20. Medical Office Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center (fk/a Community Hospital of Ottawa) and Women’s Healthcare Partners,
dated April 30, 2007. [1050 E. Norris Drive, #1B]

21. Lease Agreement by and between Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
(assigned from Ottawa Medical Center, P.C.) and Benner Family Pharmacy, Inc., dated April 20,
2009. [1614 E. Nomis Drive]

22.  Positron Emission Tomography Pad Rental Agreement by and between Ottawa Medical
Center, P.C. and Northern Shared Medical Services, Inc., dated September 2005.

-14-
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() None.

(b) BNY Midwest Trust Company, UCC Financing Statement Number 8737924, filed on
May 26, 2004; Continuation, UCC Financing Statement Number 08987110, filed May 19, 2009;
Amendment, UCC Financing Statement Number 089871410, filed on May 19, 2009 (changing
secured party name to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.); Amendment, UCC
Financing Statement Number 09065772, filed September 16, 2010 (changing name of debtor);
Amendment, UCC Financing Statement Number 9067161, filed on September 24, 2010 (adding
secured party of The First National Bank of Ottawa, as Lender under the Series 2010

Obligation).
(© None.
(d) None.

(6) A portion of the Owned Real Property as shown on Maps 1, 2, 3 and 4 attached to this
Schedule 5.11.1, is located within a 100 year flood area. As shown on the Attached Maps 1, 2, 3
and 4, all occupied structures on the Owned Real Property are located outside of the 100 year
flood arca; however the pillars supporting the 1050 Parking Garage are within the 100 year flood

i area.
® None.
j {h) None.
| (i)  None.
)] None.
-15-
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None.

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.11.2

Ottawa Compliance with Environmental Law
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Schedule 5.12
Ottawa Title Exceptions

1. BNY Midwest Trust Company, UCC Financing Statement Number 8737924, filed on May
26, 2004; Continuation, UCC Financing Statement Number 08987110, filed May 19, 2009;
Amendment, UCC Financing Statement Number 089871410, filed on May 19, 2009 (changing
secured party name to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.); Amendment, UCC
Financing Statement Number 09065772, filed September 16, 2010 (changing name of debtor);
Amendment, UCC Financing Statement Number 9067161, filed on September 24, 2010 (adding
secured party of The First National Bank of Ottawa, as Lender under the Series 2010
Obligation).

2 First National Bank of Ottawa, UCC Financing Statement Number 15438924, filed on July 16,
2010; Termination, UCC Financing Statement Number 01743234, filed on August 12, 2010,

3. Gordon Food Service, UCC Financing Statement Number 15584572, filed on September 10,
2010.

4, Siemens Financial Service, Inc.,, UCC Financing Statement Number 14249044, filed on
April 29, 2009, as assigned by Siemens Diagnostics Finance Co. LLC, pursuant to UCC
Financing Statement 8992474, filed on June 26, 2009.

5. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation, UCC Financing Statement Number 9652868, filed on
March 22, 2005; Continuation, UCC Financing Statement Number 09029785, filed on February
22, 2010.

-17-
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Schedule 5.13

Ottawa Affiliates and Subsidiaries
Radiation Oncology of Northern Illinois, LLC (57% ownership interest)
Fox River Cancer Center, LLC (38% ownership interest)
Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc. (sole shareholder)

Ottawa Regional Foundation (members are individuals who serve on Governing Board of
ORHHC)

i Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.
OR Cardinal Sleep, LLC
OR DME, LLC (50% ownership interest)

- ATTACHMENT #5




Schedule 5.15

Ottawa Insurance Co'verage

bttawa Reglonal Medical Center

1. Sentinental Insurance | Commercial Package 3/19/12

Company (including
commercial general
liability)

2. Columbia Casualty Malpractice Ins. for SHIN 4/1/12
Insurance Express Care '

3. | Standard Fire Flood Ins, 3| 7721712
Insurance

4. |ISMIE Malpractice SN 1/1/13

Ottawa Regionai Hospital and Healthcare Center

5. | Federal Insurance Property Policy SN 9/1/12
Company

6. Federal Insurance Business Automobile | SENEN 9/1/12
Company

7. | Progressive Premier | Business Automobile $- 9/1/12
Insurance Company | - Transport
of Illinois

8. | Columbia Casualty | Excess Liability s 9/1/12
Insurance Company

9. | Ace Property & Heliport Liability S 9/1/12
Casualty Insurance
Company

10. | Westchester Fire Non-owned Aircraft | S 9/1/12
Insurance Company | Liability

11. | Federal Insurance Management $- 8/31/12
Company Liability

12. | Travelers Casualty & | Fiduciary Liability | SJE 9/1/12

ATTACHMENT #5
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Surety Compéi;;” .
13. | Self-Insurance Trust | Hospital Professional | N/A N/A
Liability and General
Liability
Auxiliary
14. | Addison Insurance | Liability for Re Runs | SH 9/25/12
Company store

All of the above Insurance Policies are in full force and effect and will remain in full force and
effect through the Closing Date.

ATTACHMENT #5
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None.

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.16

Ottawa Tax Returns
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Schedule 5.17.1

Ottawa Employee Benefit Plans
! Plaps Maintained by Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center Employee Healthcare Plan (Plan No.
504)

i ‘ Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center CIGNA Traditional Dental Insurance
: (Plan No. 503)

Ottawa Regional Hospital Healthcare Center — Group Long Term Disability Insurance
Certificate with The Hartford (Plan No. 507)

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center - Executive Life and Long Term
Disability Plan

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center Salary Conversion Plan — Cafeteria Plan
(Plan No. 506)

Trust Group 24 Hour Business Activity Accident Group Insurance Arrangement (Plan

I

J

|

] Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Hospital Employee Benefit Association
No. 505)

i

. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Employee Group Term Life Insurance
i Plan (Plan No, 501)

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Profit Sharing & 401(k) Plan (Plan No.
002)

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center 403(b) Plan (Plan No. 003)

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Tuition Reimbursement Program Policy

Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center Executive 457(b) Plan

Lifetime medical benefits are being provided to two retirees ([ G

Plans Maintained by Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.

The Nonqualified Plan of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.

22
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Schedule 5.17.3
Ottawa Benefit Plans without IRS Determinations
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Profit Sharing & 401(k) Plan.

{Note: ORHHC relied on the IRS favorable opinion letter for the prototype plan].
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Schedule 5.17.6

E Ottawa Benefit Plan Exceptions
| (i) None.

|

]

iiii Lifetime retiree medical benefits are provided to two former employees: (JN xxd

! (iii)None.
i {iv) None.
{v) None.
(vi) None.

J (vii) Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center — Executive 457(b) Plan and the
i Nonqualified Plan of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc.

(viii) None.
(ix) None.

(x) The 2009 Form 5500 for the 403(b) Plan was filed three weeks late.

: (xi) None,

(xil) Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center Executive 457(b) Plan, the liabilities of
which relate solely to salary reduction, elective deferrals, and earnings. Total Plan
Liability Balance (Including Amounts Payable on a Change of Control) : §

(as of 12/31/2011).

The Nonqualified Plan of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc., the liabilities of which
relate solely to salary reduction, elective deferrals, and eamnings. Total Plan Liability
Balance (Including Amounts Payable on a Change of Control): SHE (= of
12/31/2011).

(xiii) The lifetime retiree medical benefits provided to two former employees may not be
terminated by the sponsoring employer.

(xiv) None.

-4 .-
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None.

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.17.7

Ottawa Changes in Legal and Beneficial Ownership




None,

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.18

Ottawa Labor Relations




Schedule 5.19
Ottawa Payment Programs
5.19.1 Ottawa received a Notice of Termination letter from CMS related to certain physical

deficiencies identified in an IDPH survey as violating the Medicare Conditions of Participation.
Ottawa has submitted a revised Plan of Correction. See Schedule 5.8.2 for further description.

5.19.2 None.
5.19.3 None.
5.19.4 None.
5.19.8 Certain overpayments have been identified in connection with the audits conducted under
the RAC program and such overpayments are being addressed on a case-by-case basis as

notification is received.

5.19.9 Ottawa will comply with any required notices when the transaction is complete,

-27-
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Schedule 5.19.5
Ottawa Open Cost Reports
Medicare Cost Reports FY 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 are open.
Medicaid Cost Reports FY 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 are open.
Blue Cross Cost Report FY 2011 is open.

Champus Cost Report FY 2011 is open.
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None.

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.19.6

Ottawa Payment Programs Exceptions

-29-
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Schedule 5.19.7

Ottawa Audit Exceptions

ORHHC received a letter from CMS, dated August 3, 2009 regarding Progressive Corrective
Action case of the use of HCPC 90806 when billing Psychiatric Therapeutic Services and
notifying ORHHC that the case continues to be active.

ORHHC received a letter from CMS dated September 15, 2011 regarding a prepay probe
notification related to DRG codes 291-293 (1 Day Stay—Heart Failure).

Audits performed in connection with the RAC program.

-30-
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Schedunle 5.20
Ottawa Accreditation

Ottawa received a Notice of Termination letter from CMS related to certain physical deficiencies
identified in an IDPH survey as violating the Medicare Conditions of Participation. Ottawa has
! submitted a revised Plan of Correction. See Schedule 5.8.2 for further description.

-31-
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None.
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Schedule 5.21

Ottawa Material Contract Defaults
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(8) None.
(b) Nome.

Schedule 5.22

Ottawa Compliance

{¢)  See Schedule 5.15.7 and Schedule 5.3.2.

{(d None.

(e)  Noze.

() None.
ATTACHMENT #5
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None.

ATTACHMENT #5

Schedule 5.24

Ottawa Medical Staff
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SCHEDULE 6.3.1

; OSF Liens and Defaults Under Material Contracts

Exceptions: NONE

706721444 0913601
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SCHEDULE 6.3.2

OSF Required Approvals

Exceptions:

A. Approval by the Governing Board of The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis is
required pursuant to Article II, Section 2 of the corporate bylaws of OSF.

B. The following consents are required to add new Members to the OSF Obligated Group:

. Written consent of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, pursuant to:

: o Reimbursement Agreement dated as of August 1, 2007 by and between
; OSF Healthcare System and Wachovia Bank, National Association (now
5 Wells Fargo Bank, National Association)

o Reimbursement Agreement dated as of March 1, 2009 between Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, and OSF Healthcare System

. Written consent of PNC Bank, National Association, pursuant to:

o Reimbursement Agreement dated as of March 1, 2009 by and between
OSF Healthcare System and National City Bank (now PNC Bank,
National Association}

o Standby Bond Purchase Agreement dated as August 1, 2007 among OSF
Healthcare System, National City Bank (now PNC Bank, National
Association), and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee

. Written consent of JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, pursuant to:

0 Reimbursement Agreement dated as of March 1, 2009 between JPMorgan
Chase Bank, National Association, and OSF Healthcare System

o) Standby Bond Purchase Agreement dated as August 1, 2007 among OSF
Healthcare System, JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee

o Loan Agrecment dated as of August 1, 2009 among JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, as Lender, and Illinois Finance Authority, as
Issuer, and OSF Healthcare System, as Borrower

o Written consent of Bank of America, N.A. pursuant to a Credit Agreement dated
as of August 24, 2011, between Bank of America, N.A. and OSF Healthcare
System

70672144v4 0913601
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SCHEDULE 6.6
OSF Legal Proceedings

Exceptions: NONE

70672144v4 0913601
ATTACHMENT #5
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SCHEDULE 6.7.2

OSF Exceptions to GAAP

Exceptions:

l. Inventories. Inventory counts are taken during the later part of August each year instead
of on September 30th. OSF engages an outside entity to perform counting service and in order to
receive the results of the counts in time to close the books in a timely manner the counts are
performed in the month before year-end. Supplies purchased in the month of September are
expensed and reviewed for reasonableness. Any adjustments that would be incurred as a result
of performing the count on September 30th are immaterial.

2. Minor Equipment. OSF has a capital policy that requires capitalization of assets in
i excess of $5,000. As a result, there are some minor equipment items under the $5,000 limit that
' are expenses. The limit is set to eliminate undue paperwork and excessive approvals for
inexpensive items and the total impact on the financial statements is immaterial.

3. Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs. OSF uses a straight line basis for amortizing bond
issuance costs instead of amortizing the costs over the actual bond maturity schedule. The
impact on the financial statements is immaterial.

4, QOperating Leases. OSF records lease expense equal to payments made during the fiscal
year and does not take into comsideration future rate increases built into lease contracts. This
practice only applies to building leases and is immaterial to the financial statements.

5. Recurring_Service Contracts. OSF records purchased service expense for service
; contracts under $50,000 when paid and does not take into consideration any amounts that pertain
: to the subsequent fiscal year. The impact on any resulting prepaid asset is immaterial to the
financial statements.

70672144v4 0913601
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SCHEDULE 6.7.3

OSF Material Changes

Exceptions:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board approved on December 1, 2010 the issuance of a
final Accounting Standards Update entitled, “Health Care Entities: Presentation and Disclosure
of Net Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts,” pursuant to which a health care entity is required to present the provision for bad
debts as a component of net revenues within the revenue section of the statement of operations.
OSF implemented this new accounting standard effective October 1, 2011.

70672144v4 0913601
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SCHEDULE 6.7.4

OSF Liabilities

Exceptions: NONE

70672144v4 0913601
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SCHEDULE 6.8

' OSF Interim Changes

Exceptions:

6.8.1 -NONE
6.8.2 - NONE

6.8.3 — James M. Moore retired from the office of Chief Executive Officer of OSF Healthcare
System, from the offices of Vice-Chairperson of OSF subsidiary and affiliate corporations, and
from the Boards of Directors of OSF Healthcare System and its subsidiary and affiliate
corporations, effective as of February 25, 2011. Kevin D. Schoeplein was appointed to replace
Mr. Moore in all such offices and positions.

6.8.4 - NONE

70672144v4 0913601
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Exceptions: INONE.

ATTACHMENT #5

SCHEDULE 6.10.2

OSF Payment Programs
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Schedule 10.7

Amendments to Ottawa Medical Staff Bylaws

The following sections of the Medical Staff Bylaws shall be amended to include the underlined
language, prohibiting the performance of any procedures and the provision of any service in
violation of the Ethical and Religious Directives:

Article I Section 3.7

Qualifications for Membership

Article I Section 8
1.1. CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

A practitioner providing clinical services at Ottawa Regional Hospital and Healthcare Center
may exercise only those privileges granted by the Governing Board. Requests for clinical
privileges must be accompanied by evidence of education, training, experience and demonstrated
current competence. Requests for clinical privileges will be processed only when the potential
applicant meets the current minimum threshold criteria recommended by the Medical Executive
Committee and approved by the Governing Board. In the event there is a request for which there
are no approved criteria the Governing Board, with input from thc Medical Executive Committee
and Administration, will first determine if it will allow the privilege and, if so, direct the Medical
Executive Committee to promptly develop privileging criteria by considering required licensure,
relevant training or expcrience, current competence, and ability to perform the privileges
requested. Requests for privileges, including dental, podiatric, temporary and emergency
privileges, will be evaluated in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Credentials
Procedure Manual. In exceptional circumstances, the Governing Board may grant Medical Staff
membership without clinical privileges.

Article I Section 9.7

Responsibilities of Each Member

ATTACHMENT #5
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Article IT Section 5
1.2 COMPLIANCE WITH ETHICAL AND RELIGIOUS DIRECTIVES

Article VI CORRECTIVE ACTION
INITIATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION

Corrective action may be initiated when a member of the Medical Staff engages in professional
conduct either within or outside the Hospital which is reasonably likely to be detrimental to the
quahly of pahent care or safety, or to be dlsruptwe to or mterfere w1th the Hospltal s opemtlons

correctlve actlon other than summary suspenswn or an automatlc suspenswn ‘must be in writing
and submitted to the President and supported by reference to the specific activities or conduct,
which constitutes the grounds for the request. Corrective action may be requested by: () any
officer of the Medical Staff; (b) the Chief of any clinical service in which the member holds
appointment or exercises clinical privileges; (c) the Chief Executive Officer or designee; (d) the
Governing Board acting as a group, or by the Chairman of the Board

-36 -
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Schedule 17.1.589

Material Consents

Exceptions:

A. Certificate of exemption for change of ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center issued by the THSFRB.

B. Other consents and approvals as listed in Schedule 5.3.2.

C. Other consents and approvals as listed in Schedule 6.3.2.

-37-
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17.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION (co-applicants must also provide this information). Per 77 IAC 1130.520(b)(3), an
applicant must demonstrate it has sufficient funds to finance the acquisition and to operate the facility for 36 months by
providing evidence of a bond rating of “A” or better (that nust be less than two years old) from Fitch, Moody or
Standard and Poor’s rating agencies or evidence of compliance with the financial viability review criteria (as applicable)
to the type of facility being acquired (as specified a1 77 IAC 1120). Append as ATTACHMENT #6.

OSF holds a bond rating of “A” or better from Standard & Poor’s as of December 12, 2011. The financial information for OSF
and Otiawa is attached as Attachment #6.
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lllinois Finance Authority

OSF Healthcare System; Joint Criteria;

System

Ilinois Fin Auth, lllinois

OSF Hithcare Sys, lllinois

lllinois Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare Systern)

Long Term Rating A/Stable

Nlinois Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare System) hosp VRDO ser 20090

Long Term Rating AAAJA-1
Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR})/Stable

IHinols Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare System) hosp VRDB ser 2007E
Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable

Long Term Rating AA-/A-1

lilinois Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare System) hosp VRDB ser 2007F

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable
Long Term Rating AA-IA-1

Affirmed

Current
Affirmed

Affirmed
Current

Affirmed
Current
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Rationale

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services affirmed its ‘A’ long-term rating to lllinois Finance Authority's $162.91 million
series 2010 fixed-rate bonds, issued on behalf of OSF Heaithcare System (OSF). In addition, Standard & Poor's
affirmed its ‘A’ long-term rating and underlying rating (SPUR) on various series of debt issued for OSF. The outiook
is stable.

The affirmed ratings on the series 2007G, 20098, 2009C, and 2009D bonds are based on the application of
Standard & Poor's joint criteria, whereby the long-term component of the rating is based on OSF's 'A’ underlying
rating {SPUR) and the letters of credit (LOC) provided by various banks. The ratings are based on Standard &
Poor's joint criteria with medium correlation for the series 2009B bonds and low correlation for the series 2007G,
2009C, and 2009D bonds. Each series has the benefit of a separate LOC; PNC Bank, Wells Fargo Bank N.A., and
JPMorgan Chase Bank issued LOCs to back the series 20098, 2009C, and 2009D bonds, respectively. The series
2007G bonds are backed by a Wells Fargo N.A. LOC. The obligation of OSF Healthcare System, as well as the
banks' obligations established by the LOCs, to make debt service payments support the joint ratings. The short-
term component of the ratings is based solely on the banks' ratings.

The affirmation reflects the completion of the Milestone capital project. With this in mind, OSF was able to maintain
its balance sheet as anticipated while improving its operations.

The 'A' long-term rating continues to reflect Standard & Poor's assessment of OSF's:

s Improved operations driven by the strength of the new facility in the Peoria market;

« Dominant business position in the Peoria market, where its flagship Saint Francis Medical Center is located, and
generally good position in the markets despite some challenges including competition and the weak economic
Standard & Poor's | Ratings Direct on the Global Credit Portal | December 12, 2011 2 environment;

» Breadth of facilities and services, enhanced by its system wide strategic priorities focused on specific business
line development, growth in ambulatory care, and enhanced physician alignment; and

» Generally stable cash position with good liquidity levels for the rating.

Offsetting credit factors, in Standard & Poor's opinion, include:

» Moderately high leverage with debt to capitalization of 55% although this increased leverage is partially due to a
decline in pension funded status;

» A defined benefit pension plan that was only 57% funded as of Sept. 30, 2010 (and frozen in March, 2011).
Other credit factors include the Federal Trade Commission challenging the affiliation of OSF and the Rockford
Health System. The administrative and judicial review of the affiliation could take 24 months or more. Both OSF
and Rockford Heaith believe that the affiliation is the right thing to do for the overall market and are committed to
pursuing ali legal options available. Currently there is a preliminary injunction in place to stop the affiliation. It is
Standard & Poor's view that this will be a distraction to management, but we do not expect to see this having an
impact on management's ability to continue to focus on plans to improve operations and to further build the
balance sheet.

Based in Peoria, Ili., the Sisters of the Third Order of Saint Francis sponsor OSF, which operates seven hospitals,
one nursing home center, and other health care-related entities, Six of the hospitals and the long-term-care facility
are located in central and northern lllinois while one hospital is located in Michigan. The flagship hospital, Saint
Francis Medical Center, is a 616-licensed-bed (575 staffed beds), tertiary acute-care teaching hospital. The
obligated group's unrestricted receivables secure the series 2010 bonds, which are on parity with OSF's existing
rated debt. Standard & Poor's analysis takes into account the consolidated system results, and all numbers and
ratios mentioned in this report reflect the consolidated system unless otherwise stated.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects Standard & Poor's expectation that OSF will continue to improve operating resutts.
However, OSF continues to have little flexibility at the current rating level, and if operations do not maintain the
improvements of fiscal 2011, if liquidity declines beyond current levels, or if challenges emerge during the FTC
challenge of the affiliation with Rockford Health System, we could lower the rating. Little potential exists for a
higher rating within the two-year outlook period, in part due to the time needed to assess the outcome of the
system's strategy and the impact of the FTC challenge.

ATTACHMENT #6
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Market Profile

Utilization

OSF's overall utilization has been stable or slightly improving during the past couple of years after a drop in
admissions the mid-2000s mainly due to capacity constraints. In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, admissions were
56,820 and 58,316, respectively. Capacity constraints had been a challenge for the flagship hospital but have been
alleviated with the compietion of the Milestone Project, an eight-story, 440,000-square-foot building that focuses on
pediatrics, cardiology, emergency services, and surgery and intensive-care beds.
www.standardandpoors.comiratingsdirect

lilinois Finance Authority OSF Healthcare System; Joint Criteria; System
Operating entities

OSF Saint Francis Medical Center. OSF Saint Francis Medical Center is a tertiary acute-care teaching hospital

located near downtown Peoria, !ll. Founded in 1877, Saint Francis Medical Center was the first hospital established
by the corporation.

OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center. OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center is an acute-care hospital located in a
growing area of Rockford, Ifl. Saint Anthony provides primary, secondary, and tertiary care, including open-heart
surgery. It is also designated by the State of lllinois as a Level I {highest level} trauma center and a regional burn
unit.

OSF St. Joseph Medical Center, OSF St. Joseph Medical Center is an acute-care hospital located in
Bloomington, Il

St. Joseph provides primary, secondary, and tertiary care, including open-heart surgery. In addition, OSF
purchased

certain assets of Carle Clinic Association, P.C. {(Carle Clinic) located in or related to its medical office building in
Bloomington, and leased the medical office building.

St, Mary Medical Center. St. Mary Medical Center is an acute-care hospital located in Galesburg, ll.

St. Francis Hospital. St. Francis Hospital is an acute-care general hospital located in Escanaba, Mich. St. Francis
Hospital currently operates 48 beds, including 10 Medicare-approved swing beds.

OSF Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center. OSF Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center is an
acute-care hospital facility located in Pontiac, Ill. Saint James is the only acute-care hospital in Livingston County.
OSF Holy Family Medical Center. OSF Holy Family Medical Center, formerly known as Community Medical
Center of Western lllinois, was acquired by OSF Healthcare System in May 2007. The acquisition, initiated by
Community Medical Center, complements the system’s strategy to maintain and potentially increase the market
share for western lliinois. The facility currently operates 23 acute-care beds, also certified as swing beds. The
facility

has been designated as a critical-access hospital by Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Also, it
operates a home health agency and a provider-based rural health clinic.

Saint Clare Home. Saint Clare Home is a 98-bed long-term care facility located in Peoria Heights, lll. Saint Clare
currently operates all its licensed beds, which currently include 94 skilled-care beds and four sheltered-care beds.
OSF Medical Group and other employed physicians. OSF Medica! Group and other employed physicians
consists

of approximately 641 physicians and mid-level providers employed by CSF Healthcare in approximately 58 office
locations throughout lllinois and Michigan. These providers bring together different medical disciplines to create an
integrated system of patient-centered care. OSF considers nurse practitioners and physician assistants an integral
part of its system by enabling physicians to continue a personal approach to patient care while increasing the
number of patients served.
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OSF Healthcare Systems And Subsidiaries, lliinois Financial Statistics
--Fiscal year ended Sept. 30--

Sept. 30, 2011*

Income statement and cash flow

Operating revenue ($000s)
Total expenses ($000s)
Operating income {$000s)
Operating margin {%)

Net non-operating revenues
(3000s)

Excess income ($000s)
Excess margin (%)

Change in net assets ($000s)
EBIDA/total revenue (%)

Cash flow/total liabilities (%)
Capital expenditures ($000s})
Debt

Net available for debt service
{$000s)

Maximum debt service {$000s)
Maximum debt service coverage

{x)
Maximum debt service-to-total
revenue (%)

Balance sheet
Unrestricted cash and
investments {$000s)

Unrestricted days' cash on hand
Unrestricted cash/debt (%)
Cushion ratio {x)

Net fixed assets ($000s)
Long-term debt ($000s}

1,865,036
1,846,709
20,755
1.1
37,414
55,867
29
16,119
10.1

9.0

N.A.

191,654
59,519
3.2

31

759,738

158
87.6
12.8

893,971
867,290

www.standardandpoors.com/ratingsdire

ct

2010 2009

1,694,782
1,727,038
(30,113}
(1.9}
32,154
2,041
0.1
40,554
7.0
5.5
184,251

120,857
59,519
2.0

34

733,024

163

88.6

123
919,791
826,957

2008
1642505 1,559,127
1645570 1,514,301

(2,617) 44,826
(0.2) 2.9
435 20,461

(8.144) 57,060
(0.5) 36

(143,842) (8.227)
6.0 10.3
45 2.9

236,385 178,565

98,432 161,101

59,519 59,519

1.7 27
386 38

724,664 738,532
169 187
81.2 93.4
122 124

820,431 658,375

892,760 790,363

2007

1,715,804
1,585,748
120,056
7.0

56,626

169,220
9.5
137,759
146
19.1
122,649

258,017
59,519
43

34

723976

173
887
122

560,674
816,035
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OSF Healthcare Systems And Subsidiaries, lllincis Financial Statistics {cont)

Unrestricted fund balance 692465 672,775 662,820 812,049 815,541
($000s}

Debt/capitalization (%) 556 55.1 57.4 49.3 50.0
Average age of plant (years) N.A. 118 12.0 11.7 11.9
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Debt Derivative Profile: Low Risk

OSF's swap program has four floating- to fixed-rate swaps and three basis swaps with a total notional amount of
about $566 million outstanding. When management refunded the majerity of OSF's outstanding auction-rate
securities in March 2009, OSF did an internal reallocation of the interest rate swaps to other variable-rate bond
issues. All of the swap contracts are with Merrili Lynch & Co. (A-/Negative/A-2 as the counterparty.

Standard & Poor’s assigned OSF's swap program a debt derivative profile (DDP) overall score of '2.0" on a scale of
1" to '4", in which "1’ reflects the lowest risk. The '2.0' overall DDP score specifically reflects Standard & Poor's

view that OSF's swap program poses low risk to its credit quality, particularly given its financial resources relfative
to any potential swap-termination liability. The score also reflects the average economic viability of the contract
because its structure is well matched to the underlying debt, and good management practices including a formal
debt and swap-management plan.

Related Criteria And Research

¢ USPF Criteria: Not-For-Profit Health Care, June 14, 2007

e USPF Criteria: Municipal Swaps, June 27, 2007

» USPF Criteria; Debt Derivative Profile Scores, March 27, 2006

« Criteria: Standard & Poor's Revises Its Analysis For Housing Finance Agency Single-Family Mortgage Insurance
Funds, Jan. 26, 2010

« Criteria: Methodology And Assumptions: Approach To Evaluating Letter Of Credit-Supported Debt, July 6, 2009
+ USPF Criteria: Municipal Applications For Joint Support Criteria, June 25, 2007

Ratings Detail (As of December 12, 2011)
INinois Fin Auth, IHlinois

OSF Hithcare Sys, lllinois
llinois Finance Authority {OSF Healthcare System) hosp YRDB ser 20098

Long Term Rating AAAJA-1 Affirmed
Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable Affirmed
lllinois Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare Systermn) hosp VRDO ser 20076
Long Term Rating AAAJA-1+ Aflirmed
Unenhanced Rating A(SPURYStable Aflirmed
llinois Finance Authority (OSF Healthcare System) hosp VRDO ser 2009C
Long Term Rating AAANA-1+ Affirmed
Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable Affirmed
Many issues are enhanced by bond insurance.
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No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, model, software or other application or output there from) or any part thereof
(Content} may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system,
without the prior written permission of S&P. The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P, its affiliates, and any
third-party providers, as well as Iheir direclors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (colleclively S&F Parties) do not guarantee the
aceuracy, completeness, timeliness or availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions, regardless of the
cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Conltent, or for the security or mainlenance of any data input by the user. The Content is
provided on an "as is" basis, S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM FROM
BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE
CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party
for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special o consegquential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses
{including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opporlunity costs) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the
possibility of such damages.

Credit-related analyses, including ratings, and stalements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not
statements of facl or recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any investment decisions. S&P assumes no
obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The Conlent should not be relied on and is not a subslitute for the
skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business
decisions. S&P's opinions and analyses do nol address the suitability of any security. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor.
While S&P has obtained information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due
diligence or independent verification of any information it receives.

S&P keeps cerlain activities of ifs business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their
respective activities. As a result, certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has
established policies and procedures to maintain the confidentiality of cartain non-public information received in connection with each analytical

process.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain credit-related analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from
obligors. S&P reserves the right 1o disseminate its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web

sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com and www.globalcreditporlal.com {subscription), and may be

distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-parly redisiributors. Additional information about our ratings fees is
available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Certlfied Public Accountants

= VlcGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Governors
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Ottawa, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ottawa Regional Hospital &
Healthcare Center and affiliates as of Apri! 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center and affiliates as of

April 30, 2011 and 2010 and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effective May 1, 2010 the Hospital adopted the new accounting provisions relating to consolidation of
noncontrolling interests in consolidated financial statements as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, The adoption of this guidance resulted in a retroactive restatement of net assets on

the consolidated balance sheet as of April 30, 2010.
/?c% / bl | L

Davenport, lowa
July 21, 2011

! ATTACHMENT #6
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended April 30, 2011 and 2010

286

2011 2010
Unrestricted net assets:
Net patient service revenue 77,163,755 3 72,594,787
Other operating revenue 1,657,710 1,442,535
Net assets released from restriction, used for operations 24,952 1,011,709
Total operating revenue 78,846,417 75,049,031
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 35,284,268 32,196,042
Employee benefits 12,236,566 11,683,461
Supplies and other expenses 26,593,358 24,264 558
Depreciation and amortization 7,013,253 6,394,742
Interest 318,423 147,245
Provision for bad debts 3,697,765 3,251,689
Total operating axpenses 85,143,633 77,937,738
(Loss) from operations (6,297,216) {2,888,707)
Nonoperating income, gains and losses, net:
Other nonoperating gains, net 2,364,974 1,291,183
Current year change in unrealized gains on trading securities 2,504,108 7,479,931
Nonoperating incoma, gains and losses, net 4,869,082 8,771,114
Excess (deficiency) of revanue over expenses (1,428,134) 5,882,407
Less excess of revenue over expenses attributable to
noncontrolling interest {170,757) (145,821)
Excess (deficiency} of revenua over expenses
attributable to controlling interest (1,598,891) 5,736,586
Current year change in unrealized gains {losses) on investments (21,570) 6,321
Net assets released from restriction, used for the acquisition of
property and equipment - 1,406,208
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets (1,620461) % 7149115
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidated Balance Sheets
April 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets 2011 2010
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,650907 § 2,881,387
Certificates of deposit 164,563 179,420
Receivables, net 9,231,329 10,318,869
Supplies and materials 1,870,371 2,003,231
Prepaid expenses:
Medicaid assessment program 284,113 -
Other 830,872 740,771
Total current assets 14,032,155 16,123,678
Assets Limited as to Use 40,980,313 39,933,282
Property and Equipment:
Land and improvements 3,829,891 3,627,524
Building and improvements 68,048,409 62,469,459
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 36,432,637 32,407,895
Construction in process 6,419,598 7,429,433
114,730,535 105,934,311
Less accumulated depreciation 57,898,956 51,242,180
56,831,579 54,692,131
Investments, primarily investment in associated company 1,748,137 1,726,823
Other Assets, primarily debt issuance costs, net and physician
advances 1,849,413 1,981,705

Total assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ 115,441,597

$ 114,457,619
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Liabilities and Net Assets 2011 2010
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 660,000 $% 635,000
Accounts payable 2,922,587 2,358,703
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 1,611,947 1,394,379
Accrued earned time 3,043,090 2,783,429
Deferred revenue, medicaid assessment program 561,969 -
Estimated third-party payor settiements 2,069,584 690,363
Other accrued expenses 2,253,959 1,860,190
Total current liabilities 13,123,136 9,722,064
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 12,324,302 12,988,448
Other Accrued Expenses 708,043 311,524
Estimated Self-Insurance Costs 1,251,000 1,351,000
Total liahilities 27,406,481 24,373,036
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 9 and 14)
Net Assets:
Uinrestricted 87,205,819 88,826,280
Noncontrolling interest - unrestricted 801,181 1,232,424
Temporarily restricted 23,391 21,154
Permanently restricted 4,725 4,725
Total net assets 88,035,116 90,084,583

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 115,441,597

$ 114,457,619
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended April 30, 2011 and 2010

Unrestricted
Temporarily  Permanently  Net Assets -
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Noncontrolling Total
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets interest Net Assets
Net assets, April 30, 2009 $ 81677165 & 428464 & 4725 § 12344603 § 83454957
Excess of revenue over expenses 5,736,586 - - 145,821 5,882,407
Net change in unrealized gains .
on investments 6,321 - - - 6,321
Donations - 2,010,607 - - 2,010,607
Net assels released from restriction 1,406,208 (2,417,917) - - (1,011,709)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest - - - (258,000) (258,000}
Change in net assets 7,149,115 (407,310) - {112,179) 6,629,626
Net assets, April 30, 2010 88,826,280 21,154 4,725 1,232,424 90,084,583
Excess of revenue over expenses (1,598,891) - - 170,757 (1,428,134)
Net change in unrealized {losses)
on investments (21,5670) - - - (21,5670)
Donations - 27,189 - - 27,189
Net assets released from restriction - (24,952) - - (24,952)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest - - - (602,000} {602,000)
Change in net assets (1,620,461) 2,237 - (431,243) (2,049,467)
Net assets, April 30, 2011 $ 87,205819 § 23391 § 4725 § 801181 $ 88,035,116

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows
Years Ended April 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ (2,049,467) § 6,629,626
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 6,984,479 6,327,146
Amorization of debt issuance costs 28,774 67,596
Amortization of bond premium (4,146) {3,998)
Amortization of physician advances and other assets 394,885 275,714
Loss on sale of property and equipment 2,706 34,829
Earnings in (excess of) distributions of associated company (42,884) 37,642
Restricted contributions - {1,000,000)
Net realized and unrealized (gains) on investments {3,493,632) (7,890,843)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest 602,000 258,000
Net changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables 1,087,540 224,758
{Increase) decrease in supplies and materials 132,860 {501,576)
{Increase) decrease in other assets {645,639) 32,271
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,584,541 940,081
{Decrease} in estimated self-insurance costs {100,000) (774,000)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,482,017 4,657,256
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of certificates of deposit, net 14,857 13,063
Purchase of assets limited as to use (1,031,829) (1,310,424)
Proceeds from sale of assets limited as o use 3,500,000 12,436,079
Purchase of property and eguipment (9,092,442) (16,414,801}
Proceeds from sale of equipment 153,859 56,794
Business acquisition - (1,362,769}
Advances on physician receivables (215,375) {369,160)
Collections on physician receivables 195,433 99,543
Investments released from restriction - 519,754
Net cash (used in) investing activities {6,475,497) (6,331,931)
Net Cash from Financing Activities: ‘
Principal payments on long-term debt (635,000) (615,000)
Restricted contributions - 1,000,000
Distributions to noncontrolling interest {602,000} (258,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ (1,237,000) $ 127,000
(Continued)
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows {Continued)
Years Ended April 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (1,230,480) $ (1,547.675)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning 2,881,387 4,429,062

Ending $ 1650907 §$ 2681387
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information,

cash payments for interest, excluding interest capitalized

2011 $329,000; 2010 $498,439 $ 318,423 151,609
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing Activities,

increase (decrease) in accounts payable incurred for the

purchase of property and equipment 188,050 (392,597)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Ceanter and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business:

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center (Hospital}, is licensed as a 99-bed, not-for-profit, acute
care hospital, including a 26-bed psychiatric care unit. The Hospital also provides related ancillary and
outpatient services. The Hospital’s affiliates include Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc.,
Radiation Oncology of Northern lllinois, LLC, Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Auxiliary
and Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Foundation.,

Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc. (ORHA) is an lllinois business corporation and is the sole
stockholder of Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc. (ORMC) and Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep
Center, LLC {ORCSC) and 50% owner of Ottawa Regional DME, LLC {DME}. The Hospital is the sole
stockholder of ORHA.

Ottawa Regional Medical Center, Inc, was incorporated as an lllinois business corporation in
September 2009 and purchased certain assets of a third-party in December 2009. ORMC provides
outpatient medical and diagnostic services and is consolidated with ORHA.

Ottawa Regional Cardinal Sleep Center, LLC and Ottawa Regional DME, LLC are limited liability
companies formed in July 2610. ORHA has no! made any initial capital contributions to these entities,
and there have been no operations within these entities as of April 30, 2011,

Radiation Oncology of Northern lllinois, LLC (RONI) is a limited liability company established to own
and operate a radiation oncology center. The Hospital has a 57% ownership interest in RONI. RONI is
consolidated with the Hospital.

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Auxiliary {Auxiliary) is a not-for-profit fund raising
organization whose purpose is to promote and advance the welfare of the Hospital.

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Foundation (Foundation) is a not-for-profit fund raising
organization whose purpose is to support and encourage health care services in furtherance of the
purpose of and in assistance to the Hospital, through providing financial and fund raising assistance
and in all other relevant ways aiding in supporting health care organizations and individuals interested
in careers in health care.

The above entities are collectively referred to as the Organization.
Significant accounting policies:

Accounting estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The use of
estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements is
primarily related to the determination of the net patient accounts receivable, estimated third-party payor
settlements and the estimated self-insurance costs. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation and
assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and
assumptions in the near term would be material to the consolidated financial statements.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financiai statements include the accounts of Ottawa
Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center, Ottawa Regional Healthcare Affiliates, Inc., Radiation
Oncotogy of Northern lllinois, LLC, Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Foundation and
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Auxiliary. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated upon consclidation.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash and certain
temporary cash investments not limited as to use. For purposes of reporting cash flows, the
Organization considers all temporary cash investments with [ess than three months original maturity to
be cash equivalents.

Patient receivables: The collection of receivables from third-party payors and patients is the
Organization's primary source of cash for operations and is critical to its operating performance. The
primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts for which the primary
insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts for deductibles and co-payments remain
outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amount, are
carried at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate
made for contractual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carried at the original charge for the service
provided less amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful
receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis, Management determines
the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by historical experience
applied to an aging of accounts. The Organization does not charge interest on receivables. Patient
accounts receivable are due in full when billed. Accounts are considered past due when an amount is
past due according to the payor's agreed-upon terms. Patient receivables are written off as bad debt
expense when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a
reduction of bad debt expense when received. As a service to the patient, the Organization bills third-
party payors directly and the patient when the patient’s liability is determined.

Receivables or payables related to estimated settlements on various payor contracts, primarily
Medicare and Medicaid, are reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes
in payor mix, business office operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state
governmental heaith care coverage could affect the Organization’s collection of accounts receivable,
cash flow and results of operations.

Supplies and materials: Supplies and materials are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market.

Assets limited as to use: Assets limited as to use include assets internally designated by the Board of
Governors for future capital improvements and replacements, over which the Board retains control and
may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes, assets held by trustees under bond
indenture agreements, assets held by trustees for self-insurance liabilities, assets restricted by donors
and assets held by trustees for a 4578 plan.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}

Investments: Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all debt
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment income includes
dividend, interest and other investment income and realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments classified as trading securities. Investment income that is initially restricted by donor
stipulation and for which the restriction will be satisfied in the same year is included in unrestricted net
assets. Unrealized gains and losses on investments of the Foundation are excluded from the excess of
revenue over expenses but are included as a change in unrestricted net assets,

investment in an associated company is accounted for using the equity method of accounting under
which the Hospital's share of net income of the associated company is recognized as net nonoperating
gains in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The Hospital has a 38%
interest in a limited liability company established to develop, build, acquire, own, hold, rehabilitate,
lease, finance and refinance, manage, operate and dispose of specific real estate located on or within
the Hospital campus.

The Foundation's investments totaling approximately $60,000 and $82,000 as of April 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively, are classified as other-than-trading.

The investments of the Organization are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and
credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with such investments and the leve! of uncertainty
related to changes in the value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in
risks in the near term would materially affect investment balances and the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

Self-insurance for professional and comprehensive general liability losses: Under the Hospital's self-
insurance program for professional and general liability losses, the Hospital makes contributions to an

independent bank trustee in order to establish a fund from which losses, if any, are to be paid. The
contributions to the fund are based on actuarial computations and projections made by an independent
actuary. The investment earnings of the trust fund are added to its principal balance and are included in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as other operating
revenue. Amounts charged to expense include estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims
and claims incurred but not reported.

Property and equipment: Properly and equipment is depreciated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated usefu! life of each asset. The Hospital capitalizes interest costs as a component of
construction in progress, based on interest costs of barrowing on the Series 2004 bonds, Capitalized
interest totaled approximately $329,000 and $498,000 for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

Debt issuance costs: Debt issuance costs are amortized over the term of the related debt using the
effective interest method. The unamortized cost of this asset is approximately $481,000 and $506,000
as of April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1, Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net patient service revenue: The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for
payments to the Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for
services rendered, and includes estimated retroactive revenue adjustments. Retroactive adjustments
are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered and such estimated amounts are revised in future periods as adjustments become
known.

Charity care: The Hospital provides care without charge or at amounts less than its established rates
to patients meeting certain criteria under its charity care policy. Because the Hospital does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Excess of revenue over expenses: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are
excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the
Foundation's unrealized gains and losses on investments and other investments classified as other-
than-trading investment securities.

Treatment of gifts and income on investments: Realized investment income on assets in the self-
insurance trust fund is reported as other operating revenue. Unrestricted gifts and realized income from
all other investments are recorded as noncperating gains.

Classification_of net assets: The Organization is required to report information regarding their financial
position and operations according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. The three classes are based on the
presence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Temporarily restricted net assets include net
assets restricted by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have
been restricted by donors to remain in trust or held in trust. Amounts for each of the three classes of
net assets (permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and unrestricted) are required to be displayed
in the consolidated balance sheets. The amounts of the change in each of the three classes of net
assets must be displayed in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The
temporarily restricted net assets as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 were restricted by a donor for
development of a new mental health facility and hospital improvements. The permanently restricted net
assets are restricted by donors for an endowment.

Noncontrolling interest: The Hospital has a 57% ownership interest in RONI, while another member
owns a noncontrolling interest. A pro rata share of the income or losses and net assets, in the form of
members’ equity, applicable to this interest has been recognized in the Organization's consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments: Financial instruments are described as cash or contractuat
obligations or rights to pay or to receive cash. The fair value for certain financial instruments
approximates the carrying value because of the shori-term maturity of these instruments which include
cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, due from and due to
third-party payors, and other current liabilities. The Organization's marketable investments and assels
limited as to use are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets. Based on borrowing rates
currently available to the Organization with similar terms and maturities, the fair value of the long-term
debt approximates $13,516,000 and $15,453,000 as of April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Because no market exists for certain of these financial instruments and because management does not
intend to sell these financial instruments, the Organization does not know whether the fair values
represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the
aggregate.

F air value measurements: The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
and expands disclosure of fair value measurements, which applies to all assets and liabilities that are
measured and reported on a fair value basis. See Note 7 for additional information.

Subseguent events: The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through July 21, 2011, the
date on which the consolidated financial statements were issued.

New accounting guidance: The FASB issued guidance to establish accounting and reporting standards
for a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary. This guidance clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity and may be reported as net assets in the
consolidated financia! statements, rather than as a liability or in the mezzanine section between
liabilities and net assets. This guidance also requires consolidated net income be reported at amounts
that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. The financial
statements have been retroactively restated for the adoption of the standard, which resulted in a
decrease in liabilities and an increase in net assets as of April 30, 2010 of $1,232,424,

Pending accounting pronouncements: In August 2010, Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2010-23,
Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure, was issued. ASU 2010-23 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2010. ASU 2010-23 addresses the diversity in the accounting for ¢charity care
disclosures, which some entities determine on the basis of a cost measurement, while others use a
revenue measurement, ASU 2010-23 requires that the measurement of charity care for disclosure
purposes be based on the direct and indirect costs of providing the charity care. Management is
evaluating the impact this ASU may have on its consolidated financial statements

In August 2010, ASU 2010-24, Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries,
was issued. ASU 2010-24 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. ASU 2010-
24 addresses the diversity in the accounting for medical malpractice and similar liabilities and their
related anticipated insurance recoveries by health care entities that mostly have netted insurance
recoveries against the accrued liability, afthough some have presented the anticipated insurance
recovery and the liability on a gross basis. The ASU clarifies that a health care entity should not net
insurance recoveries against a related claim liability; the amount of the claim liability should be
determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. Management is evaluating the impact this
ASU may have on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 2. Letter of Intent

In October 2010, the Crganization signed a nonbinding letter of intent with OSF Healthcare System (OSF)
to explore a potential affiliation. The Organization and OSF are each conducting due diligence procedures
and a decision on whether to move forward with an affiliation is expected within the next year.
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Note 3. Net Patient Service Revenue

Approximately 73% and 75% for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, of the Hospital's
net patient service revenue is earned under agreements with third-party payors. These agreements
provide for reimbursement to the Hospital at amounts different from its established rates. Contractual
adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the difference between the Hospital's
established rates for services and amounts reimbursed by third-parly payors and any differences between
estimated third-party reimbursement settlements for prior years and subsequent final settlements.
Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis in
the period the related services are rendered and are adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at -
prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient classification
system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Outpatient services are paid at
prospectively determined rates based on an Ambutatory Patient Classification (APC) System. The
Hospital is reimbursed for certain services at tentative rates with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary.

The Hospital's Medicare cost reporis have been finalized by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through
April 30, 2007. However, the Hospital has received tentative settlements on its Medicare cost reports
for the years ended April 30, 2008 through 2010. CMS has issued instructions to Fiscal Intermediaries
(F1) and Medicare Administrative Contractors (MAC) to delay finalizing Medicare cost reports for fiscal
years 2007 and after for hospitals that serve a disproportionate number of low income patients due to
concerns regarding the calculation of a hospital's Medicare disproportionate share (DSH) payments. As
the Hospital receives Medicare DSH payments, the latest finalized Medicare cost report is for the year
ended April 30, 2007.

Congress passed the Medicare Modernization Act in 2003, which among other things established a
demonstration of The Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. During fiscal year 2007, the
RAC's identified and corrected a significant amount of improper overpayments to providers. In 2006,
Congress passed the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 which authorized the expansion of the
RAC program to all 50 states. CMS is in the process of rolling out this program nationally. As such, the
Hospital may be subject to adjustments from such an audit at some time in the future.

Medicaid: The Hospital renders inpatient and outpatient services to Medicaid patients at prospective
rates or per diem determined by State of lllinois reimbursement formulas. These rates are not subject
to retroactive adjustment.

Blue Cross: The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Blue Cross beneficiaries
mainly under a per diem basis. For outpatient services rendered to Blue Cross beneficiaries, the
Hospital is primarily reimbursed based on a combination of fixed prices and discounted charges.

Other agreements: The Hospital has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial
insurance carriers, preferred provider organizations, health maintenance organizations and local
employers. The basis for payment to the Hospital under these agreements includes discounts from
established charges, prospectively determined per diem rates and prospectively determined rates per
discharge.
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Note 3. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)
A summary of net patient service revenue for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Gross patient service revenue $190,139,516 $173,359,707
Less discounts, allowances and estimated contractual
adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs (112,085,171)  (100,764,920)
Net patient service revenue $ 77,154,345 § 72,504,787

Contractual adjustment expense for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 includes the effect of a
change in the estimate of the liability due to third-party payors. The effects of this change in estimate is a
decrease in contractual adjustment expense of approximately $524,000 and $183,000 for the years
ended April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In December 2008, the Federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved the State
of Hlinois Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program. Under the Program, which is retroactive to July 1,
2008, a hospital receives additional Medicaid reimbursement from the State and pays a related
assessment. The Hospital's additional reimbursement for the periods ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 has
been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. Total reimbursement revenue recognized by
the Hospital related to this Program amounted to approximately $2,968,000 for the years ended April 30,
2011 and 2010, which is recorded as a reduction of contractuat adjustment expense. In July 2010, the
State modified the reimbursement and assessment payment schedules. The Hospital is required to pay
one quarter of the annual assessment each month from July through October and the reimbursement will
be received according to the same schedule. The amount of deferred revenue related to this Program as
of April 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $562,000 and none respectively. Total assessments
incurred by the Hospital related to this Program amounted to approximately $1,704,000 for the years
ended April 30, 2011 and 2010, which is included in other operating expenses. The prepaid expenses
related to this Program as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $284,000 and none,
respectively. The Program is effective through June 2013,

Note 4. Charity Care and Community Service

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. These records
include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under its charity care policy.
The amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under the Hospital's charity care
policy was approximately $6,154,000 and $5,135,000 for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Although not accounted for as charity care, the Hospital considers the Medicaid contractual adjustment
expense as charity care.

The Hospital provided the following services to Medicaid beneficiaries for the years ended April 30, 2011
and 2010:

2011 2010
Charges, based on established rates $ 31,801,000 $ 28,082,000
Estimated reimbursement (6,029,000) (5,992,000)
Contractual adjustment expense $ 25772000 $ 22090,000
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Note 4. Charity Care and Community Service {Continued)

In addition to charity care, the Hospital provided community benefits, including, but not limited to, the
following:

Operation of a full-time emergency room providing emergency medical services to all members of
the public requiring such care.

Maintenance of provider agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs.
Financial support of an indigent clinic in the community.
Externships for medical students.

Nursing scholarships or tuition payments for professional education to non-employees and
volunteers,

Provision of a clinical setting for undergraduate/vocational training to students enrolled in an
outside arganization.

Negative contributions in several departments including behavioral health, adult day care program,
etc.

Contributions to other not-for-profit organizations.

Meeting room overhead/space for not-for-profit organizations.

Recruitment of physicians and other health professionals for federally medical underserved areas,
Partnership with community college to address the health care work force shortage.

Health screenings, blood pressure checks, enroliment assistance in public programs, information
and referrals to community services and prevention programs offered free or at low cost to the
community.

Note 5. Compeosition of Receivables

Receivables as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Patients $ 22,172,004 $ 23,126,921
Less:
Estimated third-party contractual adjustments 8,268,886 8,095,628
Allowance for doubtful accounts 4,992,588 5,746,235
8,910,530 9,285,058
Other 320,799 1,033,811

$ 9231320 % 10,318,869
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Note 5. Composition of Receivables {Continued)

Medicare

Medicaid

Blue Cross

Other third-party payors
Patients

Note 6. Composition of Assets Limited as to Use

The Hospital is located in Ottawa, lllinois. The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most
of whom are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of net
receivables from patients and third-party payors as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

Assets fimited as to use as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

Board-designated assets for improvements and
replacements, common collective trust funds
Assets held by trustee and restricted by
self-insurance agreement
Assets held by trustee and restricted by bond indenture
agreement, cash and securities due in one year
Assets held by trustee and restricted by 457B plan agreement
Assets restricted by donor, cash and cash equivalents
Total assets limited as to use

The compaosition of assets limited as to use is as foliows:

Assets held by trustee and restricted by self-insurance agreement:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest receivable

2011 2010
19% 19%
7 9
6 7
45 41
23 24
100% 100%
201 2010
$ 34632983 § 33,918,959
4,681,138 4,392,149
1,293,310 1,293,248
444,766 303,047
28,116 25,879
$ 40,980,313 $ 39,933,282
2011 2010
$ 4568373 $ 4,292,792
12,765 99,357
$ 4581138  § 4,392,149
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Note 6. Composition of Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)
Assets held by trustee and restricted by 457B plan agreement:

2011 2010
Cash $ 167,849 § 133,631
Mutua! funds 276,817 169,416

$ 444,766 % 303,047

The composition of investment return for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Interest and dividend income, net of fees and expenses $ 712445 % 943,203
Net realized gain on sale of investments 1,011,094 404,591
Change in net unrealized gains on investments 2,482,538 7,486,252
Investment return $ 4206077 $ 8,834,046

Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes
in net assets for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 as follows:

2011 2010
Other operating revenue 5 188,989 § 222,372
Nonoperating gains 1,534,550 1,125,422
Change in net unrealized gains on investments 2,482,538 7,486,252

$ 4206077 $ 8834046
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
defines fair value as the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants and requires the use of valuation techniques that are
consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. Inputs to valuation
techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or hability.
Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources, or
unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances. In that regard, the guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation
inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted} for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity
has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities: quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well
as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.

Investments (including assets limited as to use): Where quoted prices are available in an active

market, securities are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities would
include equity securities and municipal bonds, Where quoted prices are available in markets that are
not active or contain other inputs that are observable or ¢an be corroborated by observable market
data, securities are classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Certain securities are not valued
based on observable transactions and are, therefore, classified as level 3. The Organization invests in
alternative investments consisting of common collective trust funds for which fair value is determined
using the net asset value per share for each fund. The fair value of the Organization's investment in the-
alternative investment funds generally represent the amount the Organization would expect to receive if
it were to liquidate the investment excluding any redemption charges that may apply. The following
table sets forth additional disclosures of the Organization’s investments whose fair value is estimated
using net asset value per share as of April 30, 2011:

Rademption
Unfunded Redemption Natice
Fair Value Commitment Fregquency Period
Assets:
Assets limited as to use:
Board-designated assets for improvements
and replacements, common
collactive trust funds:
NTCC Intemational Securities Fund (a} $ 6757832 § - Manthly 6 Days
NTCC CRM Midcap Value Fund (b) 942,630 - Maonthly 6 Days
NTCC CS McKee Large Cap Vailue Fund (b} 2,373,128 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC Marisco Fund (b) 2,388,742 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC NWQ Fund (b} 2,406,263 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC Sasco Fund (b) 686,912 - Monthty 6 Days
NTCC Small Cap Fund (b) 1,429,549 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC TCW Fund (b) 692,347 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC Wells Capital Fund (b) 2,097,037 - Monthly 6 Days
NTCC William Blair Fund (b) 928,130 - Monthly 6 Days
NTG! Common Daily Aggregate
Bond Index Fund (c) 13,930,413 - Daily None

$ 34,632,983

{a) The fund invests in international securities that are either exchange traded in other countries outside of the
United States of America {USA) or in securities of companies that predominantly derive their revenues from
markets outside of the USA. This fund can be redeemed monthly at the current net asset value per share
based on the fair value of the underlying assets. The fair value of this investment has been estimated using
the net asset value per share of the investment provided by the fund manager.

{b} The fund primarily invests in U.S. equity securities and may invest in cash equivalents and investment grade
bonds from time to time. This fund can be redeemead monthly at the current net asset value per share based
on the fair value of the underlying assets. The fair vaiue of this investment has been estimated using the net
asset value per share of the investment provided by the fund manager.
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

(c) The fund seeks to hold a portfolio representative of the overall U.S. bond and debt market as characterized
by the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index. This fund can be redeemed daily at the current net asset
value per share based on the fair value of the underlying assets. The fair value of this investment has been
estimated using the net asset value per share of the investment provided by the fund manager.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair vaiue on a recurring basis:
The following table summarizes assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of April 30, 2011

and 2010, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to
measure fair value:

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value {Leve! 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
2011
Assets limited as to use:
Board-designated assets for improvemenis
and replacements, common
collective trust funds:
NTCC Intemational Securilies Fund $§ 6757832 % - $ 6757832 3% -
NTCC CRM Midecap Value Fund 942,630 - 942,630 -
NTCC CS McKes Large Cap Value Fund 2,373,128 - 2,373,128 -
NTCC Marisco Fund 2,388,742 - 2,388,742 -
NTCC NWQ Fund 2,406,263 - 2,406,263 -
NTCC Sasco Fund 686,912 - 686,912 -
NTCC Small Cap Fund 1,429,549 - 1,429,549 -
NTCC TCW Fund 692,347 - 692,347 -
NTCC Wells Capital Fund 2,097,037 - 2,097,037 -
NTCC William Blair Fund 928,130 - 928,130 -
NTGI Common Daily Aggregate
Bond Index Fund 13,930,413 - 13,930,413 -
34,632,983 - 34,632,983 -
Assets held by trustee and restricted by
4578 plan agreement, mutual funds,
corporate bonds 276,917 276,917 - -
Investments held by the Foundation corporate
marketable equity securnities, comman stocks:
Financial 55,500 55,500 - -
Industrial 4,445 4,445 - -
59,945 59,945 . -

S 34969.845 $ 336862 § 34632983 % -
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Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Assets limited as to use:

Board-designated assets for improvements

and replacements, commaon

collective trust funds:

NTCC International Securities Fund

NTCC CRM Midcap Value Fund

NTCC CS McKee Large Cap Value Fund

NTCC Marisce Fund

NTCC NWGQ Fund

NTCC Sasco Fund

NTCC Small Cap Fund

NTCC Wall Street Fund

NTCC Wells Capital Fund

NTCC William Blair Fund

NTGI Common Daily Aggregate
Bond Index Fund

Assets held by trustee and restricted by

Investments held by the Foundation, corporate
marketable equity securities, common stocks:

4578 plan agreement, mutual furids,
corporate bonds

Financial

Industrial

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable tUnobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value {Level 1) {Leveal 2) (Leval 3)
2010
6,832,151 § - % 68321517 % -
765,896 - 765,896 -
2455912 - 2,455,912 -
2,496,969 - 2,496,969 -
2,607,021 - 2,607,021 -
791,837 - 791,837 -
1,149,559 - 1,149,558 -
801,259 - 801,259 -
2,591,892 - 2,591,892 -
975,386 - 975,386 -
12,451,077 - 12,451,077 -
33,918,959 - 33,918,958 -
169,416 169,416 - -
76,580 76,590 - -
4,925 4925 - .
81,515 81,515 - -
34169890 § 250931 § 33918959 S -

Concentration of credit risk: The Organization’s investment in the Funds is currently invested with one

custodian. In the event this counterparty does not fulfill its obligations, the Organization may be exposed
to risk. This risk of default depends on the creditwarthiness of the counterparty to these transaclions, The
Crganization attempts to minimize this credit risk by monitoring the creditworthiness of its counterparties.
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of April 30, 2011 and 2010 consists of the following:

2011 2010
Revenue bonds, Series 2004 $ 12,905,000 $ 13,540,000
Bond premium 79,302 83,448
12,984,302 13,623,448
Less current maturities 660,000 635,000
Total long-term debt $ 12324302 $ 12,988,448

In May 2004, the Hospital borrowed $16,630,000 from proceeds from bonds issued by the City of Ottawa,
lingis. Of these proceeds, $12,275,000 was used to refund the Series 1994 bonds. The remaining
proceeds were used for capital projects. The bonds are to be repaid over 20 years in annual principal
amounts ranging from $660,000 to $3,575,000 and bear interest at rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.2%.
The bonds have restrictive covenants and are insured by a financial guarantee insurance palicy. Under
the terms of the bond indentures, the Hospital is required to maintain certain deposits with a trustee. Such
deposits are included in assets limited as to use.

The Hospital has a bank line of credit totaling $3,000,000 which expires August 2011. Borrowings under
this line of credit bear interest at 4.13%. There were no amounts outstanding under this line of credit as of
April 30, 2011. Subsequent to year-end, borrowings on this line of credit amounted to approximately
$2,000,000.

Maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows based on the terms of
the 2004 bonds:

Year ending April 30:

2012 5 660,000
2013 690,000
2014 720,000
2015 -
2016 1,545,000
Thereafter 9,290,000
$ 12,905,000
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Note 9. Self-Insurance Programs

Self-insurance for professional and comprehensive general liability losses:

The Hospital has established a self-insurance program for its professional and comprehensive general
liability losses. The Hospital is currently funding its self-insurance professional and general liability
losses based on loss limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence with an annual limit of $3,000,000. Losses in
excess of these loss limits are covered by commercial insurance in the amount of $10,000,000 per
occurrence and in the aggregate.

The Hospital is from time-to-time involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Losses
from asserted and unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting system are
accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and other relevant factors. It is the opinion
of management that estimated malpractice costs accrued at April 30, 2011, are adequate to provide for
potential losses resulting from asserted and unasserted claims.

Operations are charged with the costs of claims reported and an estimate of claims incurred but not
reported. Total expense under the medical malpractice program was none and $(1,000,000) for the
years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The expense for the year ended April 30, 2010
includes the effect of a change in estimate which reduced the expense by approximately $1,000,000.

In accordance with the self-insurance trust agreement, the assets held by the trustee are to be used
only for the payment of covered losses and are, therefore, unavailable for the Hospital's general
operating purposes. A summary of the transactions in the trust fund for the years ended April 30, 2011
and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning $ 4392149 § 4,169,776
Interest income 188,989 222,373
Balance, ending $ 4581138 § 4,392,149

Self-insurance for employees' health insurance:

The heatlth insurance plan for the Hospital's employees is administered by a third-party administrator
and is, in effect, a self-insured plan. Monthly premiums are paid into a trust fund based on estimated
claims, with the Hospital liable for the excess of claims over the premiums paid. The Hospital has stop-
loss insurance to cover third-party claims in excess of $100,000. The accompanying consolidated
staterments of operations and changes in net assets reflect expenses of approximately $8,056,000 and
$8,072,000 relating to the employees' health insurance plan for the years ended April 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Note 10. Employee Retirement Plan

The Hospital has established a defined contribution pension plan covering substantially all of its
employees. Contributions are determined annually by the Board of Governors. Contributions to the plan
were approximately $827,000 and $1,250,000 for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Note 11. Composition of Nonoperating Gains
Nonoperating gains for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010

Income from assets whose use is limited, Board-designated

assets for improvements and replacements:

Dividend and interest income $ 533,732 % 724,453

Gain on sale of securities, primarily marketable equity

securities _ 1,011,095 404,591

Interest income from other assets 258,665 189,625
Gain (loss) on sale of land 2,706 (34,829)
Unrestricted gifts 558,776 7,343

$ 2364974 § 1,291,183

Note 12. Functiona! Expenses

The Organization provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location.
Expenses of the Hospital and not-for-profit affiliates related to providing these services for the years
ended April 30, 2011 and 20110 are as follows:

2011 2010
Health care services $ 56,091,123 § 55,922 577
General and administrative 17,921,111 17,628,149
Fund raising, net of intercompany contributions 191,843 223,872

$ 74204077 % 73,774,598
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Note 13. Income Taxes

The Hospital, Auxiliary and Foundation have been recognized as tax exempt pursuant to Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law. In lieu of corporation income
taxes, the members of RONI are taxed on their share of the LLC’s income, deductions, losses and
credits. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements do not include any provision for income taxes
for these entities. ORHA is a for-profit corporation subject to applicable federal and state income taxes.

Deferred taxes for ORHA are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized
for deduclible temporary differences and operating losses and tax credit camryforwards and deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences
between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax basis. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the defemred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in the tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

The Hospital, Auxiliary and Foundation file a Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax)
annually. When this return is filed, it is highly cerlain that some positions taken would be sustained upon
examination by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the tax
position taken or the amount of the position that would ultimately be sustained. Examples of tax positions
common to tax exempt organizations include such matters as the following: the tax exempt status of the
entity, the continued tax exempt status of bonds issued, the nature, the characterization and taxability of
joint venture income and various positions relative to potential sources of unrelated business taxable
income (UBIT). UBIT is reported on Form 990T, as appropriate. The benefit of tax position is recognized
in the consolidated financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence,
management believes that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any.

Tax positions are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the “more likely
than not” recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50%
likely to be realized on settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits
associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet along with any
associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. As of
April 30, 2011 and 2010, there were no unrecognized tax benefits identified and recorded as a liability.

Forms 990 and 990T filed by the Organization are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) up to three years from the extended due date of each return. Forms 990 and 990T filed by
the Organization are no longer subject to examination for the year ended April 30, 2007 and prior.

Form 1120 filed by ORHA is subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) up lo three
years from the extended due date of each return.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Net deferred tax assets for the years ended April 30, 2011 and 2010 consist primarily of amounts
associated with net operating losses incurred by ORHA and its wholly-owned subsidiary as shown below:

2011 2010
Deferred income tax asset $ 1,300,000 % 149,000
Less valuation reserve {1,300,000) {149,000)
Deferred income tax asset, net $ B % -

Income tax expense (credit) is provided on income (loss) generated by ORHA and its wholly-owned
subsidiary. A reconciliation of income tax expense (credit) for the years ended Aprit 30, 2011 and 2010 is
as follows:

2011 2010
Computed "expected” income tax credit $ (1,151,0000 $ (149,000)
Less valuation allowance 1,151,000 149,000
$ - $ -

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

As of April 30, 2011, construction-in-progress consists of costs of facility renovations and additions to the
Hospital's facilities to accommodate express care and sleep lab and the purchase of a new electronic
medical records system.

The Hospital has signed commitments for the purchase of a new electronic medical records system
totaling approximately $700,000 of which approximately $630,000 is remaining as of April 30, 2011. The
estimaled cost of the other renovations is approximately $6,185,000 of which approximately $2,783,000 is
remaining as of April 30, 2011. The remaining commitments related to these projects will be funded with
cash from operations and proceeds from the sale of investments.

Current economic conditions:

The current economic environment presents hospitals with unprecedented circumstances and
challenges, which in some cases have resulted in arge declines in the fair value of investments and
other assets, large declines in contributions, constraints on tiquidity and difficulty obtaining financing.
The financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to the
Organization.

Current economic conditions, including the rising unemployment rate, have made it difficult for certain
of the Organization's patients to pay for services rendered. As employers make adjustments to health
insurance plans or more patients become unemployed, services provided to self-pay and other payers
may significantly impact net patient service revenue, which could have an adverse impact on the
Organization's future operating results. Further, the effect of economic conditions on the state may
have an adverse effect on cash flows related to the Medicaid program.

Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the
financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future adjustments in investment values
and allowances for accounts and contributions receivable that could negatively impact the
Organization's ability to meet debt covenants or maintain sufficient liquidity. ATTACHMENT #6
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Laws and regulations:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. These laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, accreditation, ficensure, government health care program
participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and
abuse. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers.
Violations of these laws and regulations could resuit in exclusion from govermment health care program
participation, together with the impasition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significart
repayment for past reimbursement for patient services received. The Organization believes that it is in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing.

Health care reform:

As a result of recently enacted federal health care reform legislation, substantial changes are
anticipated in the United States health care system. Such legislation includes numerous provisions
affecting the delivery of health care services, the financing of health care costs, reimbursement of
health care providers and the legal obligations of heaith insurers, providers and employers. These
provisions are currently slated to take effect at specified times over approximately the next decade.
This federal health care reform legislation does not affect the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended April 30, 2011.
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McGladrey & Pulicn, LLP
Certified Public Acecountants

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor’'s Report
on the Supplementary Information

To the Board of Governors
Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Ottawa, lllinois

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating and other supplementary information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position
and changes in net assets of the individual organizations. The consolidating and other supplementary
information, except for that portion marked “unaudited”, on which we express no opinion, has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements

taken as a whole.
Medlatisy g e, cor

Davenpert, lowa
July 21, 2011
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Consaolidated Radiation
Ottawa Regional  Otftawa Regional Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Healthcare Center Affiliates, Inc. lllinois, LLC
Unrestricted net assets:
Net patient service revenue $ 68926629 § 58906579 % 2,340,547
Other operating revenue, net 1,582,647 127,931 -
MNet assets released from restriction, used for operations 152 - -
Total operating revenue 70,509,428 6,024,510 2,340,547
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 29,933,620 4,863,341 405,321
Employee benefits 10,850,132 1,386,434 -
Supplies and other expenses 23,136,375 2,467,406 1,109,839
Depreciation and amortization 6,421,883 177,888 410,927
Interest 318,423 - -
Provision for bad debts 3,349,236 324,384 24,145
Total operating expenses 74,009,669 9,219,453 1,850,232
Income (loss) from operations (3,500,241) (3.194,943) 390,315
Net nonoperating gains (losses) (594,608) - 6,794
Current year change in unrealized gains on
trading securities 2,504,108 - -
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over
expenses {1,590,741) (3,194,943) 397,109
Less excess of revenue over expenses atfributable to
noncontrolling interest - - {170,757}
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
attributable to controlling interest {1,590,741) (3,194,943} 226,352
Current year change in unrealized (losses) on invesiments - - -
Capita! contributions (distributions} - 2,598,641 {798,000)
Increase (decrease) in
unrestricted net assets § {1,690,741) % {596,302) % {571,648}
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Ottawa Regional

Ottawa Regional

Hospilal & Hospital &
Healthcare Center Healthcare Center
Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
3 - $ 77,163,755 § - 3 - - $ 77,163,755
{230,129} 1,480,449 169,791 7,470 - 1,657,710
- 152 10,239 14,561 - 24,952
{230,129) 78,644,356 180,030 22,031 - 78,846 417
- 35,202,282 81,986 - - 35,284,268
- 12,236,566 - - - 12,236,566
(230,129) 26,483,491 92,409 36,744 (19,286) 26,593,358
- 7,010,698 2,555 - - 7,013,253
- 318,423 - - - 318,423
- 3,697,765 - - - 3,697,765
(230,129) 84,949,225 176,950 36,744 (19,286) 85,143,633
- (6,304,869} 3,080 (14,713} 19,286 (6,297,216)
2,968,591 2,380,777 39 3,092 (19,286} 2,364,974
- 2,504,108 - - - 2,504,108
2,968,591 (1,419,984} 3471 {11,621} - (1,428,134)
. (170,757) ; - - (170,757)
2,968,591 (1,590,741} 3.471 {11,621) - (1,598,891)
. - - (21,570) - (21,570)
(1.800,641) - - - - -
5 1,167950 % (1,590.741) & 3471 % (33,191} % - $ (1,620.461)
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended April 30, 2010

Consolidated Radiation
Oflawa Regional ~ Ottawa Regional Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Healthcare Center Affiliates, Inc. lllincis, LLC
Unrestricted net assets:
Net patient service revenue % 68507763 % 1,937.491 % 2,149,533
Other operating revenue, net 1,233,872 25,191 -
Net assets released from restriction, used for operations - - -
Total operating revenue 69,741,635 1,962,682 2,149,533
Expenses: ’
Salaries and wages 30,325,306 1,401,919 390,143
Employee benefits 11,473,504 209,957 -
Supplies and other expenses 21,491,295 660,719 969,903
Depreciation and amortization 5,970,624 29,975 391,588
Interest 147,245 - -
Provision for bad debts 3,142,753 46,534 62,402
Total operating expenses 72,550,727 2,349,104 1,814,036
Income (loss) from operations (2,809,092} {386,422) 335,497
Net nonoperating gains 1,270,583 - 3.622
Current year change in unrealized gains on
trading securities 7,479,931 - -
Excess {daficiency) of revenue over
expenses 5,941,422 {386,422) 339,119
Less excess of revenue over expenses attributable to
noncentrolling interest - - (145,821)
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over expenses
attributable to controlling interest 5,941,422 (386,422) 193,298
Current year change in unrealized gains losses on investments - - -
Change in interest in net assets of related organization {136,000) - -
Net assets released from restriction, used for the
acquisition of property and equipment 1,406,208 - -
Capital contributions (distributions) - 1,850,000 (342,000)
Increase {decrease) in '
unrestricted net assets 3 7211630 % 1,463,578 =:$; {148,702)
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Ottawa Regional  Ottawa Regional

Hospital & Hospital &
Healthcare Center Healthcare Center

Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ - $ 72594787 § - $ - $ - $ 72,594,787
- 1,259,063 168,254 15,218 - 1,442 535
- - - 1,011,709 - 1,011,709
- 73,853,850 168,254 1,026,927 - 75,049,031
- 32,117,268 78,674 - - 32,196,042
- 11,683,461 - - - 11,683,461
- 23,121,917 141,869 1,185,340 (184,567) 24,264,559
- 6,392,187 2,555 - - 6,394,742
- 147,245 - - - 147,245
- 3,251,689 - - - 3,251,689
- 76,713,867 223,008 1,185,340 (184,567) 77,937,738

- {2,860,017) (54,844) (158,413) 184,567 (2.888,707)
193,124 1,467,329 438 7,983 (184,567) 1,291,183
- 7,479,931 - - - 7.479,931
193,124 6,087,243 {54,406} (150,430) - 5,882,407
: (145.821) - : - (145.821)

193,124 5,941,422 (54,406) (150,430) - 5,736,586
- - - 6.321 - 6,321

- (136,000) - - 136,000 -
- 1,406,208 - - - 1,406,208

{1,508,000) - - - - -
$ {1,314876) % 7211630 % {544068) § (144.109) § 136,000 % 7,149,115
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Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Ottawa Ottawa Consolidated
Regional Regional Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Affiliates, inc. Center, Inc. Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Revenue:
Net patient service revenue $ - $ 5896579 § - $ 5.896,579
Other operating revenue, net - 127.931 - 127,931
Total operating revenue - 6,024,510 - 6,024,510
Expenses:
Salaries and wages - 4,863,341 - 4,863,341
Employee benefits - 1,386,434 - 1,386,434
Supplies and other expenses - 2.467.406 - 2,467,406
Depreciation - 177,888 - 177,888
Provision for bad debts - 324,384 - 324,384
Total operating expenses - 9,219,453 - 9,219,453
{Loss) from operations - (3.194,943) - (3.194,943)
Nonoperating expense (3,194,943} - 3,194,943 -
Net (loss) $ (3,194,943} $ (3,194943) $§ 3,194943 § (3/194943)
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Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended April 30, 2010

Ottawa Ottawa Consolidated
Regicnal Regional Otftawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc. Center, Inc. Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Revenue:
Net patient service revenue $ - $ 1937491 § - $ 1,937,491
Other operating revenue, net - 25,191 - 25,191
Total operating revenue - 1,962,682 - 1,962,682
Expenses:
Salanes and wages " - 1,401,919 - 1,401,919
Employee benefits - 208,957 - 209,957
Supplies and cther expenses - 660,719 - 660,719
Depreciation - 29,975 - 29,975
Provision for bad debts - 46,534 - 46,534
Total operating expenses - 2,349,104 - 2,349,104
(Loss) from operations - (386,422) - (386,422)
Nonoperating expense (386,422) - 386,422 -
Net {loss) $ (386422) $ (386,422) % 386,422 % (386,4%
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Heaithcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidating Balance Sheet

Aprit 30, 2011
Consolidated Radiation
Ottawa Regional  Otlawa Regional Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Assels Healthcare Center Affiliates, Inc. lllinois, LLC
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,059,606 % 5926 & 477,106
Certificates of deposit - - -
Receivables, net 8,313,009 840,988 111,503
. Supplies and materials 1,658,739 141,467 -
Prepaid expenses:
Medicaid assessment program 284,113 - -
Other 752,296 67,697 10,731
Total current assets 12,067,763 1,056,078 599,340
Assets Limited as to Use 40,962,045 - -
Praperly and Equipment:
Land and improvements 3.829,891 - -
Building and improvements 68,021,150 1,462 25,797
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 33,317,795 638,869 2,429,583
Construction in process 6,416,598 - -
111,588,435 640,331 2,455,380
Less accumulated depreciation 56,621,398 207,863 1.024,583
54,967,037 432,468 1,430,797
Investments, primarily investment in associated company 3,617,499 - -
Other Assets, primarily debt issuance costs, net
and physician advances 1,206,177 643,236 -
Total assets $ 112820521 % 2,131,782 % 2,030,137
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Ottawa Regional

Ottawa Regional

Hospital & Hospita! &
Healthcare Center Healthcare Center
Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Consolidated
$ - $ 1,542,638 § 83355 % 24914 % 5 1,650,907
- - 4,191 160,372 164,563
(37,750) 9,227,750 3,579 - 9,231,329
- 1,800,206 70,165 - 1,870,371
- 284,113 - - 284,113
- 830,724 148 - 830,872
(37,750) 13,685,431 161,438 185,286 14,032,155
- 40,962,045 1,250 17,018 40,980,313
- 3,829,891 - - 3,829,891
- 68,048,409 - - 68,048,409
- 36,386.248 46,389 - 36,432,637
- 6,419,598 - - 6.419,598
- 114,684,146 46,389 - 114,730,535
- 57,853,844 45112 - 57.898,956
- 56,830,302 1,277 - 56,831,579
{1,929,307) 1,688,192 - 59,945 1,748,137
- 1,849,413 - - 1,849,413
$ (1,967,057) % 115015383 § 163,965 §$ 262,249 & § 115,441,597
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidating Balance Sheet

April 30, 2011
Consolidated Radiation
Ottawa Regional  Oftawa Regionél Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Liabilities and Net Assets Healthcare Center Affiliates, Inc, Minois, LLC
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 660,000 % - 5 -
Accounts payable 2,631,832 254 760 28,99%
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 1,275,036 316,130 39,792
Accrued earned time 2,853,895 189,195 -
Deferred revenue, medicaid assessment program 561,969 - -
Estimated third-party payor settlements 2,069,584 - -
Other accrued expenses 1,924,469 222,296 98,137
Total current liabillties 11,976,785 982,381 166,925
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 12,324,302 - -
Other Accrued Expenses 425918 282,125 -
Estimated Self-Insurance Costs 1,251,000 - -
Total liabilities 25,978,005 1,264,506 166,925
Net Assets and Equity:
Common stock - 100 -
Additional paid-in capital - 4,448 541 -
Retained earnings - (3,581,365) -
Unrestricted net assets 86,832,668 - 1,062,031
Noncontrotling interest - unrestricted - - 801,181
Temporarily restricted net assets 9,848 - -
Permanently restricted net assets - - -
Total net assets 86,842 516 867,276 1,863,212

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 112820521 $ 2131782 § 2030137
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Ottawa Regionat

Hospital &

Healthcare Center

Ottawa Regionat
Hospital &
Healthcare Center

Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Eliminations Consolidated

- $ 660,000 § - $ - - $ 660,000

(1,191} 2,914,397 8,190 - - 2,922,587

(36,559) 1,594,399 17,548 - - 1,611,947

- 3,043,090 - - - 3,043,090

- 561,969 - - - 561,969

- 2,069,584 - - - 2,069,584

- 2,244,902 9,057 - - 2,253,959

(37,750) 13,088,341 34,795 - - 13,123,136

- 12,324,302 - - - 12,324,302

- 708,043 - - - 708,043

- 1,251,000 - - - 1,251,000

(37,750) 27,371,686 34,795 - - 27,406,481
(100) - - - - -
(4,448,541) - - - - -
3,581,365 - . - - -

(1,062,031) 86,832,668 127,920 245,231 - 87,205,819

- 801,181 - - - 801,181

- 9,848 1,250 12,293 - 23,3H

- - - 4,725 - 4,725

(1,929,307) 87,643,697 129,170 262,249 - 88,035,116

{1.967,057) $& 115015383 § 163,965 § 262,249 - § 115,441,597
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consolidating Balance Sheet

April 30, 2010
Ccensolidated Radiation
Ottawa Regional  Ottawa Regional Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Assets Healthcare Center Affiliates, Inc. llinois, LLC
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,580,500 & 265534 % 837,087
Certificates of deposit - - -
Recsivables, net 9,354,779 1,249,431 243,539
Supplies and materials 1,815,617 126,859 -
Other, primarily prepaid expenses 674,749 58,255 7.624
Total current assets 13,425,645 1,690,079 1,188,250
Assets Limited as to Use 39,907,403 - -
Property and Equipment:
Land and improvements 3,627,524 - -
Building and improvements 62,442,200 1462 25,797
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 29,621,106 316,603 2,423,797
Construction in process 7,429,433 - -
103,120,263 318,065 2,449 594
Less accumulated depreciation 50,555,992 29,975 613,656
52,564,271 288,090 1,835,938
Investments, primarily investment in associated company 4,742,565 - -
Other Assets, primarily debt issuance costs, net
and physician advances 1,505,727 475,978 -
Total assets $ 1121445611 & 2,454,147 § 3,024,188
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Ottawa Regional

Ottawa Regional

Hospital & Hospital &
Healthcare Center Heaalthcare Center
Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ - 3 2773121 § 71,106 § 37,160 - $ 2,881,387
- - 19,673 159,747 - 179,420
{530,897) 10,316,852 2,017 - - 10,318,869
- 1,942 476 60,755 - - 2,003,231
- 740,628 143 - - 740,771
(530,897) 15,773,077 153,694 196,907 - 16,123,678
- 39,907,403 10,239 15,640 - 39,933,282
- 3,627,524 - - - 3,627,524
- 62,469,459 - - - 62,469,459
- 32,361,506 46,389 - - 32,407,895
- 7,429,433 - - - 7429433
- 105,887,922 46,389 - - 105,934,311
- 51,199,623 42 857 - - 51,242,180
- 54,688,299 3.832 - - 54,692,131
{3,097,257) 1,645,308 - 81,515 - 1,726,823
- 1,981,705 - - - 1,981,705
$ (3628,154) $ 113995792 § 167,765 $ 294,062 - § 114,457,619
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Consclidating Balance Sheet
April 30, 2010

Consolidated Radiation
Ottawa Regional  Ottawa Regicnal Oncology
Hospital & Healthcare of Northern
Liabilities and Net Assets Healthcare Center Affitiates, Inc. lllinois, LLC
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 3 635000 % - -
Accounts payable 2,297,258 507,940 2,449
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 1,125,570 255,210 73,483
Accrued earned time 2,639,888 143,541 -
Estimated third-party payor settltements 690,363 - -
Other accrued expenses 1,693,850 73,178 82,153
Total current liabilities 9,081,930 979,869 158,085
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 12,988,448 - -
Cther Accrued Expenses 300,824 10,700 -
Estimated Self-Insurance Costs 1,351,000 - -
Total liabilities 23,722,202 990,569 158,085
Net Assets and Equity:
Common stock - 100 -
Additional paid-in capital - 1,849,900 -
Retained earnings - (386,422) -
Unrestricted net assets 88,423,409 - 1,633,679
Noncontrolling interest - unrestricted - - 1,232,424
Temporarily restricted net assets - - -
Permanently restricted net assets - - -
Total net assets 88,423,409 1,463,578 2,866,103
Total liabilities and net assets $ 112145611 % 2,454 147 3,024,188
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Ottawa Regional

Hospital &

Healthcare Center

Ottawa Regional
Hospital &
Healthcare Center

Eliminations Subtotal Auxiliary Foundation Eliminations Consclidated

5 - $ 635000 & - - - 5 635,000

(457.414) 2,350,234 8,469 - - 2,358,703

(73,483) 1,380,780 13,599 - - 1,394,379

- 2,783,429 - - - 2,783,429

- 690,363 - - - 690,363

- 1,849,181 11,009 - - 1,860,190

(530,897) 9,688,087 33,077 - - 9,722,064

- 12,988,448 - - - 12,988,448

- 311,524 - - - 311,524

- 1,351,000 - - - 1,351,000

(530,897) 24,339,959 33,077 - - 24,373,036
(100) - - - - -
(1.849,900) - - - - -
386,422 - - - - -

(1,633,679) 88,423,409 124,449 278,422 - 88,826,280

- 1,232,424 - - - 1,232,424

- - 10,239 10,915 - 21,154

- - - 4,725 - 4,725

(3,097.,257) 89,655,833 134,688 204,062 - 90,084,583

$ (3.628,154) § 113995792 § 167,765 294 062 - $ 114,457 619
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Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.

Consolidating Balance Sheet
April 30, 2011

Cttawa Ottawa Consolidated
Regicnal Regional Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Assels Affiliates, Inc. Center, Inc. Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Current Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 3 5826 § - 3 5,926
Recaivables, net - 840,988 - 840,988
Supplies and materials - 141,467 - 141,467
Other, primarily prepaid expenses - 67,697 - 67,697
Total current asseis - 1,056,078 - 1,056,078
Property and Equipment:
Building and improvements - 1,462 - 1,462
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 638,869 - 638,869
- 640,331 - 640,331
Less accumulated depreciation - 207,863 - 207,863
- 432 468 - 432 468
Investment in Subsidiary 867,276 - (867,276) -
QOther Assets, primarily noncompete covenant, net
and physician advances - 643,236 - 643,236
Total assets 5 867276 $ 2131782 % (867.276) % 2,131 ,782=
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Ottawa Ottawa Consolidated
Regional Regional Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity Affiliates, Inc. Center, Inc. Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 - $§ 254,760 - $ 254,760
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes - 316,130 - 316,130
Accrued eamed time - 189,195 - 189,195
Other accrued expenses - 222,296 - 222,296
Total current liabilities - 982,381 - 982,381
Other Accrued Expenses - 282,125 - 282,125
Total liabilities - 1,264,506 - 1,264,506
Stockholder's Equity:
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 1000
shares; issued 100 shares 100 100 {100} 100
Additional paid-in capital 4,448,541 4,448,541 {4,448,541) 4,448 541
Retained earnings (3,5681,365) (3,581,365) 3,581,365 (3.581,365)
Total stockholder's equity 867,276 BG7,276 (867,276) 867,276
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity % 867,276 3 2131782 (867,276) 3 2,131,782
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Ottawa Regional Healthcare
Affiliates, Inc.

Consolidating Balance Sheet
April 30, 2010

Ottawa OHawa Consolidated
Regional Regional Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Assels Affiliates, Inc. Ceniter, Inc. Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 - $ 265534 § - $ 255534
Receivables, net - 1,249,431 - 1,249,431
Supplies and materials - 126,859 - 126,859
Other, primarily prepaid expenses - 58,256 - 58,255
~ Total current assets - 1,690,079 - 1,690,079
Property and Equipment:
Building and improvements - 1,462 - 1,462
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 316,603 - 316,603
- 318,065 - 318,065
Less accumulated depreciation - 29,975 - 20,975
- 288,090 - 288,090
Investment in Subsidiary 1,463,578 - {1,463,578) -
Other Assets, primarily noncompete covenant, net
and physician advances - 475,978 - 475,878
Total assets § 1463578 § 2454147 § (1.463,578) $ 2454147
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Ottawa Ottawa Consolidated
Regional Regional Ottawa Regional
Healthcare Medical Healthcare
Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity Affiliates, Inc. Center, Inc, Eliminations Affiliates, Inc.
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 507,940 § - $ 507.940
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes - 255,210 - 255,210
Accrued samed time - 143,541 - 143,541
Other accrued expenses - 73,178 - 73,178
Total current liabilities - 979,869 - 979,869
Cther Accrued Expenses - 10,700 - 10,700
Total liabilities - 990,569 - 990,569
Stockholder's Equity:
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 1000
shares; issued 100 shares 100 100 (100) 100
Additional paid-in capital 1,849,900 1,849,900 {1.849,900) 1,849,900
Retained earnings (386,422) (386,422) 386,422 (386,422)
Total stockholder's equity 1,463,578 1,463,578 {1,463,578) 1,463,578

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 1463578 § 2454147 § (1463.578) $ 2454147
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Ceonter and Affiliates

Patient and Financial Statistics
{Hospital Only)

Year Ended April 30,

Revenue and Expenses Statistics 2011 2010

Net patient service revenue $ 68926629 $ 68,507,763
Other operating revenue 1,582,647 1,233,872
Net assets released from restriction, used for operations 152 -

§ 69,741,635

$ 70,509,428

Patient days (unaudited):

Acute care days 7,981 8,770
Mental health days 4,845 4,309
Nursery days 945 942
Total patient days 13,771 14,021
Adjusted patient days (unaudited) (1) 35,279 36,818
Net operating revenue per adjusted patient day {unaudited) $ 1,99862 § 1,894.23
Percentage increase (decreasa} 5.5% 2.6%
Operating expenses $ 74,000,669 § 72,550,727
Operating expenses per adjusted patient day (unaudited) 2,097.84 1,970.52
Percentage increase {decrease) 6.5% 4.6%
% of salaries, wages and employee benefits to total operating
expenses 55.1% 57.6%
Income (loss) from operations $ (3,500,241) § (2,809,092)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses {1,590,741) 5,941,422
Increase (decrease) in net assets {1,580,893) 6,805,422
April 30,
Balance Sheet Statistics 2011 2010
Total current assets $ 12,067,763 § 13425645
Total current liabilities 11,976,785 9,081,930
Working capital $ 90,978 5 4,343,715
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.01to 1 1.481t0 1
Average number of days revenue in patient receivables (2) 44 days 50 days

(1} Total patient days (less nursery days) divided by the percentage of inpatient revenue to total
patient revenue.

(2) Computed based on patient accounts receivable after adjustments for unapplied third-party
payments, estimaled third-party contractual adjustments and the allowance for doubtful accounts
excluding Medicaid assessment.
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Year Ended April 30,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 71,800,158 $ 70441122 $ 66,931,546 §$ 55784716 § 55535160
1,136,621 1,184,151 1,004,677 907,616 781,944
$ 72936779 $ 71625273 § 67936223 $ 56692332 § 56317,104
9,585 10,179 9,808 9,958 10,759
5,257 5,659 5,044 3,676 4,084
1,012 930 700 791 869
15,854 16,768 15,552 14,425 15,712
39,493 40,820 38,278 33,499 35,007
$ 184683 § 1,75466 § 1,77482 § 169236 § 1,608,74
5.3% {(1.1)% 4.9% 5.2% 2.8%
$ 74431671 $ 69759579 $ 65921054 § 56,620,040 $ 55276683
1,884.68 1,708.96 172217 1,600.20 1,579.02
10.3% (0.8)% 1.9% 7.0% 5.4%
55.2% 53.1% 52.7% 56.0% 55.1%
$ (1,494892) $ 1865694 § 2015169 § 72,292 % 1,040,421
(4,450,953) 5,673,378 4,459,614 2,471,367 1,738,031
(11,154,576) 3,926,861 7,322,280 7,310,687 4,325,626

April 30,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 15099723 $ 211528912 § 21526340 § 16961426 § 22251635
8,788,922 10,018,441 8,220,317 6,254,820 5,850,127
$ 6310801 § 11134471 & 13,306,023 $ 10706606 $ 16,401,508
1.72t01 2.11to 1 262101 271101 3.80to1
49 days 62 days 54 days 65 days 73 days
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Financial Ratios
(Hospital Only)

April 30,
2011 2010 " 2009 * 2009 **
.  Profitability Ratios
Operating margin - (5.0)% {(4.0)% (2.0)% (2.0)%
Total margin {5.7) (2.0) (6.4} 06
Return on net assets {3.6) (1.7} (5.5} 06
Il. Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio 1.01to 1 1.48 to 1 1.72to1 1.72%0 1
Number of days of patient service revenue
in patient accounts receivable 44.0 days 49.9 days 48.9 days 48.9 days
Days cash on hand 5.8 days 8.7 days 18.0 days 18.0 days
Average payment period 64.7 days 49 8 days 46.4 days 46.4 days
lll, Capital Structure Ratios
Long-term debt to capitalization 12.4% 12.8% 14.4% 14.4%
Debt service coverage 232to 1 3.56 to 1 1.26to 1 5.63t0 1
Cash flow to total debt 9.0% 18.3% 3.6% 23.5%
V. Other Ratios
Average age of plant 8.86 years 8.56 years 8.57 years 8.57 years
Contractual allowance percent 60.3% 58.4% 53.1% 53.1%
* Calculations prepared with investments classified as trading
** Calculations prepared with investments classified as other-than-trading
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Statement of Operations Information
{Hospital Only)

Patient Service Revenue 2011 2010
Total
Routine care services:
Medical-surgical $ 10455239 3 968579
Psychiatric care unit 10,878,685 9,540,950
Intensive care unit 1,719,574 1,664,727
Obstetrical 2,504,882 2,463,060
Nursery . 676,620 630,198
26,235,000 23,984,731
Other nursing services:
Surgical services 24,993,861 23,503,793
Central services and supply 1,687,758 1,629,170
Intravenous therapy 2,212,476 2,162,372
Emergency service 13,165,343 11,937,731
Delivery and labor room 1,364,396 1,176,986
Outpatient services 11,523,980 10,074,465
Home health 4,586,678 4,655,385
59,534,492 55,139,902
Other professional services:
Laboratary 21,169,754 20,396,520
Pharmacy 7,900,970 8,072,395
Radiology 40,300,212 36,463,856
Respiratory therapy 6,897,285 7,021,543
Physician professional services 10,658,025 11,668,004
Physical, occupational and activity therapy 7,131,809 6,983,347
94,058,055 90,605,665
179,827,547 169,730,298
Less charity care {6,154,272) (5,135,314)

$ 173673275 § 164,594 984
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Year Ended April 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Inpatient Outpatient

$ 6,109,283 § 6,347,733 $ 4345956 $ 3,338,063
7,207,872 6,113,960 3,670,813 3,426,990

1,711,056 1,664,727 8,518 -
1,718,424 1,720,919 786,458 742,141

676,620 630,198 - -
17,423,255 16,477,537 8,811,745 7,507,194
6,590,431 7,566,793 18,403,430 15,837,000
1,055,731 1,119,682 632,027 509,488
1,522,120 1,564,395 690,356 597,977
3,555,464 3,286,002 9,609,879 8.651,729
1,016,114 786,358 348,282 390,628
1,678,724 1,569,917 9,845,256 8,504,548
- - 4,586,678 4,655,385
15,418,584 15,893,147 44,115,908 39,246,755
7,616,404 7,691,245 13,553,350 12,705,275
4,478,968 4,737,027 3,422,002 3,335,368
5,661,332 6,164,827 34,638,880 30,299,029
4,964,607 5,591,988 1,932,678 1,429,555
2,540,777 2,966,526 8,117,248 8,701,468
716,332 771,616 6,415,477 6,211,731
25,978,420 27,923,239 68,079,635 62,682,426
$ 58,820,259 $ 60,293,923 $ 121,007,288  $ 109.436,375
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affitiates

Statement of Operations Information
{Hospital Only)

Discounts, Allowances and Contractual

Year Ended April 30,

Adjustments 2011 2010
Contractual adjustments:
Medicare $ 53269925 $ 48,704,780
Medicaid 25,900,382 22,093,102
Other 24,872,310 24,317,349
104,042,647 95,115,231
Administrative adjustments, discounts and other 704,029 971,990
$ 104,746,646 $ 96,087.221
Other Operating Revenue (Expense)
Cafeteria sales $ 405,498 % 368,317
Medical records 2,837 2,789
Pharmacy sales to employees 12,243 15,221
Commissions 674 621
Self-insurance trust realized investment income 188,990 222,372
Rental income 681,312 493,182
Bioterrorism grant 27,460 20,142
Private service grants 3,222 5,184
Other grants 25,000 -
Community classes 52,944 36,866
Miscellaneous 182,497 69,178
$ 1582647 $ 1,233.872
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Statement of Operations Information

{Hospital Only)

Year Ended April 30,

2011
Supplies
Operating Expenses, Summary by Salaries and Other
Departments Total and Wages Expenses
Administrative and general services:
Administration $ 3064842 § 732,432 $ 2,332,410
Fiscal services 4,306,960 1,913,766 2,393,194
Plant operation and maintenance 2,376,146 818,855 1,557,291
Housekeeping 1,314,038 726,449 587,589
Laundry and linen 291,473 38,716 252,757
Dietary 2,016,041 790,261 1,225,780
Nursing service administration 1,423,650 1,046,582 377,068
Medical records 1,368,434 712,780 655,654
Social and community service 984,673 390,396 594,277
General and administrative 1,240,138 636,327 603,811
. 18,386,395 7,806,564 10,579,831
Routine care services:
Medical-surgical 3,206,925 2,114,033 1,092,892
Psychiatric care unit 5,268,274 3,825,191 1,443,083
Intensive care unit 990,382 708,242 282,140
Obstetrical 1,450,533 950,506 500,027
Nursery 184,916 121,329 63,587
11,101,030 7,719,301 3,381,729
Other nursing services:
Surgical services 5,736,141 1,570,025 4,166,116
Central services and supply 718,435 198,088 520,347
Intravenous therapy 540,937 355,913 185,024
Emergency services 3,036,038 1,371,540 1,664,498
Outpatient services 2,047,965 1,043,953 1,004,012
Home heaith 2,767,914 1,675,428 1,092,486
$ 14847430 $ 6214947 $ 8,632,483
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Year Ended April 30,

2010

Supplies

Salaries and Other

Total and Wages Expenses
$ 2139455 % 671,682 1,467,773
3,705,412 1,843,718 1,861,683
2,397,601 716,669 1,680,932
1,343,862 735,509 608,353
333,388 38,550 294,838
2,028,934 790,125 1,238,809
1,452,095 1,055,798 396,297
1,442,659 715,555 727,104
1,036,156 421,674 614,482
997,380 541,517 455,863
16,876,942 7,530,798 9,346,144
3,417,015 2,264177 1,152,838
4,988,622 3,562,407 1,426,215
983,784 687,424 296,360
1,641,178 1,037,989 603,189
259,117 178,363 80,754
11,289,716 7,730,360 3,559,356
5,458,795 1,576,175 3,882,620
690,679 192,697 497,982
556,744 374,923 181,821
3,228,338 1,432,121 1,796,217
1,963,773 1,011,637 952,136
2,617,763 1,556,439 1,061,324
$ 14516082 $ 6,143,992 8,372,100

{Continued)
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Statement of Qperations Information

{Hospital Only)
Year Ended April 30,

2011
Supplies
Operating Expenses, Summary by Salaries and Other
Departments (Continued) Total and Wages Expenses
Other professional services:
Laboratory $ 2942309 $ 877,249 $ 2,065,060
Pharmacy 2,607,687 751,513 1,856,174
Radiology - 5,073,241 2,516,936 2,556,305
Respiratory therapy 942,981 568,404 374,577
Physician professional services 2,730,159 1,307,854 1,422,305
Physical, occupational and activity therapy 2,743,011 1,633,631 1,109,380
Bioterronsm 27,460 - 27,460
Quality assurance 813,747 537,221 276,526
Medicaid Hospital Assessment 1,704,677 - 1,704,677
19,585,272 8,192,808 11,392,464

63,920,127 $ 29933620 §$ 33,986,507

Depreciation and amortization 6,421,883
Interest 318,423
Pravision for bad debts 3,349,236

$ 74,009,669
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Year Ended April 30,

2010
Supplies
Salaries and Other
Total and Wages Expenses

$ 3040464 914163 $ 2,126,301

2,825157 805,647 2,019,510
4,746,066 2,339,577 2,406,489
953.458 541,921 411,537
3,833,329 2,255,440 1,577,889
2,714,608 1,554,474 1,160,134
20,143 - 20,143
769,455 508,934 260,521
1,704,675 - 1,704,675
20,607,355 8,920,156 11,687,199

63,290,105 _$ 30,325306 § 32,964,798

5,870,624
147,245
3,142,753

$ 72,550,727
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Balance Sheet Information
{Hospital Only)

April 30,
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 2,700 % 2,175
Operating and payroll checking accounts 1,005,635 1,273,220
Money market checking accounts 51,271 305,105

$ 1,059606 $ 1,580,500

April 30,
2011 2010
Patient Receivables Amount Percent Amount Percent
In-house and discharged
0-30 days $ 9,905,642 48.18% $ 10,066,451 48.80%
Discharged:
31-60 days 1,843,841 8.97 1,654,056 8.02
61-90 days 1,492,402 7.26 1,596,531 7.74
Over 91 days 7,317,993 35.59 7,313,026 3544
20,559,878 100.00% 20,630,064 100.00%
Less estimated third-party
contractual adjustments 7,853,606 8,082,976
12,706,272 12,547,088
Less allowance for doubtful
accounts” 4,745,000 4,755,000
$ 7,961,272 $ 7,792,088

* Analysis of allowance for doubtful accounts:
Balance, beginning
Addition to allowance for the year
Recoveries of accounts previously written off,
net of collection costs

Accounts written off during the year
Balance, ending

Year Ended April 30,

2011 2010

$ 4,755,000 $ 5,713,000
3,780,558 3,602,853

(344,366) {230,050)

8,191,192 9,085,803
(3,446,192) (4,330,803)

$ 4745000 $ 4,755,000
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare

Center and Affiliates

Balance Sheet Information
(Hospital Only)

April 30,
Supplies and Materials 2011 2010
Central supplies $ 144557 § 146,025
Dietary 31,160 29,772
Pharmacy 355,017 362,071
Operating room 1,128,005 1,277,749
$ 1,658,733 $ 1815617
Assets
Balance Balance
April 30, April 30,
Property and Equipment 2010 Acquisitions Transfers Retirements 2011
Land and improvements $ 3627524 § 202367 § - 8 - §$ 3,829,891
Building and improvements 64,570,576 728,889 3,521,362 (152,543) 68,668,284
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 27,500,359 125,092 5,248,013 (195,173) 32,678,291
Construction in progress 7,421,804 7,759,540 {8,769,375) - 6,411,969
$103,120,263  $ 8,815888 $ - $ (347,716) § 111,588,435
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Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciated

Estimated Balance Balance Cost
Life April 30, April 30, April 30,

In Years 2010 Depreciation Eliminations 2011 2011
25 $ 2023602 % 96,223 & - $ 2119825 §& 1,710,066
10-40 29,481,788 3,076,865 (19,511) 32,539,142 36,129,142
3-20 19,050,602 3,220,022 {308,193) 21,962,431 10,715,860
- - - - 6,411,969
$ 50555992 $ 6393110 § {(327,704) $ 56,621,398 $ 54,967,037
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Community Benefits (Unaudited)
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Ottawa Regiona! Hospital & Healthcare Center and affiliates (ORRHC) provided approximately $16 million
in community benefits during the year ended April 30, 2011. Responding to the needs of special
populations, such as the elderly, people living in poverty, and those with chronic mental illness, requires a
significant and ongoing effort on the part of ORHHC, including staff and volunteers, many of whom
donate countless hours of their awn personal time to help make a positive difference in the community.

The Hospital's contributions during the year ended April 30, 2011 included charity care; the
underpayment for Medicaid patients; the unpaid debt of patients; the cost of subsidizing medical services
that bring a financial loss; the cost of training the next generation of doctors, nurses, and other highly-
skilled heatth care professionals, to include scholarships to graduating high school seniors pursuing
careers in health care; providing free language assistance; donations of meeting space and volunteer
time; and other free programs addressing community health needs.

ORHHC is committed to meeting the needs of every person in the communities it serves, regardiess of
whether or not they can pay. A $7.8 million shortfall in the cost of treating patients from Medicaid and
other government-sponsored programs accounted for nearly half of the Hospital's community benefits.
ORHHC has seen an increase in charity care over the past few years. During the year ended April 30,
2011, ORHHC provided aver $6 million in free care to the community.

A freestanding facility, the Health Center of Eastern LaSalle County {(Health Center), provides free health
care services to individuals and families who do not have access to health insurance, do nct qualify for
state or federal programs, and do not have the financial resources to secure the health care they need.
Thirteen of ORHHC’s physicians volunteer their services to provide primary health care, and the Health
Center does not receive any federal or state funds. Ancillary services, such as lab and x-ray, that are
unavailable at the clinic, are provided by the Hospital at no charge.

ORHHC has the only hospital providing mental health services between Naperville, Joliet, Peoria and the
Quad Cities. Although several local and regional hospitals ceased to provide behavioral heaith care due
1o a lack of profitability, ORHHC expanded its programs and services to meet community needs. While
the program continues to operate at a loss (nearly $6 million in fiscal year 2011), ORHHC remains
committed to providing this vital service.

Being abte to provide meeting room space for community programs and events such as blood drives,
health fairs, and Children’'s Hospital {a program for area first-grade students), has long been a source of
pride at ORHHC. The Hospital regularly provides educational and informationat programs and makes
presentations to community groups and clubs, service organizations, businesses, industries, churches,
schools, and the general public on topics such as disease prevention, mental health, nutrition, personal
effectiveness, physical fitness and safety. ORHHC also offers free transportation services for patients
through its Care-a-Van program, providing in excess of 4,600 rides last year.

Last year, approximately 8,000 community members participated in support groups and classes offered
by ORHHC. ORHHC's support groups included adult grief support; Alzheimer's caregivers; bereavement;
breast cancer; caregiver, COPD; CPAP; diabetes; early stage dementia; and healthy lifestyles. Among
the hospital’s many community education classes were cesarean section; childbirth preparation; CPR;
diabetes; first aid; focus based exercise; and healthy eating.
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Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare
Center and Affiliates

Community Benefits (Unaudited) - {Continued)
Year Ended April 30, 2011

Each year, the Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center Foundation (Foundation) awards
scholarships to graduating seniors from area high schools who are pursuing careers in the healthcare
industry. Alongside the Ottawa Regionat! Hospital & Healthcare Center Auxiliary, another key group
comprised entirely of volunteers, the Foundation plays a leading role in the well-being of the communities
it serves by financially supporting the Health Center of Eastemn LaSalle County and the Family Room
program, which allows parents receiving government assistance (o earn points for good parenting skills.
Points can then be exchanged for infant and household supplies.

ORHHC has provided exceptional health care to the communities it serves for more than 100 years, and
has the distinct honor of being fully accredited by the Joint Commission. But it's the care ORHHC and its
employees provide that goes beyond the walls of ORHHC’s buildings — caring for children in need, caring
for those who lack food, homes, insurance, and transportation, and caring for the young people who
represent our society’s future — that makes our communities great places to live, work, learn and grow.
ORHHC employees and volunteers take pride in donating their time and resources in aclivities such as
the Thanksgiving turkey drive, Freezin for a Reason food drive, Labor of Love program, Care-a-Van
program and serving on numerous community and not-for-profit boards.
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VERIFICATIONS

Attachment #7 includes verification of the items specified in 77 1. Adm.Code 1130.520(b) and (c)(5). Please note that there
are no outstanding permits.

The verifications included in the attachment are described below:

1) Verification tbat the categories of service and number of beds as reflected in the Inventory of llealth Care Facilities will not
substantially change for at least 12 months following the project's completion date.

2) Proof that the applicant is fit, willing, and able and has the qualifications, background and character to adeguately provide
a proper standard of kealth service for the comntunity [20 11.CS 3960/6] by certifying that no adverse action has been taken
against the applicant by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of illinois
against any health care facility owned or operated by the applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing
of the application.

3) Proof that the applicant has sufficient funds to finance the acquisition and to operate the facility for a period of 36 months by
providing evidence of a bond rating of "A" or better {that must be less than two years old) from Fitch's, Moody's, or Standard
and Poor's rating agencies or evidence of compliance witb HFPB financial viability review criteria applicable to the type of
facility to be acquired as specified in 77 1ll. Adni. Code 1120.

4) Verification that the applicant intends to maintain ownership and control of the facility for a minimum of three years.

5) Verification that any projccts for which permits have been issued have been completed or will be completed or altered in
accordance with the provisions of this Section.

6) Certification that the facility will not adopt a more restrictive charity care policy than the policy that was in ¢ffect one year
priot to the transaction. The hospital must provide certification that the compliant charity care policy will remain in effect for a
two-year period, following the change of ownership transaction.

7) Verification that failure to complete the project in accordance with the applicable provisions of Section 1130.570 no later
than 12 months from the date of exemption approval (or by a later date established by HFPB upon a finding that the project has

proceeded with due diligence) and failure to comply with the material change requirements of this Section will invalidate the
exemption,
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Verifications — OSF Healthcare System

OSF Healthcare System verifies that the categories of service identified in the Illinois Department of Public Health
Inventory of Health care Facilities for Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center will not substantially change for
at least 12 months following the project's completion date.

OSF Healthcare System hereby certifies that there has been no adverse action taken against any healthcare facility
owned and operated by it by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of the State of
Hlinois within the past three years.

OSF Healthcare System hereby verifies that ownership and control of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
will be maintained by OSF Healthcare System for a minimum of three years following the receipt of the Certificate of
Exemption for Change of Ownership.

OSF Healthcare System hereby certifies that any projects for which permits have been issued have been completed or
will be completed or altered in accordance with the provisions of Section 1130.520.

OSF Healthcare System hereby certifics that it will not cause Ottawa Regional Hospital& Healthcare Center to adopt a
more restrictive charity care policy than the policy in effect one year prior to the transaction. Ottawa Regional
Hospital& Healthcare Center will maintain its compliant charity care policy for two years, following the change of
ownership transaction.

OSF Healthcare System hereby certifies that it understands that failure to complete the change of ownership of Ottawa
Regional Hospital& Healthcare Center in accordance with the applicable provision of Section 1130.570 within 12
months from the date of exemption approval and failure to comply with the material change requirements of this
Section 1130.520 will invalidate the exemption.

OSF Healthcare System //
Signature of Authorized Officer: %—— J dé‘.f'ﬁ—

Typed or Printed Nanie of Authorized Officer: Kevin Schoeplein

Title of Authorized Officer: Chief Executive Officer, OSF Healthcare System

Address: 800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue

City, State & Zip Code: Peoria, IL 61603

Telephone: 309-655-4982 pate, 18/ 2.
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Verifications - Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center

1. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center verifies that the categories of service identified in the Illinois
Department of Public Health Inventory of Health care Facilities for Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
will not substantially change for at least 12 months following the project's completion date.

2. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center hereby certifies that there has been no adverse action taken against any
healthcare facility owned and operated by it by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other
agency of the State of [llinois within the past three years.

A notice of deficiency is pending as described in the attached affiliation agreement.

3. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center hereby verifies that ownership and control of Ottawa Regiconal
Hospital & Healthcare Center will be maintained by OSF Healthcare System for a minimum of three years following
the receipt of the Certificate of Exemption for Change of Ownership.

4. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center hereby certifies that any projects for which permits have been issued
have been completed or will be completed or altered in accordance with the provisions of Section 1130.520.

5. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center hereby certifies that it will not adopt a more restrictive charity care
policy than the policy in effect one year prior to the transaction. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center will
maintain its compliant charity care policy for two years, following the change of ownership transaction.

6. Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center hereby certifies that it understands that failure to complete the change
of ownership of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center in accordance with the applicable provision of Section
1130.570 within 12 months from the date of exemption approval and failure to comply with the material change
requirements of this Section 1130.520 will invalidate the exemption.

Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcar.

Signature of Authorized Officer:

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer: Robert Chaffin
Title of Authorized Officer: President and Chief Executive Officer of Ottawa Regional Hospital & Healthcare Center
Address: 1100 E. Norris Drive

City, State & Zip Code: Ottawa, IL 61350

Telephone: 815-431-5456 Date: ! * 18-12-
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